Systems Engineering Tool for Intelligent Transportation

Help Manual

Version 9.2.1

Prepared by the

National ITS Architecture Team

Prepared for:

Intelligent Transportation Systems Joint Program Office (ITS JPO) US Department of Transportation Washington, DC 20590

November 2023



Table of Contents

SET-IT Help	9
Support Services	9
End User License Agreement?	9
What's New	
Bugs Fixed	
Other Notes about This Version	
Known Issues	
Getting Started Using SET-IT	
What Is SET-IT?	
Considerations for This Version	
Steps for First-Time Users	
SET-IT Terminology	
Application	
Architecture, Customized	
Architecture, Uncustomized	
Center	
Coordination	
Element	
Field	
Files	
FIPS	
Functional Objects	
Hyperlink	
Interfaces, Information Flows	
Interfaces, Interconnect	
Interoperability	
Layers (Communications Diagrams)	
Layers (Physical Diagrams)	21
Need	21
Origin	21
Personal	
Physical Interconnect	
Physical Object	

Profile	
Project	
Project Architecture	
Protocol Stack	
Readiness	
Region	
Relationship	
Roles	
Scenario	
Sequence	
Service Package	
Service Package Implementation	
Service Package Instance	
Solution	
Stakeholder	
Standards	
Support	
System	
Terminal	
Terminators	
Triple	
Vehicle	
Views	
Starting SET-IT	
Read Me	
Projects in SET-IT	
Create a New Project	
Open an Existing Project	
Converting from a Previous Version of SET-IT	
Save a Project	
File Notes	
Read-Only Files	
Language Support:	
AutoBackup	

Save your work often	
SET-IT Crashed and I Forgot to Save!	
Other Uses of the Temp Folder Window:	
Close a Project	
Print a Project	
Export / Zip Up the Project Files	
Access Help	41
Describe the Project	41
Project Information	
Additional Information on the Overview Screen	
Importing a Project from RAD-IT	
Regional and Project ITS Architectures	
Steps to Import a RAD-IT Project	
Notes on Project Import from RAD-IT	
Questions about Import	
Select Service Packages	53
Model Systems Engineering (SE) Documents Service Packages	53
Service Package Selection Window	
Service Package Implementations	55
Including Service Packages	
Missing Service Packages	
Searching for Service Packages	
Open a Sample Project	
Opening and Saving the Sample Project	
More on the Sample Project	61
SET-IT Options	
General Options	
Diagrams Options	
Synchronization Options	67
Requirements Options	
Validation Options	
Diagram Verification Options	70
Output Options	71
Event Log Options	72

Import Options	73
Advanced Options	73
AutoBackup Options	74
Searching My Project	76
Diagrams & Architecture Components	77
Common Usage Notes	77
Physical View	79
Including a Service Package	79
Create a New Physical Diagram	80
Add a Shape to a Diagram	81
Delete a Shape	83
Create an Element	83
Creating a Complex Element	
Creating Communications Elements	
Remote Access Device	90
Creating a Child or Instance of Another Element	90
Adding a Physical Object to a Diagram / Assigning Element	91
How Do I Customize an ITS Class Shape?	94
Shape Properties for Elements with Multiple Physical Objects	
Create a New Information Flow	100
Identify Shape Properties of Flows	101
Flow Characteristics	104
Using FIPS	107
Create a New or User Defined Information Flow	110
Functional Objects on a Diagram	115
Add a Hyperlink	116
Can I draw my own Layer 2 diagram without an ARC-IT service package?	117
Diagram Clean-Up Tool	118
Diagram Completion Verification	120
Status of Multiple Shapes	123
Drawing Higher Layer Physical Diagrams	124
Layer 0/1 Settings	125
Layer 0 Specific Instructions	127
Layer 1 Specific Instructions	129

Enterprise View	134
Create a New Enterprise Diagram	136
SET-IT and Agreements	139
Add a Shape to a Diagram	140
Delete a Shape	142
Create a Stakeholder	142
Add an Enterprise / Stakeholder	144
Add a Resource	146
Add a Hyperlink	148
Creating a New Agreement	149
Creating a New Expectation	150
Creating a Role	151
Drawing a Member of relationship	153
Notes about Drawing Enterprise Diagrams	154
Communications View	155
Populating the Communications View	157
Using the Communications View Definitions Menu	162
Comm View Definitions Grid Features	171
Other Diagram and Architecture Tools	171
Creating New Items from the Ribbon	171
Creating a New Service Package	173
Creating a New Stakeholder	174
Creating a New Element	175
Creating a New Status Value	178
Creating a New Physical Object	179
Creating a New Functional Object	
Creating a New Information Flow	
Creating a New Requirement	
Creating a New Physical Standard	
Creating a New Need	
Creating a New Agreement, Expectation, or Role	
Creating a New Communications or Data Profile	
Creating a New Standard	
Creating a New Standard Bundle	

Creating a New Solution	
Add Comments or Notes to a Diagram	
Add a Legend from SET-IT Stencil to a Diagram	
Update a Physical Layer 0 or Layer 1 Diagram	
Show Related Shapes	
Update an Enterprise Layer 0 Diagram	
Update the Diagram Title Block	201
Pan and Zoom a Diagram	
Defining Scenarios	203
Defining Sequences	203
Clipboard	
Editing/Adjusting Your Diagrams	210
Other Toolbar and SET-IT tools	213
Using Terminals	214
Adding Terminals	215
Going Further with Terminals	215
Using Data Distribution	215
Needs	218
Need Areas Definitions Grid	219
Needs Definition Grid	220
Requirements	221
Requirements Grid	
Requirement Allocation Grid	226
Needs to Requirements Grid	
Using the Left Menu	
Overview Menu	
Diagrams Menu	
Definitions Menu	230
General Definitions Grid Features	231
Physical View Definitions	234
Enterprise View Definitions	241
Communications View Definitions	243
Review	245
Spell Check	245

Validation	246
Physical View Validation Checks	
Enterprise View Validation Checks	
Communications View Validation Checks	
General Validation Checks	251
Validate Flows Tool	251
Outputs	253
Output Tables (Reports)	253
Output Tables (Reports) Dialog Screen	253
Output Tables Options	255
Output Filter by Elements	255
Output Tables (Reports) – Current List of Reports	257
Output Documents	259
Concept of Operations Document Generation	259
Project Architecture Document Generation	
System Requirements Specification (SyRS) Document Generation	
Output Diagrams	
Interface Diagrams	
Context Diagrams	
Communications Diagrams	

SET-IT Help

Version 9.2 - 11/20/2023

This provides help on the use of the **Systems Engineering Tool for Intelligent Transportation (SET-IT)** software tool. SET-IT is designed to integrate drawing and database tools with the Architecture Reference for Cooperative and Intelligent Transportation (ARC-IT). ARC-IT represents what was formerly known as the National ITS Architecture that merged with the content of the Connected Vehicle Reference Implementation Architecture (CVRIA) so that users can develop project architectures for pilots, test beds and early deployments.

Support Services

Our customer support team is standing by to offer friendly, responsive technical support to SET-IT users. You can contact customer support via phone or email. To receive the best support, please have the following information ready before contacting us:

- The version of SET-IT that you are using (and whether it's 32-bit or 64-bit),
 - Look at the splash screen when SET-IT opens or open the Project tab and select 'About' near the bottom of the navigation pane.
- The version and name of your operating system,
 - On the Windows desktop click the Start button (^{III}), select Computer, then select System Properties on the navigation ribbon near the top of the screen to see your system version and name information.
- A brief description of your problem or issue.

Telephone (U.S.): (800) 260-1001 Email: <u>setit@iteris.com</u>

End User License Agreement?

The SET-IT software is provided by USDOT without fee and in an "as is" condition. There is no End User License Agreement (EULA) or Terms of Service associated with the SET-IT software available from the ARC-IT website. Anyone interested in developing or maintaining a project architecture is allowed and encouraged to download the software and use it.

If you have further questions, please contact Cliff Heise at <u>cdh@iteris.com</u> or 703.623.6709. He is the Program Manager for the National ITS Architecture Program.

What's New

With this Bug Fix release there are several new features as well as several problems fixed:

- Expanded the capability of the Search tool to include service packages and service package implementations in the results
- Updated the Service Package Search capability to search for Physical Objects, Information Flows, and Functional Objects contained within a service package diagram
- Added the included Diagram to the list of available columns on the Security Characteristics Analysis output table in SET-IT in order to support users that want to show where certain security characteristics and their rationale appear
- Updated the conversion process so that if your project includes a diagram for a Service Package (SP) that has been renamed during an ARC-IT upgrade and the original diagram name is still intact then conversion will rename that diagram to reflect the updated SP name. Conversely, it will not touch it if the user had already renamed a diagram in the previous version. This change included similar updates to Need Areas.
- Concept of Operations (ConOps) and Architecture document templates now follow the project files so when a project is open and you make changes the files will be in your computer's temporary folder until you save your project. At that point all the files, include the document templates will be updated and stored along with your project's diagrams and database.
- Updated the naming of SP Instances and Diagram Names to accommodate cases where there may be multiple diagrams for the same SP
- Communications Solutions use the Issues and Gaps to determine which solutions are most appropriate and 'ready' for deployment. Now users can customize those calculations by clicking 'Ignore' to an issue if they know it will not affect their deployment. The readiness will then be recalculated for the information flow and the service packages that use it.
- The performance of the Enterprise diagram generation has been enhanced; the process is quicker and should result in less hand editing
- SET-IT Output Documents Generator now provides more control over the generation and inclusion of context diagrams. You now have the option to generate new diagrams or select existing Visio drawing files to be inserted into your output document.
- You can now enter 'Notes' about each view communications, enterprise, and physical as part of Overview menu. These Notes can be included in the Output documents, i.e., the ConOps and Project documents.
- Flow Alias: Users can create and apply an alias for information flow names to create diagrams that are more customized. This provides a way to show an alternative name for a flow on diagrams and in reports and outputs. Whenever the Alias is applied that alternative name will be used on diagrams. Both names will be listed on tabular lists and outputs.
- A new option gives the user the choice of whether to "Show class level physical objects". Many users will not need to know or see the automatic mappings that SET-IT makes to the Center, Field, Personal, and Vehicle physical objects. These physical objects are called class-level or level 1 objects that contain common functions and interfaces for any element created in that class. As a user maps an element to one of the level 2 or specialty level physical objects in those classes, SET-IT will automatically map the class level object

to that element. This option gives the user the ability to see or hide those class-level object mappings which may be helpful for certain projects to see the underlying mappings.

 SET-IT projects based on the FHWA Model Documents will be available for download from a new "Share-IT" page on the <u>www.arc-it.net</u> website which can also be a way for you to share your own project files in order to pass along your insights to others.

An updated Sample Project can be used to see how some of these new features look.

Bugs Fixed

- \circ $\;$ This release corrects several issues with previous versions:
 - Fixes an error that occurred when a document (ConOps or Architecture document) was generated after conversion from an older version of SET-IT.
 - The Project Architecture document generator was not including all flows in a project.
 - An error no longer occurs for users that were trying to build a Layer 0 diagram. there was an issue if they had previously Completed a layer 2 diagram and then made more changes to it. This caused a conflict that then caused the Layer 0 diagram to generate an error.
 - An error that occurred if you had the ConOps or project architecture document template open when you tried to close SET-IT. SET-IT now detects that situation and tells you to close the template before closing SET-IT.
- ARC-IT Enterprise View data has been updated and imported so that default agreements and expectations are created automatically as stakeholders are assigned to elements based on the rules for how those stakeholders relate to one another in the selected service packages. For example, the owner of one system may need to have an information exchange agreement with the owner of another interfacing system.

Other Notes about This Version

As with each version you can open and migrate projects that were created in previous versions of SET-IT. The "Conversion" process as it is called will go through and update your architecture so that it works with the current features of SET-IT. For example, older architectures may have included bidirectional information flows which are no longer supported. Conversion will tell you that you will need to separate those flows into 2 unidirectional flows. SET-IT will produce a report during conversion that lists objects that have been deprecated (no longer supported) and replaced in the new version. This report can be saved as a text file for analysis later on. Conversion now also detects flows that were routed through data distribution systems (DDS) and, in some cases will remove that routing because the rules for eligibility for routing information through a DDS may have changed. Conversion will also detect, and add as necessary, any mappings to the class level or level 1 physical objects (Center, Field, Personal, and Vehicle). These physical objects contain common functions and interfaces for any element created in that class. There is an option available that gives the user the ability to see or hide those class-level object mappings. The Conversion Report will list all of the changes made during the conversion process.

This version corrects a number of defects in the previous build related to saving files and installation.

NOTE: The development of SET-IT is an ongoing activity with new features being added periodically so an update is likely to be released every 8 weeks or so. At that time you will want to download and install the new version in order to get the most up-to-date features. *Be sure you exit SET-IT and save your files* before trying to uninstall SET-IT and install the update.

SET-IT no longer relies on the Microsoft Access Database Engine 2010. SET-IT will no longer install the Access Database Engine as part of the installation because Microsoft products now build those utilities in to their installed base. There are a few configurations of older Microsoft Office that may need the services of Access. In this case you may be directed to install Microsoft's Access Runtime product – this separate download from Microsoft's website will give your system the necessary utilities to support SET-IT.

 If you previously had a copy of SET-IT on your machine, then you may still have Microsoft Access Database Engine 2010 installed. SET-IT's installation will identify this and direct you to uninstall it. You will need to use your Control Panel to uninstall this Access Database Engine. Then you will also need to perform a Repair of your other Microsoft Office products and restart your machine. Once that's complete you can resume installing SET-IT.

Known Issues

There are a few issues based on different configurations or errors that happen on a sporadic basis that you may encounter.



- Outputs created by the Interface Diagrams tool will sometimes show a flow that appears to go off the page. It is still connected to the right boxes – it's just routed in a strange way. The quick work-around is to simply move one of the boxes up and back down and the flow will properly reroute itself. They may also notice a performance hit when generating lots of diagrams at once. You can use the selection tools to divide up the outputs into batches to help with the resource usage.
- SET-IT can only support 1 copy of SET-IT on a machine at a time so if the installation script detects a version of SET-IT on your machine it will uninstall it before installing the new version. You will then be able to use the Convert feature to convert your older projects to match the schema and features of this new version.
- Some users have noticed that the In My Project filter on the Definitions grids will sometimes freeze up and won't switch to show all rows. If this happens the work around is to restart SET-IT.

- One issue that has reoccurred on a sporadic basis is the wiping out of data entered on the Project screen from the Overview menu. This sometimes occurs with a new architecture and when the user has filled-in data for the cells on the Project Overview screen and then goes to another table or menu area. You may notice that your typing has been wiped out. To avoid disruption please do a SAVE before you leave the Project Overview screen.
- Access Database Engine (ADE) 2016 seems to be incompatible with Office 365 Pro Plus or other versions of Office that are considered "Click-to-Run". Users with this combination received SET-IT initialization errors. Users had to uninstall ADE 2016, perform a Repair of the Office products, and restart before SET-IT would work with Office 365.
- Users may get an error generating outputs to Word or Excel that refers to 'Interop' in the error message. If this happens the solution is to close SET-IT, go to the Control Panel and look for your Microsoft Office, click "Modify" or "Change" and select a "Quick Repair". Restart SET-IT and it should generate outputs again.
- If you are using a cloud-based or network-based storage system like OneDrive or Drop Box that try to synchronize your local files over a network, then you may get a message that you have a "Locked File Selected" and "The selected file appears to already be open in another application. Please close the other application so SET-IT has exclusive access to the file." If this happens, you can still close SET-IT and your information is still stored. To avoid this message, go into the settings for the file sharing program, e.g., Drop Box, and pause synchronization until you are done generating the tables, documents, diagrams, or web pages.
- The Align&Space feature does not work well when you use a 'lasso' technique to select multiple objects. When you click the mouse and drag a square around several shapes to select them all at once Visio cannot determine which was selected first in order for its alignment rules to work. To select multiple shapes, it is best to click the first shape and then press the Ctrl button and Left-Click to select the other shapes you want to align.
- Output Tables for Enterprise objects, agreements, and relationships may be blank if you try to generate outputs before generating an Enterprise Diagram. Generate the diagram and then the output tables will be populated.
- Deleting stakeholders on the Definitions grid that are associated with a shape on an enterprise diagram will result in an error on sync; avoid the error by deleting the shape on the diagram first; (will be fixed in a later release).
- Some users have reported an error message that occurs after they close or exit SET-IT. The error mentions an "Unknown software exception (0xc0000000d)". Clicking OK to the error message completes the exit process and no harm to any user data or to the computer configuration has been seen. This seems to be due to a conflict with Office/Visio 2016.
- Since 2016, Microsoft's Office products are not compatible with previous versions of Office products. If a user has older versions of Office and then has another Office product that is

2016 or newer, then the products are incompatible. For instance, if users had a standalone copy of Visio 2013 and then the rest of their Office suite was upgraded to 2016, 2019, or Office 365 then they will also need to get an updated version of Visio.

- Some users have reported a clipboard error when the certain diagrams or documents are begin generated or when a project is imported from RAD-IT. This happens when there are other programs running on the computer that are also trying to access the Microsoft Windows Clipboard. Steps have been taken to alleviate this but if this happens the best thing to do is delete the diagrams affected and regenerate the diagrams or redo the import. If it happens during Import you may see a screen suggesting that you Exit SET-IT without saving the imported project and start over. To try and prevent these errors it is best to try and not do anything else like Cut, Copy, or Paste on other programs while SET-IT is working on Import or diagram creation. One other workaround is to go into the Windows Settings for the Clipboard and make sure the Clipboard History setting is 'Off'. This prevents the clipboard from keeping other things that may interfere with SET-IT during diagram/document generation or import.
- Some drawings when they are imported into SET-IT have boxes that show up with just a white box and no color to represent their class. Sometimes this may look like a box with extreme gradients in the coloring, with washed out white at the top and blue at the bottom. This appears to be a resource issue on the user's computer. Delete the diagram and try again.
- A "System Resources Exceeded" error may occur when generating lots of diagrams or building a complex Layer 1 or Layer 0 diagram. Errors like this can lead to a catastrophic failure in the SET-IT database. SET-IT will prohibit future work on that database until the database is properly repaired. Once an error of this class is logged, any subsequent operation on the database should be prohibited and the user so notified. Upon any subsequent opening of the project the user will be notified that the database is corrupt and to choose a different file.



Notify the SET-IT Help Line if this occurs. You may have to use Task Manager to close SET-IT. As the warning message says, you may be able to reduce the risk of future file corruption issues by going to your system's Control Panel and performing a Repair of your Microsoft Office products, including Visio. Also, the usual caution to save your work and use the Export feature to periodically save of your project files into a separate zip file applies.

 Ctrl-drag copy does not work properly. Experienced Visio users may be accustomed to using Ctrl-drag to quickly copy a group of graphical elements. In SET-IT, that can have unintended consequences due to the need for SET-IT to maintain synchronization between the objects on the diagram and the database at all times. Users should just be aware when trying to use this feature.

Getting Started Using SET-IT

This section provides answers to basic questions like: What is SET-IT? What's in this version? How should you get started? What do all the terms used in SET-IT mean? What should I be aware of when I start SET-IT?

What Is SET-IT?

The **Systems Engineering Tool for Intelligent Transportation (SET-IT)** provides a single tool that integrates drawing and database tools with ARC-IT. ARC-IT represents what was formerly known as the National ITS Architecture merged with the content of the Connected Vehicle Reference Implementation Architecture (CVRIA). Users can develop project architectures for pilots, test beds and early deployments. This tool is based on Microsoft Visio for the drawings and Microsoft Access for the underlying data definitions.

The ARC-IT framework includes physical, functional, enterprise, and communications views for a wide range of ITS and connected vehicle applications, including Safety, Mobility, and Environmental applications as well as supporting services.

SET-IT users are encouraged to start by copying Service Package diagrams (by clicking Include) and customizing them to meet their own project needs. This way users can take advantage of a common set of drawings, objects, and interface definitions.

Considerations for This Version

This tool is provided as-is, with no implied warranty. While the development team will make every effort to maintain compatibility between versions, it is possible that a future version will not be 100% database compatible with this release. Please pardon the construction dust...

In this version you can create *physical view*, *enterprise view*, *and communications view* architecture drawings using the same Visio template as ARC-IT.

SET-IT no longer supports Microsoft Visio 2010 – you must have 2013 or later.

You can select/copy any of the ARC-IT service packages to use as starting points for your project. You can customize the physical object elements and flows descriptions. You can also generate outputs in the form of diagrams or tables that can be used in tools such as Microsoft Word or Excel. **NOTE**: You can create Enterprise View Layer 0 drawings *after* you have created a Physical Layer 0. You can also use the Definitions grid to build a list of agreements based on the relationships between stakeholders that perform various roles with respect to the elements in the Physical View.

This version includes the ability to create a Concept of Operations (ConOps) document using either an ISO Standard 29148 template, a template used as a reference implementation in connected vehicle research projects, or a template used for Federal Highway Administration Model Systems Engineering Documents.

SET-IT imports the Needs and Requirements from ARC-IT for the Service Packages (application); you can include these needs and customize them for your project, or you can create a new set of needs for your project. You can also define Scenarios for a Service Package and define Sequences as an additional layer to the physical diagrams that will be used as part of the ConOps.

This version supports the Communications View by providing customizable solutions. The Communications View defines the layered sets of communications protocols that are required to support communications among the system elements that participate in the connected vehicle environment. SET-IT uses the templates and the information contained in the definitions tables that map the communications protocol standards to the element/flow triples selected in the physical view in order to generate the layered protocol diagrams for each interface.

This version includes a Sample Project that you can use in different ways – to see how a project is constructed or even to use to jump-start your own project. The Sample Project shows a mix of transportation and support Service Packages that many ITS and connected vehicle projects will need. You can start with the sample project file and customize it by adding your own Service Packages and drawings in addition to the Service Packages included in this sample project.

Steps for First-Time Users

This version includes a Sample Project that you can use to jump-start your own project. The Sample Project shows a mix of transportation and support Service Packages that many ITS and connected vehicle projects will need. You can start with the sample project file and customize it by adding your own Service Packages and drawings in addition to the Service Packages included in this sample project.

If this is your first time using this tool here are some practical steps to take to get started using the tool. There are additional help topics for each of these steps.

- 1) From the Project tab, start by creating a **New Project**
- 2) From this point you can use the **Service Packages** button to select one of the ARC-IT diagrams to *include* in your project. This will copy the physical diagrams as well as the needs and enterprise content defined in ARC-IT.

- 3) Use the Search box at the bottom of the list to search for an ARC-IT service package that includes a key word or phrase you are interested in.
- 4) If you want to start your own diagram, use the **Diagrams** button at the bottom of the left menu to start the Diagrams then click the Diagram button at the top and fill in the information to start a new diagram.
- 5) Use the diagrams tool bar and edit the **Shape Properties** of the objects and flows on the diagram.
- 6) Use the **stencil** to drag new shapes (physical and functional objects) and lines (information flows) onto the diagram.
 - a. Physical Objects: represent the major physical components of the transportation environment.
 - i. Elements are local/customized instances of the ARC-IT physical objects.
 - ii. Physical Objects are shown on the diagram shapes (see the bottom of the Shape Properties window to see what Physical Object a shape represents) and can be related to Elements using the Details button on the Shape Properties.
 - iii. Physical Objects can include one or more functional objects if they are providing connected vehicle functionality.
 - b. Functional Objects: define more specifically the functionality and interfaces that are required to support a particular service package.
 - c. Information Flows: depict the exchange of information that occurs between Physical Objects and Functional Objects.
- 7) Double-click on each object and create a list or inventory of local/project-specific elements that represent the systems and device types that will be deployed or developed in your project or region. Associate the Elements with one or more physical objects on your diagram.
- 8) While still on the **Element Details** window enter **stakeholders** for who *owns* and who *manages* that element. These will be used later when you customize the Enterprise view and when you output the Stakeholders and the Relationship reports. You can also select roles like *maintains* for cases where one agency or company may be maintaining the components of a center that is owned by another entity. You can also use the *uses* role to show a case where a word like *uses* conveys more of the idea that a user is touching the controls of an interface like on a piece of Traveler Support Equipment located in an airport or mall.
- 9) Click on **Outputs** from the toolbar and export tables to be used in other publications.

Those steps will give you a basic physical view of a project architecture. You can go further by selecting the Enterprise View from the ribbon and customizing the stakeholders and their relationships, initially based on ARC-IT, and then generate Communications view protocol drawings for each interface that can be exported and included in your project documentation.

SET-IT Terminology

SET-IT and ARC-IT upon which SET-IT is based use some terms that may be unfamiliar to many users. Use this table and the ARC-IT website (<u>www.arc-it.net</u>) to learn more.

Application

Former term for a connected vehicle or ITS application from CVRIA describes the physical objects and interfaces, communications, functions, and enterprise relationships needed to provide a certain set of connected vehicle needs or requirements. See *Service Package*.

Architecture, Customized

A customized architecture is one in which element and information flow associations have been modified on the Diagrams tab in SET-IT. The flow status or other characteristics may be changed or the project association for a flow or element may be deselected.

Architecture, Uncustomized

An uncustomized architecture is one which has been built by including Service Packages from ARC-IT, including the prior Connected Vehicle Reference Implementation Architecture (CVRIA), via the "Service Packages" option on the Overview tab from the Home screen in SET-IT, but no changes to element or information flow selections have been made, i.e., no tailoring of the architecture has been done yet.

Center

Center is a term used in SET-IT and represents the primary Administration or Management "Element". This may often be a physical building (such as a Freeway Management Center) that includes one or more physical objects such as traffic management or transportation information functionality.

Coordination

In the Enterprise view, Coordination refers to the relationships that tie enterprise objects, or stakeholders, together. Formal coordination between Enterprise Objects is shown by red lines on an Enterprise Layer 0 diagram. This indicates that the parties involved enter into a formal *agreement*, where the nature of the relationship is documented by license, specification or other document. Informal coordination between Enterprise Objects is shown by blue lines on the Enterprise Layer 0 diagram. This indicates that the parties involved do not enter into any formal agreement, but nonetheless have some understanding of how the other party will act, either in terms of actions taken or data provided.

SET-IT will select relationships or points of coordination to include in the Coordination Report or on a generated Enterprise Layer 0 drawing by looking at the service package as well as other potential relationships that are defined among those same Enterprise Objects in other parts of ARC-IT.

Element

This is the basic building block of a local, regional or project architecture. It is the name used by the stakeholders to describe an instance of one or more connected vehicle/ ITS physical objects. An element is defined by the name that a user gives to an instance of the physical object (e.g., Caltrans/California Highway Patrol District 12 Traffic Management Center). [An element is also assigned to one or more stakeholders.]

Field

Field, a type of ARC-IT physical object and used in SET-IT represents the intelligent infrastructure distributed along the transportation network which performs surveillance, information provision, traffic control functions and whose operation is governed by a center object. Some field objects such as the Roadside Equipment (RSE) include the wireless communications to communicate directly with mobile devices, e.g., vehicles with onboard connected vehicle equipment.

Files

The definition of an architecture is saved in a set of files. A user's architecture will be saved by SET-IT in a set of files – a drawing file, a database, and a configuration file. Within these project files the user may define zero to many Service Packages.

FIPS

Federal Information Processing Standard (FIPS) Publication 199, Standard for Security Categorization of Federal Information and Information Systems, is used to characterize the flows of information into and out of a device in terms of its requirements for Confidentiality, Integrity, and Availability (C-I-A). This can be used on any service package physical diagram by selecting a flow and bringing up Shape Properties. From there you can select a check box to say "Using FIPS" and bring up the FIPS Details form to select from Low, Medium, or High for each of the Confidentiality, Integrity, and Availability settings and provide a rationale for your selection. Using this method is in lieu of using the Encryption and Authenticability values in Shape Properties. ARC-IT used this approach for its service packages and those are available in SET-IT to use as a starting point for your own projects.

NOTE: For flow lines on a diagram that have more than one flow name changing the FIPS basis and/or values will change information for all selected triples on that line. If you want to change FIPS information for individual triples, add another line to the drawing, assign the flow you want to change to that line and change the FIPS settings from there.

Functional Objects

Functional Objects, formerly known as Application objects or Equipment Packages are the smaller boxes within the physical objects on the drawings. They define the functionality that is required for each physical object to support one or more ITS Service Packages. Deployment status of a given Functional Object is indicated by its color; white (existing) light gray (included in project) and dark gray (future).

Hyperlink

An automatic link or reference to another location or file, perhaps to another location on the internet. In SET-IT you can create hyperlinks in order to add references or pointers to source material located on other websites or in other documents. You can use SET-IT to generate hyperlinks for Information Flows, Physical Objects, Functional Objects, and Resources that can be used as references in your output documentation.

Interfaces, Information Flows

Information flows define direction-specific information flow between ARC-IT physical objects and between elements of a Project Architecture – such as "road network conditions" from a traffic management center to an emergency center. Forms the basis for the standardization of interfaces.

Interfaces, Interconnect

Communications paths that carry information between physical objects of ARC-IT and between elements of a Project Architecture. P-Interconnects, or Physical Interconnects, appear on Layer 0 or 1 and contain all of the information flows between 2 physical objects.

Interoperability

The ability of two or more systems or components to exchange information and to use the information that has been exchanged.

Layers (Communications Diagrams)

Layers on a communications diagram refers to the abstract layers among communications protocols or partitions of functionality that are needed to achieve interoperability. These layered diagrams, also called protocol diagrams or profiles, show how each part of the communications 'stack' contributes to overall communications. The Communications View in SET-IT is based on the Communications View of ARC-IT. The layers and cross-cutting management and security planes of the ARC-IT Communications Model are described below:

- **ITS Application Entity:** The ITS application entity standards specify the structure, meaning, and exchange patterns of information between two end points.
- **Facilities Layer:** Facilities Layer Protocols define the rules and procedures for exchanging data, for representing the bits and bytes of information content to be transferred (e.g., encoding), and provide mechanisms for opening, closing, and managing a dialogue between ITS Applications. Sessions may be asynchronous as in paired requests and responses (information exchanges), asynchronous as in an unsolicited publication of information, and may require acknowledgement of receipt or not.
- **TransNet Layer:** TransNet (referring to the combination of Transport and Network) layer protocols define the rules and procedures for exchanging application data between endpoints as well as the routing, message disassembly/re-assembly and network management functions.
- Access Layer: Access Layer protocols define the rules and procedures for exchanging data between two adjacent devices over some communications media, as well as the signaling protocols that are typically developed for specific communications media.

- **Management Plane:** Management standards define the rules and procedures for controlling elements at all layers.
- **Security Plane:** The security plane identifies standards that specify policies and system-tosystem authentication, and encryption of data across one or more layers of the communications stack.

See the <u>Communications Viewpoint Specification</u> page at the <u>www.arc-it.net</u> website for more information.

The Communications View tools allow you to view the standards assigned to each layer by ARC-IT or use the grid or diagram Shape Properties tool to assign standards to each layer, including the Security Plane. Validation tools can be used to help you find places where you may have put a security standard on a physical layer for internal communications or other inappropriate choices.

Each Communications View Diagram shows the information flow triple at the top and potential communications protocols in a layered stack that may be used for deployment.

Layers (Physical Diagrams)

One way to think of the physical view of a project is to think of it hierarchically where each *layer* in the hierarchy helps understand different aspects of the project. The layers can be briefly described as follows:

Layer 0 – high-level view showing all of the physical elements in a project and high-level links or "physical interconnects", also called "P-Interconnects", to show which elements are connected to each other and what type of communications may be required. There can be one or more Layer 0 drawings for each project. SET-IT will generate the Layer 0 drawings based on the Layer 2 drawings.

Layer 1 – adds the Functional objects that are inside each of the physical elements and uses the same P-Interconnects as on Layer 0. There can be one or more Layer 1 drawings for each project. SET-IT will generate the Layer 1 drawings based on the Layer 2 drawings.

Layer 2 – is based on each service package and includes all of the physical elements, the functional objects, and information flows for a single service package (formerly application) within the project. There will be as many Layer 2 diagrams as there are service packages for a project. Typically, Layer 2 will be the starting point as SET-IT provides the tools to Include or copy the ARC-IT service packages into your architecture.

Need

A specific goal or problem that the system, Service Package, or project is intended to achieve or solve. Sometimes referred to as a User Requirement as compared to a System Requirement.

Origin

See Region.

Personal

Personal, as a class of ARC-IT physical object and used in SET-IT, represents the equipment used by travelers to access transportation services pre-trip and en route. This was formerly known as the Traveler class. This includes equipment that are owned and operated by the traveler as well as equipment that are owned by transportation and information providers.

Physical Interconnect

Also known as P-Interconnects, these are thought of as the high-level communications paths or links that carry information between 2 *physical* objects on a Layer 0 or Layer 1 physical diagram. They contain all of the information flows between 2 objects.

Physical Object

A physical object represents a system or device defined in the ARC-IT physical view, or a user defined (locally defined) object. In SET-IT, each shape on a physical view drawing represents a physical object. Physical objects are grouped into five classes: Center, Field, Personal, Support, and Vehicle. Examples include Traffic Management Center (TMC), Vehicle Onboard Equipment (VOBE), and ITS Roadway Equipment, corresponding to traffic operations centers, equipped automobiles, and legacy ITS field equipment. Physical Objects are associated with Elements (local, customized versions of the physical object).

Profile

One of 143 combinations of standards that are each assigned to a data or communications protocol layer in order to support interoperable communications. Together data and communications profiles make up a communications solution. A data profile includes protocols at the ITS Information, Facilities, Management and/or Security layers. A communications profile includes protocols at the TransNet, Access, Management and/or Security layers. Sometimes both profiles in a solution contribute to Management or Security.

Project

A Project is a set of activities involving planning, development, integration and/or acquisition of systems/ technologies to deliver one or more ITS Service Packages as defined in ARC-IT. A Project typically has defined boundaries within the context of a Region.

Project Architecture

This term defines the elements and information exchanges of a single project that may include more than one Service Package / application.

Protocol Stack

An implementation of a communications suite or profile.

Readiness

An indication of the relative readiness of a communications solution for deployment. This applies to communication solutions that are assigned to information flow triples. The values for readiness shown on the SET-IT screens are calculated based on the issues or gaps that may exist for each of the communications layers for a given information flow. The more issues or the more severe the issues then the less 'ready' a solution is for deployment. A solution that has well defined standards for each layer of the communications protocol stack, including data and the communications profiles, as well as known and defined application specifications will be more ready for deployment than a solution for a new interface that has no or very little standardization. The values or scores for readiness are also aggregated for all of the flows in a given service package to give a sense of the overall readiness of that service.

Region

A region is a geographical area spanning one or more jurisdictions; its boundaries are defined locally and may or may not conform to existing political boundaries. A region could be a state or multiple states, a metropolitan area, or multiple metropolitan areas, one or more Metropolitan Planning Organizations (MPO), a corridor (e.g., I-95 corridor), counties, rural towns, or areas.

In SET-IT region may also refer to the region of the world over which a set of objects, flows, services, etc., applies. SET-IT provides several selections to choose from: Australia (AU), Canada (CA), European Union (EU), and the default, United States (US). Use the Project / Options screen to select or unselect the regions or origins. This setting will affect the objects, flows, solutions, etc., that are shown on the diagrams and tables.

Relationship

In the enterprise view, physical objects or elements from the physical view appear as *resources* in the enterprise view. In addition to the Roles that enterprises objects play with respect to the physical objects, enterprise objects can have *relationships* with each other. In ARC-IT and in SET-IT these Relationships may include agreements or expectations.

Roles

Enterprises or stakeholders can have certain *roles* with their physical objects or elements which requires them to interact in some way. For instance, enterprises like stakeholders have a relationship with physical objects or elements in which one *owns* or *manages* an element.

Scenario

In a Concept of Operations, a scenario is used to describe how the system will be operated under various conditions. For example, incident management scenarios will include normal monitoring, the sequence of events following an incident, and response to failure [e.g., sensors or communications]. In other service packages you might want to describe a 'sunny day' scenario and contrast that with the activities that take place in a 'rainy day' scenario. These scenarios will describe the activities from the viewpoint of each of the participants.

Sequence

A series of steps or events that happen as part of a scenario. This can be expressed as a sequence of flows sent back and forth on a physical view diagram. Or simply 'tagging' the system elements in the order in which they participate in the sequence.

Service Package

The physical objects and interfaces, communications, functions, and enterprise relationships needed to provide a certain set of transportation needs or requirements. The service packages collect together one or more "functional objects" that must work together to deliver a given transportation service and the "information flows" that connect them and other important external systems/objects. They identify the pieces of the physical view that are required to implement a particular service.

ARC-IT has eight types of service packages:

- o Environmental
- o Mobility
- o Safety
- o Support
- o Convenience
- o Informational
- o Management
- Regulatory

Including ARC-IT Service Packages into a SET-IT project file allows a user to have a starting point to customize their own project's services.

Service Package Implementation

Many Service Packages include more than one way to provide a service. Service Package Implementations reflect a subset of the physical and functional objects that participate in an alternative implementation along with the information flows they exchange. The Service Package Implementation diagrams will distinguish which components are fundamental, or necessary, to that particular implementation from those that are optional or that have a "must have at least one" type of relationship. The Service Package Implementation provides users a short cut to defining a particular set of objects and interfaces for their project.

Service Package Instance

A Service Package Instance is the local, customized version of an ITS application or service that you have decided to include as part of your project. It can be based on a service package from ARC-IT or one that you defined yourself. Each instance includes the physical and enterprise drawings as well as the needs and requirements for that service package. Using service package instances allows architectures to include more than one approach to doing certain activities like traffic signal priority in a region with multiple jurisdictions.

Solution

A communications solution is the collection of standards and specifications that together satisfy the interface. Implementing a given solution means implementing the protocols noted inside the physical object that provides the ITS Application. In many cases there will be other devices in between the endpoints (routers, gateway, etc.) that are not the subject of this model. The ARC-IT Communications Model defines a communications solution as the combination of a data profile and a communications profile. A data profile includes protocols at the ITS Information, Facilities, Management and/or Security layers. A communications profile includes protocols at the TransNet, Access, Management and/or Security layers. Sometimes both profiles in a solution contribute to Management or Security. In SET-IT a triple is assigned to the solution with the highest level of readiness that is based on the standards, profiles, solutions with the fewest or least severe gaps or issues. The communications and data profiles reflect likely implementation choices and have been developed and assigned, where applicable, to triples. Other choices might be made in specific instances, which is why SET-IT provides the flexibility to manually adjust the assignment of solutions to triples.

Stakeholder

A stakeholder defines an organization that owns, manages, or interacts in some way with the elements in a project. When multiple stakeholders are involved, there are relationships between them that appear on the Enterprise view of an architecture. Stakeholders can also be grouped together for joint or combined roles.

Standards

Documented technical specifications sponsored by a Standards Development Organization (SDO) to be used consistently as rules, guidelines, or definitions of characteristics for the interchange of data. A broad array of transportation system standards and communications standards will be identified on the communications diagrams.

Support

Support, a class of ARC-IT physical object and used in SET-IT, represents the computer systems required to 'support' the transportation related services and applications. These may include security, data warehousing, network administration, and system monitoring or management systems.

System

A system is a collection of hardware, software, data, processes, and people that work together to achieve a common goal (definition from the National Highway Institute's System Engineering Course). NOTE that "system" is a relative term since many different types of systems fit this definition. To a sign manufacturer, a dynamic message sign is a "system". To a state DOT, the same sign is only a component of a larger Freeway Management System. In SET-IT, a Freeway Management Center System may be a part of the overall surface transportation system for a region.

Terminal

Terminals are small, rounded rectangles with an abbreviation that appear on some ARC-IT or SET-IT physical diagrams to represent another physical object on that same diagram.

Terminators

Terminators are physical objects that lie on the outside boundary of an architecture. These physical objects represent the people, systems, and general environment that interface with the physical objects known as subsystems that are inside the boundary of an architecture. The interfaces between terminators and the physical objects and functions within ARC-IT are defined, but no functional objects or functional requirements are allocated to them. The human operators, including drivers, are shown as physical objects with an icon of a person in the corner of the box. Human operators are also stakeholders so as you create and edit a Human Operator on the physical diagram you are creating and editing an element and a stakeholder at the same time if you leave the stakeholder's name blank as you create the element.

Triple

Defined by three things: the source, destination, and the information flow between them. This "triple" represents a particular instance of an information flow from ARC-IT. For example, the information flow, "incident information", goes between many ITS objects so the instance of incident management that goes from the TMC to the Emergency Management Center would be a 'triple'.

Vehicle

Vehicle, as a class of ARC-IT physical object and used in SET-IT, represents the general driver information and safety systems applicable to all vehicle types. Four fleet vehicle subsystems (Transit, Emergency, Commercial and Maintenance and Construction Vehicles) add ITS capabilities unique to these special vehicle types.

Views

The Architecture Reference for Cooperative & Intelligent Transportation (ARC-IT) is defined in a series of Views where each view provides a different perspective to understand the architecture and to address certain stakeholder concerns.

- Enterprise: relationships between organizations
- **Functional**: decomposition of system functions and their interactions (not covered in SET-IT)
- Physical: connections between physical objects and their functional objects
- Communications: layered communications protocols between physical objects

Starting SET-IT

As you click to start SET-IT or double-click on a .setit file SET-IT will start and a 'splash' screen will indicate what version of SET-IT is starting.

SET-IT will verify that you have the right version of SET-IT for your version of Visio. It will warn you if you are trying to run 32-bit SET-IT with 64-bit Visio or 64-bit SET-IT with 32-bit Visio.

Depending on your settings on the Options menu, SET-IT will also check to see if there are any updates available from the ARC-IT website. You may see a notification in the bottom right corner of the SET-IT window saying, either "SET-IT up to date" or "Update available!" It may also say "Version check failed" if you are not connected to the internet or if the verification server is not available for some reason. Use the Options menu to check manually.

Read Me

A README file comes with each version of SET-IT and is available from several places:

- As a text box within the About screen that is part of the Project menu
- As a text file that can be opened independently of running SET-IT. Click the Windows Start button and scroll down to "I" for ITS Architecture and select the SET-IT Read Me file.



- From the ARC-IT website - https://www.arc-it.net/tools/setitreadme.txt

Projects in SET-IT

This section describes the operations and steps to follow in order to create, save, and modify an ITS project architecture using SET-IT.

Using the steps in this section you will see how to:

- > Create a project architecture
- > Open an existing project architecture
- > Convert an older project architecture from a previous version of SET-IT
- > Save a project architecture
- Close a project architecture
- > Print the information about the project
- > Export or Zip Up the project's files

- > Describe the project architecture
- > Import a project architecture from RAD-IT
- > Select Service Packages that are included in the project architecture

Other features of the Project Menu include:

- Help menus see the "Access Help" section
- Sample Project see the "Open a Sample Project" section
- > Options see the "SET-IT Options" section
- > About to see what version this copy is running and the Read Me text

Create a New Project

To create a new project using SET-IT:

- 1. Select **Project** tab at the top of the menu,
- 2. Click **New.**
- 3. This will open the Create New Project, box
- 4. Enter the name of the new project in the **Project Name** text entry field
- 5. The **Project Location** field shows the default location where the new project file will be stored. Click **OK** is the location shown is acceptable. To store the new project's files in a different location, click the **Browse** button and select the location desired.
- 6. Click **OK**.

59-0			Systems Engineering To	ol for Intelligent Transporta	tion			×
Project	Home Review Output						Search $^{\vee}$	۞ ۵
Diagram Titem	Enterprise Physical Com	m Synchronize						
Overview	views	1 TOOIS 1						
Change Change Change Overvice I Overvice Diagram	ject Packages re Log re Log							
Physical								-+
							_	
	🗲 Create New	Project				×		
	Project Name:							
	Project Location:	C:\SETITtest				Browse		
	Project File:	.setit						
					Cancel	ОК		

Open an Existing Project

To open an existing SET-IT project:

- 1. Select **Project** on the top menu,
- 2. Select a **Recent Project** from the list on the right or,
- 3. Click **Open**,
- 4. On the browser box identify the location of the existing project to open the file,
- 5. Click **OK**.

Project / Open will look at the folder that you last used to open or save a project file. If you haven't done that yet it will look at your <u>Options</u> settings in case you designated another default folder. Otherwise, it will start at the default folder for your machine, usually "My Documents."

Alternatively, you can open an existing project by using Windows Explorer to find the folder containing the project files and double-clicking on the .setit file. This will launch SET-IT and open the files for that project.

As the project is opened, SET-IT will ask if you would like to run a set of Validation reports on this project. This may be a good idea if you weren't the one that developed it or you haven't worked with it in a while. You can turn this option off using the Options menu.

SET-IT locks the files so you can't have a conflict where one application writes data that the other application is also editing. If you try to open a file that is already open, you will get a warning message that the file is in use by another program and to close the other program and try again.

Converting from a Previous Version of SET-IT

If you open a file that was created using a previous version, you will be warned that the data will be changed and will no longer be compatible with the previous version.

Upgrading or Converting allows you to preserve your prior work while taking advantage of the latest ARC-IT definitions – new Physical Objects, new Service Packages, new Communications Profiles, etc.

Before converting such a project save a copy to use in case you need to open it again in the older version.

SET-IT's conversion routines will then copy the project data into the latest data schema. Sometimes it will find issues where things are no longer supported, or they are supported differently. When it tries to map the components from the older architecture to match objects and flows of the new version there may be cases where more than one option exists, e.g., an older service package may now be represented as 2 service packages. In that case, SET-IT will default to choose the first service package. If that happens it will let you know in case you want a different choice.

In ARC-IT version 9.0 the Parking Management System physical object was split into 2 objects – a field-class Parking Area Equipment object and a center-class Parking Management Center. During Conversion if there was a Parking Management System element it will be mapped to both the new physical objects. Afterward, you may decide that you need another element or that your element is more related to one versus the other object and so you can adjust your mappings after conversion.

SET-IT will also align the characteristics of flows to match the ARC-IT definitions and characteristics. That may mean creating user defined versions of those flows if they had been changed or edited by the user in the previous version. After conversion you may notice multiple copies of some flows if they had characteristics that differed from the ARC-IT base flows. You may want to keep the project

unique versions or go back and manually select the ARC-IT flow to get the current characteristics from the reference architecture. It will be the one without a number on the end.

SET-IT changed how certain diagrams are defined so the conversion process will ask if you would like to save the old diagrams as Deprecated Diagrams in a separate Visio file.



NOTE: You may get a pop-up asking about macros. The older SET-IT Visio drawing files were stored with macros and you can choose either option since you won't be using them.

Service Package Instances and Diagram names will be reviewed by the conversion process. Earlier versions of SET-IT allowed these to be called differently which sometimes caused confusion later. SET-IT will give the user the option to either:

- > Update the Service Package Instance name to match the name used on the Diagram
- > Update the Diagram name to match the name of the Service Package Instance
- Do Nothing use what is shown for each of the names

G Conversion- Diagram Names		— 🗆 X
The following diagram names and Service Package Instar	ice names are inconsistent	
Please review the list below and make changes if required		
SP Instance Name	Diagram Name	Action
Core Authorization (Copy 1)	Core Authorization	Update Diagram Name per SP Instance Name
Data Distribution (Copy 1)	Field Situation Data Distribution	Do not copy; Use what is shown on this row for name
Object Registration and Discovery (Copy 1)	Object Registration and Discovery	Update Diagram Name per SP Instance Name
Data Distribution (Copy 1)	Traveler Situation Data Distribution	Do not copy; Use what is shown on this row for name
Security and Credentials Management (Copy 1)	Security and Credentials Management	Update Diagram Name per SP Instance Name
		Do not copy; Use what is shown on this row for names
		Update Diagram Name per SP Instance Name
		Update SP Instance Name per Diagram Name

The default will be to use the Diagram Name

Diagram Verification checks are run during Conversion which may result in some of your diagrams being 'demoted' from Complete to Partial if any of the current rules are not satisfied. It will note that in the Conversion report at the end. Run the Diagram Verification test yourself after conversion to see what needs to be fixed on any of your diagrams.

SET-IT will also convert the Communications view content. Previous versions of SET-IT had communications template drawings which will no longer be in the right format so the conversion process will ask if you would like to save the old diagrams as Deprecated Communications Diagrams in Visio format.

NOTE: Converting from older files may lead to situations where there were 2 of something in the older architecture and now there are 5 of that same thing. The Conversion routines will not be able to sort out how to convert those cases. An example is the 2015 version of the Security Credentials Management System (SCMS) that had 2 functional objects. In the current version of ARC-IT that same physical object now has 5 functional objects. Conversion will not be able to know how to convert those functional objects so it will show the 2 as deprecated on the converted diagram. You will need to go through and manually edit your diagram to make sure the current functional objects are shown.

S	Conversion- Functional Objects Replacement			×
Ma Yo	re than one substitute is available for the following Functional u can override the default selection in the table below:	l Objects.		
	Old Functional Object	New Functional Object		
►	Parking Management 🔹	Parking Area Management		
	Parking Management	Parking Management		
	Center Trust Management	ITS Security Support		
	Vehicle Trust Management	ITS Security Support		
	Personal Trust Management	ITS Security Support		
	RSE Trust Management	ITS Security Support		
			Ok]

Information flows that were routed through an ITS Communications Equipment element they should be converted to use the "via" communications element in the current version; however, you may find that it needs to be manually reselected in Shape Properties after import.

Concept of Operations (ConOps) Templates are customizable. The Conversion process will look to see if you had customized the template using the previous version. To avoid any loss of your customized data, SET-IT will save an archived version of your old ConOps Template.

ConOps templates Conversion	\times
ConOps (Ref Implementation) Template.dot has been customized with previous version of SET-IT and is no longer supported. This file will be archived in project folder. ConOps (ISO 29148) Template.dot has been customized with previous version of SET-IT and is no longer supported. This file will be archived in project folder. ConOps (Model Document) Template.dot has been customized with previous version of SET-IT and is no longer supported. This file will be archived in project folder.	
ОК	

In other situations, the ConOps template itself may have changed as SET-IT has evolved. An example is the case in version 8.2.75 where the old IEEE 1362 based template was updated to match the current industry standard, ISO 29148.

In either case, you will want to check your ConOps at the end of the conversion process to see that it has your customizations. In the case where SET-IT archived your template to make room for the new template you will need to open both files and copy your customizations into the new template's structure. Use SET-IT / Output / Document / ConOps and click Edit Template for the new template and open your old template in a separate window using Word. Then move your customizations over and save the new template file. Now you should be able to regenerate your ConOps using the new format and new version of SET-IT but retaining your customizations.

You can watch the progress of Conversion displayed in the Convert Manager window. At the end of the process, you can click Save Report if you want to review the warnings and messages for the parts of the conversion process where changes had to be made to your data.

S Convert Manager	- 0	×
Steps	Report	
	Security Credentials Management System -> security credential revocations -> MC Freeway Management Center Security Credentials Management System -> security credential revocations -> MCDDT CV Roadside Equipment Security Credentials Management System -> security credential revocations -> MCDPW GARLIC Information System Security Credentials Management System -> security credentials -> Equipped Vehicles Security Credentials Management System -> security credentials -> MCD Freeway Management Center Security Credentials Management System -> security credentials -> MCD Freeway Management Center Security Credentials Management System -> security credentials -> MCD FV Roadside Equipment Security Credentials Management System -> security credentials -> MCD PW GARLIC Information System Security Credentials Management System -> security prolecy and networking information -> Equipped Vehicles Security Credentials Management System -> security policy and networking information -> Equipped Vehicles Security Credentials Management System -> security policy and networking information -> MCDDT CV Roadside Equipment Security Credentials Management System -> security policy and networking information -> MCDDT CV Roadside Equipment Security Credentials Management System -> security policy and networking information -> MCDDT CV Roadside Equipment Security Credentials Management System -> security policy and networking information -> MCDDT CV Roadside Equipment Security Credentials Management System -> security policy and networking information -> MCDPW GARLIC Information System Refreshed the tightly constrained PObjects/Elements. Changed the Completion Status from Unknown to Started for the following diagrams: Enterprise Layer-0: Comprehensive Relationships	~
Finalize Upgrade	Time Elapsed:00:01:30 Save Report	
Conversion Completed.		
	Close	

You may see #s added to some information flow names. That happens when SET-IT Conversion sees a flow name that is the same as an ARC-IT flow name but some characteristic – either a source, destination, or some other characteristic – is different than in ARC-IT.

You are given the option to save this report for later – that's probably a good idea the first time you are converting to a newer version to make sure there are no surprises.

Next is an information screen directing you to see Help (this resource) for more information:



At this point, SET-IT will tell you that the Upgrade or Conversion is complete but that it needs to synchronize the data on the diagrams with the data in the database. Depending on the size of the project and, especially, how many diagrams there are this step could take a while.

SET-IT Project Upgrade	
Tasks Create New Project Copy Project Data Convert User Diagrams	
Inalize upgrade	SET-IT is Working ×
Upgrade completed. SET-IT will now save your diagrams and synchronize your diagrams and definitions.	Synchronizing 36 diagrams to match the database 9 diagram(s) synchronized
ОК	Approximately 34 seconds remaining

During conversion Sync will look at the various information flow combinations. Architectures developed in previous versions may have had flows developed around the Element Triples – the source and destination elements and the flow name. However, conversion may have increased the number of physical objects that element was assigned to. The sync process now needs to determine which combination of physical objects to use for that triple. You may see a screen like the Element Flow Triples Review form below for complicated triple combinations.

You are directed to look through the list and double-click the combinations you don't want to see in your converted/synchronized architecture. Once you double-click a row it will show up as red to indicate that it will be removed from the database when you click 'Apply'.

S Element Flow Triples Review		×
Review the following Element-Flow Triples and select the extra PObjects that you want to be removed by double clicking the node		
Center -> Center Center (BASIL/PINCH) -> center operator data2 -> MC Freeway Operators Center -> Center Personnel Center -> Center Personnel Center -> Center operator input2 -> MC Freeway Management Center (BASIL/PINCH) Traffic Operations Personnel -> Traffic Management Center Center Personnel -> Center Center Personnel -> Center		
* Rows with light-blue background color are Read-Only * Rows with red background color are selected and will be deleted Select All Deselect All	A	opły

The Auto Select button will choose the combinations that are least likely – flows to or from the ITS Object or the generic 'Center' object, for instance. This will likely be a good thing to do, particularly for large complex architectures. Then you can review the red lines that were autoselected and use double-click the individual combinations further. There are also Select All and a Deselect All buttons if that helps.

When you done deciding which combinations to remove, click the Apply button. You will be asked if you are sure.



If there are no more triples with multiple physical object mappings, then the form will automatically close.

If there are still triples with multiple physical object mappings, then the form will remain open to show the remaining triples to be addressed. You can decide to address them now or you can simply 'X' out of the form and work on this later.

You will also be able to use this form as part of your review process from the Review menubar. Once complete you should *save* this project. You are now ready to use SET-IT with the latest ARC-IT definitions.

Save a Project

SET-IT is capable of saving changes made to a project. Projects include multiple files within a folder. Modified diagrams can be saved to the project folder. You can set a directory to be your default directory for SET-IT projects files folders.

There are two ways to **Save** a project.

Click the **Save** icon on the top ribbon, OR

- 1. Select **Project** on the top menu,
- 2. Select Save from the pull-down menu,
- 3. Click **OK**.

You can also Save the file with a different name:

- 1. Select Save as from the pull-down menu,
- 2. On the Save as box identify the new project name and project location,
3. Click **OK**.

NOTE: SET-IT is designed to work in a Microsoft Windows environment and there are certain characters that you can't use in a filename and those are:

\/:*?"<>|

If you try to use one of those characters in a filename or folder name, you will most likely get an error message that says something about invalid path or filename. If that happens just try again without those special characters.

File Notes

SET-IT saves the information about a project in multiple files – a database, several Visio files, several Word documents, a text file for the log, and a small file with a .setit extension. The.setit file lets you double-click on it to start SET-IT and open that project. It also contains summary information about when the project was created.

Read-Only Files

When you open a project the database file is set to Read-Only to prevent you from accidentally opening another copy of the project and writing over data being edited on screen.

You may find yourself in a situation where you forgot your file was already open and try to open it again. You may see a message like this:

	,	5	
File In U	e		×
	The action can't be comp Close the file and try again	leted because the file is open in SET-IT n.	
	A)BProject170526101630 jype: SAD File ize: 16.8 MB Jate modified: 5/23/2017 8:34 AM	
		T <u>r</u> y Again Cancel	

If so, just click Cancel and go to the window currently running and close that copy of SET-IT with that file in use and then click 'Try Again.'

Language Support:

SET-IT will work on computers that have different language settings. Note that this feature has not been exhaustively tested or verified.

AutoBackup

Another project management feature is called AutoBackup. You can enable this to periodically make a backup of your project's files. This has the effect of making a copy of your project's files that you

may need if there is a problem and you need to start over from a certain point. For example, if you mistakenly made the wrong changes to a project and had already done a Save. This will let you go back to your last backup and restart your work.

See the **Options** section for more information.

Save your work often.

Data is only saved when you choose the "Save" or "Save As..." options (or when you exit the file and save). All work you do between saves is put into a temporary file". As you work this temporary file grows in size. If you wait too long to exit and save, this file can grow so large you may not be able to save it.

In order to actually shrink the size of the temporary file while working with large architectures, you must **exit** periodically from the file, or from SET-IT. Saving the architecture places new work in the original user file in compressed format, but the temporary file remains at the same size and keeps growing. To shrink the temporary file, the database file must be closed.

SET-IT Crashed and I Forgot to Save!

If the tool should fail with unsaved data, you may be able to partially recover. Look for the temporary file in the Windows "temp" directory (e.g., C:\Users\<logon id>\AppData\Local\Temp\ITS Architecture\SET-IT). Copy .sad file to your project folder and change the file name to be the same as your project name and then try opening the project with SET-IT.

A utility in the SET-IT Options Menu item provides a way to find and recover these temporary files. Click on File and Options. From there click Advanced.

SET-IT Options				×
Advanced	Advanced Options for working with SET-IT			
General General Giggrams Synchronization Requirements OProject Validation	Temp Folder SET-IT creates temporary files under the follow files when it closes, but for various reasons it di it never gets to do this). You can clean out anything left there that is no the 'Clear' button, but please note those files cr of the unsaved changes from prior to the crash	ing folder for it's own temporary use. SET-IT sean't always happen (for example, if the pro- t being used at the moment by pressing suld potentially be used to recover some	should delete all its temporary gram crashes,	
Diagram Verification	Path C:\Users\UserIDAppData\Loca	\Temp\ITS Architecture\SET-IT\		
Output	Size: 58 MB		Export Clear	
Event Log Import (RAD-IT) Advanced AutoBackup	Database Access Options SET-IT uses database access technologies th SET-IT's ability to support complex database o options only if you are encountering system em errors) while using SET-IT.	at include system options that can impact perations in some scenarios. Change these ors (e.g., system resource errors or file lock		
	SET-IT Update You're up to date Last checked: 1/19/2023, 10:02:41 AM	✓ Show on main window ✓ Check for updates at startup		
- Millionetado	SET-IT Update You're up to date Last checked: 1/19/2023, 10:02:41 AM Check for updates	Show on main window Check for updates at startup		

If you need to find a temporary file in order to restore it click "Path" and it will open the system file folder that contains the temporary files.

I Image: Imag						
Image: Pin to Quick access Copy Paste Image: Copy path Paste shortcut Image: Paste shortcut Image: Paste shortcut	Move Copy to * Cot Delete Rename	New item •	Properties	Select all Select none		
Clipboard	Organize	New	Open	Select		
← → ✓ ↑ 🔄 > UserName > App	Data > Local > Temp > ITS Arc	hitecture > SET-IT		D	-	<i>a</i> :
Quick access		Name		Date modified	lype	Size
Desisten	<u>م</u>	DBProject190507063	252	5/7/2019 6:33 PM	Microsoft Access	0 KB
Desktop	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	DBProject190507063	252	5/7/2019 6:34 PM	SAD File	22,944 KB
Documents	*	DrawingsPhysical190	0507063307.svd	1/28/2019 3:25 PM	SVD File	3,242 KB
🕹 Downloads	*					
E Pictures	*					

From this folder you can copy the temporary copy of the .sad file and re-open it in SET-IT. You may not be able to recover all of your data but in most cases most of your data will be preserved here.

Other Uses of the Temp Folder Window:

Clear – One quick way to reduce the size of the temporary files is to click the "Clear" button. That will instantly erase any but the file currently being used by SET-IT.

Export – Sometimes you may encounter a situation in which you need the help of the SET-IT support team to fix your file or to find out what is wrong with SET-IT. For some situations they may ask you to send them your temp files so they can help isolate the problem and debug any errors in the data or software. In this situation, click Export to create a zip file of the temporary SET-IT files that you can email to the team.

Close a Project

- 1. Select **Project** on the top menu,
- 2. Select Close from the pull-down menu,
- 3. If there are pending changes you will be prompted if you want to save or not. Click **OK**. Or go back up and say you want to save your changes.

Print a Project

- 1. From an open Diagram select **Print** from the Project menu,
- 2. Select the Printer to use, and use the Print dialog box options or Properties button to change the settings before clicking OK.

Use the Outputs menu for many choices to create outputs of the diagrams and tables.

Export / Zip Up the Project Files

SET-IT saves the information about a project in multiple files – a database, several Visio files, several Word documents, a text file for the log, and a small file with a .setit extension.

5 *) - (* 🛃	Ŧ	
Proje	ct		
	New		Recent Documents
	<u></u>		V2I Safety Initiative Project.setit
õ	<u>O</u> pen		
	<u>S</u> ave		
Ъ,	Save As		
	Export		
\odot	Export	Sava	project folder as a compressed zin file
	Close	Jave	project folder as a compressed zip file
	Print		

If you want to share your project with someone else, you have to share all the files in that directory.

SET-IT provides a utility to let you Export the project and all of its files in one compressed zip file.

Clicking Project then Export will open a File Save dialog window asking you to identify the folder and the filename to call this zip file. Enter a new unique name, something different than the name of the project folder so it will be able to create a new file.

SET-IT will take all the files in the project folder and create a compressed zip file that is compatible with most file compression programs, including Microsoft Windows, PKZip, 7Zip, etc.

You can email or share the zip file with another user. They can then expand the folder and open the .setit file to launch SET-IT and see the same things you had on your system.

This Export or Zip capability also provides a useful to archive versions of your project files to maintain a record of changes at various milestones during project development.

Access Help

Selecting **Help** from the Project menu gives you access to this file. You can also click on the question mark icon (2) located on the upper right corner of the screen.

Describe the Project

To display a high-level summary of your project, click 'Overview' in the navigation pane on the left side of the screen.

5 9 · C 🔒	Ŧ		SET-IT - C:\SETIT\\TOMATO\TOMATO.setit	- 🗆 X
Project Home	Review 0	Dutput		Search 🗡 💩 🕜
Diagram • Item •	Enterprise Physica	((p)) I Comm Syr	ichronize	
Overview	Project Inform	nation	100IS	
Overview		Name	ТОМАТО	
Project Service Packages		Description:	TOMATO will provide regional traveler information of a general nature to tourists and personalized information to residents and businesses. descriptions, real-time traffic data, static and dynamic transit information, parking availability, event schedules, and other relevant items into provided to travelers through multiple mechanisms. The project will be built using city, county, state, and federal funds, but will be transferre definition for long-term operation.	s service will synthesize map and route raveler information products that will be to a public-private arrangement still under
Change Log Notes				
		Start Date:	6/20/2023 End	ate:
	Geogra	phical Scope:	Throughout Marinara County	
	Se	ervice Scope:	Primarily, Advanced Traveler Information Services (ATIS)	
		Davalanası		inerry Will NI Able (MCTOP)
		Toitisla		
		Versien:	0.1.2	tod. 12/ 7/2022
	🛨 Pr	ocurement and	IResources	
	PAD-T	T File: marin	ars 07b (Click to Disconnect) DAD_TT Drojecty TOMATO	Import
Overview	Regio	onal		
• Diagrams	Archite	cture: Marini	ara county	
Ø Definitions		Note:		
Physical				

The first time a new project is created Name field will contain the name you entered on the dialog box when you started the project and everything else will be blank. The fields on the Project Information screen provides place to record a description of the project. The most direct output for this is the Project Information report, however details such as the Project Name (entered in the Name field) are also used to automatically populate the ConOps document with information.

Project Information

The Start and End date boxes let you establish the start date and end date for your project. Clicking the pull-down will bring up a calendar allowing you to select the year, month, and day for the start and end of your project.

The Geographical Scope and Service Scope fields are useful for letting project stakeholders know the extent of the project, e.g., the size of the region(s) involved in the project and the nature of the services/functions being developed, respectively.

The Developer and Maintainer fields can be used to show the individual or organization that created the project architecture and the individual or organization responsible for maintaining it. The Date field is used to set the date the current version of the architecture as represented in this Project was created or updated.

The initials can be up to 5 characters and are used on the title block of the drawings as they are updated.

The Version block is a text block. Some users want numbers but some use character strings to identify the version, e.g., 2.1a.

The date fields are pull-downs with a calendar feature to help you pick start and end dates for the project and the date when this SET-IT file was created and/or updated.

Additional Information on the Overview Screen

There is a "+" symbol just below the Version number that allows you to expand the screen to add additional project information: Procurement Strategy and Operations Resources. Both of which are to support items required in United States Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) 940 and the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Policy on ITS Architecture and Standards. CFR940.11 on Project Implementation requires systems engineering analysis to include procurement options and Procedures and resources necessary for operations and management of the system. This allows the project to say how they intend to carry out this part of the project.

Click the "+" symbol on the screen and the screen will expand to show 3 additional fields.

SET-IT Help

Developer:	Butch R Block (KCC)	Maintainer:	Butch R Block (KCC)	
Initials:	BRB			
Version:	9.0.2	Updated:	5/19/2021	
Procurement an	d Resources			
Procurement Strategy:	Marinara County Department of Trans the new materials. A separate low-bio	portation (MCDOT) will pursue a design-build approach for the procurement of d contract may be used, pending state approval, to procure installation service	the consultant team to develop s for the actual field devices.	$\hat{\mathbf{v}}$
Operations Resources:	MCDOT will manage the new V2I Safe based on the early analysis, there is r	ty devices and the applications as part of the existing BASIL/PINCH traffic oper to need for additional resources though some additional training may be require	rations center. At this time, ed for the staff.	$\hat{\mathbf{v}}$
Alternatives Considered:	In addition to the Vehicle to Infrastruc information services. This V2I initiative	ture services the original architects researched other options including a more a will be able to provide more accurate sources of information and direct more r	traditional set of traveler elevant	$\stackrel{\wedge}{\lor}$

Procurement Strategy may indicate what types of contacting or options that were explored before deciding on the approach to be taken on this particular project. There may be more facets to procurement down the road since the right procurement option might be different for different parts of the project. For example, you may be procuring off-the-shelf field devices with a low-bid contract but using experience-based consultant services to create a modest extension to the center control software. One could cover how each part of the project will be procured on the overview form.

Operations Resources briefly describes changes in the staffing, training, tools, or hours of operation in order for the systems modified or created in this project to work. This should also reference the Procedures that will need to be in place or revised in order for the operators of the project's systems to deliver the expected results. There may be multiple sets of procedures. For instance, different stakeholders with different roles and responsibilities, working for different agencies, would likely need different procedures and resources to meet their particular duties.

Alternatives Considered provides a field to describe any analysis of alternative system configurations and technology options that were explored as part of the development of the system architecture.

NOTE: One issue that has reoccurred on a sporadic basis is the wiping out of data entered on the Project screen from the Overview menu. This sometimes occurs with a new architecture and when the user has filled-in data for the cells on the Project Overview screen and then goes to another table or menu area. You may notice that your typing has been wiped out. To avoid disruption please do a SAVE before you leave the Project Overview screen.

The Region field allows you to identify the region that this project is taken from, also a requirement of United States Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) 940.11. If you import the project from RAD-IT, it will automatically populate this field if that information is in the RAD-IT file, or you can type it directly.

Importing a Project from RAD-IT

SET-IT can also import projects from RAD-IT – the Regional Architecture Development for Intelligent Transportation (RAD-IT) tool. In General Terms, RAD-IT:

- Guides users through the design of a Regional or Project Architecture, identifying and extracting the required portions of ARC-IT.
- Assists in local mapping and tailoring to a region's needs.
- Helps the user with potential conflict resolution between Regional and Project Architectures.
- Provides a "jumpstart" toward architecture development and consistency with the National Architecture.
- Is a standalone application, also available at <u>www.arc-it.net</u>.

Regional and Project ITS Architectures

A regional ITS architecture defines the elements and information exchanges of the many ITS projects existing or planned within a region. It should be a comprehensive organization of the region's ITS. A region is a geographical area spanning one or more jurisdictions; its boundaries are defined locally and they may or may not conform to existing political boundaries. It could be a state or multiple states, a metropolitan area, or multiple metropolitan areas, one MPO or multiple MPO's, a corridor (e.g., I-95 corridor), counties, rural towns, or areas. Once a region has a regional architecture they can begin to identify projects to implement the vision of ITS in that region.

A RAD-IT file can include 1 regional architecture and many project architectures. A project architecture in RAD-IT can be a subset of the regional architecture and defines the elements and information exchanges of a single ITS project.

Steps to Import a RAD-IT Project

Importing a project from RAD-IT will import that information into your currently open project in SET-IT. If you already have information populated, including descriptive text, service packages, customized elements, etc. then the Import will add to and in some cases replace what you currently have. If that is not what you want to do, then close the current project and start a new SET-IT project to use for importing from RAD-IT.

Use the link on the bottom of the Project Overview screen to identify the location of the RAD-IT file that contains the regional architecture.

If the file is open in RAD-IT you will get a pop-up message saying, "The selected file appears to already be open in another application. Please close the other application so SET-IT has exclusive access to the file." If this happens, you can simply go close (and probably Save) your RAD-IT application and then try again to select that file here in SET-IT.

Once you have found and selected the RAD-IT file use the pull-down to select the project architecture from that file that you wish to import. That will then automatically populate the RAD-IT Region field with the name of the Regional Architecture in that .radit file. Alternatively, you can manually enter the name of the regional architecture if you are not yet ready to import the project architecture from that file. As soon as the project is selected it will overwrite the Regional Architecture field with whatever is in the .radit file.

You can also add a Note to describe that project and how it may be applied in SET-IT.

RAD-IT File:	marinara (Click to Disconnect)	RAD-IT Project:	MCDOT Saucelito Traffic Coordination	Import
RAD-IT Region:	Marinara County		MCDOT Traffic Monitoring Expansion Project	Open
Note:			MCDOT V2I Safety Initiative TOMATO	

NOTE: This tool will only let you import Project architectures defined in RAD-IT of a similar version. You will not be able to import an entire regional architecture or from an older architecture file. Go to RAD-IT and create a project and make sure it's converted to the most current level.

NOTE: Save and close the RAD-IT file before starting to import it into SET-IT.

After identifying the RAD-IT file and the project in that file, click the Import button and the process will start.

1. Status – first step is to align the status values if they were different. For instance, if something was called Planned in RAD-IT it will become Project by default but you can use the pull-down to change it. Then click Continue.

5	RAD-IT Import		—		×
		Status Import			
	Imported Status	Will Become			
	Planned	Project			-
		Existing			
		Project			
		Future			
		Not Applicable			
L					
	The status values in the two f	files don't match. Change the mappings above if desired. the next Import steps	Continue	Skip	
				Close	

NOTE: Not Applicable cannot be used to translate an imported status.

2. Project Overview – the next step is to show how the Project Overview attributes will be imported from the RAD-IT file. You can select one or more fields to import. Click Continue.

6	RAD-IT Import		- 🗆 X
		Project Overview Import	
	Attribute	Action	Perform
	Project Name	Update per RAD-IT	
	Project Description	Update per RAD-IT	
	Project Geo Scope	Update per RAD-IT	
	Project Service Scope	Update per RAD-IT	
	Project Developer	Update per RAD-IT	
	Project Maintainer	Update per RAD-IT	
	Project Version	Update per RAD-IT	
	Project Revision Date	Update per RAD-IT	
	Region Name	Update per RAD-IT	
<			>
	Click Continue to proceed to the next Import steps		Continue Skip Close

- 3. Applicable Regions any regions that are different than what is already in SET-IT will be shown in order to be imported. Click Continue.
- 4. Stakeholders next, the system will display a list of the stakeholders that are going to be imported from the RAD-IT file. This list may include stakeholders indirectly associated with an element of the architecture (e.g., members of a group that "own" a TMC, etc.), in addition to stakeholders explicitly included on the RAD-IT Stakeholders Tab. Click Continue.
- 5. Physical Objects next, the user defined unique physical objects that are part of the RAD-IT file will be shown. Click Continue or Skip. Clicking "Skip" will mean that any user defined physical objects that were in the RAD-IT file will not be imported but the rest of the import process will continue.
- Functional Objects next, the user defined unique functional objects that are part of the RAD-IT file will be shown. Click Continue or Skip. Clicking "Skip" will mean that any user defined functional objects that were in the RAD-IT file will not be imported but the rest of the import process will continue.
- Elements as shown below, the next step is to show the list of Elements to be imported. In some cases, it says "Add" and in some cases it says Add (Element is connected to project's interfaces). Import takes an expansive view of what to import to make sure the SET-IT project has enough to work with. Click Continue.

	Elements Import
Elements	Action
Equipped Vehicles	Add
MC Freeway Management Center	Add
MC Transportation Communication	ns Add
MCDOT CV Roadside Equipment	Add
MCDOT Detectors	Add
MCDPW GARLIC Information Sys	te Add
MDCOT Dynamic Message Signs	Add
Security Credentials Management	S Add
Digital Map System	Add (Element is connected to project's interfaces)
PASTA Equipped Bus Fleet	Add (Element is connected to project's interfaces)
Traveler Information Devices	Add (Element is connected to project's interfaces)

- 8. Service Packages Now SET-IT lists the service packages to be included. A new Service Package diagram will be created for each Service Packages to be included in the new SET-IT project file. Click Continue.
 - This step will take longer because SET-IT is importing diagrams for each service package to match what was in the RAD-IT file and then synchronizing the diagram to the database information imported from RAD-IT.
 - You may get a screen regarding shapes that weren't included on a RAD-IT service package diagrams. Regional Architectures may not include an element for every possible physical object that is shown on an ARC-IT service package diagram. As a project for that region is then imported into SET-IT you can decide what to do. Either,
 - i. Click Yes to remove those shapes that are not applicable to the project, or
 - ii. Click No and let SET-IT build the diagram normally (which may show you additional opportunities for systems and devices you may want to include in your project).



NOTE: This part of the process may take a while depending on how many service packages are to be imported.

NOTE: Some have seen a Clipboard error while the service package diagrams are being imported. If you get a Clipboard In Use error in the middle of that process then it will give you the option to skip that diagram. It may be best to exit SET-IT, close any other programs running, and start SET-IT again to make sure the right diagrams and database definitions are imported together. One other workaround is to go into the Windows Settings for the Clipboard and make sure the Clipboard History setting is 'Off'. This prevents the clipboard from keeping other things that may interfere with SET-IT during diagram/document generation or import.

NOTE: The Diagram Clean-Up tool can help put back shapes that were deleted or that are no longer necessary.

- 9. Flows Import the next step will be a list of user-defined or project-unique information flows from the RAD-IT file that are to be imported. Click Continue or Skip. Select "Skip" if you will not need to use those user defined flows in your project. If an Alias was defined and/or applied in RAD-IT then that will also be imported and noted on this screen.
- 10. Interfaces Import this step will list any interfaces that need to be imported that are not already on one of the service package diagrams. You may see a pop-up window (dialog box) informing you that some of the flows are not on any diagrams. Use this information that will be saved in the Import Report that you can open or save in Word or Excel at this end of this process to edit your diagrams so you can put them onto the appropriate diagram.

RAD-IT Import			_
	Interfaces	Import	
Source	Flow	Destination	Action
MCDPW GARLIC Information System	regional road closure information	TOMATO Regional Traveler Informatio	Add Element Triple
PASTA Bus Operations Center	transit and fare schedules	TOMATO Regional Traveler Informatio	Add Element Triple
	SET-IT SET-IT was unable to fir imported interfaces (Inf import report and use i Package diagram.	nd a diagram for at least one of the formation flow triples). Please save the t to assign those interfaces to a Servic OK	e
	Source MCDPW GARLIC Information System PASTA Bus Operations Center	RAD-IT Import Source Flow MCDPW GARLIC Information System regional road closure information PASTA Bus Operations Center transit and fare schedules SET-IT SET-IT SET-IT SET-IT was unable to fin imported interfaces (Intimported interfaces (Intimport report and use i Package diagram.	Interfaces Import Source Flow Destination MCDPW GARLIC Information System regional road closure information TOMATO Regional Traveler Informatio PASTA Bus Operations Center transit and fare schedules TOMATO Regional Traveler Informatio SET-IT SET-IT SET-IT SET-IT SET-IT was unable to find a diagram for at least one of the imported interfaces (Information flow triples). Please save the import end and use it to assign those interfaces to a Servic Package diagram.

- 11. Communications this step is actually several steps that will list the communications issues, standards development organizations (SDOs), standards, profiles, and solutions to be imported that were created/defined in the RAD-IT file.
- 12. Needs this step will list the Need Areas then Needs to be imported that are not already included in the Service Packages imported in step 7 above. If a Need Area was in the RAD-IT project but did not have a corresponding Service Package in RAD-IT, then it will not be imported. You will see this in the Import Results report at the end.
- 13. Requirements this step will first show any Requirements Sources and then list the functional requirements defined in the project to be imported. It will show "update allocation" for requirements already defined in ARC-IT as well as new requirements that are not already defined in the ARC-IT based set of requirements for the service package and their functional objects previously imported, i.e., user defined requirements. While SET-IT now has the option to define System-level requirements, the files from RAD-IT will still only contain element or functional object-based requirements. If the RAD-IT file in question had previously contained an imported SET-IT project, then any system level requirements will be imported back into SET-IT if the service packages are still valid.
- 14. Agreements this step will list any stakeholder (enterprise view) agreements defined in the RAD-IT project to be imported.
- 15. Import Completed now press Close and see the RAD-IT Import Report. This report can be exported in either Word, Excel, or Text (CSV) format.

		Import		
mport Step	Import Item	Import Action		
Agreements	Tomato Funding Agr	Add		
Elements	Area Drivers	Add (Element is connected to project's interfaces)		
	Digital Map System	Add (Element is connected to project's interfaces)		
	Equipped Vehicles	Add		
	MCDOT CV Roadsid	Add (Element is connected to project's interfaces)		
	MCDOT Traveler Kio	Add		
	MCDPW GARLIC Info	Add (Element is connected to project's interfaces)		
	PASTA Bus Operatio	Add (Element is connected to project's interfaces)		
	Regional Parking Lot	Add		
	Saucelito Event Clea	Add		
	Shouvelle and Tamp	Add		
	Smith Traffic Chann	Add (Element is connected to project's interfaces)		
	TOMATO Advertiser	Add		
	TOMATO Event Park	Add		
	TOMATO Regional T	Add		

- 16. After exporting the report, click the X to close this RAD-IT Import Report window and it will then complete the necessary refresh of the database and definitions.
- 17. Now your project Overview screen shows the information from the imported RAD-IT project.

Notes on Project Import from RAD-IT

Some RAD-IT projects may have multiple elements of the same physical object participating in a service package. TM08 Traffic Incident Management is a good example where there may be more than one traffic management center in a project. SET-IT imports service package diagrams from the ARC-IT reference model and, in the case of Traffic Incident Management or TM07 Regional Traffic Management shows one box for a TMC and one box for Other TMC. If a RAD-IT project is defined to show multiple TMCs (say a state DOT's center, a county, and a city center) then you will need to edit the diagram after the import process is done. It will map both of your traffic management centers to both shapes. Use Shape Properties so that one center is mapped to one shape and the other center is mapped to the other shape.

MC Freeway Management Center (BASIL/PINCH) + SCDOT City Operations Center	(2C) incident information (d) (2C) road network conditions (d) (2C) traffic images (d) (2C) device control request (d)	MC Freeway Management Center (BASIL/PINCH) + SCDOT City Operations Center
	(2C) device status (d)	TMC Regional Traffic Management
	2: Regional Traf 1 Based on ARC-IT Physical Dia	fic Management gram r4 Oct 30 2018 BRB

After Import (before editing):

After Editing with Shape Properties:



Beware of going back and forth between RAD-IT and SET-IT too much – as in importing a project from RAD-IT into SET-IT, editing it in SET-IT, then importing that back into RAD-IT; there may be some issues where not everything is always mapped the same way between tools. The import tools will take care of most data schema differences but too many 'round-trips' may have issues that will need to be addressed manually.

Aggressive Builds in RAD-IT may mean that there are more interfaces in the project than appear on a Service Package diagram. In RAD-IT Build Settings are used to determine the flows to include on the Interfaces Tab and which flows are to be included as part of the scope of the project architecture. The user can then customize the grid in RAD-IT to include or exclude flows between elements based on their needs. During import into SET-IT the service packages listed in the RAD-IT file are included along with the associated elements and interfaces. There may be a situation where a flow was added in RAD-IT that didn't appear on a Service Package. The user will be notified about this situation during import and warned that they may not want to do a Synchronization if they have "Delete database relationships not included in diagrams" selected.

SET-IT		×
	SET-IT was unable to find a diagram for at least one of the imported interfaces (Information flow triples). Please save the import report and use it to assign those interfaces to a Service Package diagram.	
	ОК	

TIP: if you get this message, be sure and Open/Save the report you are offered at the end of the Import process. It will tell you what Information Flow Triples it could not assign to a diagram.

А	В	С
Import Step	Import Item	Import Action
Interfaces	MCDPW GARLIC Information System>regional road closure information>TOMATO Regional Traveler Information Center	Failed to find a diagram for the triple.
Interfaces	PASTA Bus Operations Center>transit and fare schedules >TOMATO Regional Traveler Information Center	Failed to find a diagram for the triple.

Then you can edit you diagrams to include them on one or more of your service packages.

- RAD-IT projects can include custom choices about standards to include in a project. Once you have imported the project go to the Communications View and select the "Flow Triples to Profiles/Standards" grid to see the project-unique standards and their mapping to information flows in the project.
- With version 9.1 SET-IT projects can include service package implementation diagrams which represent a subset of an entire service package. Currently RAD-IT does not include support for service package implementation, so they won't affect import into SET-IT.

Questions about Import

Can I Import Another Project? Yes, you can change the project and import another set of project data from that same RAD-IT file. This might help build a 'super-project' to include services identified in multiple projects in the RAD-IT file.

- BEWARE: if the 2nd project had different mappings/relationships then you will be warned. Importing multiple projects into the same RAD-IT file should be done with care as the links to the previous project will not be preserved.
- What if I Make Changes to that RAD-IT file? You can reimport that RAD-IT project into SET-IT and SET-IT will update those same components in RAD-IT to reflect the changes. It will basically go through all the steps outlined above to import a project and will tell you the places where it will "Update per RAD-IT file".
 - But to be able to take advantage of this, you must keep the name of the RAD-IT file the same. If you were using the filenames to help keep track of your configuration it may be better to keep the filename the same and zip it up and put a date or version indicator on the zip file name.

Select Service Packages

ARC-IT has over 150 service packages. Each service package represents a slice of the architecture that combines physical objects, functional objects, and information flows to deliver one or more intelligent transportation and/or connected vehicle services and satisfy a set of needs and requirements in the surface transportation environment. Some of these are Safety based, some are Mobility oriented, others are geared to protecting the Environment, and others are there to Support the other services. Most were defined by US DOT projects in the United States but others have been defined internationally and are now part of the reference architecture. This provides project designers with a broad range of ideas and definitions for consideration when developing their own projects.

Model Systems Engineering (SE) Documents Service Packages.

You can use the Requirements Options to change the source of your project to use one of the Model Systems Engineering (SE) documents published by FHWA. See the "Requirements Options" section. If you do that then the Service Package listing will indicate "(Model Document)" next to the name of the Service Package. You can use the search capability and search on the phrase, model document, to see which ones those are.

SP	Service Package (SP)	ervice Package (SP)	
Identifier	Name	Name SP Implementation	
TM01.1	Infrastructure Based	Detector Based	Traffic Sensing and
	Traffic Surveillance	Surveillance	Detection Systems (TSDS)
TM01.2	Infrastructure Based Traffic Surveillance	Video Monitoring	Closed Circuit Television (CCTV) Systems
TM03	Traffic Signal Control	All 3 implementations are covered	Central Traffic Signal Systems
TM06.1	Traffic Information	Dynamic Message	Dynamic Message Sign
	Dissemination	Signs	(DMS) Systems

The table below shows which services are connected to the model documents.

When you select one of the services for which the model documents were based then it will import the needs and requirements associated with the model document in place of the ARC-IT needs and requirements written for that service package.

NOTE: More than one copy of a model document cannot be added to the same project. You will get a warning message to that affect if you try to include a 2nd copy of one of the service packages listed above.

Service Package Selection Window

The Service Packages screen available as part of the Overview menu is shown below:



On the Service Packages window, the full list of Service Packages is shown on the left. The following columns are used to classify the service packages:

- Type (Convenience, Environmental, Informational, Management, Mobility, Regulatory, Safety, or Support),
- *Group* within each Type, whether or not it is already in your project (0=no and 1 or more tells you how many copies or *instances* of that service package are in your project)
- *Service Area* for that Service Package, e.g., Traffic Management, Support, Data Management, etc.

When a row is selected (click on the left side of the row) the top right box will show the description of the Service Package from ARC-IT and the bottom right will show the Layer 2 Physical diagram from the architecture. The Description will also say how many diagrams are included.

You can sort the list(s) by Type, Group (of service packages), or Name by clicking the heading at the top of each column. Click it to sort that column alphabetically either ascending or descending. Use the Combine Type or Combine Group check boxes at the top of the window to combine the columns and hone your sorting for what you are interested in.

Click the "Group" button at the bottom to re-sort everything by Type, Group, and Service Package Names with the service packages / applications that have already been included in your project at the top of the screen.

TIP: Be careful using too many filters when viewing the Service Package screen, you may end up with a blank screen if you filter everything out. Click one of the checkboxes at the top to reset the filters and sorts.

Is it possible to have more than one "instance" of a service package in a project? Yes, it is possible to have multiple instances of a given service package, depending on the specific characteristics of a given project. You may, for instance, decide to show one version of a data distribution service to show the streaming of mobile sourced data through a data clearinghouse before going on to centers subscribed to that type of data. And then perhaps another version of data distribution to show the distribution from a management center out to the traveling public.

Service Package Implementations

On the Service Package Selection window there is a check box to "Show Implementations". See the Service Package Implementation Glossary entry for more information.

Click the "Show Implementations" button to expand the list to include Service Package Implementations. These are subsets of the main service package that are used to show alternatives to implementing that service. For instance, the Emergency Vehicle Preemption service (PS03) has 5 implementation options:

SP Identifier	Service Package Implementation Name	Notes
PS03.1	Traditional Field Control	Based on direct communication between the Emergency Vehicle and ITS Roadway Equipment
PS03.2	Traditional Traffic Management Center (TMC) Control	Managed in real-time by the TMC based on direct communication between the Emergency Vehicle and ITS Roadway Equipment.
PS03.3	Center to Center Coordination and Control	Granted based on negotiation between the Emergency Management Center and Traffic Management Center
PS03.4	Cooperative ITS Field Control	Based on direct secured and authenticated communication between the Emergency Vehicle and

SP	Service Package			
Identifier	Implementation Name	Notes		
		ITS Roadway Equipment via Connected Vehicle Roadside Equipment (RSE)		
PS03.5	Cooperative ITS Center-to- Center Coordination and Control	TMC-controlled and Connected Vehicle Roadside Equipment is used to coordinate preemption status with emergency vehicles at the intersection. Optionally, the Emergency Management Center can coordinate signal preemption in this center-based approach.		

When you click to highlight one of the Service Package Implementations you will see a different diagram with fewer objects and lines than shown on the parent service package. You will also see a difference in how some shapes appear. On Service Package Implementation diagrams the objects and flows are characterized by their *Inclusion* status using the following values and methods:

- *fundamental* to that service package implementation, i.e., it won't work without it. These use a bold outline, bold text, and wider width for flow lines.
- *At Least One* of; the service package needs to have at least one of these types of shapes in order to work properly. These use a normal outline, normal text, and a normal/solid line.
- *Optional;* the service can still work without this. These use italicized text with dotted lines.

Including Service Packages

Once you have selected the service packages / applications to include in your project's architecture click the "Include" button at the bottom of the window; SET-IT will then copy the physical diagram(s) from the ARC-IT reference diagram file into your project file. SET-IT also copies the Needs and Requirements from SET-IT that were developed in ARC-IT for the selected service packages.

Depending on your Options you may also be able to import Needs and Requirements from one of the FHWA Model Systems Engineering Documents. See the "Requirements Options" section for more information.

SET-IT has now created an "instance" of that service package for your project.

When you include more than one instance of a service package, SET-IT will import a second copy of the needs and requirements so you can have unique needs/requirements for each service package instance.

NOTE: Some Service Packages have more than one physical view drawing. SET-IT will include both drawings and you can decide to customize both as part of your project or delete one that you are not going to use.

NOTE: Because SET-IT synchronizes the name of the Service Package Instance with the name of the diagram, if a service package includes multiple diagrams it will create multiple SP instances.

NOTE: Items in the Service Packages menu that cannot be edited are shown in blue; in this menu you are limited to making changes in the white column which indicates which service packages you wish to include. Select or deselect service packages by checking or unchecking the appropriate box in the "Include" column.

Missing Service Packages

You may notice as you browse the list of service packages that there seem to be some gaps in the list. Not every Service Package in the reference architecture (ARC-IT) website is listed in the Overview / Service Packages window. This is due to a couple of reasons. The first is regional. Some service packages are specific to the region in which they were developed. Most of the 150+ service packages are available for all the current regions – United States (US), Canada (CA), European Union (EU), and Australia (AU).

The following service packages were defined in Australia:

- CVO16 Electronic Work Diaries
 - With v9.1 there is an Implementation of CVO16 for US projects.
- CVO17 Intelligent Access Program
- CVO18 Intelligent Access Program Weight Monitoring
- CVO19 Intelligent Speed Compliance

They do not show up in US projects unless you change your Settings in the Options menu to include Australia as one of the applicable regions.

Consult the Services Packages page on the <u>ARC-IT Website</u> for more information about those service packages. If you are working on a project in the United States and want to try one of those international services, you can go to Project / Options and add Australia as one of your regions. The list of Service Packages will now include the Australia defined services.

Where's SU07? The other type of service package that will not show up on the menu for a project architecture is the Support type of service that is focused on defining just the underlying communications between ITS objects. This is listed as SU07 ITS Communications on the ARC-IT website. Its diagram is shown below:



As the comment on the diagram indicates, SU07 consists of what are called "super-flows" that represent all of the more specific information flows that go between the ITS objects in a project. This service package is only defined in ARC-IT in order to model the underlying communications rules. Project or Regional Architectures do not need this service package.

Previous versions may have included this service and if those are converted they will have a note in the Conversion Summary report. You should probably remove SU07 from your project after conversion to avoid conflicts between the regular information flows and the "super-flows".

Searching for Service Packages

If you are interested in a particular type of ITS or connected vehicle technology but aren't sure if it's included in the Architecture, you can search for it using the box at the bottom of the Service Packages window. Where it says, "Enter search text here..." you type in the phrase you are interested in and click "Search".

Overview	41		Show Implem	entations	Combine Ty	pe(s) 🗹 Con	nbine Group(s)		This service package provides driver information message signs or highway advisory radio. A wide
	н.				Ser	vice Packages			including traffic and road conditions, closure and information, and emergency alerts and driver adv
Project	н.		Include	SP	In Project	Instances	Implementation		drivers at specific equipped locations on the road
				TM06	1	0	TM06	Traffic Information I	equipment provides the information at points in the
Service Packages						1	TM06.1	Dynamic Message S	and can tailor their routes to account for the new
				CVO09	0	0	CVO09	Freight-Specific Dyn	equipment and interfaces that provide traffic info
Change Log				DM01	0	0	DM01	ITS Data Warehous	television station computer systems). Transit Mar
				MC03	0	0	MC03	Roadway Automate	Transportation Information Centers. A link to the
				MC05	0	0	MC05	Roadway Maintenar	Center allows real time information on road/bridg
				MC06	0	0	MC06	Work Zone Manager	and construction activities to be disseminated.
				PS01	0	0	PS01	Emergency Call-Tak	This service package includes 1 physical diagram.
				PS06	0	0	PS06	Incident Scene Pre-	This service package includes 1 physical diagram
				PS10	0	0	PS10	Wide-Area Alert	
				PT03	0	0	PT03	Dynamic Transit Op	
				PT10	0	0	PT10.1	Wide-Area Wireless	
						0	PT10.2	Short Range Commu	
				ST07	0	0	ST07	Eco-Lanes Managen	
				TI03	0	0	TI03	Dynamic Route Guid	
				TI06	0	0	TI06	Dynamic Ridesharing	
						0	TI06.2	Dynamic Ridesharing	
				TI07	0	0	TI07	In-Vehicle Signage	(Media) q (2C) traffic information for media
				TM03	0	0	TM03	Traffic Signal Contro	Penonneil Penonneil
						0	TM03.1	Pre-Timed (Fixed Tir	traffic
				TM12	0	0	TM12	Dynamic Roadway V	operator i operator
				TM16	0	0	TM16	Reversible Lane Mar	CBI made
				TM18	0	0	TM18	Drawbridge Manage	(Emergency C+ Center) made
				TM20	0	0	TM20	Variable Speed Limit	Management Centery (2C) road network conditions (2B) roadw
			<u> </u>	TM22	0	0	TM22	Dynamic Lane Mana	(2C) traficinage +
			<u> </u>	TM24	0	0	TM24	Tunnel Management	traffic image meta data
				VS06	0	0	VS06	Stop Sign Gap Assis	(Transit Management) - (C) read network conditions
				VS16	0	0	VS16	Automated Vehicle	Center (2C) taffic images+
									(2C) road network conditions +
									traffic control information
Overview									(Transportation of traffic image meta data
	- 1								Information Center)
📢 Diagrams									Disprimation
	11								
🖉 Definitions	11	<						>	
~									Maint and Constr
			Indude	Group	dynamic			% Search	trafic image meta data

(You don't have to click Search – since SET-IT will start searching as you type.) The Service Packages window changes to only show Service Packages from the Architecture that include the phrase you entered – in their title or in their description. It will also show service packages that include your search text in the physical objects, information flows, or functional objects included in the service package diagram. There is a toggle button to turn Case Sensitive searching on and off depending on how precisely you need to search.

Open a Sample Project

SET-IT provides users with an example project which may serve as a starting point for new users; it includes a basic set of objects and interfaces that are common in many ITS or connected vehicle projects.

Opening and Saving the Sample Project

Click on Project Tab to open navigation pane; click on 'Sample Project' folder.

5 4) - (2 🖉 =	
Projec	ct	
	New	Recent Documer
Ĩ	<u>O</u> pen	
	<u>S</u> ave	
R	Save As	
$\langle\!$	Export	
	Close	
	Print	
?	Help	
ð	Sample Project	
-	Options	en Sample Project

The Create New Sample Project dialog box will open, showing "V2I Safety Initiative" in the Project Name field. You can change the name if desired, otherwise confirm that the location shown in the Project Location field is where you want to store the sample project (files) and click OK.

Clicking on the Sample Project option brings up a window called **Create New Sample Project**. This window is like the Save As window and allows you to save this sample as your own project into your own file folder. Use this window to choose the file folder and the name for the project.

Now you can edit the file, add to it, change the names to match your own, or just review or print out portions of the sample project to better understand how SET-IT works and how to build a connected vehicle project architecture.

More on the Sample Project

The sample project's file name is the "V2I Safety Initiative" and once it is open the longer name for the project appears as the "MCDOT V2I Safety Initiative". It portrays a project developed as part of the fictitious Marinara County's regional ITS architecture. In SET-IT the idea is to show a project that demonstrates how to include system elements, Vehicle-to-Infrastructure Safety service packages along with support services and systems that will be needed for a connected vehicle project.

The sample architecture currently includes twelve Layer 2 Physical diagrams, two Layer 1 physical diagram, a Layer 0 Physical diagram, and a Layer 0 Enterprise diagram. The project includes the following services, shown on the layer 2 diagrams:

- Connected Vehicle System Monitor
- Curve Speed Warning
- Data Distribution
- Device Certification and Enrollment
- Field Equipment Maintenance
- In-Vehicle Signage
- Location and Time
- Map Management
- Queue Warning
- Reduced Speed Zone Warning / Lane Closure 2 diagrams one for a Wide Area Wireless implementation and one for a Cooperative ITS based implementation.
- Security and Credentials Management

Use this sample as a starting point for your own project architecture or simply to refer to how these concepts are shown.

One thing you may notice is how the diagrams are organized. In order to create multiple Enterprise Diagrams you will see multiple physical layer 0 diagrams to match. You may want to try this method in your project – create multiple physical layer 0s then create multiple enterprise layer 0s to show different aspects of your project.

The current version of SET-IT now includes all of the service packages, objects, and flows that comprise ARC-IT. This includes merged content from both the former National ITS Architecture and CVRIA so they can be included in your own project just like other ITS or connected vehicle applications defined in the Architecture.

SET-IT Options

There are a number of options that a user can establish and change in order to personalize the software.

General	General options for working with SET-IT
General	
Diagrams Synchronization Requirements	Project Settings Project Directory: C:\SETIT\ Browse
Project Validation	Appearance
Output	Default color scheme: Blue Default lightness: LightGray Default Style: Custom
Advanced	Configuration Warnings Verify that Visio has been updated with required updates and service packs
	Current File Settings Applicable Regions Australia E.U. Canada U.S.

Note: The Applicable Regions area will be blank until a new project is started.

- 1. Select **Project** on the top menu,
- 2. Select **Options** from the pull-down menu and a pop-up window will appear with 9 tabs on the left: General, Diagrams, Synchronization, Requirements, Project Validation, Diagram Verification, Output, Event Log, Import (from RAD-IT), Advanced, and AutoBackup. See details about each type below.
- 3. When you are done making changes to the SET-IT Options just close this window by clicking the **X** at the top right of the window.

General Options

The General Options page provides settings and options to control the general behavior of the tool and some that are specific to a project when it is opened.

neral	General options for working with SET-IT
General	
Diagrams	Project Settings
Synchronization	Project Directory: C:\SETIT\ Browse
Requirements	
Project Validation	
Diagram Verification	Appearance
Output	Default color scheme: Blue ~
	Default lightness: LightGray V
Event Log	Default Style: Custom ~
] Import (RAD-IT)	Configuration Warrings
Advanced	
AutoBackup	Verify that Visio has been updated with required updates and service packs
	Current File Settings
	Anticable Regions
	Australia E.U.
	Canada 🗹 U.S.

- Project Settings: used to set a default directory for your SET-IT project files. Use the Browse button to navigate your file system and select the directory or folder that will be used as the default starting point when you Create, Open, or "Save As" a project.
- Appearance: used to set defaults for the color scheme, lightness, and styles for the project files
- Configuration Warnings: used to verify that you have current versions of Office, and specifically, Microsoft Visio, in order to support proper SET-IT functionality.
- Current File Settings: used to set the Applicable Regions for the information to be included in your project. Choose from Australia, Canada, the European Union (E.U.) or the United States (U.S.) to determine what objects, flows, services, communications solutions, etc., are made available to choose from as you build your project. For example,
 - Select US and EU as input sources on the Settings screen.
 - On the Overview->Service Packages table SET-IT displays services that come from EU or US only. So, an Australian-unique service, for example would not make the list (you may notice a gap or 2 in the list of service packages).
 - Select the service packages to include.
 - SET-IT imports the services and then removes the content (physical objects, functional objects, flows) that are not relevant to the US or EU.

These settings are also used as you create user defined flows, physical objects, and functional objects. As you create those components they will be stored in the database as having those applicable regions. Later, if you change the settings to display components from another region those components will not be shown.

Diagrams Options

There are 5 areas to the Diagrams Settings options screen:

- 1. Warnings: includes checkboxes to set or change when warnings will be issued:
 - a. "When the title block is being updated"
 - b. "If any shape is being deleted"

Resources Question: asks if you want SET-IT to update Resource shapes [in Enterprise view] when elements are assigned to physical drawings. Choices from the pull-down are Always Ask, Yes, or No.

- 2. Appearance: used to set the Font to be used as the default in the notes boxes
- 3. Physical Object Visibility: this has an option to "Show class level physical objects". For many users they will not need to know or see the automatic mappings that SET-IT makes to the Center, Field, Personal, and Vehicle physical objects. These physical objects are called class-level or level 1 objects that contain common functions and interfaces for any element created in that class. As a user maps an element to one of the level 2 or specialty level physical objects in those classes, SET-IT will automatically map the class level object to that element. This option gives the user the ability to see or hide those class-level object mappings.
- 4. New Diagram Content: includes 2 buttons to control what is included on the Enterprise or the Physical Layer 0 or Layer 1 drawings:
 - a. Physical Layer 1/0 Settings: See the next section for details on the <u>Physical Layer</u> <u>Diagram Settings Window</u>.
 - b. Enterprise Layer 0 Settings: see below for details on the <u>Enterprise Layer 0 Diagram</u> <u>Settings Window</u>.
- Current File Settings: The bottom option on this screen has a checkbox to Include (or exclude) Time and Spatial Context flow characteristics on the diagrams, either layer 0, 1, or 2. See the Flow Characteristics discussion in the <u>Identify Shape Properties for a Flow</u> section. They will take affect on your diagrams as soon as you close the Options window.

Physical Layer Diagram Settings Window

When you click the "Physical Layer 1/0 Settings" box another window opens to change how the elements are positioned and lines are drawn on the higher-level diagrams.

S Layer Diagram Settings	– 🗆 X
Physical Objects	Connections
Default PObject Height: 0.5	🖸 Draw Lines 🗹 Hide text
Default PObject Width: 1.3	Connection Type
Horizontal PObject Spacing Vertical PObject Spacing Fixed Variable Variable 	Interconnect Nax # of Flows per line: 6
Min: 0.4 Min: 0.4 Max: 1 Max: 1	Lines Draw Straight Lines Glue O Dynamic
Functional Objects	O Static Connection Points Spacing: 0.15
Functional Objects Spacing: 005 Max # of Functional Objects in a stack: 4	Static Connections Connect closest available Connection Points Connect to middle of the closest edge
	Restore Ok Cancel

The Layer Diagram Settings window allows you to manipulate details such as how tall or wide to allow a shape to get or how far apart shapes should be and whether to draw lines with dynamic or static connections to the shapes.

You can also choose to show Interconnects or Flows on your Layer 0 or Layer 1 diagrams.

It is recommended to only make changes to these settings once you have become comfortable with the layer 1 or layer 0 diagram generation process and are needing to tweak certain things.

NOTE: sometimes you may notice differences in the way the text on some buttons looks or inconsistencies in the labels for different columns. This may be caused by a Display Setting that some Windows users select called Font Scaling. SET-IT attempts to scale the appearance of text as well as other Windows programs but when users select 125% scale or greater then they may occasionally see some differences, e.g., some button labels may be truncated or letters will run together. If this happens try adjusting the Display Settings to 100%.

The "Restore" button at the bottom of the settings window allows you to reset all of the changes that have been made to the settings to their original defaults.

SET-IT		×
?	Restoring default values will overwrite your current settings. Do you want to continue?	
	Yes <u>N</u> o	

Enterprise Diagram Settings Window

When you click the "Enterprise Layer 0 Settings" box another window opens to change how the shapes are positioned and what lines are included on the enterprise view diagrams.

5 Enterprise Layer Diagram Settings	– – ×
2D Shapes	Connections
☑ Draw Resources	Draw Agreements Draw Expectations Hide text Draw Roles
Resource Weight	Lines
Increasing this number will increase the gravity of Resource shapes against EObject shapes i.e. related EObjects shapes will be drawn closer to their connected Resource. Resource To EObject Weight Ratio: 15	Glue Dynamic Static Connection Points Spacing: 0.15 Static Connections
Scale When drawing corresponding Resources based on your Physical diagram, this number will be multiplied into the Physical shapes coordinates to position the Resource shapes. For example, if you use 1 as your scale, then the generator will try to place your Resource shapes in a similar position as your Physical Objects.	 Connect closest available Connection Points Connect to middle of the closest edge
Physical To Enterprise Scale: 1	
	Restore OK Cancel

The first checkbox on the left let's the user decide whether to include Resources on the diagram. Resources are typically associated with the elements shown on physical view.

To the right, there is a set of checkboxes under the heading of "Connections". These let the user decide whether to include Agreements, Expectations, Roles, or some combination of those on the enterprise diagram.

If "Draw Resources" is unchecked on the left side of the settings window then the "Draw Roles" box will be greyed out since it would not be applicable since Roles are between an Enterprise/Stakeholder and the physical object or element.

There is also a "Hide text" box that the user can check if they just want a clean diagram without the lengthy names of agreements and expectations.

The "Resource Weight" and "Resource Scale" section provide settings to control how close and how similar the resources should be placed on a diagram relative to the placement of their corresponding physical elements on the physical layer 0 diagram. Use the Weight to position the a stakeholders resources closer to the stakeholder box or further away if you are trying to spread things out with a complicated set of agreements.

The "Restore" button at the bottom of the settings window allows you to reset all of the changes that have been made to the settings to their original defaults.

Synchronization Options

Synchronization enables users to specify the "direction" the synchronization process should work:

- 1. Update the database (Definitions tables) to match the *Diagrams*
- 2. Update the Diagrams to match the *database* (Definitions tables)
- 3. There is also a check box to check if you want to *delete* the database interfaces that are not included in any of the diagrams.

nchronization	Synchronization
General	
Diagrams	Manual Synchronization
Synchronization	Update database to match diagrams Update diagrams to match database
🥟 Requirements	Delete database relationships not included in diagrams
Project Validation	
Diagram Verification	O Sync all diagrams
Output	Only sync diagrams that I edited after opening the project
👌 Event Log	
↓] Import (RAD-IT)	Auto Synchronization
	Always synchronize
	Tum on Auto Sync on startup and when a project is opened Always ask
AutoBackup	

TIP: The first option is good when you have been doing most of your work by editing the diagrams and want the definitions in the tables to match the changes you've made on the diagrams. The second option would be good if you had been making changes on the definitions and wanted the diagrams to be updated to match. The Delete checkbox will be

good when you have finished with the project architecture and want to clean out unused entries in the database.

The Synchronization options also includes radio buttons to either:

- Sync all diagrams, or
- Only sync diagrams that I edited after opening the project.
 - This will improve performance especially if you have a lot of diagrams.

Lastly there is a checkbox to decide whether to all SET-IT to automatically synchronize.

Keep "Automatically Synchronize" checked as much as possible. This way the diagrams and database will stay updated as you work on your diagrams or definitions tables. If you want to temporarily turn this off to overcome a performance issue that's OK but turn it back on as soon as you can. SET-IT will remind you about this if you start SET-IT and save a project and it sees that Auto Sync is off.

Requirements Options

The Requirements Options allow a user to establish whether they want to continue to use ARC-IT as the source for their requirements or to choose an alternative source. An alternative source could be one of the Model Systems Engineering Documents that have been written by Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) for relatively simple projects like deploying a Dynamic Message Signs (DMS), Closed Circuit Television (CCTV) cameras, Signal Systems, or other traffic surveillance and detection systems (TSDS). See <u>Model Systems Engineering (SE) Documents Service Packages</u> for more information.



The other set of choices determines how the Requirements Allocation grid will appear in the current project file, either showing functional requirements mapped to each element or showing overall system requirements for the system of interest or project.

NOTE: the Requirement Allocation settings are for the current file only. When you start a new project file you will need to reestablish these settings.

Validation Options

This supports the process of validating the architecture and includes a number of Rules and Options. This screen allows you to establish the default settings to use whenever you run Validation. The Rules are displayed in a collapsible list with a high-level checkbox for each view and a general set of validation rules:

SET-IT Options		×
Project Validation	Validation settings	
Diagrams Synchronization	Rules Do you want SET-IT to validate your projects when they are opened? Always ask	
Requirements	Physical View ☐ ☐ Check that each physical object has an element assigned to it	^
Diagram Verification	Identify functional objects that are not contained within elements/physical objects Identify balancing inconsistencies between layer 0, 1, and 2 physical diagrams Verify that sequences are associated with a diagram	
Output		
Event Log	Identify element information flow triples missing physical objects assignment Identify unused element information flow triples Identify element information flow triple duplicates	
Advanced		
		•
	Restore Select All	Deselect All

Above the list of rules is a pull-down so you can decide whether you want validation to run every time you open a project or never or tell it to ask you each time.

For more on validation check the <u>Validation</u> section in the <u>Review</u> chapter.

Diagram Verification Options

Diagram Verification options supports the process of verifying that a particular diagram satisfies the rules for determining the completeness of the diagram.

Set - H Options	
iagram Verification	Diagram Verification
General Control Contro	Diagram Verification Check that each physical object has an element assigned to it [Required] Glentify functional objects that are not contained within elements/physical objects [Required] Glentify disconnected flows [Required] Glentify element information flow triples per relationships [Recommended] Glentify missing/extra functional objects [Recommended] Glentify auspicious status assignments
AutoBackup	Required Verifications cannot be unchecked. Restore Select All

There are several options that can be run every time the Diagram Verification tool is run from the Diagram including some that are required, some that are recommended, and others that are optional. The required tests will be run every time and cannot be unchecked.

The following tests are required:

- That every physical object shape has an element assigned to it
- Any functional objects not contained within a physical object or element
- Whether there are any disconnected flows

The following tests are recommended before completing a project architecture:

- That all information flow triples are included based on the dependency and other relationships defined in the database
- That there are no missing or extra functional objects based on the service package being customized
- Verify that the ARC-IT rules for inclusion are satisfied. This applies to Service Package Implementation drawings that shows some objects and flows as fundamental, some that

maybe part of a set and at least one of that set should be included, and others are optional to that service.

Optional tests include:

- Duplicate information flow triples
- Suspicious status assignments, e.g., flows labeled 'Existing' but its source element is set to 'Future'

These tests will help a user determine if they can consider a diagram as Complete in the development of their project architecture.

A Restore button lets you go back to the Default choices. You can also use the Select All and Deselect All buttons as short-cuts, noting that none of the required tests can be unchecked.

Output Options

These options are used to change how the reports or Output tables will look, including:

- 1. A set of radio buttons to choose whether your tables include all possible rows from the database or only the rows specifically associated with your project. For smaller, simple projects you may not want to see data on all possible ARC-IT components.
- A checkbox to roll up (or merge) identical data in multiple rows into a single cell.
 TIP: if you have a large architecture you may get better performance if you *Uncheck* that box.

utput	Output options	
General		
Diagrams	Tables	
Synchronization	Include all possible rows in the table Include Show only rows specifically associated with the project	
Requirements		
Project Validation	Roll up multiple rows into a single row	
Diagram Verification		
Output		
Event Log		
Import (RAD-IT)		
Advanced		
AutoBackup		

There are two ways to get to the Output Options screen. The first is from the Project / Options menu. The second is from the Output Tables screen. There is a button at the top of that screen called "Options" that leads to this same menu to let you control the outputs as you generate them.

Event Log Options

This screen includes options to turn on/off an event log utility that can be used for debugging errors caused by SET-IT or issues in a project's database or diagrams. There are 2 sections:

- **Enable Logging** is a checkbox to first turn on the logging capability. Then there are check boxes for the type of error sources to trace: database, diagram, exceptions, form details, shape properties, other. There are pull-downs for each of Information or Verbose.
 - **TIP:** It is a very good idea to check this box. If you run into problems or you have a strange error message pop-up, the SET-IT development team will be able to diagnose your problem more quickly if you have this enabled.
- Log File allows you to browse and set the location for the log file to be stored. It will be created in the form of a normal text file. The default path is the path of the current project. You can also set the maximum size of the file. When it reaches the maximum, it will create a copy and start another file. If it reaches the maximum again then the first file will be copied over. File information tells you when the log file was created, modified, or last accessed.

NOTE: The Trace Sources settings can only be changed if you are running as an Administrator on your computer. Many users can do this when they start SET-IT from the program menu or the desktop. Right-click on the SET-IT icon and select "Run as Administrator..."

NOTE: There is another log file used to capture 'Start-Up' events that happen when a program is started but before a project has been opened or started. This Start-Up Log File is stored on your PC under C:\Users\<username>\AppData\Roaming\Iteris, Inc\SET-IT\. A subfolder is created for each new version of SET-IT and the file is called "SET-IT.log".

TIP: An easy way to find the Start-Up log is to start SET-IT and select Project/Options before you open a project. Go to the Event Log tab of the Options window and click "Log Path" and it will open that directory in a Windows Explorer window.

If you 'run as Administrator' you will then be able to change the Trace Sources options to control how much detail is collected. After you make the changes, you will be prompted to restart SET-IT to apply the changes.


Import Options

When you import a project from RAD-IT you will be given a choice of removing objects that are Not Applicable on the service package diagrams. This will make for less cluttered diagrams but may hide opportunities for future inclusion of objects in a service package.

Here the Options window gives you the option to set a default of:

- Always Ask (default)
- Yes
- No

Advanced Options

The Temp Folder portion of Advanced Options tab shows you where the temporary files are kept while SET-IT is running.

There may be situations like a system crash where you will need to find these files so you can click the "Path" button to go there. SET-IT normally will clear this folder when saves are done or the project closes normally. However, you may need to manually clear these files if you have had a lot of crashes for some reason and your files are taking up too much space. You can click Export to move the files for offline analysis or you can Clear the files to make room on your hard drive.

vanced	Advanced (Options for working with SET-IT						
General Diagrams Synchronization Requirements Project Validation	Temp Fold SET-IT of files whe it never You can the 'Clea of the un	er creates temporary files under the followin in it closes, but for various reasons it do gets to do this). clean out anything left there that is not ir button, but please note those files co isaved changes from prior to the crash	ng folder for it's own temporary use. SET-IT esn't always happen for example, if the pro being used at the moment by pressing uld potentially be used to recover some	should delete all its temporary gram crashes,				
Diagram Verification	Path	Path C:\Users\Userid \AppData\Local\Temp\ITS Architecture\SET-IT\						
Output	Size:	54 MB	[Export Clear				
Event Log Import (RAD-IT) Advanced	Database SET-IT SET-IT's options o errors) w	Access Options uses database access technologies that a ability to support complex database of only if you are encountering system erro hile using SET-IT.	at include system options that can impact perations in some scenarios. Change these rs (e.g., system resource errors or file lock					
AutoBackup		ease Maximum File Locks						
	SET-IT Up You're Last che	date up to date icked: 8/29/2023, 3:36:57 PM < for updates	✓ Show on main window ✓ Check for updates at startur					

Under Database Access Options, you can change the maximum number of File Locks used by the Database Access Operations. Change this only if you are having issues with system resource errors.

The SET-IT Update options allow you to manually check the National ITS Architecture website, <u>www.arc-it.net</u> to see if there are updates available for SET-IT. The checkboxes here give you to option to show messages at the bottom right corner of the main SET-IT window or to Check for updates during start-up.

AutoBackup Options

The settings to manage how often, how much, and where the backups are stored are also found on the Project / Options menu – look for the AutoBackup tab.

Backup	AutoBackup
Seneral	Enable
)iagrams	Storage
synchronization	Create backups in the selected folder:
Requirements	C:\SETIT_SET-IT_Backups\ Browse
Project Validation	Interval
-	Create a backup file every time I save my file
Diagram Verification	O Create a backup file the first time I save my file
Output	For both options, the backup is created when you click 'Save', but just before your changes are actually saved. This means the backup does not include any of the changes
event Log	that are about to be saved.
mport (RAD-IT)	Content
dvanced	O Backup the entire project's folder
luvanceu	Backup the entire project's folder except the existing backup files
utoBackup	Backup the minimum files that are required to open the project
	Overwrite previous backups
	☑ Limit number of backup files to: 20 🚖
	Backup size depends on the project and the content settings. Current project folder is ~46 MB.

The settings let you assign a specific folder to keep all of your backups in or it will put them in your project's folder. When the backup routine runs it creates a compressed or zipped file and adds a date/time stamp to the filename and uses a unique file extension, ".setitbkp". This file type can be opened by any file compression software.

You can change the interval, or how often backup will run; every time you do a Save or in conjunction with opening your project. As the note says on the screen, for both options the backup is created when you click 'Save', but just before the changes are actually saved. This means the backup does not include any of the changes that are about to be saved. The idea is to make a backup of the state of your project just before committing any of the most recent changes to the permanent saved database. This may be useful when there is a problem and the database gets corrupted.

You can also set how much is backed up. Remember that a SET-IT project is a collection of files including the database, the Visio drawing files, the log files, and the ConOps templates. You may also have copies of your generated diagrams and other outputs in the folder as well. AutoBackup can back up everything or just enough to open the project – the database and drawings – which might be OK if you're using this as a way to restart the project if you have a problem and you are storing the more complete project backups on your own somehow.

The settings for AutoBackup also let you set how many backups to keep. If you're backing up the entire project folder every time the files can really add up so you may want to limit the number of backups it keeps.

See <u>AutoBackup</u> described in the <u>Save a Project</u> section for more information.

Searching My Project

Once you have a project with lots of diagrams it may be hard to remember where everything is and what is on each diagram. Use the "Search" box at the top of the SET-IT screen. This box also has a pull-down arrow you can choose to open a Find & Replace feature.



In the Search or Find/Replace window simply enter the word or phrase you want to look for in the box and click search.

写 Find & Rep	Find & Replace × arch Find & Replace ind what: ////////////////////////////////////	
Search Find &	Replace	
Find what:	6	6
Replace with:		
The Find and F	Replace tools only look at user editable content	
	Replace Find Next Cancel	

SET-IT will open a new form showing the Search Results.

~			rioject nome re	VIEW	Output			2								
i c	Replace						\times									
əl 👘	neplace															
Se	arch Fin	d & Rep	blace													
							_									
S	earch for:	spot				1	%								tore Show Details In Diagram Details In Diagram	
۰.									_	Search Results					-	
_					Creat	Connel		Description	Туре	Diagram	View	User D	efined)	More	Show	۷
					Search	Cancel		ers need to be able to	Need		Physical			Details	In Diag	gram
			·/					ssions Management	Need		Physical			Details	In Diag	gram
		38			emergency notification relay		The	e relay of a previously	Flow		Physical			Details	In Diag	gram
			Service Packages		Emissions Zone Management		'Em	issions Zone Management'	Functional Object		Physical			Details	In Diag	gram
					ETSI 101 556-1 App: EV Char	rging Spot	Thi	s document specifies the	Standard		Communications			Details	In Diag	gram
			Change Log		ETSI 101 556-3 App: EV Ene	rgy	Thi	s document specifies	Standard		Communications			Details	In Diag	gram
					EU: Electric Charging Spot Re	eservations	upp	per-layer standards required	Profile		Communications			Details	In Diag	gram
		-	Notes		EU: Electric Charging Spot Re	eservations	Thi	s solution is used within	Solution		Communications			Details	In Diag	gram
					EU: Electric Charging Spot Re	eservations	Thi	s solution is used within	Solution		Communications			Details	In Diag	ow iagram iagram iagram iagram iagram iagram iagram iagram iagram iagram iagram iagram iagram iagram
			Search Regulte		Loading Zone Management		'Loi	ading Zone Management'	Functional Object		Physical			Details	In Diag	gram
		-	Jedi uli Results		Parking Area Equipment		'Pa	rking Area Equipment'	Physical Object		Physical			Details	In Diag	10W Nagram kagram Nagram Nagram Nagram Nagram Nagram Nagram Nagram Nagram Nagram Nagram Nagram
					Parking Area Equipment		'Pa	rking Area Equipment'	Resource		Enterprise			Details	In Diag	gram
					parking information		Ger	neral parking information	Flow		Physical			Details	In Diag	gram
		-			ST05: Electric Charging Statio	ons	The	Electric Charging Station	Service Package		Physical			Details	In Diag	gram
					TM17: Speed Warning and Er	nforcement	Thi	s service package monitors	Service Package		Physical			Details	In Diag	gram
					VS02: V2V Basic Safety		Thi	s service package	Service Package		Physical			Details	In Diag	gram
					WX03: Spot Weather Impact	Warning	Thi	s service package will alert	Service Package		Physical			Details	In Diag	gram
								-								

Each row lists the object within the architecture that contains that word – either in the name or within a description. Click on the "Details" button to see the definitions details form or click on "In Diagram" to open the diagram that has that flow, resource, element, or object.

You can search for something again by clicking the down arrow and cycling through your search history. This is useful if there are key phrases you typically search for.

You can select the Find & Replace tab and enter a phrase to change from and to across your architecture. As you press Find it will open the Details form where that phrase is found, either in the name or description. Press Replace to make the changes and then select Find Next to find the next occurrence of the search phrase.

In either tab you can use the Case Sensitive button to toggle between whether to search or find phrases exactly as entered.

Another way to Search is to use the Search feature at the bottom of the Overview / Service Packages screen to search for key phrases among the ARC-IT service packages.

Diagrams & Architecture Components

SET-IT uses a combination of Diagrams and Database Tables to represent a project architecture. The project architecture is also expressed from different Views.

Common Usage Notes

SET-IT makes use of Microsoft Visio to provide the underlying drawing surface and many of the tools to draw and edit your project diagrams.

When you select a Service Package from the Overview menu you are selecting information from multiple aspects of ARC-IT (formerly National ITS Architecture & CVRIA) including physical diagrams along with definitions of the architecture components that make up the physical and enterprise views. Communications View includes definitions for the standards and the protocol profiles. There are also the templates used to draw each of the communications view diagrams. This also copies over the Needs and Requirements for that Service Package as defined in the Architecture.

Switching between Views is accomplished by selecting the view from the menu bar or ribbon:



SET-IT will try to switch you to the appropriate place in the other view and remember where you were so you can switch back. For example, if you are in the Definitions grid and are looking at a list of Stakeholders while in the Physical view when you select the "Enterprise" button SET-IT will take you to the Stakeholders table on the Enterprise view. Switching between Enterprise and Physical diagrams works the same way allowing you to easily flip back and forth between the enterprise and physical views of the same service package.

Some common issues you may encounter on any type of diagram:

- **Disappearing Stencil?** On the diagrams it is possible for a user to right-click at the top of the Stencil area and it will activate the Stencil context menu. One of the choices is to Close or Hide the window which removes the stencil completely from the user interface. If this happens and you want to use the Stencil, you will need to Close SET-IT and restart it.
- **<u>Red Asterisk?</u>** You may notice a red asterisk appear in the Stencil area next to Physical Stencil. This indicates that Visio has the stencil in Edit mode and you may be able to see other options. There is no cause for concern. SET-IT has the stencil in Read-only mode to prevent any permanent changes.
- <u>Ctrl-g?</u> Pressing the Control key and the g key or <Ctrl-g> is a way to "Go To" a certain location or position within a Word file. In Visio it is a shortcut to "grouping" several shapes together. Unfortunately, in SET-IT this has had unpredictable effects. If you use your mouse to click and drag a box around several shapes and click <Ctrl-g> you will get a warning message that "SET-IT does not allow shape grouping. The grouped shapes will be automatically deleted. 'Undo' can be used to recover the deleted shapes."



You will see the shapes you had selected disappear and you should click the Undo button immediately to restore your shapes to the diagram. Because of this it is recommended that users do not use <Ctrl-g>.

Undo: You may notice that clicking Undo or pressing <Ctrl-z> does not have the effect you wanted. Sometimes you may have to click it again. In some cases, Undo will have no effect – for instance, if you added a functional object to an element and requirements were automatically added to the element then Undo may not automatically remove those requirements. You may have to go in and manually adjust the requirements.

Visio: SET-IT is designed to work with 2013 or 2016 versions of Visio. It has also been tested with 2019 and 365. However, if your other Microsoft Office products have been upgraded to 2016 or

higher then Microsoft now requires that your copy of Visio also be upgrade in order for the tools to talk to each other – which they do when using SET-IT.

Completion Status: You can right-click over the name button for a diagram in the left menu and assign a Completion Status of Started, Partial, or Complete.



The color of the button will change accordingly so you can see at a glance how far along you are.

- Pink/Red = Started
- Yellow = Partial
- Green = Complete

These values are manually assigned. SET-IT isn't keeping track of what you've done and setting the values for you. This is just a way to help you and your stakeholders see the status. If you set it to Complete, then SET-IT will run a series of test to verify that you are at least minimally complete.

Then you can use the grid for Diagram Information to add a note about this Completion Status.

Physical View

The architecture's physical view is where most of the work takes place to define the system elements and interfaces for an intelligent transportation system project. The other views will build on this section which describes how to create and modify your architecture's physical view, including how to create a new Physical diagram and modify its components.

Including a Service Package

When you start SET-IT and create a new project you use the Overview screen to fill-in that project's information. The next step typically is to select a Service Package to include in your architecture as the starting point for your project. Click the Service Packages button on the Overview menu.



You are then shown a list of all of the Service Packages in ARC-IT. See <u>Select Service Packages</u> for more on this.

You can use the search box at the bottom of the screen to search for a particular service package based on key words or phrases like "transit" or "security".

As you highlight a row you will see the description and diagram for that service package appear in the right side of the screen.

Click one or more checkboxes and the "Include" button at the bottom and SET-IT will import those diagrams from the ARC-IT library into your project along with the database descriptions of the service package, objects, and flows.

The next step will be to customize the drawing by creating and assigning locally named Elements to the Physical Object boxes and making other customizations described in the next sections.

NOTE: Some users have reported that as some drawings are imported into SET-IT boxes show up with just a white box and no color to represent their class. This appears to be a resource issue on the user's computer. Delete the diagram and try again.

Create a New Physical Diagram

- 1. Click on the **Diagram** button from the new area of the menubar (top-left).
- 2. Select a **Layer** from the drop-down menu. For Physical the choices are 0 for the project level perspective, 1 for mid-level perspectives, and 2 for the service package level.
- 3. Enter a name for the diagram in the **Title** box.
- 4. Select a Service Package from the drop-down menu. This creates a database entry to associate this diagram with a particular service package / application. (NOTE: at this point this is optional as it doesn't pull in objects from ARC-IT to draw the diagram it simply creates a database relationship.) It does allow you to select custom or user-defined service packages created on the Service Packages table from the Definitions menu.
- 5. Click **OK**.



You can choose from the ARC-IT service packages or a new user defined service. Any user defined service packages that have been created in this project architecture file will be listed first. You can add a service package by selecting <New Service Package> from the Service Package pull-down which will open the New Service Package window. See "Creating <u>New Items from the Ribbon</u>" for more information.

NOTE: You cannot create a copy of a Physical Layer 2 diagram directly from the Diagrams menu (go back to the Overview / Service Packages screen to include another instance of the Service Package).

Add a Shape to a Diagram

To add a shape to a diagram, start by creating a New Diagram, or opening an Existing Diagram. Select a **Shape** from the stencil on the left.



Shapes include Information flows; Physical Objects – either Center, Field, Vehicle, Vehicle(mobile) which is a nomadic device like a smart phone that could be carried into the vehicle and turned into onboard equipment, Personal, or Support; Functional Objects; Notes or Comment boxes; Human objects (operators or users) – either Center, Field, Personal, Vehicle, or Support; Communications objects like Data Distribution Systems or Wide Area Information Distribution systems; Environmental objects of various classes; Terminals; Legend (vertically or horizontally oriented); or a Title Block.

The ITS Object is used for the Location and Time Data Source objects if you need to add one to your project. Otherwise, the ITS Object works behind the scenes to represent a generic object supporting all of the subsystem kind of elements in order to include their common functionality and interfaces. The user will not have to select ITS Object. SET-IT will decide when to include that mapping for you.

Drag the **Shape** to the drawing area.

Double click on the Shape or right-click and select **Shape Properties** to view and edit the properties of that new shape.

For Physical Object and Communications boxes select the physical object down in the bottom part of the Shape Properties.

Click **New** to create a new element mapped to this physical object or communications shape. If an element already exists for that PObject you can just click to select and map that element to this new shape.

Delete a Shape

Select a **Shape** in the drawing area by clicking once on the shape.

Click **Delete** on the keyboard. It will ask if you are sure.

You can also right-click and select Delete.

If you delete a user-defined Physical Objects you will be informed with a pop-up screen that an Enterprise Object / Resource by that name also exists and you will be asked if you want to delete that, too. Conversely, if you delete a user-defined Resources in Enterprise view, you will be informed that a Physical Object by that name also exists and asked if you want to delete that, too.

Create an Element

An "element" in SET-IT represents an instance of a physical object from ARC-IT. Think of this as the local or customized version of what the national or reference framework has defined.

You can create your own elements and associate them with one or more physical objects.

There are several ways in which to create an element:

- From diagram, double-click on one of the rectangles that represent a physical object. This will open the Shape Properties window shown above. From there select New... to open the Element Details window.
- From the 'New' area of menu bar on the "Home" ribbon, select Item / Element. This will also open the Element Details window.
- From anywhere in the Physical or Enterprise view press Control-e which is a shortcut key to open the Element Details window.

When starting with the Shape Properties window you will first select the appropriate **Physical Object** from the checkboxes located on the middle of the form.

If you dragged a system shape onto the diagram and opened Element Details using the New or Edit buttons on Shape Properties then certain fields will be locked. Use Shape Properties to make those changes first.

Select the **Type** – System or Human. This will be established by the shape you chose to move onto the drawing.

Select the **Domain** – Transportation or Communications. This will narrow the choices available on the other pull-downs. If you select Transportation then only transportation related PObjects will be available for selection and if you select Communications then only communications related PObjects will be available, e.g., Data Distribution or Wide Area Information Dissemination.

Select the Class – Center, Field, Personal, Support, Vehicle

Select the appropriate **Physical Object(s)** from the pull-down menu to select an ARC-IT physical object or a user defined object. SET-IT will filter the selections based on the domain, class, or type of object.

Select from an existing element in the center of the Shape Properties window.

Once you have selected an element to associate with this shape you can select its status. It will default to what you have set as the Default on the Status Values table (see Status Values in the *Definitions Menu*), usually "Project".

If you don't see an element listed, click the **New** button in the shape properties form.

The **Element Details** form appears as shown below:

互 Element D	Details				-		×				
Name:	New Traffic Manage	ment Center									
Description: <u>Auto-Populate</u>	(Center) This general physical object is used to model core capabilities that are common to any center. (Traffic Management Center) The 'Traffic Management Center' monitors and controls traffic and the road network.										
	Status:	Project ~	Abbreviat	ion: NTMC							
	Type:	System ~	Parent Elem	ent:	\sim						
	Class:	Center ~	Dom	ain: Transportation	n ~						
	Physical Object(s)	Related	O All								
	Traffic Manage Alerting and Ad Alternate Mode Archived Data Archived Data Asset Manager Authorizing Cer	ment Center visory System Transportation Center System <support> User System nent System iter</support>				~					
	Stakeholder			Role	Status						
	New Town Traffi	ic Department		Owns	Project						
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				1						
Comercial N	Downant			C	Ж	Cancel					

NOTE: the Lock symbol beside Physical Object(s) will appear when you come into Element Details from Shape Properties. This is preventing you from changing something that is based on a diagram. You would have to make the change on Shape Properties first or from the Definitions grid.

Type an **Element** name and its description and the selected **Element** name will appear on the shape.

A default abbreviation will also be entered in the Abbreviation box but you can change this to something that makes more sense to your stakeholders. This is limited to 5 characters so they fit on the terminal shapes when those are used. If your name is more than 5 words long, it will stop after 5

characters. If the automatic abbreviation will cause a conflict with an existing abbreviation, then the last letter will be replaced by a number.

You can type in a **Description** for the element. If you don't quite know what to say use the "**Auto-Populate**" button to the left of the Description box to let SET-IT create a Default Description. This will copy the descriptions of the physical object(s) the element is mapped to from the ARC-IT database. Then you can customize it.

Center/Field and ITS Object:

When you clicked New from Shape Properties there may have been additional Physical Objects mapped to your element behind the scenes. SET-IT automatically associates your element with the generic physical objects that are appropriate to the kind (subsystem or terminator) and class (center, field, personal, or vehicle) of object you are creating. These class-level or level 1 objects are set automatically by SET-IT so the element will inherit the functions and interfaces that are common across all systems of that class. Elements mapped to a subsystem (an object that has functional objects) will get assigned an ITS Object mapping and the Center, Field, Personal, and Vehicle class elements will also get a Center, Field, Personal, or Vehicle object assignment, respectively. This will be visible in the Element Details form or on Shape Properties only if you checked the option on the Diagram Settings options to "Show class level physical objects".

The exception to this is any ITS Communications Equipment elements which are not automatically mapped to either ITS Object, Center, or Field physical objects. These general objects provide functionality across all the objects in this class, including security, management, and communications. This simplifies the overall architecture so these functions and interfaces do not have to be defined multiple times.

Human Objects:

The figure below shows the Details form when creating a 'Human' type of element:

互 Element I	Details —	o x	Font	Paragraph	Clipboard	Arrange	Zoom	
- Description: <u>Auto-Populate</u>	Saucelita Traffic Ops Personnel Status: Project Abbreviation: STOP Type: Human Parent Benent: V				Sauc	celito Traffic Personnel	C Ops	8
	Physical Object(a) Physical Object(a) Traffic Operations Personnel Center Pensonnel Center Pensonnel Center Sets System Operator <supports <supports="" centersalt="" commercial="" operator="" physical="" system="" th="" vehicle="" vehicles<=""><th>^</th><th><u>iformatio</u></th><th>traffic n (c)</th><th>opera</th><th>tor datatraffi SCDOT Ci</th><th>ic operator inpu ty</th><th>ıt</th></supports>	^	<u>iformatio</u>	traffic n (c)	opera	tor datatraffi SCDOT Ci	ic operator inpu ty	ıt
	Innert Details Inner: Saucelta Traffic Ops Personnel Status: Poject Type: Human Prysical Object Prysi	~	<u>'k conditi</u>	ons (c)	0	perations C	Center	
			mage me ^r Hages (c)	ta	•			
Form Source: S	OK C	ancel						

When you edit the details of a Human type of element the 'class' of the object is not shown. When you create or edit the element details from the Definitions menu you can associate it with more than one physical object from different classes. This allows you to support situations where the same element, City Centre Traveling Public, may drive but they may also use other modes of transportation such as a transit vehicle so you want to show them as both a Driver (vehicle class) and a Traveler (personal class).

The other feature of the Element Details form is to associate the human element with a stakeholder. This is a variation of the normal Element Details form in that the Roles column is not shown. You can either enter a stakeholder to associate a stakeholder/human that may be managed or be part of a larger organization – such as a Taxi Driver that is part of a Taxi company. You can also leave the stakeholder field blank for the Human element and SET-IT will automatically create a stakeholder with the same name as the element. This will let you show the relationship between the stakeholder who may operate or use an element with other stakeholders (owners, managers, etc.) in the Enterprise view.

Element Creation Notes

NOTE: the ability to change an element's mappings to physical objects is disabled when you enter the details form from Shape Properties on a diagram. In that case, SET-IT is restricting controls to only what is on that diagram. You can access the Element's definition from the Definitions menu and change the mappings there with some restrictions. If you try to remove a physical object mapping in the Elements Details form you may see a message that says, "To unmap this physical object from this element you must first remove it from this element's shapes on the following

diagram(s): ..." Go back to the Diagram and use Shape Properties to change the elements and how they are assigned to different shapes on the diagram.

Cannot Uncheck Physical Object	×
To unmap this physical object from this element you must first remove it from this element's shapes on the following diagram(s): DownTown Curve Speed Warning	
ОК	

CAUTION: If you enter the Element Details from the Definitions menu you can also change the **Class** of the object with the Class pull-down to either Center, Field, Personal, Support, or Vehicle or the **Type** of the object to either System or Human. A warning will pop-up to say "Changing the Element's Class will uncheck physical objects currently assigned to this element. Do you want to proceed?"

This can have big consequences later so you may want to leave this assignment alone. If you have something that is part of multiple classes, go back to the diagram and choose one of the hybrid objects from the Stencil.

Next, you can also use the area below the physical objects list to enter **Stakeholders** for the various **Roles** and their **Status** with that element.

TIP: It is a good idea to make sure your elements have a stakeholder for who *owns* and *manages* the element. This will help SET-IT map out the relationships among Stakeholders. This will be exercised more with the <u>Enterprise View</u>.

NOTE: You can assign multiple stakeholders to a role depending on their status. You may define one stakeholder who is currently operating a system (Existing status) and another stakeholder that will be operating the upgraded system once the project is implemented (Project status). However, two stakeholders cannot have the same role and the same status. No two stakeholders can operate a system at the same time.

When you are done select **OK** and the selected **Element** name will appear on the shape on the diagram. Now as you edit other diagrams for other service packages you can reuse this Element for similar physical objects.

The other way to create a new Element is to use the New pull-down menu from the Home or Diagram ribbon.

NOTE: If the new element is a *center* type of element, when you say OK to create the new Element, SET-IT will automatically associate the element with the generic "Center" physical object. This will allow you to assign generic interfaces to your element such as system monitoring or permissions data.

NOTE: If the new element is a *field* type of element, when you say OK to create the new Element, SET-IT will automatically associate the element with the generic "Field" physical object. This will allow you to assign generic interfaces to your element such as field equipment status or configuration settings.

Creating a Complex Element

Is it possible to create an element that is mapped to multiple types of physical objects? Yes, you can. In most cases, elements should stay mapped to objects of one class (center, field, personal, support, vehicle) but there may be times when you have an element that is more complex, e.g., a center that is also doubling as your traffic data archive, or a mobile unit that has a piece of field equipment mounted on the back.

In those cases, open element details from the Definitions grid or from the menu when you create a new element. In the Physical objects area, click the "All" radio button on the Element Details form. That will expand the list of physical objects to show you all of the possible physical objects of the same type and domain. Type is either system or human and Domain is either transportation or communications. You cannot map a transportation system to a communications system, and you can't map a system element to a human, either.

The list of PObjects will also change to show the class of the physical objects if they are different than what was already selected in the Class pull-down above.

Creating Communications Elements

Communications Elements are used in a project to represent the flow of information *through* a set of devices or infrastructure like fiber or cable or an entire communications service and you want to show how that element/set of devices will be implemented and maintained. Another type of communications system specializes in the collection, storage, and distribution of data.



In SET-IT communications objects are of a support class and are shown on the diagram with rounded corners to indicate they are different than the transportation and other system objects.

Because Communications objects are of a different class they typically cannot be mapped to one of the Transportation class elements. An exception to this is the Transportation Information Center (TIC). It can also be mapped to a Data Distribution System (DDS) physical object since they are often done by the same stakeholder system or center.

But note that it does not go the other way – a DDS cannot also be mapped to a TIC.

Remote Access Device

Center or Support elements can have human operators that interact with the center or support system element through a Remote Access Device (RAD). The connections will be using a device like a personal computer or other device that connects to the center or support system through a secure encrypted connection. In SET-IT a Remote Access Device can be created as a Personal class element and then assigned to a Center/Support to Human element flow as a Communications element.

As you assign a RAD to one flow in one direction the other flow will also be assigned to match.

Creating a Child or Instance of Another Element

There is another type of element – an Element Instance. These are elements that inherit many of their characteristics from another 'Parent' element. This is used to define a general element, e.g., ITS Field Equipment, for perhaps a regional or larger scope project and then in later activities/phases break down the parent or general element into specific instances, e.g., Surveillance CCTV Cameras.

To create an Element instance, use the New Elements menu Item to open Element Details. Provide a **name** and click the pull-down for "**Parent Element**" and select one of the elements already create.

Parent Element Changed	\times
This change will force the current element to inherit the properties of the newly selected parent element Do you wish to proceed?	
<u>Y</u> es <u>N</u> o	

Be careful – this warning gives you a chance to make sure that's what you want to do. For instance, think twice before you start with a field device but accidentally picked a center as the parent. Say no and go back and correct your mistake.

Say yes, and the new Element will be created with the PObject assignment of the parent element and a copy of the parent's description that can be tailored to the instance.

You can reverse this – you can turn an Element Instance back into a regular instance simply by going to the Parent Element pull-down and clicking the top, blank row.

The idea of Element Instances is good when creating sub-projects that use more detailed versions of the general elements for parts of the project. This feature also sets up compatibility with the RAD-IT Tool which has used parent/instances for a long time to distinguish between regions and projects.

Adding a Physical Object to a Diagram / Assigning Element

These steps will show how to work with the diagram to add a physical object to a diagram that will then be mapped to a local or customized Elements. This is based on a set of predefined physical objects that came from ARC-IT. You can also add your own custom, unique, or user defined Physical Objects if ARC-IT does not have what you need. Go to Creating a New Physical Object in the <u>Creating New Items from the Ribbon</u> section.

Now, back to the diagram and the physical shapes – Start with a New Diagram, or open an Existing Diagram, then Select one of the 6 different **Physical Objects** types from the stencil on the left.

Physical Objects come in 'classes' based on how they are defined in ARC-IT. The Physical Object Classes are:

- Center
- Field
- Personal
- Support
- Vehicle

A 6th class known as the ITS class is really a higher level of the physical view's hierarchy and is used to represent common functions and interfaces that all ITS objects share, including system management, communications, and security.

SET-IT also lets us show the **human** operators of the various objects in a different box to show that it is a human-to-machine interface.

The **Nomadic** or **hybrid** type of Physical Object represents a combination **Vehicle (Mobile)** object. It's really a Vehicle class but might support vehicle safety or mobility service packages that run on a personal mobile device and may, in some cases, connect to the vehicle databus, when they are driving.

To create a new physical object, drag the **Physical Object** shape from the Stencil to the diagram area.



Double click on the **Physical Object** shape or right-click and select Shape Properties.

The **Shape properties** form appears.

Physical Object menu is on the bottom of the **element Details** form.

Shape Properties	×
Physical Object Center - System	
Element(s)	
New Edit	
Garture	
Status	_
Physical Object(e)	\sim
Physical Object(s)	×
Physical Object(s) Alerting and Advisory System Alternate Mode Transportation Center	^
Physical Object(s) Alerting and Advisory System Atemate Mode Transportation Center Archived Data User System	*
Physical Object(s) Alerting and Advisory System Alternate Mode Transportation Center Archived Data User System Asset Management System Authorizing Center	^
Physical Object(s) Alerting and Advisory System Attemate Mode Transportation Center Archived Data User System Asset Management System Authorizing Center Border Inspection Administration Center	^
Physical Object(s) Alerting and Advisory System Alternate Mode Transportation Center Archived Data User System Asset Management System Authorizing Center Border Inspection Administration Center Care Facility	~
Physical Object(s) Alerting and Advisory System Alternate Mode Transportation Center Archived Data User System Asset Management System Authorizing Center Border Inspection Administration Center Care Facility Commercial Vehicle Administration Center	~
Physical Object(s) Alerting and Advisory System Alternate Mode Transportation Center Archived Data User System Archived Data User System Asset Management System Authorizing Center Border Inspection Administration Center Care Facility Commercial Vehicle Administration Center Commercial Vehicle Service Provider Center CVO Information Requestor Center	~
Physical Object(s) Alerting and Advisory System Atemate Mode Transportation Center Archived Data User System Asset Management System Authorizing Center Border Inspection Administration Center Care Facility Commercial Vehicle Administration Center CVO Information Requestor Center DMV	^
Physical Object(s) Alerting and Advisory System Alternate Mode Transportation Center Archived Data User System Asset Management System Authorizing Center Border Inspection Administration Center Care Facility Commercial Vehicle Administration Center COmmercial Vehicle Service Provider Center CVO Information Requestor Center DMV Emergency Management Center	^
Physical Object(s) Alerting and Advisory System Atternate Mode Transportation Center Archived Data User System Asset Management System Authorizing Center Border Inspection Administration Center Care Facility Commercial Vehicle Administration Center CVO Information Requestor Center DMV Emergency Management Center Emergency Telecommunications System	^
Physical Object(s) Alerting and Advisory System Atemate Mode Transportation Center Archived Data User System Asset Management System Authorizing Center Border Inspection Administration Center Care Facility Commercial Vehicle Administration Center CVO Information Requestor Center DMV Emergency Management Center Emergency Telecommunications System Emissions Management Center	^
Physical Object(s) Alerting and Advisory System Atternate Mode Transportation Center Archived Data User System Asset Management System Authorizing Center Border Inspection Administration Center Care Facility Commercial Vehicle Administration Center CVO Information Requestor Center DMV Emergency Management Center Emissions Management Center Emissions Management Center Enforcement Center	*

Select the appropriate **Physical Object(s)** from the checkboxes located on the bottom of the **Shape Properties** Form. SET-IT preselected the physical objects to list here based on the Class and Type of box you brought in from the stencil. If elements have already been created to match the checked Physical Objects, then the selected **Element** name will appear in the top area of the shape properties window.

NOTE: The Shape Properties box will be 'floating' to the left side of the window when it first opens. To re-dock it simply click the title of the box and drag it over 'drop' it over the icon that looks like a closed door on either the left side or right side of the screen. You can 'undock' it by clicking the title of the box and dragging it to another area of your screen. You can also simply close the Shape Properties by clicking the X button in the top right of the window.

NOTE: The *human operators*, including drivers, are shown on the physical view drawings as physical objects with an icon of a person in the corner of the box. Human operators are also *stakeholders* so as you create and edit a Human Operator on the physical diagram you are creating and editing an element and a stakeholder at the same time. Human elements / stakeholders also correspond to Resources in the Enterprise View. So, if you create a new, user defined human element then SET-IT will automatically add that to the list of Enterprise Objects you can use in the Enterprise View.

NOTE: The *environmental terminators*, including potential objects or vehicles detected by sensors, are shown on the physical view drawings as physical objects with an icon representing what is being sensed in the corner of the box.

If no elements have already been created matching the selected Physical Objects, then click the New... button to create an Element. This will bring up the Element Details form. See "Create an Element".

Once an Element has been created or selected Shape Properties can used to set the Status value for that element if your display is set to show Status.

How Do I Customize an ITS Class Shape?

Some service packages contain shapes that are from that 6th ITS Class of Physical Objects, e.g., SU05: Location and Time.



If you want to create elements for the grey ITS class shapes such as the Location and Time Data Sources, there are a few other steps you need to do.



Click the grey {Location and Time Data Source} box, bring up Shape Properties and click New... This will bring up the Element Details form. Here you can give the new element a name, use the Class pull-down to set the class of the object. Select the class that corresponds to the class of the object you are connecting to, i.e., use Vehicle class if this L&TDS is to be connected to a Vehicle OBE.

互 Element 🛛	Details — 🗆						Size Painter	Alignaspace SizeaPosi
News	MCV Location and Time Device					ragraph	Clipboard	Arrang
Name: Description: <u>Auto-Populate</u>	(Location and Time Data Source <its>) The 'Location a information. While a Global Positioning System (GPS) Re- object represents any technology that provides a position</its>	nd Time Data ceiver is the r 1 fix in three d	a Source' provide nost common imp imensions and tir	es accurate position plementation, this phy ne with sufficient acc	sical uracy.	.1		8.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.9.1.1.1.
	Status: Project V	Abbreviat	ion: MLATD					
	Type: System 🗸	Parent Elem	ent:	\sim				
	Class: Vehicle ~	Dom	ain: Transporta	ation \checkmark				
	Physical Object (a) Center O All							
	Location and Ti Support Basic Commerci Vehicle				^			
	Basic Emergency Vehicle							
	Basic Transit Vehicle							
	Basic Vehicle Commercial Vehicle OBE Driver Identification Card	Basic Vehicle Commercial Vehicle OBE Driver (dentification Card V						
	Stakeholder	Role Status					(1A) location and time	Dota Source}
	▶	•	Manages Owns	Project Project		V Vehicle Locatio Tracking	n	
	*						=	
						C01: Maintenance a	nd Construction Vehicle and Equ	ipment Tracking (Copy 1)
						Based on ARC-II	Physical Diagram MCD1 r1	Apr 14 2022
			Г	ОК	Cancel			
Form Source: Si	hape Properties - New							

You can also use the or use the New / Item menu and click Element to create a new element.



In Element Details change the class to the class you need and acknowledge the "are you sure" dialog box. Scroll through the list of Physical Objects and choose the Location and Time Data Source.

You can now click AutoPopulate to fill-in the description and assign stakeholders.

SET-IT Help

🧧 Element 🛛	Details					-		×
Name:	Private Vehicle GPS	6						
S Element D Name: Description: Auto-Populate	(ITS Object <its>)</its>	The general 'ITS Obje	ct' includes core capabilitio	es comm	non to any clas	s of object.	^	
		Clabel Desaires C.	(CBC) Determine De					
	Status:	Project v	Abbrevi	ation: [PVG			
	Type:	System N	Parent Ele	ment:		\sim		
	Class:	Vehicle	, Do	main:	Transportation	~		
	Physical Object(s)	Related	O All					
	Freight Equipmed Location and T Maint and Cons	ent Îme Data Source <it str Vehicle OBE</it 	S>				^	
	Other EV OBEs Other ITS Obje Other MCVOB	gnt Monitoring Equipm s ects <its></its>	ent					
	Other Vehicle C	DBEs					~	
	Stakeholder			Role Mana	iges	Status Project		
	Area Drivers *		•	Owns	\$	Project		
Form Source: N	ew Element				0	К	Cancel	

Click OK to add this Element to your inventory of elements for your project.

Now, back on the diagram you can double-click Shape Properties to select your new element to be matched with this shape.



Shape Properties for Elements with Multiple Physical Objects

A note about the mapping of Elements to Physical Objects. As has been stated, an element can be assigned to more than one physical object. Think of this as having one device doing multiple jobs or one center being used to house more than one activity.

When ARC-IT was defined, the physical objects were defined to show where the interfaces might be in order to see what standards may need to be developed if information was to pass over an interface between different systems.

It was realized that some implementations would combine functionality in ways that ARC-IT may not have conceived. In some cases, functionality from one Physical Object may be distributed across multiple elements, e.g., 2 traffic management centers – one for freeway surveillance and another for traffic signal control. On the other hand, one element may be combining functions from more than one Physical Object, e.g., an integrated operations center that pulls together traffic management and emergency call dispatching into one system.

- SET-IT diagrams are based on ARC-IT service packages, formerly CVRIA applications. As such, they show the Physical Objects that are supporting that service package. In some cases, you may have an element that is doing those functions but may be mapped to other physical objects that support other service packages (on other drawings).
- SET-IT shows that in Shape Properties for an element as shown below:

Font				
	Shape Properties		x	
2 3	TOMATO Regional Traveler Information Center	Physical Object Center - System		
	Element(s)			
	Super Center	aveler Information Center		
	-			
operator				
(2B) traffic detector control	+			
video surveillance control (2B) traffic detector data				
(2B) traffic images +				
traffic image meta data				
(28) radaway warning system c				
(28) roadway warning system s	f:			
(2B) environmental sensors con	Ľ.			
(2B) environmental situation				
traffic situation data (c)				
information (c) (2B) queue warning epplication status (c)	New	Edit		1
(2C) road network conditions	Inclusion			
	At Least One		\sim	1
	Physical Object(s)			1
Super Center	Transportation Informa	ation Center	~	1
	Alternate Mode Trans	portation Center		
<u> </u>	Asset Management Sy	vstem		
TIC Situation Data	Care Facility			
0 0 0	Commercial Vehicle S	ervice Provider Center		
	Event Promoter System	n		
	Alerting and Advisory	System		
	Archived Data User S	ystem		
	Authorizing Center			
	Border Inspection Adn	ninistration Center		
	I I I ommercial Vehicle Ar	initiation Lenter		-1

In this example, the "Super Center" element is mapped to many different ARC-IT physical objects but the diagram is only showing a Transportation Information Center (TIC). So, Shape Properties for this case shows the assignments of the Super Center to the TIC by using the color blue and checking the box. Shown in blue, but with no check marks are other Physical Objects to which it is mapped in the

definitions grid or on other diagrams. Move your mouse and hold the cursor over the physical objects and the 'hover-help' text will show what is meant by the coloring and checking.

The Elements grid in the Physical View Definitions menu will show the complete mapping of the Element to Physical Objects.

Create a New Information Flow

Creating a new information flow or what SET-IT calls a "User-Defined Flow" can be done from the diagram or from the Definitions menu.

To create a new flow from the diagrams, start by creating a New Diagram or opening an Existing Diagram.

Select the **Info Flow** from the stencil on the left and drag it to the diagram area.

Connect the selected **Flow** to appropriate **Physical Objects/Elements** in the diagram.

TIP: You will need to have associated Elements (local/customized things) with the ARC-IT Physical Objects in order for the next step to work. The assignment of flow names to lines on the diagram is done at the "element triple" level – that is, source element, destination element, and information flow. You may need to go back and edit the Shape Properties for the boxes to make sure they all have local/customized Element names.

Sync: For changes made on the Shape Properties window to take effect on the diagram you should have Sync set to 'Always Synchronize' on the SET-IT / Project / Options / Synchronization window.

Disappearing Corners? Sometimes an information flow seems to lose its cornering ability. It goes from a right-angle connector (the default) to a straight-line connector or seems to go off at a 45-degree angle. If this happens, you can add corners if they are lost by dragging the line mid-points and endpoints to get the corners in the desired spots.

If the information flow you want already exists in the project database use the steps in the next section to select the line, select one of the flows already defined for that source and destination combination, and assign the properties or characteristics for that flow.

If the flow you want doesn't exist yet – perhaps something unique to your project or situation – then click on the New... button on the Shape Properties to create the flow. See <u>Create a User Defined Flow</u> below.

NOTE: You cannot add an information flow that would go INTO an environmental terminator. Environment objects are there to represent the "things the sensors sense" and the flows from it are meant to be a one-way representation of the type of information being sensed by the field or vehicle-based sensors.

Flow Status

The deployment status of an information flow should be consistent with the elements on each end. As you connect a flow to go from one element to another SET-IT will assign the 'furthest out' status. For example, if the source is existing and the destination is 'project' then the flow must also be 'project'. SET-IT also provides an automation feature such that if you change the status of one of the elements to be something 'further out' in time then you will see that the status of the flow will be changed to match that new 'further out' status. The automation does not work the other way – if you pull the status of the element furthest out back to something previous the status of the flow will stay the same.

Identify Shape Properties of Flows

From the diagram, double click on the **Flow** and the **Shape properties** form appears. The Shape Properties form is available in several places, including when viewing flows on diagrams. This form will be used to identify Name, Status, and communications characteristics of flows.

Shown here are 2 examples. The diagram on the left is for a system flow routed through a Communications system with an alias applied. The diagram on the right is for a human interface flow routed through a secure remote access device.

Shape Properties		Shape Properties				
Information Flow			Information Flow			
How(s) Sign-Stat (vehicle signage application status) automated lane status controlled zone application status cooperative cruise control application status device identification environmental monitoring application status environmental situation data NTCIP (field equipment status) infrastructure restriction warning status intersection management application status lighting management application status Vew			Plow(s)			
Statue			Status	() [
Project		\sim	Project			
DDS		_	DDS			
		\sim			\sim	
Communications			Remote Access			
MC Transportation Communications Network			MCDOT Remote Access Terminal			
Flow Characteristics Using FIPS FIPS Basis		Flow Characteristics	s Using FIPS FIPS Basis			
Characteristic	Value		Characteristic	Value		
Time Context	Recent	\sim	Time Context	Now	\sim	
Spatial Context	Local	\sim	Spatial Context	Regional	\sim	
Acknowledgment	True	\sim	Acknowledgment	True	\sim	
Encryption	True	\sim	Encryption	True	\sim	
Authenticability	Тгие	\sim	Authenticability	True	\sim	
Cardinality	Unicast	\sim	Cardinality	Unicast	\sim	
Initiator	Source	\sim	Initiator Source		\sim	
Interoperability	Regional	\sim	Interoperability Local		\sim	
Shape Properties			Shape Properties			

Flow(s): Depends on the source and destination of the **Flow**, a list of appropriate Flow names appears on the box at the top of the form. Whenever a flow Alias is applied that alternative name will be shown in Shape Properties with the original name of the flow listed in parentheses.

Click on the appropriate **Flow** name from the list and the selected **Flow** name will appear on the line.

Click the New... button to create a new information flow for this line between elements. This will launch the Flow Details screen. From Shape Properties click this button will pre-populate certain

characteristics since it is coming from a selected flow on a diagram, including the source and destination elements and default flow characteristics.

Click the Edit... button on Shape Properties for a highlighted flow to also open Flow Details. This will let you edit some of the characteristics and descriptions, but some fields will be read-only since it preserves what is on the diagram. Change the diagram first then edit the values in Flow Details.

Click "Show Related Shapes" and it will highlight the flows that are related to that selected flow or functional object – requests that go with responses, status flows that go with configuration flows, etc. This can be really useful on complicated diagrams. If a flow or functional object doesn't have any defined relationships between it other flows, then this button will just be greyed out.

Flow Status: Select appropriate **Status** from the pull-down menu on the middle of the form. Status has to do with the timeline of deployment – whether this interface already exists (*existing*), is part of the project you are architecting (*project*), or might be a new concept that a (*future*) project might want to consider but you want to go ahead and let your readers start to see it.

Select **Status** from the pull-down menu, and the line style of the line changes appropriately for different Status values. For lines that have multiple flows SET-IT will use the lowest value, typically the nearer term value depending on how your Status Values have been defined in the Definitions menu.

DDS: If this flow will go through a data distribution system use the pull-down to select the Element that will act as the data distribution system for this information. On the diagram the flow name will have a "(d)" appended to the name to indicate that it goes through a data distribution system. You will need to create an element mapped to a Support class Data Distribution System physical object first in order for it to be visible. You can click New Element... and it will bring up a blank Element Details for form you to create a new DDS.

Communications: If this flow will go through a communications domain element (e.g., Wide Area Dissemination) use the pull-down to select the Element that will act as the communications system for this information. On the diagram the flow name will have a "*(c)*" appended to the name to indicate that it goes through a communications system. You will need to create an element mapped to a Support class Communications domain physical object first in order for it to be visible. You can click New Element... and it will bring up a blank Element Details form for you to create a new Communications element.

Remote Access: If this flow is a human interface flow between a Center or Support element and a Human operator/user then it can be assigned to go through a Remote Access Device. As you click a human interface flow the Communication pull-down will change to say Remote Access. Use the pull-down to select the Element that will act as the remote access device for this information. Click the "New Element..." choice if you need to create an element. On the diagram the flow name will have an "(r)" appended to the name to indicate that it makes use of a remote access device.

NOTE: According to ARC-IT, not every information flow is eligible for routing through a data distribution system or communications system. Flows to/from environmental terminators are not possible so the pull-down will be greyed out. Other flows might be appropriate for information

broadcast from a single source to many destinations at once and might use a Wide Area Information Distribution mechanism but not something like a data warehouse or clearinghouse. In those situations, the *Communications* pull-down will be activated to show the Wide Area Dissemination elements but the DDS pull-down will still be greyed out. Human interface flows will cause the Communications pull-down to change to say Remote Access.

NOTE: The *c*, *d*, or *r* symbol will be displayed to the right of the last flow name on a line. Even if there are multiple information flows on the same line but only one of them is going through a communications, data distribution, or remote access element. Printing the information flow triples as a report will show the details. Depending on how complicated your diagrams already are you may consider splitting the flows up into multiple lines to better indicate which are and are not using a communications or DDS element.

NOTE: This may seem obvious but you cannot route a flow through itself which means if you see a flow going to a Data Distribution System (DDS) then you will not be able to use the DDS pull-down and select that system for it to go through.

When you disconnect a line on a diagram all the characteristics for that line will disappear and the line color will revert back to black to indicate that it has not characteristics. Connect it back to an element shape and recheck whether it is to be routed through a Comm or DDS and the line styles and characteristics will be restored.

See the section on **Using Data Distribution** in the <u>Other Diagram Tools</u> for further discussion on Data Distribution. Yes, you can connect flows directly to the DDS or communications elements if they are 'dds-' or 'comm-eligible', meaning they are defined in ARC-IT as flows that could be directed through a data distribution system or a wide area information disseminator.

Flow Characteristics: **Flow Characteristics** attributes on the bottom of the **Shape Properties** Form identifies the communication characteristics of the flow.

Using FIPS: The "Using FIPS" check box indicates whether the methodology from the FIPS 199 to characterize the flow in terms of its requirements for Confidentiality, Integrity, and Availability. Check this box and click **FIPS Basis...** to document the settings and rationale with this approach. See Using FIPS below. NOTE: this method is in lieu of using the Encryption and Authenticability values directly in Shape Properties. *Using FIPS doesn't make sense for every flow – the human interfaces, for instance, will not have FIPS analysis.*

Flow Characteristics

Select the appropriate **Flow Characteristics** values form the pull-down menu on the bottom of Shape Properties. By modifying these attributes, different communication symbols appear on the line to indicate their spatial context requirements or their timing requirements and the color of the line changes appropriately.

Flow characteristics are set to allow the right communications solution to be assigned when you go to the Communications View. If you make a change to the characteristics defined by ARC-IT it will

ask if you want to create a user defined copy of the flow. This will preserve your customizations and let you use SET-IT's Comm View to choose the right solutions.

The *Time* context requirements are expressed as a number:

- 1> **Now** (something needed in near real-time such as an intersection movement indicator from another vehicle)
- 2> Recent (something used to understand the current situation such as traffic flow data at an intersection)
- 3> **Historical** (something that has already happened such as a set of transit ridership numbers for an archive)
- 4> **Static** (something that doesn't change or doesn't change very often such as the text of a roadside sign)

The time context is then followed by a letter indicating the flow's *Spatial* context:

- A> **Adjacent** (something very close to where it is needed such as data within the onboard systems of a vehicle)
- B> **Local** (something to be used in close proximity of where the data was created such as an intersection controller)
- C> **Regional** (something used by the surrounding region such as traffic flow data along a freeway corridor)
- D> National (something used by the entire country such as a nationwide emergency message)
- E> **Continental** (something used wherever connected vehicles may be such as an application update)

These time and spatial characteristics can be hidden from the diagrams if you want to declutter how they are presented. Use the Diagrams tab of the Options window to change these settings. They will take affect on your diagrams as soon as you close the Options window. See the <u>SET-IT Options /</u> <u>Diagrams</u> section.

At Layer 2, the information flows can also have the following characteristics:

- Acknowledgement True / False
- Encryption True / False
- Authenticability True / False (if FIPS is used this will be locked)
- Cardinality Unicast / Broadcast / Multicast (if FIPS is used this will be locked)
- Initiator Destination / Source / None (blank)
- Interoperability National / Regional / Local / None / Not Applicable
- Latency High/Medium/Low/Ultralow (set on the Flow Details form)

TIP: Include a Legend on at least one of your diagrams. This will help you and your readers see what the different symbols and color-coding mean. The physical and enterprise drawing stencils include either a vertically oriented legend or a horizontal legend depending on where you have the most real estate on your drawing.

NOTE: Lines that contain multiple flows may have different characteristics for different flows. Look to see which flow is selected/highlighted at the top area of the Shape Properties box. For example, if a flow contains both an encrypted flow and an open or unsecured flow, then the line will show the characteristics of the most stringent setting. That is to say, it will be red as if all the flows on that line were encrypted.

In the example below, a line with 2 flows is used. On the left the first flow is selected and, on the right, the second flow is selected.

Shape Properties			Shape Properties			
Information Flow			Information Flow			
Flow(s) roadway dynamic signage status vehicle signage local data arriving train information asset ID barrier system status conflict monitor status environmental sensor data			Flow(s) roadway dynamic signage status vehicle signage local data arriving train information asset ID barrier system status conflict monitor status environmental sensor data			
incident scene warning notification infrastructure restriction warning intersection control status mixed use crossing status			incident scene warning notification infrastructure restriction warning intersection control status mixed use crossing status			
New	Edit		Status	Edit		
Project			Project			
DDS			DDS			
Communications			Communications			
Flow Characteristics	Using FIPS FIPS Basis		Flow Characteristics	Using FIPS FIPS Basis		
Characteristic	Value	_	Characteristic	Value		
Time Context Recent		~	Time Context	Recent		
Spatial Context Adjacent		~	Spatial Context	Adjacent	~	
Acknowledgment False ~		~	Acknowledgment	False		
Encryption	True	\leq	Encryption	False	\sim	
Authenticability	True	\sim	Authenticability	True	~	

The encryption values are different for each flow. The line style uses the most-restrictive security setting, encrypted=true in this case. There could be other characteristics that are individually relevant to a flow such as the eligibility to use Data Distribution or Communications. When in doubt, click each of the flows to see what is going on. You can always split the lines to show the flows individually but this may not be feasible or desirable on a complex drawing.

As you go higher in the project architecture hierarchy different characteristics will apply because the interconnects are collections of flows and not all flows will have all of the same exact characteristics.

At Layer 1 and 0, the physical interconnects can have the following characteristics:

- Encryption True / False (if FIPS is used this will be locked)
- Authenticability True / False (if FIPS is used this will be locked)
- Cardinality Unicast / Broadcast / Multicast

Click **New...** or **Edit...** from the Shape Properties window to open up the **Information Flow Details** form/window. From here you can also make changes to the flow's characteristics and descriptions.

🧧 Informatio	on Flow Details						o x		
	[data							
Name:	environmentai sensor data					User Defined			
Alias:	NTCIP-ess					Apply Alias			
Description: Auto-Populate	Current road conditions (e.g., surface temperature, subsurface temperature, moisture, icing, treatment status) and surface weather conditions (e.g., air temperature, wind speed, precipitation, visibility) as measured and reported by fixed and/or mobile environmental sensors. Operational status of the sensors is also included.								
Type:	System	\sim					<u>Hyperlink</u>		
	Encryption:	False	Lat	tency Low	 ✓ Initiator 	Destination	\sim		
	Authenticability:	True	Time Cor	ntext: Recent	 Acknowledgmen 	t False	\sim		
	Cardinality:	Unicast	 Spatial Cor 	ntext: Local	✓ Interoperability	Regional	\sim		
	FIPS								
	Confidential	lity: Low 🗸	Integrity:	Moderate \checkmark	Availability: Moderate	\sim			
	Confidentiality Basis: Lttle to no impact if this data is observed Integrity Basis: Info should be correct to determine safe speeds etc.; DISC; WYO believes this to be HIGH V						~		
	Source Elemen	nt Source Physi	cal Object Destination Ele	ement	Destination Physical Object Stat	us DDS WAIDS	RCU		
	MCDOT Envir	ronmental Sensor 🔻 ITS Roadway	Equipment MC Freeway M	Management Center (BASIL/PINCH)	Traffic Management Center Futu	re 🗹			
	<					_	>		
	Source Functional Objects: Destination Functional Objects								
	Roadway Env	vironmental Monitoring		TMC Environme TMC Basic Sun TMC Basic Sun TMC In-Vehicle TMC Roadway TMC Speed Wa	ntal Monitoring veillance Signing Management Warning uming		~		
Form Source: S	hape Properties - Ne	ew .				ОК	Cancel		

Type indicates whether an information flow is between Systems, Humans, and a System, or from an Environmental terminator.

You can view the Functional Object assignments provided by ARC-IT and add additional Functional Object assignments. From here you cannot remove assignments provided by ARC-IT. Note the Blue text used to indicate Read-Only.

If you make changes to the characteristics of an information flow that came from ARC-IT, then SET-IT will automatically-create a user defined triple in the underlying database table of Physical Object Flows. Now you can make changes to your flow that are unique to your project's needs without changing the ARC-IT flow's definitions.

Using FIPS

The "Using FIPS" check box on Shape Properties indicates whether the methodology from FIPS 199 was used to characterize the flow in terms of its requirements for Confidentiality, Integrity, and

Availability. Check this box and click "FIPS Basis..." to document the settings and rationale with this approach.

Click the "FIPS Basis" button from Shape Properties or Click the FIPS button on the menu bar for the Physical Diagram.

FIPS	x				
Current Flow(s)					
traffic control priority request					
Confidentiality					
Low					
Confidentiality Basis					
The result of this will be directly observable.	\wedge				
	\lor				
Integrity					
Moderate 🗸					
Integrity Basis					
Invalid messages could lead to an unauthorized user gaining transit signal priority at an intersection. This could also be used to delay traffic, which could lead to a financial impact on the community. However, the traffic signal will have controls					
in place to ensure that it does not display an illegal configuration (such as green	¥				
Availability					
Moderate 🗸					
Availability Basis					
These messages are important to help with the transit signal priority application. Without them, it will not work. However, if these signals are not received, the ITS RE will continue to function using its default configuration. The Transit					
Management Center should have an acknowledgement of the receipt of a					
Shape Properties FIPS					

NOTE: Shape Properties must also be active (open) in order for the FIPS Basis window to be populated. Even if you click the FIPS button from the menubar it will only populate if Shape Properties is also opened.

Definitions from the Federal Information Security Management Act (FISMA) of 2002 and FIPS Publication 199:

Confidentiality: Preserving authorized restrictions on information access and disclosure, including means for protecting personal privacy and proprietary information. A loss of confidentiality is the unauthorized disclosure of information.

Valid Values: Not Applicable, Low, Moderate, High
Integrity: Guarding against improper information modification or destruction, and includes ensuring information non-repudiation and authenticity. A loss of integrity is the unauthorized modification or destruction of information.

Valid Values: Low, Moderate, High

Availability: Ensuring timely and reliable access to and use of information. A loss of availability is the disruption of access to or use of information or an information system. Valid Values: Low, Moderate, High

The Confidentiality and Integrity of a flow affects whether not Encryption should be used and whether or not the sender of the flow should be Authenticated. Here is the formula:

- If Confidentiality > Low, Encryption = True; Else If Confidentiality <= Low, Encryption = False
- If Integrity > Low, Authenticability = True; else If Integrity <= Low, Authenticability = False

NOTE: Using FIPS is in lieu of using the Encryption and Authenticability values in Shape Properties. If there are values set on the FIPS Basis screen, then the Encryption and Authenticability values on the Shape Properties menu will be set based on the formula above and the pull-down will be locked.

NOTE: When you click on a flow line on a diagram that has more than one flow name on the same line and bring up the FIPS Basis window you will see the list of flows at the top area of the FIPS Basis window. As you click each flow at the top you will see the C-I-A values and rational in the bottom. SET-IT calculates the coloring of the flows on the diagram based on the most stringent setting of the multiple flows. For example, if one flow has Low confidentiality but another has Medium Confidentiality then the flow will be colored based on the Medium setting (Blue or Red depending on the Integrity setting).

TIP: If you want to change FIPS information for individual triples, add another line to the drawing, assign the flow you want to change to that line and change the FIPS settings from there.

NOTE: For Human Interface flows, regardless of what settings there are for the C-I-A values on the Using FIPS screen the flows will still appear as black for no Encryption or Authenticability since there is no way to encrypt or describe how to encrypt a machine-to-human flow or to practically authenticate the information on such an interface.

Changing FIPS values (and other characteristics) may trigger the need for a new or different Communications solution so if you make changes to any of the FIPS values you may see a pop-up window asking if you want to make a user defined copy of the flow. Say yes and all of your information will be copied from that ARC-IT based flow to a new user defined flow that preserves your choices and allows you to continue customizing.

Create a New or User Defined Information Flow

Sometimes SET-IT may not have the information flow you need. The database that comes with SET-IT contains over 900 information flows based on the physical view from ARC-IT. But as ITS and connected vehicle technology keeps evolving new projects are bound to have interfaces that are new and unique. Creating a new or User Defined Flow in SET-IT is easy.

There are a couple of ways to create a new flow:

- From the New Items menu
- From Shape Properties on a Diagram

Creating a flow from the New Item Menu

At the top left of the screen click the Item pulldown from the New area and select the Information Flow. The Information Flow Details window opens.



If you use the New menu Item to start the process you will be in what SET-IT calls "PObject Mode", meaning that the flow is being created completely from scratch and you have to select the source and destination physical objects before selecting the project's elements.

🖻 Information Flow Details - 🗆 🗙								
Name: Alias: Description: Auto-Populate	stra snow plow da	User Defined Apply Alias						
Type:	System	~	Hyperlink					
	Encryption:	True	Later	ency Low	✓ Initiator	Source V		
	Authenticability:	True	Time Conte	text: Recent	 Acknowledgmen 	t True ~		
	Cardinality:	Unicast	✓ Spatial Content	text: Local	✓ Interoperabilit	V National V		
	FIPS	days and a	late articu		Australiation and a second			
	Confidentia	Moderate V	integrity.	~	Availability. Moderate	~		
	Confidentiality Ba	asis: Confidentiality value set to de SET-IT.	fault by 🔥 Integrity Basis:	^	Availability Basis: Availability value s	et to default by SET-IT.		
			¥	~		~		
			C	Elements Physical Objects				
	Source Physical Object Destination Physical Object Status DDS WAIDS RCU ICE Replaces Maint and Constr Vehicle OBE Maint and Constr Management Center Project Image: Constr Vehicle OBE Image: Constr Vehicle OBE<							
	Source Functional Objects: Destination Functional Objects							
	MCV Vehicle Location Tracking							
	MCV Vehicle	System Monitoring and Diagnostics						
	MCV Winter	Maintenance		MCM Work Activ	vity Coordination	~		
Form Source: N	ew Flow					OK Cancel		

The Type pull-down lets you set this as a flow between Systems, between a Human operator and a System, or from an Environmental terminator.

The Alias box lets you define an alias for a flow and the Apply Alias checkbox lets you determine when you want that alias to be used on your diagrams and outputs. A flow alias is a way to use a customized name for an information flow while retaining the mappings to the ARC-IT reference model for that flow. For example, if you are doing a connected vehicle project to collect probe data from passing vehicles for traffic monitoring purposes you may want to just show the term "BSM" for the basic safety message defined in the SAE 2735 standard rather than the full name of the ARC-IT information flow, "vehicle location and motion for surveillance". It isn't common for a user defined flow to also have an alias.

In the PObject Mode for a new user defined information flow the pull-downs for Source and Destination are Physical Objects as shown above.

Once the PObjects are identified SET-IT will run some queries and determine which Functional Objects should be available to select as part of the interface. It will also populate the default settings for the flow characteristics including the security settings, cardinality, as well as time and spatial context. Even though you haven't selected "Using FIPS" yet for your new flow SET-IT will need a default value for Confidentiality and Availability in order to assign the new flow to an appropriate communications solution so you will see the values and the Basis fields populated even though they are greyed out.

The checkboxes that appear to the right of the source and destination show you the eligibility settings for use of Communications objects and the Data Distribution System (DDS) object. The abbreviations stand for:

- DDS: Data Distribution System
- WAIDS: Wide Area Information Dissemination System
- RCU: Roadside Communications Unit
- ICE: Intelligent Transportation System Communications Equipment
- RAD: Remote Access Device (for Human interfaces to Center or Support elements)

See the <u>www.arc-it.net</u> website for information about this physical objects.

As you select physical objects SET-IT will preselect values of eligibility based on the class of the source and destination. You can change this when you create or edit a user defined flow for your project.

NOTES about assigning characteristics. When a flow is created it needs to be characterized in a way that will allow the right communications solution to be assigned when you go to the Communications View. SET-IT will set default values for Confidentiality, Latency and Availability since the communications profile and solution assignment rules rely on those characteristics.

If the user does not make any assignments to these fields, SET-IT will set them as follows:

Confidentiality is related to Encryption. If Encryption is set to False then the initial Confidentiality value will be Low. If Encryption is set to True then the initial Confidentiality value will be Moderate.

The statement, 'Confidentiality value set to default by SET-IT.' will automatically be added to the ConfidentialityBasis field.

Availability is to the same value as Confidentiality and SET-IT will automatically add the statement, 'Availability value set to default by SET-IT.' to the Availability Basis field.

Latency from a general point of view is a time delay between the cause and the effect of some physical change in the system being observed, or a measure of the time interval between the input to a stimulation and the visual or auditory response. Applications requiring low or ultralow latency like a real-time system will required very different communications solutions than the posting of static (or rarely changing) display information. In SET-IT, Latency is set based on Time context as follows:

Time Context	Initial Latency Value
Now	Ultralow
Recent	Low
Historical	Medium
Static	Low

Interoperability refers to the ability of two or more systems or components to exchange information and to use the information that has been exchanged. The higher the level the

greater the expectation is that the information will be defined and implemented consistently across all systems and applications at that level. The lower levels required interoperability mean there isn't as much concern that the flow be implemented consistently in different settings (projects, locations, applications). In SET-IT and the ARC-IT reference architecture upon which SET-IT is based, Interoperability is assigned to information flow triples (source, destination, flow name) and can have the following values:

Interoperability Level	Description
National	This triple should be implemented consistently within the geopolitical region through which movement is essentially free (e.g., the United States, the European Union).
Regional	Interoperability throughout the geopolitical region is highly desirable, but if implemented differently in different transportation management jurisdictions, significant benefits will still accrue in each jurisdiction. Regardless, this Information Flow Triple should be implemented consistently within a transportation jurisdiction (i.e., the scope of a regional architecture).
Local	In cases where an interface is normally encapsulated by a single stakeholder, interoperability is still desirable, but the motive is vendor independence and the efficiencies and choices that an open standards-based interface provides.
None	Information Flow Triple interoperability between jurisdictions and between different instances in the same region would have no benefit, either regarding efficiency or functionality.
Not Applicable	Interoperability ratin's don't apply per se to some types of interfaces like human interfaces. These interfaces may still benefit from associated standards (e.g., ergonomic and human factors standards for human interfaces), but the primary motive for these standards is not interoperability.

The other thing you can do at this point with a New or User Defined Information flow is define this new flow as a preplacement for an existing ARC-IT information flow.

		⊖ Elements	Physical O	bjects						
Γ	Source Physical Object	Destination Physical Object	Status	DDS	WAIDS	RCU	ICE	Replaces		
0	Maint and Constr Vehicle OBE	Maint and Constr Management Center	Project	\checkmark		\checkmark	\checkmark		-	
*								infrastructure conditions data		
								infrastructure monitoring sensor control		
								infrastructure monitoring sensor data		
								infrastructure restriction warning		
L								infrastructure restriction warning control		
								talanda at an addate and the		_

Identifying a New User Defined Information Flow as a replacement for an ARC-IT flow is a good idea if you want to show things are a certain way in your region. Beware that it may also make sense to retain the linkage both in name and underlying data between your architecture and the ARC-IT reference to assist with interoperability with other projects and agencies that may not know what your names mean.

Once you have finished filling in the characteristics for your new flow you can now select this on your diagrams whenever you have shapes that match the source and destination PObjects selected.

Flows to or from an Environmental terminator have very few characteristics that can be set by the user so many of the fields on Flow Details will be grayed out.

Creating a Flow from the Diagram's Shape Properties

Start with a diagram that is already customized, i.e., elements are created/selected for all the physical object shapes. From the Shape Properties window shown in the previous section, click the New... button. The Information Flow Details window opens.

This is accessed from the Diagrams via the Shape Properties window by clicking dragging a flow between 2 elements (physical object boxes that have been customized with local, project-specific names) and clicking "New..." This is what SET-IT calls "Elements Mode" for new information flows.

🔁 Information Flow Details - 🗆 🗙									
Name: new test results flow Image: Comparison of the managing center Alas: Image: Comparison of the managing center Image: Comparison of the managing center Auto-Populate aflow to pass equipment testing results to the managing center							User Defined Apply Alias		
Type:	ype: System V								
	Encryption:	True ~		Latency Low	~	Initiator:	Source ~		
	Authenticability:	True V	Using FIPS Time	Context: Rec	ent v	Acknowledgment	True 🗸		
	Cardinality:	Unicast \checkmark	Spatial	Context: Loca	al ~	Interoperability	National \checkmark		
	FIPS Confidentia	ality: Moderate \vee	Integri	ly:	\sim	Availability: Moderate	~		
	Confidentiality B	asis: Confidentiality value set to defau SET-IT.	lit by ∧ Integrity Bas ∨	is:	Â	vailability Basis: Availability value set	to default by SET-IT.		
	Source Elem MCDOT Main *	ent Source Physical Object nt Vehicles Maint and Constr Vehicle	Destination Element OBE MCDPW GARLIC In	formation Syste	Destination Physical Objee and Constr Management G Center ITS Object Maint and Constr Manage	tt Status DDS WA Center ▼ Project ✓ □	DS RCU ICE Replaces		
	<						>		
Source Functional Objects: Destination Functional Objects MCV Roadway Maintenance and Construction MCM Field Equipment Maintenance MCM Maintenance Decision Support MCM Roadway Maintenance									
							OK Cancel		

Form Source: Shape Properties - New

Note that in Elements mode – the Information Flow Details screen is different. Here, instead of seeing just the Physical Objects we see the Elements first. If an element is mapped to more than one physical object you will need to use the Source or Destination Physical Object pull-down to tell SET-IT which of the physical objects to which this element is assigned you want this flow to apply to. You can add 'triple' combinations by using the new row for this mini table. The Functional Objects portion of the form only shows a few functional objects. The Element mode of the form is inheriting information from the Diagram and you are not allowed to make as many changes since it could

corrupt some of the mappings between the shape on the diagram and the physical object assignments in the database.

In either Elements or PObjects mode, the Flow Details window contains an area to enter the Name of the information flow, an optional alias, a brief description, and then areas to determine the source, destination, and the other characteristics described on the Shape Properties window.

If you access this Information Flow Details from the diagrams and you already had the line connected to 2 customized objects (elements) on the diagram, then the source and destination elements will be pre-populated. If the flow was drawn between 2 boxes that hadn't been customized with elements on both sides yet, the source and destination area will be filled with the physical objects corresponding to the objects on the diagram.

You can also select the Functional Objects, the smaller units of functionality within the Physical Objects, affiliated with this new flow. As you select the Physical Objects for source and destination the Functional Objects choices will be narrowed down to the appropriate functional objects from the Architecture for the service package selected.

Also, if all you did was select the source and destination and say OK, SET-IT will pre-populate the flow characteristics with a predefined set of defaults. You can change them, but this will give you a starting point.

Sometimes, your element may be mapped to more than one physical object. When this occurs SET-IT will not be able to automatically determine which pair of physical objects to associate with the flow. So, if you were in Elements view SET-IT will prompt you to enter the appropriate Physical Objects in order for it to determine the precise mapping for this new flow.

NOTE: If the "Using FIPS" checkbox is checked on the Shape Properties window the Encryption and Authenticability settings will be greyed out. Use the FIPS Basis screen to change the Confidentiality, Integrity, and Availability requirements that will then affect the Encryption and Authenticability values.

Functional Objects on a Diagram

Functional Objects are subsets of a physical object and are used to define more specifically the functionality and interfaces that are required to support a particular ITS or connected vehicle service package / application.

In SET-IT, after you Create a New Diagram, or open an Existing Diagram.

Select the **Functional Object** from the stencil on the left.

Drag the **Functional Object shape** to the diagram area into one of the Physical Object shapes already on the diagram.

Double click on the Functional Object.

Shape properties form appears on the left.

Select appropriate **Status** from the pull-down menu on the bottom.

Click the **New** button in the shape properties.

Select a Functional Object name on the list.

The selected **Functional Object** name will appear on the shape.

NOTE: If the functional object is in a subsystem kind of physical object which means that it has functionality defined by ARC-IT or as a user defined object then Shape Properties will show the functional objects mapped to that physical object along with generic functions that support the object based on its class. If a shape is a terminator kind of physical object which means that it lies on the boundary of what is considered ITS in ARC-IT, then it will not show any functional objects for selection.

NOTE: All subsystem physical object shapes will also have the ITS class functional objects which includes the basic communications, management, and security functions common to all ITS objects. Center and Field class shapes will also make the generic center and field functional objects available for selection.

NOTE: You may need to press the "Refresh" button at the top of the Shape Properties window. When you do the selected functional objects will move to the top of the list.

NOTE: if you change the status of a functional object on one diagram its status will change on other diagrams where that same functional object is used. The exception to this occurs when a shape is mapped to more than one element on one diagram but only one element on another diagram then the Sync function will not try to change the status of a multiply mapped shape. It can only show one Status value (the one that was previously set for that Functional Object shape)

Add a Hyperlink

Hyperlinks provide a way to automatically link terms or objects in your SET-IT project to another location or file, perhaps to another location on the internet. From the Information Flows, Physical Objects, physical Functional Objects, and enterprise Resources windows click on the Hyperlink button and you will see the following screen:

🗲 Hyperlink	_		×
Hyperlink Name:	CVRIA Program Website 🗸 🗸	Add/E	dit
Address:	https://www.standards.its.dot.gov/DevelopmentActivities/CVRefe ^r ence	 	^
		 	\sim
Description:	Provides overview and background of the CV Reference Architecture.	 	^
		 	~
	OK	Cance	al

The first time you will need to add a hyperlink by pressing the Add/Edit button at the top left of the Hyperlink screen:

🗲 Hyperlinks		- 0	×
Hyperlink Name CVRIA Program Website	Hyperlink Address https://www.standards.its.dot.gov/Deve	Hyperlink Description Provides overview and background of the CV Reference Architecture.	
		OK Cancel	

In the 3 columns on the Hyperlinks details screen you can enter the following:

- Hyperlink Name is the readable text you want your readers to see in the documentation, e.g., "Architecture Team Website."
- Hyperlink Address is the fully qualified Uniformed Resource Locator (URL), e.g., "https://www.standards.its.dot.gov/DevelopmentActivities/CVReference".
- Hyperlink Description is a place for you to provide any additional descriptive text explain what the link is used for or where it's located, e.g., "provides resource material used as background for this project".

Can I draw my own Layer 2 diagram without an ARC-IT service package?

Yes, you can also start from scratch, that is, create your own layer 2 drawing.

You can use the stencil to drag physical objects onto the diagram and flows to build your own 'service' or 'application' of sorts. Refer to the directions above about how to use each of the diagram tools.

You can also drag Functional Objects onto the drawing. When you place the blank Functional Object over one of the Physical Object shapes SET-IT will populate the Shape Properties with the appropriate functional objects. The list may be blank if there are none defined for that physical object in ARC-IT, e.g., a Driver or an external object with respect to the ITS architecture like a Financial Institution.

You can use terminals to help unclutter a diagram and add Notes.

The title box also works the same on a from-scratch Layer 2 diagram as it does on other diagrams: (use the Update Title to automatically update the title, date, etc.).

Diagram Clean-Up Tool

There is a diagram clean-up tool on the main toolbar to help you remove shapes that are on the diagram but are not necessary because you have decided they are not applicable.



You can also create versions of the diagram that show only the Existing and another diagram that shows only Project status flows.

The Diagram Cleanup window includes a pull-down to select the current diagram, all physical Layer 2 diagrams, or the diagrams you select using the checkboxes on the screen.

SET-IT Help

5 Diagram Cleanup					×				
Remove shapes with the followir	Remove shapes with the following criteria:								
Diagram Selection Current D	iagram 🗸								
	Physical Diag	rams (Locked)							
	Select	Diagram			^				
		MC Connected Vehicle System	Monitor						
		MC Curve Speed Warning							
		MC Data Distribution							
		MC Device Certification and En	rollment						
		MC DMS Maintenance							
		MC In-Vehicle Signage			×				
Status Validity									
Objec	t Types	Statu	s Values						
Select	Object	Select	Status		~				
	Physical Objects		Existing						
	Functional Objects		Project						
	Information Flows		Future						
			Not Applicable		¥				
L									
			Rem	ove Shap	es				

The Validity sub-tab shows additional checks:

Status Validity	
 PObject shapes with no element assigned Functional Objects with no associated information flows Disconnected information flows 	
	Remove Shapes

The new Validity tab includes 3 validity-based cleanup actions, including the removal of:

- Physical Object shapes with no elements assigned,
- Functional objects with no associated information flows, and
- Disconnected information flows.

The "Remove Shapes" button will remove shapes that fail the checked validity tests on the identified set of diagrams (with default to the current diagram).

TIP: make a copy of your project first and zip that so you have a record of your project before the cleanup exercise.

NOTE: The Diagram Cleanup tool is only available for Layer 2 (service package level) diagrams. Use the Update Diagram tool to reorganize and update the contents of the higher-level diagrams, Layer 0 or Layer 1.

Diagram Completion Verification

The Diagrams menu on the left uses colors to show the completion of a diagram.



The other way to change the Completion of a Diagram is to use the pull-down menu from the toolbar.



When you first include a service package the color will be set to Red to show that it is 'Started'. If you select Partial then the color will change to Yellow. If you select Complete it will change to Green but only after SET-IT checks to see if it passes the required verification tests. If not, you will see an Incomplete Diagram warning box and you will be told to use the Diagram Verification Preview tool to locate and fix the issues.



SET-IT will monitor diagram changes that can impact completion status and rollback diagram completion status from "Complete" to "Partial" if such changes are detected. Diagram changes that can impact completion status are:

- Manual edits that add, delete, or modify PObject, FObject, or Flow shapes. Manual changes that add comments or edit the title block are examples of changes that shouldn't cause completion status to rollback.
- Sync changes that add, delete, or modify PObject, FObject, or Flow shapes. For example, a sync change that removes a deleted element from a shape would cause completion status to be rolled back for that diagram. A simple rename of an element that is synced into a diagram ideally should not cause completion status to be rolled back.

The Diagram Verification tool is located at the top menubar in the Tools section of buttons.



Click that button to launch the Diagram Verification tool

🗾 Diagram Verif	ication Tool	_		×
Diagra Ve Diagra Ve Ve Ve Ve Ve Ve Ve Ve	am Verification neck that each physical object has an element assigned to it [Required] entify functional objects that are not contained within elements/physical object entify disconnected flows [Required] entify disconnected elements [Recommended] entify missing element information flow triples per relationships [Recommended entify element information flow triple duplicates entify missing/extra functional objects [Recommended] entify duplicate functional objects in a single shape entify blank functional objects erify ARC-1T inclusion rules are satisfied [Recommended] entify suspicious status assignments	ts [Re	equired]	
Required Verifi	cations cannot be unchecked. Select All	Des	select All]
	Select Action O Save to File O Open Application Create Output O Roll up multiple rows into a single row			
	Word Excel			

A number of tests are listed. Some are Required or considered a minimum set of tests for completion and are not selectable or de-selectable by the user. Others are *recommended* and others are optional but they may help you determine what needs to be completed in your project.

The Select All and Deselect All buttons can be used as short-cuts to check or uncheck all the boxes.

Use the Preview button to bring up window that shows the results right away or use the buttons at the bottom of the Diagram Verification window to create the outputs in Word, Excel, or Text format as with other outputs.

The Preview screen is useful to have it open and you can set it to automatically Refresh as you make corrections and changes to your diagram.

S Dia	agram Verification	Preview	-	
	Туре	Name	Issues	
	Connector	maint and constr center personnel input	Disconnected On "P2.2: MC10: Asset Tracking	
۹ ا	Functional Object	MCM Remote Vehicle Control	Not contained within an element/physical object	
	Physical Object	Asset Management System	Missing Element On Diagram: MC10: Asset Trac	
	Physical Object	Center	Missing Element On Diagram: MC10: Asset Trac	
	Physical Object	Connected Vehicle Roadside Equipment	Missing Element On Diagram: MC10: Asset Trac	
	Physical Object	Field	Missing Element On Diagram: MC10: Asset Trac	
	Physical Object	ITS Object	Missing Element On Diagram: MC10: Asset Trac	
	Physical Object	Maint and Constr Center Personnel	Missing Element On Diagram: MC10: Asset Trac	
	Physical Object	Maint and Constr Field Personnel	Missing Element On Diagram: MC10: Asset Trac	{Asset Management System}
	Physical Object	Maint and Constr Management Center	Missing Element On Diagram: MC10: Asset Trac	
	Physical Object	Maint and Constr Vehicle Operator	Missing Element On Diagram: MC10: Asset Trac	(Def) access in
	Physical Object	Personnel Device	Missing Element On Diagram: MC10: Asset Trac	(2C) asset inventory locations
	Physical Object	Transportation Information Center	Missing Element On Diagram: MC10: Asset Trac	
	Physical Object	Vehicle OBE	Missing Element On Diagram: MC10: Asset Trac	{Maint and Constr Management Center}
<			>	monogenene centery
	lofroab			
	eresn			maint and constr center
۲) Refresh as soon as	s I edit the diagrams		personnel input
0	Refresh only when	I press this button Refresh	Export	nt and Constr
				er Personnel} maint and constr
venicie	venicie			presentation
	(Mobile)			MCM Remote Vabicla
		4		Control 121
				MCM Field Asset
		_		Tracking
Persona	i Support			DC) infrastructu
				I safety warning

As you make corrections to your diagram – adding elements, connecting loose flows, putting functional objects back in their place the issues will disappear from the Preview window. You can also choose to Refresh only when you press the "Refresh" button – this may help with the performance of the tool if you have a large project. You can also click the "Export" button to launch the output screen as with other outputs in SET-IT.

Status of Multiple Shapes

Using Shape Properties for a Layer 2 diagram you can set the status for all shapes or elements at the same time. This may be useful if you've been making changes individually but decided that everything needed to have the same status – maybe a project is now done and you need to show everything in the diagram as existing. Or the opposite – a part of the project has been deferred and you need to show that service package as having been moved out into the future.

Start by selecting a diagram in Physical view.

Next, select all the shapes you want to have that same status, including Elements, Flows, or Functional Objects within the selected Elements.

Then bring up Shape Properties, either by clicking Shape Properties from the menubar or by rightclicking one of the selected shapes and clicking Shape Properties.



In this situation Shape Properties will come up with only one attribute to change, Status. Use the pull-down to change the status of all the selected shapes.

Drawing Higher Layer Physical Diagrams

When a project spans more than one service package it will be good to see a summary of the project that includes all of the elements involved in the project. This can be done by using SET-IT to create an aggregate or Layer 0 or Layer 1 diagram to show the physical elements and their interconnects.

NOTE: you will need to completely customize your Layer 2 diagrams and set its Completion Status to "Complete" before being able to include that in a Layer 0 or Layer 1. If you don't need an element for a particular object just remove that box and the flows going to or from it. The Diagram Verification tool can help show what needs to be fixed before completing a layer 2 diagram.

Layer 0 diagrams show all of the physical elements in a project and which ones are connected to each other via communications *links, known as Physical Interconnects or P-Interconnects.* They are also created from Layer 2 service package diagrams but unlike Layer 1 they don't include any functional objects. The Layer 0 drawing may be more helpful to external stakeholders or decision makers to quickly see the scope of a project.

For **Layer 1 Diagrams** SET-IT will take the Layer 2 service package diagrams that you choose and come up with the combined set of physical objects and all of their functional objects that are needed to support the various service packages in which they are involved. The Layer 1 diagrams will also include *physical interconnects* between those objects.

SET-IT will place the elements on the Layer 0 or Layer 1 diagrams and will attempt draw the lines as best it can. In many cases, the user may need to rearrange the lines and elements to look

presentable and legible. Many of the objects on a Layer 0 or Layer 1 diagram are read-only. Use the Layer 2 diagrams to edit the shapes then use the Update Diagram tool if necessary to make modifications to the higher layer diagram.

Physical Interconnects can have an alias assigned on the P-Interconnects definitions table in the Definitions menu. If an alias has been applied then the alias name will appear on all diagrams where that same P-Interconnect is used.

The elements on a Layer 0 diagram are smaller versions of their Layer 2 or Layer 1 counterparts.

Layer 0/1 Settings

Layer 0 and Layer 1 diagrams are generated by SET-IT in real-time instead of being pre-imported from ARC-IT.

There is a Settings window for either Layer 0 or 1 diagram to allow you to change the appearance of the drawing.

S Layer Diagram Settings	– 🗆 X	Vehicle Speed
Physical Objects	Connections	Management Assist
Default PObject Height: 0.5	Draw Lines Hide text	l l
Default PObject Width: 1.3	Connection Type	Area Drivers
Horizontal PObject Spacing		
Fixed	O How Max # of Flows per line: 6 €	T
Variable Variable Min: 0.4 Min: 0.4 Max: 1	Lines Draw Straight Lines Glue Oynamic	ipped Vehicles
Functional Objects	O Static Connection Points Spacing: 0.15	al
Functional Objects Spacing: 0.05	Static Connections Ornect closest available Connection Points	de Vehicle Queue Warning
Max # of Functional Objects in a stack: 4	O Connect to middle of the closest edge	d Vehicle Basic Safety ssist Communication
		*
	Restore Ok Cancel	PASTA Equipped Bus Fleet
Roadway Basic Surveillance	MCDOT Dynamic Message Signs	Transit Vehicle On- Board Vehicle Signing Communications

As you click New / Diagram and choose either Layer 0 or Layer 1 you will see a Settings button. The Settings button launches a new screen called the Layer Diagram Settings window. It has options for shapes and lines.

For the shapes you can manipulate the following:

- Spacing between connection points
- Spacing between functional objects (on a Layer 1)
- Maximum number of functional objects (on a Layer 1) to include in a single stack

- As the number approaches that maximum the diagram generator will then widen the Element box to include a 2nd or 3rd column of functional objects.
- Default height and width of physical objects and/or elements
- Spacing, either fixed or variable, between physical objects and/or elements
 - If it is fixed, you can say by how much and if it is variable you can give it a minimum or maximum distance

For the lines you can choose to show interconnects or flows and then you can manipulate the following settings:

- Whether or not it should even bother with drawing lines
 - Perhaps you're going through this in iterative steps and want to focus on the placement of the physical objects or element shapes first.
- Whether the line should be straight, creating a star effect or the traditional lines with bend points between source and destination
- Whether the 'glue' that is used to stick or connect them to the source and destination shapes is static or dynamic
 - If dynamic, then SET-IT will decide where the end point should be.
 - If static, you can tell SET-IT whether to connect the line to the closest available connection points or to the middle of the closest edge.
- How many flows (if you selected Flow mode) to include on a single line
- Spacing between connection points on the shapes
 - Smaller numbers mean you can have more places to connect flows/interconnects to a shape and reduce the chances of overlaps.

TIP: these settings are for an advanced user. Save and Export a zipped copy of your project before starting to manipulate the settings on your diagram. It's also a good idea to try it with the default settings first as that may be just fine for your needs.

You can click the Restore button to restore the settings back to their original defaults.

Behind the Scenes on Layer 0/1: SET-IT's diagram generation algorithms will try to build a diagram that is oriented similarly to the layer 2 diagrams that came from ARC-IT. It will try and put the Centers and Support objects on the left and Mobile devices on the right. If a DDS is in the project, it will put that to the right of the centers and Field devices will be in the middle of the drawing. It will then place the shapes where it makes the most sense in terms of what they are connected to. You will probably still need to move shapes around in order to fit onto a reasonably sized image.

During the diagram generation process you can click "Cancel" to stop it and go back to the Diagram window.

NOTE: Layer 0/1 drawings are not editable in the same way Layer 2 drawings are. You can move shapes around and delete them if desired, but you cannot add shapes from the stencil. To add additional items to a layer 0/1 drawing you will need to regenerate the diagram and reselect which layer 2 drawings to choose.

NOTE: From time to time you may get a message during diagram generation that says "Failed to merge the related shapes for the following elements:"



The error message indicates that there are more than one Layer-2 shapes representing "MC Freeway Operator" element AND those shapes do not have any common Physical Objects. Therefore, the Layer1/0 generator fails to combine them.

The Layer 1/0 generator will combine similar shapes with minor differences as long as they have at least one common Physical Object, for example if you have an "ABC" element that appears as a {TMC+Center} on one Layer 2 diagram and as a {TIC+Center} on another Layer 2 diagram, then L1/0 generator will create a shape for "ABC" element that is mapped to {TMC+TIC+Center} Physical Objects. The solution to avoid the message above is to go back to one of the layer 2 diagrams with that element and add a mapping using Shape Properties to the Physical Object that element is mapped to on one of the other diagrams.

Layer O Specific Instructions

While many of the basic SET-IT diagram features apply equally at all physical layers there are some rules or techniques that only apply to Layer 0.

What is a Layer 0 diagram?

A Layer 0 diagram is a high-level drawing used to show the Physical Objects or Elements from your project and how they are connected. That's it. It's a summary of what lies beneath. It helps the project team and stakeholders reviewing the system documentation to see just what all of the systems are and how, at a very high level, they are connected.

How is a Layer 0 Diagram Drawn?

Typically, users will want to create a Layer 0 diagram after they have completed their Layer 2 servicelevel diagrams. Then when you use the New/Diagram/Layer 0 dialog you will see all of your service packages pre-selected.

You can un-select service packages that you don't want included – perhaps they aren't complete or won't be part of the specific phase of the project you are embarking on at the time.

NOTE: you will need to completely customize your Layer 2 diagrams before being able to include that in a Layer 0. If you don't need an element for a particular object just remove that box and the flows going to or from it.

As shown in the screen below the layer 2 drawings that have not been completely customized will be greyed-out and unselected.

S New I	Diagram	×
Title: Layer:	Project Summary 0 V Descriptor: Physical View	
Service Pa	ickage: V	
Diagrams:	 MC Device Certification and Enrollment (Complete) MC DMS Maintenance (Complete) MC In-Vehicle Signage (Complete) MC Location and Time Services for V2I Safety (Complete) MC Map Management for V2I Safety Initiative (Complete) MC Security and Credentials Management (Complete) T102: Personalized Traveler Information (Started) 	↑ Cancel

Go back to that layer 2 and add elements for each shape, change its Diagram Completion to Complete, and return to this screen.

Can I Draw My Own Layer 0?

SET-IT is designed so that the Layer 0 is a summary of your Layer 2 service package-based diagrams. It asks that you include at least one fully customized service package (layer 2) diagram to initiate a Layer 0 drawing but then you can use the stencil to drag shapes like Terminals, Comment Clouds, Legends, or Note Boxes onto the diagram in order to make the diagram more presentable and communicate ideas and notes with reviewers.

What's on a Layer 0?

There are some differences about a Layer 0 from a Layer 2 drawing on the physical view. For one, Flows are typically replaced with Interconnects. The types of Physical Interconnects, also called Links in ARC-IT, used on Layer 0 and Layer 1 include:

Center to Center	Human Interface	Remote Access Human Interface
Center to Field	Low Power Radio Broadcast	Short Range Wireless
Contact or Proximity	Network Time Protocol	Vehicle On-Board
Environment	Personal Area Network	Wide Area Broadcast
Field to Field	Position Location Interface	Wide Area Wireless

The shape properties window will show which interconnect is selected and list its characteristics. It will be a Read Only view. The details form will also show you what information flows are included in that interconnect.

NOTE: Not every flow maybe listed under the interconnect. Some flows like "data publication" are known as 'superflows' which are simply collections of information flows defined in ARC-IT that are being carried between elements over some communications path.

On a Layer 0 drawing, time and spatial context values represent the range of values for the flows that make up that interconnect. For instance, if that interconnect is made up of 3 information flows that range from Now/Local to Historical/National then the Layer 0 P-Interconnect will show "1-3,B-D".

In each case, the attributes of the interconnect are locked (you can't edit them) because they will be assigned based on the flows upon which it is based:

- Status: Existing, Project, New Opportunity
- Encryption: True, False
- Authenticability: True, False
- Cardinality: Unicast, Multicast, Broadcast

Just as with other drawings you can use Terminals to help unclutter a diagram and add Notes or Comments.

The title box also works the same.

Notes, Tips, and Caution for Layer Os:

NOTE: Layer 0 drawings do not include Functional Objects (the small white or grey boxes inside the physical objects). They will be on the Layer 1 or Layer 2 drawings.

TIP: Once SET-IT has drawn your layer 0 for the first time it is a really good idea to go around and click each element box and click "Connection Points" on the menubar. This will give you more connection points to connect lines to and it will make editing the diagram much easier.

CAUTION: Creating or modifying a Layer 0 diagram on your own may be helpful to sketch ideas out but beware. You may not be able to keep things synchronized between the layers. For instance, disconnecting an interconnect while you rearrange the shapes may result in an inconsistency between the layers. SET-IT's validation tools will help sort these out.

CAUTION: Lastly, as the number of service packages (Layer 2s) in your project grows so will the size and complexity of your Layer 0 drawings. SET-IT will attempt to place objects in a logical place and route the interconnects as best it can but you will need to edit these yourself. You can also create more than one Layer 0 drawing to highlight key subsets of the project, e.g., transportation services vs the support services.

Layer 1 Specific Instructions

While many of the basic SET-IT diagram features apply equally at all physical layers there are some rules or techniques that only apply to Layer 1.

Like Layer 0 described above, Layer 1 drawings provide a higher-level summary of what all is included in your service package. Now at Layer 1 we can show all of the *functional objects* that will be running or reside in the physical objects or elements of your project.

It helps the project team and stakeholders reviewing the system documentation to see just what all of the systems are doing across all of the services or applications and the interactions (physical interconnects).

NOTE: you will need to completely customize your Layer 2 diagrams before being able to include that in a Layer 1. If you don't need an element for a particular object just remove that box and the flows going to or from it.

As shown in the screen below the layer 2 drawings that have not been completely customized will be greyed-out and unselected.

S New Diagram	×
Title: Project Functional Summary Layer: 1 V Descriptor: Physical View	
Service Package:	
Diagrams: MC DMS Maintenance (Complete) MC In-Vehicle Signage (Complete) MC Location and Time Services for V2I Safety (Complete) MC Map Management for V2I Safety Initiative (Complete) MC Security and Credentials Management (Complete) MC C-ITS Reduced Speed Zone Warning / Lane Closure (Partial) TI02: Personalized Traveler Information (Started)	
Settings OK Canc	el

Go back to that layer 2 and add elements for each shape, change its Diagram Completion to Complete, and return to this screen.

How is a Layer 1 Diagram Drawn?

Typically, users will want to create a Layer 1 diagram *after* they have completed or nearly completed their Layer 2 service-level diagrams. Then when you use the New/Diagram/Layer 1 dialog you will see all of your service packages listed but not selected.

That's a key difference between Layer 0 and 1. At layer 0 SET-IT assumes you want to see everything in one picture. At Layer 1, SET-IT is assuming you may want to create multiple Layer 1s depending on areas of focus so it lets you pick the Layer 2 drawings to include.

Can I Draw My Own Layer 1?

SET-IT asks that you include at least one service package to initiate a Layer 1 drawing. You can use the stencil to add Notes, Comments, Terminals, or Legends to your diagram. This still gives you the ability to customize your diagram and, with terminals, to make a complex drawing more readable.

On a Layer 1 you can edit the diagram by moving shapes around to get the placement you want, and you can reconfigure the interconnects to suit your needs.

CAUTION: Lastly, as the number of service packages (Layer 2s) in your project grows so will the size and complexity of your Layer 1 drawings. SET-IT will attempt to place objects in a logical place and route the physical interconnects as best it can, but you will need to edit these yourself.

Can I Create My Own Physical Interconnect?

No. Every information flow triple, even user defined triples, are mapped to one of the physical interconnects defined by ARC-IT.

The types of Physical Interconnects, also called Links in ARC-IT, used on Layer 0 and Layer 1 include:

- Center to Center
- Human Interface
- Remote Access Human Interface
- Center to Field
- Low Power Radio Broadcast
- Short Range Wireless
- Contact or Proximity
- Network Time Protocol
- Vehicle On-Board
- Environment
- Personal Area Network
- Wide Area Broadcast
- Field to Field
- Position Location Interface
- Wide Area Wireless

Reviewing Your Physical Interconnects

While you cannot use the method of dragging lines/interconnects from the stencil onto a diagram, you can double-click on a line to bring up Shape Properties to view its characteristics.

SET-IT will show type of Physical Interconnect used. For example, on a line between two field devices you will see that SET-IT assigned the "Field to Field" interconnect.

		Shape Properties		X
		(2A) Field to Field	P-Interconnect (Bidirectional) [Read-Only]	
		•••		
	• •	Interconnect(s)		
MC Fiel	d N	Field to Field		
Maintena	nce 🔶 🗭	₽ _€		
Equipme	nt uman Interface	-		
ITS Communic	ations	-		
Support				
FME On-S	ite			
Maintenar	nce	_		
5 1 . 5 LV2A		_		
Field to Field(2A)	(1-2A-C) Short Rang	ge		
		Nev	v Edit	
	MCDOT CV Roadside	Status		
	Equipment	Project		\sim
		Flow Characteristics		
o Field 🔡 🗕 🔶		Characteristic	Value	
	KSE Map Managem(avt) Short Ba	Encryption	True	<u> </u>
	Wanagement and	Authenticability	Inue	Ě
	RSE Device	Time Context Lo	Unicast Recent	Ť
	Management	Time Context Up	Recent	Ť
		Spatial Context	Adiacent	$\overline{}$
	_	Spatial Context	Adjacent	$\overline{}$
s. based on:		-		
	(2C) Center to Field			
ative		Shape Properties		_
				_

The shape properties window will show which interconnect is selected and list its characteristics. It will be a Read Only view.

Go to the Definitions menu and open the P-Interconnect Triples grid. In the Physical Interconnect Details form, you can view the Information Flows included in the interconnect and the characteristics for that interconnect.

P-Intercor	nnect Details								-		>
Mamo	Center to Center										
Name.		1.072									
Alias:	BackOffice to Bac	ckOffice						🗹 Арр	ly Alias		
escription: p-Populate	A communications	s link that provides comm	unications between ce	nters. It may be implemented usi	ng a variety of public or priva	te communicatio	on networks and technolo	gies.			
	Encryption:	True									
	Authenticability:	True	V Using FIF3	Time Context Lower Bound:	Recent ~		Time Context Upp	er Bound:	Recent	\sim	
	Cardinality:	Unicast	\sim	Spatial Context Lower Bound:	Regional ~		Spatial Context Upp	er Bound:	National	~	
	FIPS										
	Confidentiality:		\sim	Integrity:		\sim	Availability:			\sim	
	Source Elem	ent		Destination Element			Status				
	Digital Map \$	System		 MCDPW GARLIC Information 	nation System		Project				
	Digital Map S	System		MC Freeway Manageme	ent Center (BASIL/PINCH)		Project				
	MCDPW GA	RLIC Information System		Security Credentials Ma	nagement System		Project				
	MCDPW GA	RLIC Information System		Marinara County Data S	haring System		Project				
	MC Freeway	Management Center (BA	SIL/PINCH)	MCDPW GARLIC Infor	nation System		Project				
	MC Freeway	Management Center (BA	SIL/PINCH)	Security Credentials Ma	nagement System		Project				
	Layer 2 Information	on Flow(s)									
	data provision			equipment maintenance status		MAP (intersed	tion geometry)				
	data publication		f	ield device maintenance coordin	ation	TMDD (curren	t infrastructure restrictions	s)			
	data query	antion	r	nap update notification							
	data subscription		r ,	nap upuates nishehavior renort							
	device enrollmen	nt information	1	ecurity credential revocations							
	enrollment crede	ntials	5	ecurity credentials							
	equipment mainte	enance request	5	ecurity policy and networking inf	ormation						
Source: G	irid - P-Interconnect	ts							OK	Cancel	

NOTE: Not every flow maybe listed under the interconnect. Some flows like "data publication" are known as 'superflows' which are simply collections of information flows defined in ARC-IT that are being carried between elements over some communications path. Also, if your flows were routed through a communications element or a data distribution element then they will appear in 2 P-Interconnect Triples – the one going to the Comm or Data element and the one on the other side of the Comm or Data element.

The attributes or characteristics of the interconnect will be assigned based on the flows upon which it is based:

- Status: Existing, Project, New Opportunity
- Encryption: True, False
- Authenticability: True, False
- Cardinality: Unicast, Multicast, Broadcast

Notes, Tips, and Caution for Layer 1s:

NOTE: Layer 1 drawings include Functional Objects (the small white or grey boxes inside the physical objects). Currently the status value is fixed and so the coloring cannot be changed.

TIP: Once SET-IT has drawn your layer 1 for the first time it is a really good idea to go around and click each element box and click "Connection Points" on the menubar. This will give you more connection points to connect lines to and it will make editing the diagram much easier.

CAUTION: Creating or modifying a Layer 1 diagram on your own may be helpful to sketch ideas out but beware. You may not be able to keep things synchronized between the layers. The Layer 1 template and Shape Properties on Layer 1 limits how much can be customized and edited.

CAUTION: Lastly, as the number of service packages (Layer 2s) in your project grows so will the size and complexity of your Layer 0 or Layer 1 drawings. SET-IT will attempt to place objects in a logical place and route the interconnects as best it can, but you will need to edit these yourself.

Enterprise View

This section describes how to create and modify your architecture's enterprise view, including how to create a new Enterprise diagram and modify its components. The Enterprise View addresses the relationships between organizations and users, and the roles those 'enterprises' play in the delivery and consumption of ITS services. Relationships between 'enterprises' or stakeholders, as they are known once you customize the architecture, are dependent on the roles they take in the delivery of user services.

An Enterprise view consists of drawings at the overall project level (Layer 0). The components of an Enterprise diagram include:

- Enterprise Objects, boxes with solid lines, will be related to project Stakeholders.
- Resources, boxes with dashed lines, will be related to physical objects or elements from the physical view as well as some functional objects (internal subset of functionality within a physical object).
- Agreements, red lines, represent a type of relationship between stakeholders or enterprise objects (the boxes) in a project.
- Expectations, blue lines, represent another type of relationship between stakeholders or enterprise objects in a project.
- Roles, black lines with a solid circle on one end, represent a relationship between a stakeholder and their elements, e.g., who *owns* or who *manages* an element.
- Member, black lines with a clear diamond on one end, represent a relationship in which one stakeholder is a Member Of a group of stakeholders.

The key questions to be understood by the development of an enterprise view for a project include "Who owns or who manages which components of the overall system" and "How are they related to each other?" In other words, what agreements need to be in place for the system represented in the physical view to work?

TIP: Typically, SET-IT users will start by selecting one or more ARC-IT service packages for their project and begin customizing the *Physical* view. Once elements have been defined for each object in the physical diagram and stakeholders have been defined along with their relationships (Owns/Manages) to the elements then enterprise can start to take shape.

NOTE: A physical layer 0 diagram must be created before creating an enterprise layer 0 diagram.

Once the Physical View is populated and the Enterprise View is entered – either by creating an Enterprise Diagram or going to one of the Enterprise View grids – a set of Rules is executed to generate the appropriate relationships. The agreements are established based on the Enterprise View in ARC-IT.

Agreements can be classified by their 'Specificity', either a "General" or a "Specific" agreement. General agreements are typically applied broadly and perhaps include more than just 2 stakeholders, perhaps everyone involved in a project or initiative. Specific agreements are typically centered around an interface or system element being developed or used in some way. The table below lists the General and Specific Agreements that come out of ARC-IT's Enterprise View

Specificity	Name
General	Funding Agreement
General	Handshake Agreement
General	Interagency Agreement
General	Master Agreement
General	Memorandum of Understanding
General	Project Blanket Agreement
General	Service Package Blanket Agreement
General	Shared Operations Agreement
General	Unspecified
Specific	Acquisition Agreement
Specific	Application Interface Specification
Specific	Application Usage Agreement
Specific	Device Placement and Operations Agreement
Specific	Device Usage Agreement
Specific	Employment Agreement
Specific	Equipment Operations Agreement
Specific	Information Exchange Agreement
Specific	Information Exchange and Action Agreement
Specific	Information Provision Agreement
Specific	Information Provision and Action Agreement
Specific	Installation Agreement
Specific	Interface Description
Specific	Maintenance Data Exchange Agreement
Specific	Operations Agreement
Specific	Security Credentials License and Usage Agreement
Specific	Service Coordination Agreement
Specific	Service Delivery Agreement
Specific	Service Usage Agreement
Specific	System Maintenance Agreement
Specific	System Monitoring Agreement

Table 1. ARC-IT Enterprise View Agreements

Specificity	Name
Specific	System Usage Agreement
Specific	Vehicle Data Access Agreement
Specific	Vehicle Operating Agreement
Specific	Verification Agreement
Specific	Warranty

For interface related agreements SET-IT looks at the stakeholders who 'own' elements on both sides of each interface in the architecture. If they are the same, then no agreement is necessary, such as when the State DOT is sending configuration data from its center down to its field equipment. On the other hand an agreement is needed if the State DOT is sharing control with another DOT center. The agreement types and the generic text are from ARC-IT's Enterprise View. The Enterprise View in ARC-IT describes the relationships between organizations and the roles those organizations play within the transportation environment. Some agreements are needed for one organization to provide information to another; some agreements need to be defined in such a way that not only is information provided but an action is expected to take place with the information. These are among the agreements that ARC-IT will define and display when a user enters the Enterprise View after making changes in the Physical View.

Another type of agreement is formed when one stakeholder 'owns' a resource/element but another stakeholder 'manages' that same resource/element. There will then need to be a management agreement between them. Similarly, owners and maintainers of the same element will need a system maintenance agreement.

TIP: The Enterprise Layer 0 diagram is a useful addition to a Concept of Operations document as it shows the overall set of Stakeholders and their relationships to each other.

Create a New Enterprise Diagram

An Enterprise Layer 0 diagram is a high-level drawing used to show the Enterprise Objects or Stakeholders from your project and how they are related. That's it. It's a summary of what lies beneath. It helps the project team and stakeholders reviewing the system documentation to see just who all of the stakeholders are and their relationships.



To create a new Layer 0 diagram:

- 1. Click on the **Diagram** tab.
- 2. Select a **Layer** from the drop-down menu. For Enterprise the single choice is Layer 0 for the project level perspective.
- 3. To create a Layer 0 diagram, in the **New Diagram** box:
 - a. Enter the title of the new diagram.
 - b. Select Layer 0 with the pull-down.
 - c. Select the physical layer 0 diagram that you already created and customized to use as the basis for the enterprise diagram.
 - d. Optionally, modify the Settings for the diagram See options on the <u>Enterprise Layer</u> <u>Diagram Settings Window</u>.
 - e. Click OK.

NOTE: you must have already created a Physical Layer 0 drawing before creating an Enterprise Layer 0 drawing. Otherwise, you will get a warning that "No physical layer 0 diagram has been selected" and it will ask if you would, "Like to create a blank enterprise layer 0 diagram."



It is probably best to go to Physical and create a Layer 0 diagram for your project and then come to enterprise to create the Layer 0 diagram.

NOTE: You can only select one Physical Layer 0 drawing on which to base your enterprise layer 0 diagram.

If you picked a physical layer 0 diagram that you had already created, SET-IT will use those elements to create resources and any stakeholders you created to assign to enterprise objects.

If your physical drawings were not completely customized – meaning that not all the physical object shapes had elements defined or selected – then when you try to generate an enterprise diagram you will get a message that, "Only fully customized physical layer-0 diagrams can be selected for enterprise layer-0 generation.



Go back to your physical diagrams and finish defining and selecting elements for all of the physical object shapes on the diagram.

Once your Enterprise diagram is generated you can finish customizing it by reviewing some of the mappings and ensure they reflect what you want. SET-IT will take a conservative approach and assign stakeholders to enterprise objects based on the assignments in the selected service packages as well as other ARC-IT service packages that have similar enterprises.

Shown below is an example of a Layer 0 drawing. This project had been imported from the V2I Safety Initiative project that is in RAD-IT's sample file. After import, a Physical layer 0 diagram was created then, after switching to Enterprise View, a new Enterprise layer 0 diagram was created and edited to move the shapes around for legibility purposes.

In this case multiple Physical diagrams were created based on subsets of the overall project then corresponding Enterprise diagrams were created to show the relationships between the stakeholders needed for those parts of the project.



SET-IT will select relationships or points of coordination to include in the Coordinations Report or on a generated Enterprise Layer 0 drawing by looking at the service package as well as at other potential relationships that are defined between those same Enterprise Objects in other parts of ARC-IT.

SET-IT will automatically set the initial color of the enterprise objects based on the roles the stakeholders have with the physical elements. For instance, if a given stakeholder holds and 'owns' role with several field-based elements then it will color that stakeholder Orange to reflect that it is, primarily, a Field based owner. Some times the box will be white if it cannot determine which to use. You can use Shape Properties to set the color you prefer.

SET-IT and Agreements

Agreements are defined automatically as you customize your physical view diagrams based on the roles that stakeholders have with the elements and the interfaces between them. For example, if one stakeholder owns a traffic management center and another stakeholder owns a transit management center, and they are doing Transit Signal Priority with the traffic control priority flows going between the 2 centers then SET-IT will automatically generate an Information Exchange Agreement between those 2 stakeholders.

Another type of agreement automatically generated by SET-IT is an element-based agreement when the stakeholders' relationship with each other pertains more to an element or group of elements than to any interface between their elements. An example here might be a common element in which one stakeholder 'owns' the element and another stakeholder 'maintains' that element which might be common for some field deployments. In that case, SET-IT will automatically generate a System Maintenance Agreement between those 2 stakeholders. Another element based agreement comes into play with the ownership or other role is assigned to a group of stakeholders rather than an individual stakeholder. When a Stakeholder Group has a role with respect to an inventory element then SET-IT will automatically generate a joint agreement between those stakeholders, e.g., a "Joint Ownership Agreement". So a group with an 'owns' role to a TMC would spawn a Joint Ownership Agreement of the TMC, a 'maintains' role would spawn a Joint Maintenance Agreement, etc.

NOTE: This Joint type of agreement would not appear on an enterprise diagram since there is no 'line' to be drawn between stakeholders – there is just the one stakeholder and the role it has with the element or resource shape. You can use the Member Of lines to show the different stakeholders that make up the stakeholder group to show it graphically or use the Output Tables to list the element based agreements.

Add a Shape to a Diagram

In order to add a shape to an enterprise diagram, select a **Shape** from the stencil on the left. For enterprise diagrams these include Enterprise Objects of various classes, Resources of various classes, Agreements, Expectations, Roles, Comments, Notes, Legend, and an extra Title Block.



- Agreements are shown as a red line either one directional or bi-directional.
- Expectations are shown as a blue line either one directional or bi-directional.
- Role is a black line with a solid black circle on one end.
- Member (as in A is a member of Group X) is a black line with a white diamond on one end.
- The Enterprise Object boxes, which represent institutional Stakeholders in the architecture, are colored rectangles with a bold black line around them. See below for an explanation of the color coding.
- The Resource boxes, which represent the systems and devices of the system, are also colored rectangles. They have a faint line around them. There are some variations in the style or coloring of the Resource boxes:
 - System resources are shown as a colored rectangle with the same coloring scheme as the enterprise boxes.
 - A Nomadic resource can be used to show a device that is sometimes a personal device and sometimes part of a vehicle.
 - Communications resources have rounded corners.
 - Environmental resources have an icon in the lower right representing their class.
- Notes are shown as a blank white rectangle with a bold black line.
- The Enterprise Legend can be added with either a horizontal or vertical orientation.
- The Title block is a rectangle shape that can be placed on a diagram in case the automatically generated title has been removed for some reason.

To add a shape to an Enterprise diagram, click one of the shapes on the stencil and drag the **Shape** to the drawing area.

Double click on the Shape or right-click and select **Shape Properties** to view and edit the properties of that new shape.

The Enterprises and Resources are colored coded based on their class: center, field, personal, support, vehicle, or unspecified – used for functional objects or for when enterprises are repeated on the same diagram. There is are additional shapes for Resources – the Resource Communications has the color of a resource class and the rounded corners or a communications element. There are also shapes for Environmental type resources (things the sensors sense) that are also color coded based on their class. Note there is no Communications Enterprise because the enterprises – companies, agencies, and staff – that run or own a communications domain system are the same enterprises that run other support systems.



NOTE: the Shape Properties box will be 'floating' to the left side of the window when it first opens. To re-dock it simply click the title of the box and drag it over and 'drop' it over the icon that looks like a closed door on either the left side or right side of the screen. You can 'undock' it by clicking the title of the box and dragging it to another area of your screen. You can also simply close the Shape Properties by clicking the X button in the top right of the window.

Delete a Shape

Select a **Shape** in the drawing area by clicking once on the shape.

Click **Delete** on the keyboard. It will ask if you are sure.

You can also right-click and select Delete.

If you delete a user-defined Resource you will be informed with a pop-up screen that a Physical Object by that name also exists and you will be asked if you want to delete that, too. Conversely, if you delete a user-defined Physical Object in Physical view, you will be informed that a Enterprise Object / Resource by that name also exists and asked if you want to delete that, too.

Create a Stakeholder

A "stakeholder" in SET-IT represents an instance of an enterprise object from ARC-IT. Think of this as the local or personalized version of what the national or reference framework has defined. A stakeholder defines an organization that owns, manages, or interacts in some way with the intelligent transportation or other system elements in a project. When multiple stakeholders are involved, there are relationships between them that appear on the Enterprise view of an architecture. Stakeholders can also be grouped together for joint or combined roles.

You can create your own stakeholder and associate them with one or more enterprise objects.

NOTE: while a stakeholder may be associated with more than one enterprise object, the shapes on any particular diagram only represent one enterprise object at a time.

There are several ways to create a stakeholder:

- From an enterprise diagram, double-click on one of the rectangles that represent an enterprise object. This will open the Shape Properties window. From there click the **New** button to open the Stakeholder Details window.
- From the 'New' area of menu bar on the "Home" ribbon, select Item / Stakeholder. This will also open the Stakeholder Details window.
- From anywhere in the Physical or Enterprise view press <Control-t> which is a shortcut key to open the Stakeholder Details window.

When starting with the Shape Properties window you will first select the appropriate **Status** from the pull-down menu located on the middle of the form.

Select from an existing stakeholder in the center of the screen. SET-IT will filter the selections based on the class or type of object – if you dragged a Field shape onto the diagram it will only show field elements.

If you don't see a stakeholder listed, click the **New** button in the shape properties form.

The **Stakeholder Details** form appears as shown below:

	MT C							
Name:	M The Group)						
cription: ^o opulate	"M The Grou things that th	p" is a group of stakeholders that in e M DOT own and/or operate.	clude the DOT and other stakeh	olders that are affiliated w	ith the			
	O Stakehol	ider 💿 Stakeholder Group						
	Group Memb	er(s)						
	DOT Tra	affic Ops Personnel			^			
	Local EM Agencies							
	Local Transit Agencies							
	M DOT							
	MandC Maintainers							
	MandC I	Mar						
	Element	Mat Sup	Role	Status				
	M Infra N	Mgt Sys	Owns	Project				
	M DMS	10115		Future	-			
	*		0303	Tuture				

Add an Enterprise / Stakeholder

Create a New Diagram or open an Existing Diagram.

Select one of the 6 different **Enterprise Objects** from the stencil on the left and drag it onto the drawing surface.

Enterprise Objects come in 'classes' based on how they are defined in ARC-IT. The Enterprise Object Classes are:

- Center
- Field
- Personal
- Support
- Vehicle
- Unspecified
NOTE: Unspecified is unique to Enterprise and represents Enterprise Objects that aren't necessarily tied to one class of physical objects, e.g., a Maint and Constr Vehicle Owner that may have responsibilities over both the vehicle-based maintenance and construction vehicles onboard equipment as well as the center-based dispatch and monitoring systems.

Drag the **Enterprise shape** to the diagram area and double-click on the **Enterprise shape** so that the **Shape properties** form appears on the screen.

Select a **Stakeholder** from the list in the middle of the form. If none are listed, you will need to click **New** to add a Stakeholder.

	_	Font
Shape Properties	X	
- Wilding	Enterprise Object Center	<u>14</u>
- Stakeholder(s)		
WxInc WxInc AB DOT AB TMC Personnel Data R Us Local Drivers NOAA OurInfo LLC		
אפש	Edit	
Status		<u></u>
_ Project	~	Wylne
Class		
Center	~	/88
Shape Properties	WxInc Surface Trans Weather Service	0 M

Select appropriate Status from the pull-down menu located on the middle of the Form,

The selected **Stakeholder** name will appear on the shape.

You can also select one of the classes and the color of the shape will change to match the class:

- Center teal (light green)
- Field orange
- Personal yellow
- Support darker green
- Vehicle blue
- Unspecified white

A word of warning on this ability to change the color of the enterprise object box. If this diagram has been automatically generated by SET-IT using the relationships the stakeholders have with the elements then the color will automatically be generated. This is usually accurate and you can leave it alone, e.g. the DOT is colored orange if the relationships are showing that it 'owns' several field elements. However, you may want to change this to reflect your own understanding of the project and show the DOT as teal.

Add a Resource

Resources are shown as boxes with dashed lines in the Enterprise view to indicate the things that are being managed, operated, etc. by the Enterprise Objects. In terms of an ITS project, think of a Resource as one of the Elements from the physical view just as the enterprise objects are related to the project's Stakeholders.

Resources, like Physical Objects, can be one of 6 classes:

- Center
- Field
- Personal
- Support
- Vehicle
- Nomadic (combination of Vehicle and Personal)

There are also shapes for Resources that are system elements, communications type elements, and environmental terminators.

To create a resource, drag a **Resource** shape from the Stencil onto the diagram.

Shape Properties x
Maiinara County Data Sharing System
Element(s)
Marinara County Data Sharing System
New Edit
Status
Project ~
Resource
 Data Distribution System ITS Communications Equipment Other Data Distribution Systems Wide Area Information Disseminator System
Shape Properties

Double click on the **Resource** and **Shape properties** form appears on the screen.

Select the appropriate **Resource** from the checkboxes located on the bottom of the **Shape Properties** Form. These choices are based on the ARC-IT resources that are from that class. They also include User-Defined Physical Objects that were created while in the Physical View

Select an **Element** from the list in the middle of the form. If none are listed you will need to click **New** to add an Element. You can skip this step, but the box will simply have the generic italicized name with braces around the name indicating that it needs to be customized.

Select appropriate **Status** from the pull-down menu located on the middle of the Form.

The selected **Resource** name will appear on the shape.

Remember Resources are linked to the Physical view so that as Resources are added or edited, they will be reflected in the Physical Objects or their customized Elements that are also in the Physical View.

Add a Hyperlink

Hyperlinks provide a way to automatically link terms or objects in your SET-IT project to another location or file, perhaps to another location on the internet. From the Information Flows, Physical Objects, Functional Objects, and Resources windows click on the Hyperlink button and you will see the following screen:

互 Hyperlink		_		
Hyperlink Name:	New Standard Links	~	Add/Edit	
Address:	http://www.newtown.net/standards101		^	
			~	
Description:	Describes New Standard Links for New Town ITS Projects		^	
			~	
		01		
		ОК	Cancel	

The first time you will need to Add a hyperlink by pressing the Add/Edit button at the top left of the Hyperlink screen:

E	Hyperlinks		-		×
0	Hyperlink Name New Standard Links	Hyperlink Address http://www.newtown.net/standards101	Hyperlink Description Describes New Standard Links for New Town ITS Projects		
*					
			ОК	Cancel	

In the 3 columns on the Hyperlinks details screen you can enter the following:

 Hyperlink Name - is the readable text you want your readers to see in the documentation, e.g., "Architecture Team Website."

- Hyperlink Address is the fully qualified Uniformed Resource Locator (URL), e.g., "http://www.newtown.net/standards101".
- Hyperlink Description is a place for you to provide any additional descriptive text explain what the link is used for or where it's located, e.g., "Describes New Standard Links for New Town ITS Projects".

Creating a New Agreement

Agreements are shown as red lines on the Enterprise diagrams with arrowheads on one or both ends. They connect Stakeholders, also known as Enterprise Objects, together by defining what has to be agreed upon in order for a service package to be implemented, operated, coordinated among agencies, maintained, etc.

To create an agreement, drag an **Agreement** line from the Stencil onto the diagram area. Connect it between Stakeholder or Enterprise Object shapes. SET-IT will prevent you from attempting to draw an agreement between an Enterprise and a Resource.

You can choose from a unidirectional or bidirectional agreement - indicated as "(Bidir)".

NOTE: Generally, agreements are bidirectional since both parties have to agree. Occasionally, there may be a situation where you want to indicate that one party is the lead and the other party is the recipient or dependent part of the agreement.

Double click on the **Agreement** line and the **Shape Properties** form appears on the screen.

Select the appropriate **ARC-IT Agreement** from the pull-down menu located on the bottom of the **Shape Properties** Form to choose the desired agreement type. The list of agreement types from ARC-IT are shown and you can also choose "<Unspecified>" if the agreement type you need isn't listed.

Select an **Agreement** from the list in the middle of the form. If none are listed you will need to click **New** to add an Agreement. You can skip this step, but the box will simply have the generic italicized name with braces around the name to indicate that it needs to be personalized.

Select appropriate Status from the pull-down menu located on the middle of the Form,

The selected **Stakeholder / Enterprise Object** name will appear on the shape.

If you need to create a **New** Agreement or if you choose to **Edit** one of the existing agreements in the Shape Properties list then the Agreements window appears with a box for Name, Description (that can be Auto-populated if an ARC-IT Agreement was selected on Shape Properties) and columns for Source, Destination, and Status. For Bidirectional agreements the ordering of source and destination really don't matter.

If you are creating a new agreement the Source and Destination will be prepopulated based on what was selected on the diagram. For agreements not already defined in ARC-IT the User Defined box will be checked.

🧧 Agreeme	nts					—		×		
Name:	me: Our Town Employment Agreement									
Number:	T-	T-00101C User Defined								
Description:	Cit	City Form T-00101C - An agreement between the town's Traffic Division and its staff. Stipulates rules of behavior.								
<u>nato r opulato</u>										
	A	greement Type								
	E	mployment Agreement					~			
	Γ	Source	Destination	User Defined	Status	B	idirectional]		
		Our Town Traffic Division	Our Town Traffic Operation:	~	Project		~			
	*			<u>~</u>			\sim	-		
]		
					OK		Cancel			
Form Source: N	ew	Agreement			on		Carloot			

From this Agreements details form you can edit the name, select the *Type*, fill-in a *Description*, add a *Number*, adjust the *Status*, and assign *stakeholders* as either the source or destination. Use the Auto-Populate button to fill-in the Description field with the description of that type of agreement from ARC-IT.

NOTE: You will need to go back to Shape Properties on the diagram if you want to change the type of ARC-IT agreement that this custom agreement is based on.

Creating a New Expectation

Expectations are shown as blue lines on the Enterprise diagrams with empty arrowheads on one or both ends. They connect Stakeholders, also known as Enterprise Objects, together by defining what is expected from each other in order for a Service Package to be implemented.

To create an expectation, drag an **Expectation** line from the Stencil onto the diagram area. You can choose from a unidirectional or bidirectional agreement – indicated as "**(Bidir)**".

NOTE: Generally, expectations are unidirectional since one party may expect information or some action from another. Occasionally, there may be a situation where the expectation flows both ways between Stakeholders.

Double click on the **Expectation** line.

Shape Properties form appears on the screen.

Select the appropriate **Expectation** from the list in the middle of the form.

Select appropriate Status from the pull-down menu located on the middle of the Form,

The selected **Expectation** name will appear on the shape.

If you need to create a **New** Expectation or if you choose to **Edit** one of the existing expectations in the Shape Properties list then the Expectations window appears with a box for Name, Description and columns for Source, Destination, and Status. For Bidirectional expectations the ordering of source and destination really don't matter.

Creating a Role

Roles are shown as black lines with a black circle on one end. They are used to graphically depict how Stakeholders and their Resources are related.

To create a Role, drag a **Role** line from the Stencil onto the diagram area.

Double click on the **Role** line.

Shape Properties form appears on the screen.



Select one or more of the available Roles defined in ARC-IT or click "New..." and define a user defined role. ARC-IT defines 12 potential roles as shown below:

Name	Description
Advises	An Enterprise that can provide information about a Resource or Document.
Certifies	An Enterprise verifies that a target Resource meets relevant performance, functional, environmental, and quality requirements. This could be an independent third party or it could be the same entity that has the Develops role. For instance, an automotive OEM practicing "self-certification" would have this role with respect to the Basic Vehicle, whereas an independent certification body might have this role with respect to a Vehicle OBE (though of course the OEM could also fill this role).
Develops	An Enterprise creates the target Resource or Document. The Enterprise that engineers a traffic signal controller (ITS Roadway Equipment) or designs a vehicle (Basic Vehicle) or authors a technical standard will have the Develops role.
Installs	An Enterprise performs the initial delivery, integration, and configuration of the target Resource. This might be a system integrator, a state DOT Enterprise performing its own installation, or a device supplier that performs on-site installation.
Maintains	An Enterprise administers the hardware and software that comprise the target Resource. The entity that takes the 'maintains' role typically is delegated authority by the entity with the "Owns" or "Manages" roles, depending on the environment. The maintainer interacts with the target Resource so as to keep that Resource in the Operational state.
Manages	The Enterprise that is accountable for performing actions with a Resource, typically in support of one of the key operations-related roles (operates, installs, maintains). This authority is typically delegated by the Enterprise with the "Owns" role, and commonly accomplished by delegation to Human E-Objects with the "operates", "installs" or "maintains" roles, depending on the context.
Operates	A Human that is accountable for performing actions with a Resource, typically in support of one of the key operations-related roles (operates, installs, maintains). This is the person at the console or behind the wheel.

Name	Description
Owns	An Enterprise has financial ownership and control over the Resource. An Enterprise that Owns a resource is considered accountable for the resource and all of its contents. The Owns role includes ownership during Operations and Maintenance and also Acquisition during the Installation phase. The entity that takes the "owns" role is ultimately responsible for ensuring the resource provides its promised functionality, and for securing the data that the Resources holds and exchanges. The owner is similarly responsible for the facilities inherent to the resource that are used to exchange data with other systems. The owner is responsible for ensuring that any data stored by the resource and any data communicated by the resource are protected to the extent necessary considering the contents of the data and the consequences of its exposure or alteration.
Provides	The Enterprise that provides the basic service of a service package.
Supplies	The Enterprise that supplies (provides) a device or software product. The Supplier delivers the target resource to the Owner.
Uses	An Enterprise or Human that interacts with a Resource or Document in a way not captured by other roles. For instance, the person that reviews a document, or the agency informed of project status would have this role.
Verifies	The Enterprise that determines whether or not a target Resource meets documented requirements. This action is typically on behalf of the Owner.

Select appropriate **Status** from the pull-down menu located on the middle of the Form. The selected **Role** name(s) will appear on the shape.

When a Stakeholder is selected that has one of the roles listed above then behind the scenes they are mapped to an Enterprise Object that corresponds to that resource or physical object and their role. For instance, a Stakeholder that has been marked as 'Uses' an element that has been mapped to the Personal Information Device physical object will be assigned as a 'Personal Information Device User'. This is then used when the Enterprise diagrams and underlying relationships are drawn.

NOTE: You can change which roles are required by going to the Definitions grid and checking the Required checkbox. This will decide which roles appear on the Element Details form when you edit an element of the physical view and you want to establish the roles that various stakeholders play with respect to that element.

Drawing a Member of relationship

The Member line appears as a black line with an open or white diamond on one end. It is used to show the relationship that exists when one stakeholder is a member of a group of stakeholders. This is useful when it is the group of stakeholders that collectively own or manage a resource like a Joint Operations Center of some sort. When the enterprise diagram is drawn automatically it would show the enterprise that owns or manages that resource or element. In this group scenario it would show that the group is the enterprise owning or managing that resource. The 'Member' line can be used

to show the relationships then between stakeholders to it will be apparent to your readers and reviewers who it is that is part of that group.

To use the Member relationships, start by creating the stakeholders on the Stakeholders table on the Definitions menu. Also create the Stakeholder Group and indicating which stakeholders are members of that group.

Then, on the Diagram, place the appropriate enterprise object shapes on the diagram and use Shape Properties to assign the stakeholders to them. This may have already been done if the diagram was generated automatically from a fully customized Layer 0 physical diagram.

Next, drag out the Member line to the diagram. Connect the end without the diamond to the individual stakeholder and connect the diamond end to the stakeholder that is the Group.

NOTE: If you connect it the other way or just between 2 individual stakeholders then the diagram will erase the "Member of" label leaving you with a blank line. That's your clue that you have it backwards or not connected between a stakeholder and their group.

Notes about Drawing Enterprise Diagrams

When a project's stakeholders have been defined and their roles with respect to their elements defined it will be good to see a summary of the project that includes all of the stakeholders involved in the project. SET-IT's **Layer 0** enterprise diagram shows the project's stakeholders and their relationships. The Layer 0 drawing may be helpful to external stakeholders or decision makers to quickly see the scope of a project.

Typically, users will want to create a Layer 0 diagram in Physical View after they have completed their Physical View Layer 2 service package-level diagrams.

Can I Draw My Own Layer 0?

While you will usually create an enterprise diagram after creating the physical layer 0 but you can also start from scratch, that is, create your own layer 0 drawing. You can use the stencil to drag enterprise object shapes onto the diagram and assign them to ARC-IT enterprise objects (and stakeholders).

Enterprise Diagram Complexity

CAUTION: Lastly, as the number of service packages (Layer 2s in physical) in your project grows so will the size and complexity of your Layer 0 drawings (both physical and enterprise). SET-IT will attempt to place objects in a logical place and route the relationships as best it can but you will need to edit these yourself.

Communications View

This section describes how to create and modify your architecture's communications view, including how to edit the Communications solutions used in your project.

The Communications View identifies the protocol stacks needed to implement an information flow between a source and destination (e.g., information flow triple) in the Physical View. ARC-IT terms these protocol stacks as "solutions". Solutions are composed of a collection of industry standards; usually formally developed standards produced by a standards development organization, but often a published specification such as an IETF RFC. Each triple from the Physical View is associated with one or more solutions.

The ARC-IT Communications Model is based on previous work in the communications arena. Major sources include the Open System Interconnection (OSI) Model, the ITS Station architecture (from ISO 21217), the NTCIP Framework, and the Internet Protocol Suite.

Much like some of these other models, the ARC-IT Communications Model groups OSI model layers together. This is done because certain protocols are nearly always deployed with certain pairings. For example, the Transmission Control Protocol (TCP) is seldom implemented without Internet Protocol (IP) at the next lowest layer. This is good: it means we can logically group some of these layers together to reflect what is implemented rather than looking at a logical assemblage of individual layers. It keeps the model a little simpler than in previous iterations, which should make it easier to use.

- **ITS Application Entity:** ITS Application Entity standards specify the structure, meaning, and exchange patterns of information between two end points. Referred to as 'ITS Application Specifications' in some contexts.
- **Facilities Layer:** Facilities Layer Protocols define the rules and procedures for exchanging data, for representing the bits and bytes of information content to be transferred (e.g., encoding), and provide mechanisms for opening, closing, and managing a dialogue between ITS Applications. Sessions may be asynchronous as in paired requests and responses (information exchanges), asynchronous as in an unsolicited publication of information, and may require acknowledgement of receipt or not.
- **TransNet Layer:** TransNet layer protocols define the rules and procedures for exchanging application data between endpoints as well as the routing, message disassembly/re-assembly and network management functions.
- **Access Layer:** Access Layer protocols define the rules and procedures for exchanging data between two adjacent devices over some communications media, as well as the signaling protocols that are typically developed for specific communications media.
- **Management:** Management standards define the rules and procedures for controlling elements at all layers.
- **Security:** Security standards define the rules and procedures for providing cybersecurity at all layers.

A typical triple solution is assembled according to the ARC-IT communications model, as defined by the <u>communications viewpoint</u>. All solutions are built according to this model, and the components of the solution assigned to the various parts of the model depending on their role in the solution.

Sometimes a standard satisfies multiple aspects of a solution, and so might appear more than once in an illustration of the solution. Triple solutions are accessible from several places, but are most commonly from the context of a <u>service package</u> by clicking on the flow or from the overall list of ARC-IT triples.



A sample triple solution diagram from the ARC-IT website is shown above. In ARC-IT, standards names are sometimes underlined indicating the standard is actually part of a group of standards or one of several alternatives; clicking on the link will expand the bundle or explain the alternatives. 'Info' buttons next to standards generate pop-ups that provide some detail about the standard in question.

There are also several 'gap' icons that reflect *issues* with the use of standards in that particular area of the model. Issues come in two types: gaps, which are issues where some requirement of the triple is not met by the standard or collection of standards in the solution, or overlaps, which are issues where multiple standards exist to serve the solution, and it is not obvious which one to choose. Issues are assigned severity levels to indicate the degree to which the issue impacts the operation of the solution in practice. On the example above there is a moderate-level security gap and a minor gap at the ITS Application Entity. Note that some layers might have alternatives, in which case when the Communications Solutions calculations are run in SET-IT the solution severity calculations will also run and select as default the solution with the best, least severe alternative.

The Communications View does not show standards that pertain only to the physical or functional objects like the Advance Traffic Controller cabinet standard nor will it show physical security standards. Physical and Physical Security type standards are defined and shown in the Physical View.

The components of the Communications view include:

- Definitions menu of tables to view, tailor, and add to the following:
 - Flow Triples to Solutions
 - Solutions
 - o Issues
 - Profiles
 - Physical Interconnects
 - Standards
 - Standard Bundles
 - o Assumptions and Constraints (shared with Physical view)

SET-IT can generate diagrams like those shown on the ARC-IT website as an output once you are comfortable with the solutions assigned.

Populating the Communications View

Calculate Solution Assignments

As flows are defined in the Physical view – or, more accurately, when Elements are defined for the sources and destinations – then communications solutions are identified for the Communications View.

A communications solution consists of a data profile and a communications profile. As each flow is added to the architecture the likely solutions are selected. This is based on the ARC-IT Communications View which includes an assessment of gaps and issues with the communications and data standards in order to determine the readiest for deployment which is the solution with the lower 'score' when adding up all the issues. In most cases there is just one likely solution but there

are exceptions where more than one solution may be appropriate depending on the needs of the deployment, usage of data distribution, or issues/gaps that may exist for certain solutions.

The rules to select the solutions are run whenever you enter the Communications view if new information flows have been defined in the physical view.

The rules can also be run manually by clicking the "Calculate Solution Assignments" button at the top of the menubar.



If Physical Objects are created or new user defined information flows are created SET-IT has rules built in to determine what solution is the best or most appropriate solution based on the source and destination physical objects. The rules also use the characteristics like confidentiality, availability, and whether a data distribution system is used to determine which is the most appropriate solution.

Not every flow in the physical view will show up in communications view – only the flows for which data and communications profiles have been developed. If you create user defined flows in physical, either from the new item menu or by changing characteristics of an ARC-IT flow. Other higher-level flows like "data publication" won't be reflected in Comm View, either because in a deployed projects those type of flows are implemented using the exchange actual information flows between elements that support one of the services.

What does "(None-Data)" mean? You may see (None-Data) for the Data Profile when an information flow has no ITS Application Entity layer standards defined yet. You can find more information when you view the Solution Details and click on Issues. You will see an issue called, "Data Profile not Defined" with text that says, "Performance, functionality, and the upper-layers of the OSI stack have not been defined for this information flow."

Communications Using Data Distribution

The solution calculation algorithm is designed so that:

- If the triple is Eligible to use a DDS, then only DDS solutions will be chosen.
- If the triple is Not Eligible to use a DDS, then only non-hub DDS solutions such as the Object Management Group Data Distribution Service (OMG DDS) may be chosen.

When you create your own user defined solution you can select whether your solution is intended to be applied to interfaces where a DDS is acting as an intermediary, places where it isn't, or any type of interface.

Create a New or User Defined Communications Solution

Sometimes SET-IT may not have the Communications Solution you need. The database that comes with SET-IT contains 223 communications solutions based on the communications view from ARC-IT.

But as ITS and connected vehicle technology keeps evolving new projects are bound to have interfaces that are new and unique. Creating a new or User Defined Solution in SET-IT is not 'easy' but doable. Care should be taken and you should generally take advantage of the defined solutions developed by the ARC-IT program.

There are a couple of ways to create a new solution:

- From the New Items menu
- From the Solution Details form when you edit (changing any of the standards assignments or other aspects of an ARC-IT Solution)



Creating a Solution from the New Item Menu

At the top left of the SET-IT screen click the Item pulldown from the New area and select the Solution. The Solution Details window opens.

Give it a Name, Select a Data Profile and a Comm Profile. Fill in a Description and tick-off which regions this solution should apply to. Use the Comm Class pull-down to select the class of communications that this solution applies to. This could be one of the following:

- Campus Area Network
- Local Area Network
- Metropolitan Area Network
- Other
- Personal Area Network
- Wide Area Network

The Standards assignments are pre-set by the Data/Comm Profile settings. If you make a change to one of the standards on any of the Layers then you will be prompted to create a user defined profile. The Issues tab will also be pre-populated based on the Data/Comm Profile standards assigned.

The Information Flow Triples tab allows you to select the information flows that can use this new solution. You will see a Physical Objects and an Elements button. Start with the Physical Objects button to select the Source, Destination, and Information Flow.

Solution	Details	-		×
Name:	Test 23		User Defin	ed
Data Profile:	EU: Probe Data V Comm Profile: OASIS MQTT over Wirel	ess	~	•
Description:	Test 23 combines EU's Probe Data profile with OASIS' MQTT over Wireless protocols.			
Region:	AU ZEU ZUS CA]
Comm Class:	Wide Area Network V Applied to: Flow triples without Data Distribution in	ntermed	iaries 🗸	
Standard	s Issues Information Flow Triples			
	 Elements			
Source Vehice	e Destination ▼ Information Flow le OBE Transportation Information Center ▼ vehicle situation of Management Center Transportation Information Center road network con	data		
*		I GILLIOT 13		
Form Source:	New Solution	K	Cano	el

Then, if your project contains elements assigned to those physical objects and have the same flows that are selected on the PObjects tab then you will see those element flow triples for your new solution.

SET-IT Help

5 Solution	Details				—		×
Name:	Test 23				V U	lser Define	d
Data Profile:	EU: Probe Data	~	Comm Profile:	OASIS MQTT over Wire	less	~	
Description:	Test 23 combines EU's Probe	Data profile w	ith OASIS' MQT	∑over Wireless protocols			
Region:	🗆 AU 🗹 EU	\checkmark	US	CA			
Comm Class:	Wide Area Network ~	Applied	to: Flow triples	without Data Distribution i	intermedia	aries 🗸	
Standard	s Issues		Information Flo	ow Triples			
		Elements	Physical	Objects			
Sourc	e	Destination		Information Flow			
MC Fr	reeway Management Center 💌	TOMATO		road network co	nditions		

The pull-down selections in the Information Flow Triples form are designed to only show what makes sense. The first column you choose will show you everything from ARC-IT – either all the physical objects from ARC-IT for the Source or Destination or all the ARC-IT information flows if you start with the Information Flow column. As you select one column the choices in the other columns will be reduced to the valid choices from ARC-IT. Then as you make your 2nd choice the 3rd column will be reduced even further.

omm (Class: Metropolitan Area	Network	\sim			It combines st
St	andards	Issues		Information Flow Trip	bles	It combines st
			-			It combines st
			 Elements 	 Physical Object 	ts	It combines sta
	Source		Destination		Information Flow	It combines st
0	Transit Management Cen	ter	Transit Vehic	le OBE	T	It combines st
*					alarm acknowledge	74 L'4
					authorization response	
					connection protection instructions	
					fare management information	
					remote vehicle disable	
					transfer status	
					transit schedule information	
					transit stop locations	
					transit stop request	
					transit traveler information	
					transit vehicle operator authentication updat	te
					transit vehicle operator information	

NOTE: if a flow alias has been applied then the alias will appear in this list followed by the original flow name in parentheses.

Using the Communications View Definitions Menu

The Definitions menu includes tables to view, tailor, and add to the following:

- Flow Triples to Solutions
- Solutions
- Issues
- Profiles
- Physical Interconnects
- Standards
- Standard Bundles
- Assumptions and Constraints (shared with Physical view)

See below for more information about each of the communications view grids.

Flow Triples to Solutions Grid

This lists the Information Flow Triples (source element, destination element, and flow name) from the physical view and the assignment to a solution. It also lists the Solution Issue Score associated with the solution which is the numerical sum of the gaps/issues associated with each of the layers in the data/communications profiles. There is an indication if a Communications Element was used as a means to route the flow of information from the Source to the Destination. There is also an indication if a Data Distribution System was used. An Override flag indicates if a solution other than the default recommended by SET-IT has been selected. A Details button can be clicked to see more information and to see the full list of issues associated with the selected solution.

5	ラ Flow Triple Solution Issues ーロ×								
F	Row: cur	rent infrastruct	ure restrictions						
Sou	urce: MC	DPW GARLIC	C Information System	Destination: Digital Map System					
Solu	tion: US	S: WZDx - Se	cure Internet (ITS)	~					
Solu	tion Read	diness: Moder	rate	Summary Issue Score: 10					
Asso	ociated Is	sues:	lanua	Description					
	Ignore	Medium	Overlap of standards	Multiple standards have been developed to address this information and it is unclear which standard should be used to address this specific information flow.					
		Medium	Performance not fully defined (medium)	The performance rules are not fully defined for this information flow.					
		Medium	Secure data access not provided	The solution does not define rules on how the application entity authenticates requests to accept or provide data.					
		Low	Not a standard (minor)	The document is publicly available and widely used but it is not currently a formal standard.					
Form	orm Source: Grid - Flow Triples to Solutions OK Cancel								

When you change the solution, it may change the readiness of that solution if there are a different set of issues associated with that solution. When you change the Solution selected on the Flow Triple Solutions Issues screen it will change the score and the list of issues, and Override will appear on the screen next to the selected solution to indicate that a change was made. See the example below:

S	Flow	Tripl	e Solution Issu	Jes	_		×		
F	Flow:	curr	ent infrastructur	e restrictions					
Sou	urce:	MCI	DPW GARLIC I	nformation System	Destination: Digital Map System				
Solu	ution:	Da	ta for Distribution	n (TBD) - OMG DDS	~	OVERRI	DE		
Solu	ution F	Read	iness: Lowest		Summary Issue Score: 36				
Ass	ociate	d Iss	ues:						
	Igno	ore	Severity	Issue	Description				
►		Ultra		Data profile not defined	Performance, functionality, and the upper-layers of the OSI stack have not been defined for this information flow.				
			Medium	Unvetted by community	The proposed solution uses a suite of standards that is accepted within some communities, but has not necessarily been accepted for use within the context of this information				
Low Overlap of standards (Minor) Multiple standards have been developed to address this specific information flow. However, a				ress this uld be used as this	to				
Form	Sourc	e:G	rid - Flow Triples	s to Solutions	ОК	Cance	el		

See <u>Issues</u> below for more information on how Issues are derived and scored in SET-IT. As part of the <u>Issues</u> discussion in <u>Using the Communications View Definitions Menu</u>, as issues are added they are combined in to a Readiness or Suitability level in terms of its readiness or suitability for deployment.

Solutions

The Solutions grid is shown below. The Solutions grid shows the collection of communications protocols and data definitions that can be used to implement a given <u>triple</u>.

			Se	olutions				
In My Project 🖌	Name /	Description	Issue Score	Comm Class	Comm Profile	Data Profile	User Defined	More
\checkmark	(None-Data) - Secure Internet (ITS)	this solution is used	32	WAN	I-I: Secure Internet (ITS)	(None-Data)		Details
\checkmark	(None-Data) - Secure Wireless Internet	this solution is used	32	WAN	I-M: Secure Wireless	(None-Data)		Details
\checkmark	(None-Data) - WAVE WSMP	this solution is used	38	LAN	V-X: WAVE WSMP	(None-Data)		Details
\checkmark	(None-Data) - Wide Area Broadcast	this solution is used	33	WAN	C-X: Wide Area Broadcast	(None-Data)		Details
\checkmark	(None-Data) - Apache Kafka	this solution is used	36	WAN	Apache Kafka	(None-Data)		Details
\checkmark	Data for Distribution (TBD) - Apache	this solution is used	36	WAN	Apache Kafka	Data for Distribution (TBD)		Details
	Equipment Maintenance Data Sharing	Marinara County	4	WAN	Apache Kafka	Equipment Status Sharing		Details
\checkmark	GNSS Data - GNSS serial interface	this solution is used	6	Other	GNSS serial interface	GNSS Data		Details
\checkmark	TPEG2 - Wide Area Broadcast	this solution is used	4	WAN	C-X: Wide Area Broadcast	TPEG2		Details
\checkmark	TUF - Guaranteed Secure Internet	this solution is used	4	WAN	I-I: Guaranteed Secure	TUF		Details
\checkmark	TUF - Secure Internet (ITS)	this solution is used	4	WAN	I-I: Secure Internet (ITS)	TUF		Details
\checkmark	US: Device enrollment - Secure	this solution is used	3	WAN	I-I: Secure Internet (ITS)	US: Device enrollment		Details
\checkmark	US: Misbehavior reporting - Secure	this solution is used	6	WAN	I-I: Secure Internet (ITS)	US: Misbehavior reporting		Details
\checkmark	US: NTCIP Environmental Sensors -	this solution is used	5	MAN	I-F: SNMPv3/TLS	US: NTCIP Environmental		Details

The first column indicates whether the solution is "In" your project and the last column shows whether it is User Defined. The name of the solution is often made to first indicate the source region then combines the data profile and communications profile names. The grid then lists the description of the solution, the sum of the issue scores (higher scores mean the solutions has more and/or more severe issues), the communications class, e.g., Wide Area Networks (WAN), Local Area Networks (LAN), etc. The Communications Profile and Data Profile are listed, and a Details button brings up the Solutions Details form.

Solution	Details					—		×
Name: Data Profile: Description: Region:	US: NTCIP M US: NTCIP M this solution is with those for implement cer	lessage Sign - SNMPv lessage Sign used within Canada ar I-F: SNMPv3/TLS. The ntertofield message sign	3/TLS	Comm Profile: It combines stand Message Sign st ations The I-F: S C/	I-F: SNMPv3/TLS Jards associated with US andards include upper-la SNMPv3/TLS standards A)	User Defined	t
Standard	Metropolitan /	Area Network V	Applied	Information Flow	vithout Data Distribution i w Triples	intermediaries	~	
ITS Infor NTCIP (None) Address Applica ASTM	mation Message Sign sed Elsewhere i tion Specific Archiving Traffic Metadata to sur	Management Objects in Stack c Data pont ADMS	Security	Facilities	Transport/Networ 15531-5 Public Trans - S 15722 ESafety - ECall - 16102 eCall - Op Reqs f 16157-1 DATEX for TM 16157-2 DATEX for TM 16157-3 DATEX for TM	king IRI Situation) Minimum Data or 3rd party Si &I - Context & &I - Location F &I - Situation F	Access Kchange a Set upport Frmwrk Referencing Publication	
Bundle Bundle Bundle Bundle CEN 12 CEN 12 CEN 12	: ADMS : DATEX : IEEE 1512 : ISO Probe Dat 2896-1: Transm 2896-2: Transm 2896-3: Transm	ta odel Common Concepts odel Public Transport N odel Timing Information	etwork		16157-4 DATEX for TM 16157-5 DATEX for TM 16157-6 DATEX for TM 16614-2 Public Trans - N 16614-3 Public Trans - N 17380 Controlled Zone I -Xtypes	& I - VMS Publi &I - M/E Data &I - Parking Pu le TEx - Timeta le TEx - Fares Management	ications Publications ublications ables Xchang Xchange	je
CEN 12896-4: Transmodel Operations monitoring and control Development needed CEN 12896-5: Transmodel Fare Management DMS and RWIS (AU) CEN 12896-6: Transmodel Passenger Information ETSI 101 556-1 App: EV Charging Spot CEN 15213-4 After-theft systems - long range comms ETSI 101 556-3 App: EV Energy Reservation CEN 15531-3 Public Trans - SIRI Functional interfaces ETSI 102 638 ITS BSA					>			
Form Source:	Grid - Solutions					ОК	Cance	ł

The Details form shows the information from the grid and then a set of tabs is used to provide additional details. The Standards tabs are used to show the standards associated with each layer.

The Issues tab lists the issues associated with the standards in this solution.

互 Sol	lution D	Details				—		×
N	lame:	US: NTCIP Message Sign - S	SNMPv3/TLS] 🗌 Us	er Defined	I
Data Pr	rofile:	US: NTCIP Message Sign \checkmark Comm Profile: I-F: SNMPv3/TLS \checkmark						
Descrip	ption:	This solution is used within the U.S It combines standards associated with US: NTCIP Message Sign with those for I-F: SNMPv3/TLS. The US: NTCIP Message Sign standards include upper-layer standards required to implement center-to-field message sign communications. The I-F: SNMPv3/TLS standards include lower-layer standards that						
Re	gion:	AU EU	V 1	s 🗹 CA				
Comm C	Class:	Metropolitan Area Network	- Appl	ied to: Flow triples with	out Data Distribution i	ntermediaries	~	
Sta	andards	Issu	es	Information Flow 1	Triples			
	Ignore	Issue	Severity	Source	Description			
Þ		Update data to SNMPv3	Low	Solution	Data has been define be updated to SNMF	ed for SNMPv1, ² v3 format.	but needs	to
		Use TLS for SNMP Option	Low	Profile: I-F: SNMPv3/TLS	The standard allows mechanisms. The on meets the requirement	for multiple secu ly defined mech nts for C-ITS is th	irity anism that ne one bas	sed
		Out of date (medium)	Medium	Standard: IETF RFC 6353 TLS for SNMP	The standard include other standards that significant changes t	es normative refe have been subje hat can impact	erences to ect to	
			1		<u> </u>	ik£k		
Form So	ource: Gr	rid - Solutions				OK	Cance	4

For user defined Solutions you will see a blank line allowing you to add Issues to this communications solution.

The Information Flow Triples tab lists the information flows mapped to this solution. Radio buttons let you choose to see it by Elements in your project or by ARC-IT physical objects.

St	andards	Issues	Information Flow 1	Triples
			Elements O Physical Ob	jects
Γ	Source		Destination	Information Flow
	MC Freeway Management	Center 🔻	MCDOT Dynamic Message Signs	s roadway dynamic signage data
	MCDOT Dynamic Message	Signs	MC Freeway Management Center	r (BA roadway dynamic signage status
	MCDOT Dynamic Message	Signs	MCDOT CV Roadside Equipment	roadway dynamic signage status
L	MCDOT Dynamic Message	Signs	MCDOT CV Roadside Equipment	vehicle signage local data
	MCDOT CV Roadside Equi	ipment	MCDOT Dynamic Message Signs	s roadway dynamic signage data

Sta	andards Issues	Information Flow Tripl	es	
		O Elements	3	
	Source	Destination	Information Flow	^
	Traffic Management Center	ITS Roadway Equipment	roadway dynamic signage data	
	Traffic Management Center	ITS Roadway Equipment	lane management control	
	Traffic Management Center	ITS Roadway Equipment	variable speed limit control	
	Maint and Constr Management Cente	ITS Roadway Equipment	roadway dynamic signage data	-
	ITS Roadway Equipment	Traffic Management Center	roadway dynamic signage status	
	ITS Roadway Equipment	Traffic Management Center	variable speed limit status	
	ITS Roadway Equipment	Maint and Constr Management Cente	roadway dynamic signage status	

Issues

The Issues grid shows the gaps or issues with the use of standards in the selected interfaces. Issues come in two types: Gaps, which are issues where some requirement of the triple is not met by the standard or collection of standards in the solution, or Overlaps, which are issues where multiple standards exist to serve the solution. This grid shows the severity of the solution from Exemplary, None, Low, Medium, High, or Ultra for "ultra-serious" issues.

				Issues			
In My Project 🖌	Ignore	Severity	Name /	Туре	Description	User Defined	More
		Low	Accuracy of data	ITS Info Gap	The standard is missing accuracy		Details
		High	Application specification not defined	ITS Info Gap	The logic, performance, and application		Details
\checkmark		Low	Data may not be fully defined (low)	ITS Info Gap	The information flow is unclear as to what		Details
		High	Data not defined (high)	ITS Info Gap	Required data elements are not defined.		Details
\checkmark		Low	Data not defined in standard format	ITS Info Gap	The definition of data concepts should		Details
		Medium	Data not fully defined (medium)	ITS Info Gap	Some of the data elements for this		Details
\checkmark		Ultra	Data profile not defined	Data Profile Gap	Performance, functionality, and the		Details
		Medium	Dialogs are not fully defined (medium)	Facility Layer Gap	The specific dialogs for exchanging this data		Details
		High	Dialogs not defined (high)	Facility Layer Gap	Dialogs are not defined for this information		Details
		High	Draft not available (Critical)	Standardization Gap	The standards development organization has		Details
		Low	Guidance document under development	Standardization Gap	This recommended practice on how to use		Details

You can use the filters to change how the information is sorted and displayed. For instance, you can use the In My Project filter to show the other Issues from the communications view of ARC-IT that have not been assigned to any of the standards in your project. The Issues tab on the Communications Solution and Profile details screen shows which issues are mapped to each solution or profile. Issues can also be assigned at the Standard level.

Communications Solutions use the Issues and Gaps to determine which solutions are most appropriate and 'ready' for deployment. Now users can customize those calculations by clicking 'Ignore' to an issue if they know it will not affect their deployment. The readiness will then be recalculated for the information flow and the service packages that use it.

There is also the option to 'Ignore' the assignment of an issue at the Triple Solution level so that an individual information flow triple may ignore an issue while other similar information flows that have the same communication solution and the same issues may not ignore that issue. You will see the Ignore flag on several screens throughout the Communications view.

Can I create my own issue? Not directly, however, you can edit an existing issue and it will ask if you want to create a User Defined version.

S Issue De	tails	—		\times		
Name:	Accuracy of data not to MCDOTs Standard					
Type:	ITS Info Gap		~		Туре	The steeded is mission
Savarity		_			_	The information flow in
Seventy.	Low	SET-IT				×
Description:	The standard is missing accuracy requirements for some of its result in anomalous behavior.	1	The se Do you	elected A u want t	ARC-IT objec to create a n	t cannot be edited. www.user defined object?
	User Defined					Yes No
	_				on Gap	The standard includes n
						Multiple standards have The performance rules a
	OK	C	ancel			The solution does not d
						The solution does not p
	Medium Sui under development		Stan	uaruizau	on Gap	A draft of the standard
	 Medium Uncertainty about trust re 	vocation	Secu	rity Gap		The mechanisms used to

Click Yes and you will be able to assign your user defined Issue to your user defined communications Solutions.

The Issues are scored based on their severity and then all the issues are added together for a solution in order to determine the solution that is more viable given the relative number and severity of the issues. The table below shows what the terms in the Issue Scoring mean in terms of their suitability or readiness for deployment:

Readiness Name	Scoring Values	Readiness or Suitability Description
Highest	0	Suitable for wide-scale deployment when applied to the triples it
		supports.
High	1-2	A small number of minor issues. For existing deployments, consider addressing issues as needed as part of maintenance or upgrade activities. For new deployments, the solution is likely suitable for wide-scale deployment when applied to the triples it supports, though the noted issues exist which should be considered and a path to addressing them developed, if needed, either as part of design or subsequent maintenance or upgrade activities.

Table 3	Communication	s View Solution	Readiness
Tuble J.	communication	S VIEW JOIUIION	neuuness

Readiness Name	Scoring Values	Readiness or Suitability Description
High- Moderate	3-8	One significant or possibly a couple minor issues. For existing deployments, the chosen solution likely has identified security or management issues not addressed by the communications solution. Deployers should consider additional security measures, such as communications link and physical security as part of these solutions. They should also review the management issues to see if they are relevant to their deployment and would require mitigation. For new deployments, the deployment efforts should consider a path to addressing these issues as a part of their design activities. The solution does not by itself provide a fully secure implementation without additional work.
Moderate	9-11	Two significant or one significant and several minor issues. For existing deployments, the chosen solution is likely deficient in security or management capabilities and the issues should be reviewed and upgrades developed as needed. For new deployments, the solution may be viable for pilots when applied to the triples it supports; such pilot deployments should consider a path to addressing these issues as a part of their design activities. The solution does not provide sufficient interoperability, management, and security to enable proper, full-scale deployment without additional work.
Moderate- Low	12-15	Multiple significant and minor issues. For existing deployments, the chosen solution is likely deficient in security or management capabilities, and the issues should be reviewed and upgrades developed as needed. Some solutions in this category may also be becoming obsolete from an interoperability perspective and if this is the case, then upgrades should be planned as soon as possible. For new deployments, the solution may be viable for pilots when applied to the triples it supports; such pilot deployments should consider a path to addressing these issues as a part of their design activities. The solution does not provide sufficient interoperability, management, and security to enable proper, full-scale deployment without additional work.
Low	16-31	One serious or several significant issues. This category often includes proprietary or partial solutions. The communications solution may fail to provide even a base level of interoperability and security. Consider alternative solutions or define specific revisions or upgrades that would provide a level of interoperability or security that are needed for the deployment.

Readiness Name	Scoring Values	Readiness or Suitability Description
Lowest	32+	Many serious issues. This category includes solutions that have not been standardized, or do not have a basic level of interoperability or
		security. Consider selecting a different communications solution or if this is not possible (e.g., a pilot of a new application that has not been standardized), take additional measures to provide an acceptable level of security or interoperability.

Standards Profiles

This lists the profiles that are used to carry out the communications of information in your project or to define the data to be communicated. For each profile, the tables show the short name, the long name, the type, the description of the profile, an editable comment, a checkbox of whether it is User Defined, and a checkbox of whether it is currently included in your project.

Standards

This lists the standards that are included in the ARC-IT database tables and have been assigned to a profile or as an information layer standard to a flow in your project. The table shows the name, the Standards Development Organization (SDO) that developed the standard, the Document number, the Document Title, a Description or abstract of the standard, an indication of the protocol layer that it best fits, and a checkbox indicating if the standard is user defined. Standards can be created in SET-IT in cases where the user knows of a new or different standard that will be needed for a particular interface.

To create a new standard, use the New Item / Standard menu option to bring up the Standards Details form.



You can also start with an existing standard imported from ARC-IT and click Details and start making changes. As soon as you click OK it will inform you that it will create a customized user defined standard.

互 Standar	rd Detail	S					—		×
Full Name:	NTCIP (Object Definitions for D	ynamic Message	e Signs (DMS)					
Name:	NTCIP I	NTCIP Message Sign Objects User Defined							
Description:	This sta (such as	This standard defines SNMP objects (data elements) for monitoring and controlling dynamic message signs (such as variable message signs).							
SDO:	NTCIP			\sim	Document #	t: NTCIF	9 1203		
Type:	Commun	nications		\sim	Stage	Appro	ved	~	
Class:	SDO No	omative		\sim	View	Comm	unications	~	
URL:	http://w	/ww.ntcip.org/library/st	andards/default	.asp?documer	Version	n: 03.05			
Layer(s):	 ✓ ITS Pres ✓ Appl Sess 	Application Information entation Layer lication Layer sion Layer	Layer Tra Da Ph Se	ansport Layer ata Link Layer iysical Layer icurity Plane		1 	letwork La Aanagemei	yer nt Plane	
Abstract:	This put manage and con	blication defines management information include trol information of such	ement information les individual pa a device. The o	on related to a I rameters that re objects are defir	Data Collection present the conned_using sev	n and Mor onfiguratio eral ASN.	nitoring dev n, status, 1 Macros ti	rice. DCM	
Issues:	*	e		Assignmer	nt Notes				
Contents									
Data Dic	ctionary:	Fully \sim	Messages:	Fully	~ D	ialogs:	Fully	\sim	
Error Cor	nditions:	Fully \sim	Performance:	Mostly	∼ Fund	ctional:	Fully	~	
Test Proc	Procedures: Fully V Test PICS: Fully V Test Matrix: Fully V								
Form Source: Grid - Standards OK Cancel									

Once the user defined standard is created you will then be able to come back to the Definitions menus and use the "Profiles" and "Solutions" forms to assign that standard to a profile/solution.

Physical Interconnects (from Physical View)

This lists the physical interconnects from the physical view and their characteristics.

Assumptions and Constraints (from Physical View)

This lists the assumptions and constraints for the project. This table can be edited in any view but it is shared across the physical and enterprise views. The results can be output as a table or included as a section in your project's Concept of Operations (ConOps) document.

Comm View Definitions Grid Features

The Definitions menu in the Communications View works similarly to the grids in the Physical or Enterprise view.

• You can sort the tables by clicking the top column.



- You can click the right corner of the column heading to bring up the filter menu and choose to filter on a particular value or values. Use the Apply, Clear, or Cancel buttons as you would on the other views.
- Much of the information in the Communications View tables is read-only as it is largely based on ARC-IT, but as you add rows or customize the Details forms to create your own Profiles, your own unique Standards, or your own custom mappings of Flows to Profiles in the Triples table you will see the User Defined checkbox checked.

Other Diagram and Architecture Tools

This section describes how to use other tools, either on the diagrams or from the ribbon.

Creating New Items from the Ribbon

The Diagram ribbon contains an area called **New** that includes 2 choices: Diagram and Item. New Diagram has been described in "<u>Create a New Physical Diagram</u>" and "<u>Create a New Enterprise</u> <u>Diagram</u>" above.



In the Physical View, The New / Item button allows you to create a new:

- Service Package,
- Stakeholder,
- Element,
- Status Value,
- Physical Object,
- Functional Object,
- Information Flow,
- Requirement,
- Standard, or
- Need

In the Enterprise View, the **New / Item** button allows you to create a new:

- Service Package,
- Stakeholder,
- Element,
- Status Value,
- Agreement,
- Expectation, or
- Role

In the Communications View, the **New / Item** button allows you to create a new:

- Communications Profile,
- Data Profile,
- Standard,
- Standard Bundle, or
- Solution

Creating a New Service Package

For **Service Packages**: you can create a new Service Package and then use that Service Package as the basis for new diagrams. That new Service Package can also be used to associate new operational Scenarios and sequences that will go into your Concept of Operations (ConOps).

To Create a New Service Package, select the Item button and Service Package from the pull-down. Alternatively, you can select <New Service Package> from the Diagrams window when you use the Service Packages pull-down.

Service P	ackage Details		—		×
Name:	Local Application	Name			
Description:	A text description You can use the	of the new application (aka Service Package). This brief description will appear whenever you include a Layer 2 drawing for the Service pull-down below to assign it to one of the pre-defined types and groups used to categorize the ARC-IT service packages.	Package in your Con	Ops.	
Abbreviation:	LN01				
	Туре:	Convenience Informational Mobility Safety Environmental ✓ Management Regulatory Support			
	Group:	Border Management Incident Management Sustainable Travel Traveler Infon Commercial Vehicle Operations Maintenance and Construction Traffic Management V2I Safety Core Services Parking Management Traffic Network V2V Safety Data Management Public Safety Traffic Signals Vehicle Safety Electronic Payment Road Weather Transit Vehicle Safety Freight Security Transit Safety Transit Safety			
	Service Area:	Support V			
	Parent SP:	₩			
Fam Courses	law Canvias Part		OK	Cancel	
Form Source: I	iew service Pack	aye			

As shown in the figure above you give the new service package a name, a text description that will appear in output reports and the ConOps. You can then use the pull-downs to associate this new service package with one of the Types and Groups used to categorize ARC-IT service packages, formerly CVRIA applications.

Use the Service Packages report to list the service packages along with their type, group, name, descriptions, and the diagrams with which they are associated.

Once a service package diagram has been customized the Service Package Details window also shows the overall readiness based on all of the issues associated with the information flows between the different elements and their assigned communications solutions.

Then, as shown in the screenshot below, the Worst Readiness Score reflects the lowest level or worst level of readiness is listed along with the list of information flows and their issues that are driving that so-called Worst Readiness.

Service P	Package Details								- 🗆	×
Name:	Security and Credentials Management	nt							🗹 User Define	d
Description:	cription: This service package is used to ensure trusted communications between mobile devices and other mobile devices or roadside devices and protect data they handle from unauthorized access. The service package grants trust credentials to qualified mobile devices and infrastructure devices in the Connected Vehicle Environment so that those devices may be considered trusted by other devices that receive trust credentials from the SCM service package. The service package allows credentials to be requested and revoked and secures the exchange of trust credentials between paties, so that no other party can intercept and use those credentials lifetimately. The service package provides security to the transmissions between connected devices, ensuing authenticity and integrity of the transmissions. Additional security features include privacy protection, authorization and privilege class definition, as well as non-repudiation of origin.									
Abbreviation:	SU08 Se	ervice Area: Supp	ort		Parent SP: S	ecurity and	Credentials Mana	gement		\sim
Туре:	✓ Support Management Convenience Mobility Environmental Regulatory Informational Safety	đ								
Group:	Group: Croe Services Public Safety V2V Safety Security Border Management Custainable Travel Traffic Management Fraffic Network Electronic Payment Traffic Signals Freight Naintenance and Construction V2I Safety V2V Safety									
				Worst Readiness	Issues					
	Source		Destination		Flow	Ignore	Issue Severity	Issue		
	Equipped Vehicles		Security Credentials Ma	nagement System	misbehavior report		Medium	Performance not fully de	ined (medium)	
	Equipped Vehicles		Security Credentials Ma	nagement System	misbehavior report		Medium	Security inadequate	inod (modium)	
	MC Freeway Management Cent	ter (BASIL/FINCH)	Security Credentials Ma	nagement System	misbehavior report		Medium	Security inadequate	inea (meaium)	-
	MCDOT CV Roadside Equipme	ent	Security Credentials Ma	nagement System	misbehavior report		Medium	Performance not fully det	ined (medium)	
	MCDOT CV Roadside Equipme	ent	Security Credentials Ma	nagement System	misbehavior report		Medium	Security inadequate	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	
	MCDPW GARLIC Information System		Security Credentials Ma	urity Credentials Management System misbehavior report Medium Performan		Performance not fully def	ined (medium)			
	MCDPW GARLIC Information S	System	Security Credentials Ma	nagement System	misbehavior report		Medium	Security inadequate		
Form Source: (Grid - Service Package Instances								DK Car	ncel

In other words, why is this service currently 'impractical'? It's because of these flows and the issues that they currently have. If you're working on a research project it is likely that you already are aware of those issues. You may also need to use this information in order to develop work arounds or some other risk mitigation strategy in order to have these interfaces supporting your project's service.

You can use the 'Ignore' flag to ignore those Issues and see if that changes the overall Readiness value for the service package.

Creating a New Stakeholder

For **Stakeholders**: you can create individual stakeholders – the agencies, organizations, or persons that own or operate a connected vehicle element. You can also create a *group* of stakeholders that may have a joint role with an element, e.g., a joint operations center. First, create the individual stakeholders that will be members of that group. Then you can create a new stakeholder and press the "group" button and select the member stakeholders for that group. Now that stakeholder group can be assigned roles with respect to elements just like individual stakeholders.

互 Stakehold	ler Details	—		×						
Name: Description: Auto-Populate	Marinara County Department of Transportation Marinara County Department of Transportation (MCDQT) operates the freeway and state roads within the county. Activities are coordinated through the Freeway Management Center (FMC), located in downtown Saucelito.									
	Stakeholder Group Group(s) MCDOT and State Highway Patrol									

You can also turn a 'regular' stakeholder into a group later if you decide it needs to be divided up. However, if it is already part of a group, as indicated in the example above, then it cannot be turned into a group. You cannot have groups of groups.

TIP: Use Control-t as a short-cut to create a new stakeholder

Creating a New Element

There are variations of the Element Details form depending on the Type of element – either a system element, environmental element, or a human element.

Creating a New System Element

This is the same screen as on the diagram and creating a new element from Shape Properties or creating a new element from the left menu.

互 Element 🛛	Details	—		×				
Name:	State Flood Monitors							
Description: <u>Auto-Populate</u>	(Flood Monitoring System) In areas prone to flooding extra sensors can be used to detect when wa above certain configurable thresholds. Alarms can also be generated under certain rapidly changin	ter levels ; g conditio	are 🔨					
	Status: Project ~ Abbreviation: SFM							
	Type: System V Parent Element:	~						
	Class: Field V Domain: Transportation	~						
	Physical Object(s) Related All		•					
	Border Inspection System Commercial Vehicle Check Equipment Connected Vehicle Roadside Equipment Electric Charging Station Field Maintenance Equipment Food Monitoring System Freight Consolidation Station Intermodal Terminal		~					
	Stakeholder Role Status							
	Manages Project State Highway Authority Owns Project							
Form Source: N	ew Element	(Cancel					

Note that some objects will automatically be checked but this will happen behind the scenes. For instance, if Center or Field are selected for the class and a subsystem (vs a terminator that represent objects outside the boundary of ITS) is chosen by the user then the Center and Field physical objects will automatically be mapped to the new element in order for the new element to automatically inherit the functionality of all center and field devices, accordingly. Also, the ITS Object physical object will automatically be checked when any ITS subsystem physical object is selected so that functionality common to all ITS centers and devices is included. Now you can choose the other Physical Objects that you need to associate with this element. Again, this will be happening behind the scenes so you won't see these extra generic physical objects.

Creating a New Human Element

Human elements are a little different. Sometimes physical view diagrams will show a human operator like a system operator, driver, or traveler.

When we create a human type of element, we can still assign a stakeholder to it – say an employer, or a higher-level organization. In the example below, "Metro Taxi Drivers," is mapped as a Driver that will appear as operators of vehicle onboard equipment and has a stakeholder assigned called "Metro Taxi" to show the company that manages the drivers.

互 Element [Details	-		×
Name: Description: <u>Auto-Populate</u>	Metro Taxi Drivers (Driver) The 'Driver' represents the person that operates a vehicle on the roadway. Included are oper private, transit, commercial, and emergency vehicles where the interactions are not particular to the ty (e.g., interactions supporting vehicle safety applications). The Driver originates driver requests and re	ators o pe of v ceives	f vehicle driver	
	Status: Project Abbreviation: RAD Type: Human Parent Element: V		Hyperlink	
	Physical Object(s) Driver Archived Data Administrator Commercial Vehicle Administrator Commercial Vehicle Driver Commercial Vehicle Inspector Credentials Management System Operator Cyclist Data Distribution System Operator Emergency Personnel		~	
	Stakeholder Status Metro Taxi VProject			
Form Source: S	OK	(Cancel	

TIP: if you leave the stakeholder blank SET-IT will automatically create a stakeholder with the same name as the Human element. This may be useful if you want to show the stakeholders that operate

the systems and then use the Enterprise view to show how they are related to other stakeholders in your project.

Creating a New Environment Element

Environment elements are different, also. Sometimes physical view diagrams will show an environmental terminator like a potential obstacle, the roadway environment, vehicles in traffic, or vulnerable road users – pedestrians, wheelchair-bound travelers, etc. As with other elements, start with a Name, use the Type pull-down, and select Environment. You will need to acknowledge that you don't want the physical objects that were automatically assigned when it thought you were creating a system element. Then choose the Class. When we create an environmental type of element, we are limited to 3 classes – field, personal or vehicle.

互 Element 🛛	Details				—		×
Name: Description: <u>Auto-Populate</u>	Items on the Should	der e able to detect items suc t to the edge of the roadw	h as debris, trees, posts, f vay.	ences, etc., that may	y pose a hazard if	the]
	Status: Type: Class: Physical Object(s) Potential Obst Roadway Env	Project Environment Field Field Personal Vehicle actes vironment	Abbrevial Parent Elem	tion: IOTS	~	Hyperlink	
	*			Role Manages Owns	Status Project Project		

TIP: assigning stakeholders to environmental terminators is not necessary. Leave it blank.

Creating a New Status Value

Status refers to the relative deployment timeframe of an element, flow, resource, agreement, etc.

SET-IT includes basic status of "Existing", "Project", or "Future". "Project" is the default value which is to say the default value of things is that they are part of project currently being defined. Other status values may be needed to distinguish different phases or future projects.

Use the Status Value Details screen to give the new status value a name (up to 25 characters) and a description to explain what's unique about this status. Then decide if this should be the Default Status with the checkbox and use the Order field to set the order of this.

互 Status V	/alue Details			×
Name:	Future +25]
Description:	What will happen in 25 years - beyond the project horizon and r boundary of the region's planning horizon.	ight at the	9	
	Default Status Order: 4]
	ОК	C	Cancel	
Form Source:	New Status Value			

There are 8 possible values but one is always reserved for Not Applicable and its value is locked at 32767 (a really large number that happens to correspond with the Not Planned status in RAD-IT). Use the Order field to determine where each of the other 7 status values fall. This is how you can tell SET-IT whether Legacy comes before or after Existing or if Project comes before or after Future.

			Status Values		
	Order	Name	Description	Default	More
►	1	Existing			Details
	2	Project			Details
	3	Future			Details
	4	Future +25	What will happen in 25 years - beyond the project horizon and right at the boundary of the region's		Details
	32767	Not Applicable			Details
*					

This is used in the diagrams to encode the flows, elements, and functional objects within the elements, either with solid/dashed patters or with grey scale coloring for the functional objects.

Creating a New Physical Object

ARC-IT provides a vast array of physical objects for connected vehicle and other intelligent transportation system objects as well as objects that interface with the transportation objects.

Sometimes, however, a project may need to go beyond ARC-IT and define their own physical objects. Use this menu to create the Physical Object and then it can be mapped to elements of the project.

To Create a New Physical Object, select the Item button and Physical Object from the pull-down.

S Physical C	bject Details	—		×					
Name: Description: Auto-Populate	Airport Operations Center This center/centre (adapted from a European project) allows connected vehicle projects to interface with airports to show the coordination and system exchanges needed to support traveler information and mobility applications in and around an airport.								
	User Defined		<u>Hyperlink</u>	1					
	Type: System ~ Class: Center ~								
Form Source: N	OK ew PObject		Cancel						

As shown above, use the Physical Object Details screen to enter a Name and a Description for this object. Use the pull-downs to select the Type (Environment, Human, Other System, or System) and Class (ITS (super-class), Center, Field, Personal, Support, or Vehicle). The User Defined flag will automatically be set since this is not something previously defined by ARC-IT.

Optionally, you can use the "Hyperlink" button to use a hyperlink as a reference to further information about this object. See <u>Add a Hyperlink</u> for details.

If you choose to create an Environment type object the Class pull-down will be adjusted so you can only select from the 3 classes for which an environmental terminator would apply – field, personal, or vehicle.

Creating a New Functional Object

Functional Objects are shown as the smaller boxes within the physical objects on the drawings. They define the functionality that is required for each physical object to support one or more ITS or connected vehicle service packages. As with physical objects described above, ARC-IT comes with a long list of functional objects that were defined to support the service packages that made up the
original reference architecture. Sometimes, a project may have a need to define a unique piece of functionality and you can support that by creating your own "Functional Object" that can then be assigned to elements of your project.

Again, use the menubar to select "**New / Item / Functional Object**" to bring up the Functional Object Details form:

5 Functiona	Object Details	—		×				
Name:	Airport Ground Coordination							
Description: Auto-Populate	Description: This functional object coordinates airport activities with local transportation agencies - sharing information on road blockages, security incidents, dynamic message sign data, etc.							
	User Defined		Hyperlink					
	Physical Airport Operations Center							
	Object:							
	OK		Canaal					
Form Source: N	ew Functional Object		Cancel					

As shown above, use the Functional Object Details screen to enter a Name and a Description for this object. Use the pull-down to assign the Physical Object for this functional object (this is where the functionality is housed. The list shown will include ARC-IT as well as new user defined physical objects). The User Defined flag will automatically be set since this is not something previously defined by ARC-IT.

Behind the scenes as a functional object is added to a physical object SET-IT will adjust the Kind of physical object from a Terminator (no functionality defined) to an ITS Subsystem (functionality defined). If a user removes all of the functional objects mapped to a particular physical object, then SET-IT will change the Kind back to a terminator. This is to support the inclusion of generic functions like the ITS and Center/Field functions that are common among other ITS subsystem elements.

Optionally, you can use the "Hyperlink" button to use a hyperlink as a reference to further information about this object. See <u>Add a Hyperlink</u> for details.

Creating a New Information Flow

For Flows: Selecting New / Information Flow, brings up a blank **Information Flow Details** window. This allows you to decide on every aspect of that flow: its name, description, source, destination, and

SET-IT Help

all of the flow characteristics. SET-IT will pre-populate default values for the flow characteristics based on the physical objects in the source and destination.

5 Informatio	n Flow Details	– 🗆 X
Name:	flood monitoring system data	User Defined
Alias:	FLOOD-1	Apply Alias
Description: Auto-Populate	This flow is to share information between controlling centers about the status of the flood control systems. This would include status of the center's field equipment with loc information.	cation and time stamps for the
Type:	System V	<u>Hyperlink</u>
	Encryption: True Latency Low V Initiator:	Source \lor
	Authenticability: True Viang FIPS Time Context: Recent V Acknowledgment	True 🗸
	Cardinality: Unicast V Spatial Context: Regional V Interoperability	Regional \checkmark
	Confidentiality: Moderate V Integrity: Moderate V Availability: Moderate Orderate Noderate No	v Ito default by SET-IT.
	Source Physical Object Destination Physical Object Status DDS WAIDS RCU ICE Replaces Maint and Constr Management Center Traffic Management Center Project □ □ □ * Maint and Constr Management Center Maint and Constr Management Center Project □ □ □	
	Source Functional Objects: Destination Functional Objects TMC Environmental Monitoring MCM Environmental Information Processing TMC Advanced Rail Crossing Management MCM Automated Treatment System Control TMC Barrier System Management MCM Environmental Information Collection	^ ~
Form Source: N	w Row	OK Cancel

Note that the name of a flow cannot contain a parenthesis. If an Alias is used (see below) this would create a conflict when it generates outputs because the original flow name will be listed in parentheses.

You can use the radio buttons below the description to choose either Element or Physical Object. If you selected **Element** with the radio button you will choose from a list of Elements already defined in your project inventory. If you selected **Physical Object** with the radio button you will choose from a list of all of the physical objects from the ARC-IT database along with user defined physical objects. As you select the source and destination physical objects the lower part of the screen will then list the available functional objects, if applicable for that chosen physical object. If the selected physical object is a 'terminator' on the edge of ITS boundary with no transportation-specific functionality, then it will not have any functional objects.

Once the source and destination are selected then you assign all of the other flow characteristics and select OK. This flow will now be available when you are creating interfaces on your diagrams. It will also appear in the list of Information Flows on the Definitions menu.

Optionally, you can use the "Hyperlink" button to use a hyperlink as a reference to further information about this flow. See <u>Add a Hyperlink</u> for details.

You can also add and apply an **Alias** for the flow when you want that alias to be used on your diagrams and outputs. A flow alias is a way to use a customized name for an information flow while

retaining the mappings to the ARC-IT reference model for that flow. For example, if you are doing a connected vehicle project to collect probe data from passing vehicles for traffic monitoring purposes you may want to just show the term "BSM" for the basic safety message defined in the SAE 2735 standard rather than the full name of the ARC-IT information flow, "vehicle location and motion for surveillance". It isn't common for a user defined flow to also have an alias.

- Alias names cannot contain a parenthesis. This would create a conflict when it generates outputs because the original flow name will be listed in parentheses.

NOTE: If you change the characteristics for a user defined physical object (PObject) flow triple then any element triples using that same PObject flow triple need to reflect those characteristic changes and vice versa. Changes to certain characteristics in the information flows can spawn the selection of different communications solutions so these need to be kept in sync.

Creating a New Requirement

In order to create a new requirement, click New Item and Requirement from the menu. Enter a number – use a leading 0 to help when sorting as in 01, 02, 03, etc. Enter the text of the requirement and assign or trace it to a Need in the Supports Need(s) area.

Next use the Source pull-down to select from the existing list of sources. If you don't see your source, there click <New Source> and enter the name of the source in the New Requirement Source dialog box

S New Requirement Source	×
Please enter a new source name:	
User Dialogue	
OK Cancel	

Next select one of the 4 verification methods to help with your test planning – inspection, analysis, demonstration, or test.

Next, select a functional object to which this requirement belongs. As you do this the Element area will open up and you can select which element to assign it to if there is a match between the element and functional objects.

Optionally, enter a comment then click OK.

互 Requirem	nent Details		- 🗆	×							
Number:	08										
Requirement:	The Maint and Constru	Maint and Construction Monitoring system shall categorize the status of the equipment being monitored by severity of the issue.									
	User Defined	ser Defined Hyperlink									
	Supports Need(s):										
	MC09: Infrastructur	rre Monitoring (Copy 1): 01									
	Source:	User Dialogue V Creation Date:									
	Verification:	Demonstration V Last Update Date:									
	Functional Object	MCM Infrastructure Monitoring \sim									
	Comment:		0								
	Include	Element Functional Object									
		 MCM Infrastructure Monitor 	ring								
	*										
	<		>								
		ОК	Cancel								
Form Source: N	lew Requirement										

Creating a New Physical Standard

In the Physical View ARC-IT lists standards that apply to physical or functional objects. These standards govern the manufacture, configuration of a physical hardware or of the functionality it contains. SET-IT's New Item menu can be used to create a new user defined standard in case the standard your project needs to access hasn't been defined yet in ARC-IT.

See Creating a New Standard in the communications view section for details.

What is the difference between Physical Standards and Communications Standards? Within ARC-IT, communications standards include all standards and specifications that make up part of the communications 'stack', as defined in the <u>communications viewpoint</u>. That is, any standards dealing with signaling (e.g., Ethernet), networking and transport (e.g., TCP/IP), middleware (e.g., HTTPS), cybersecurity (e.g. IETF X.509) and application layer specifications (e.g., GTFS). Physical standards on the other hand are more concerned with electrical, structural and environmental concerns (power, cabinets, temperature ranges etc.) of a particular device or type of device, such as a traffic signal controller, e.g., ITE ATC 5301.

Creating a New Need

Needs are statements describing a high-level identification of user needs and system capabilities in terms that all project stakeholders can understand, agree on, and use to form a shared

understanding by system owners, operators, maintainers, and developers on the who, what, why, where, and how of the system.

SET-IT includes a set of needs for each Service Package imported from the ARC-IT reference architecture that provide a starting point. You can also use the New / Item menu to create a new need.

S Need Details							—		×
Need:	OurTown DOT needs to understand the accurate and current state of all of its infrastructure. Need:								
Service Package:	M	C09:Infrastructure Monitoring			~ 🗹	User Defined	Hyperi	nk	
	/ *	Need Area MC09: Infrastructure Monitoring (Copy 1)	Need # 8	Priority High	Comment				
	<							>]
Fame Second New N					[ОК	С	ancel	

Fill in the text of the Need, use the pull-down to select a Service Package to connect it to one of the services in your project. Then use the Need Area grid to assign it to a Need Area (sometimes this is the same as the service package but not always), give it a Need #, select a priority, and optionally enter a comment, perhaps to justify this particular need for your project.

The Need will be assigned to the Needs Grid where you can edit it along with the other needs. See the <u>Needs</u> section for more information.

If you edit a Need that came from ARC-IT, then SET-IT will turn it into a User Defined need. You can then edit it and use it as you choose. SET-IT will automatically retain the requirements that were mapped to that original need from ARC-IT.

Creating a New Agreement, Expectation, or Role

For the Enterprise View, the New / Item menu has choices that include adding relationships:

- Agreement
- Expectation
- Role

In each case another window will open allowing you to provide the name, description, and the other details appropriate for that item.

The **New / Agreements** and **New / Expectations** windows allow you to create a new type of agreement or stakeholder expectation that may not have been defined by ARC-IT. This window allows you to specify the name of the agreement, give it a description, identify the type, select the

stakeholders involved, and check whether this is bi-directional or not. If not, then the stakeholder on the left will be considered the source or initiator of the agreement or expectation.

The New / Roles window allows you to create a new type of role that a stakeholder can play with respect to a system element. ARC-IT already defines 12 different roles listed here but you may have a need to add to that list.

See Creating a Role for the list of ARC-IT Defined Roles

Creating a New Communications or Data Profile

The communications view allows you to create new communications or data profiles. Comm Profiles are sets of standards that comprise the layered communications stacks for a sender and receiver to exchange information. A data profile includes protocols at the ITS Information (or ITS Application Entity), Facilities, Management and/or Security layers.

ARC-IT defines 55 communications profiles and 88 data profiles but there may be occasions when a unique situation is defined and a unique user-defined profile is required.



Use the menubar to select Item and Communications or Data Profile when you are in the Communications View. The window will ask for a Short Name, a long name, a text description, and an optional comment.

互 Data Pr	ofile Details					— C	
Name:	Test Data 1					User	Defined
Full Name: Description:	me: Test Data Profile 1						
Region:	AU I			US	CA		
Standar	ds	Issu	ies	Informatio	n Flow Triples		
ITS Info	ormation		Management		Security	Facilities	
Application Specific CEN 16157-2 DATEX for TM&I ASTM Archiving Traffic Data CEN 16157-3 DATEX for TM&I ASTM Metadata to support ADMS CEN 16157-4 DATEX for TM&I Bundle: ADMS CEN 16157-5 DATEX for TM&I Bundle: DATEX CEN 16157-5 DATEX for TM&I Bundle: ISO Probe Data CEN 16157-6 DATEX for TM&I CEN 12896-1: Transmodel Common Concepts CEN 16614-2 Public Trans - NeT CEN 12896-2: Transmodel Public Transport Network CEN 17380 Controlled Zone Mar CEN 12896-3: Transmodel Operations monitoring and control ETSI 101 556-1 App: EV Chargin CEN 12896-5: Transmodel Passenger Information ETSI 101 556-3 App: EV Energy CEN 15213-4 After-theft systems - long range comms ETSI 102 638 ITS BSA CEN 15531-3 Public Trans - SIRI Functional interfaces General Transit Feed Specification CEN 15531-5 Public Trans - SIRI Situation Xchange GTFS Realtime CEN 16122 eCall - Op Reqs for 3rd party Support HIDO DSRC 12V Downlink Data Fo CEN 16157-1 DATEX for TM&I - Context & Frmwrk IEEE 1512.0 Incident Mgmt - Co					TEX for TM&I - Situa TEX for TM&I - VMS TEX for TM&I - M/E TEX for TM&I - Parki slic Trans - NeTEx - T slic Trans - NeTEx - T olled Zone Managen AU) pp: EV Charging Sp pp: EV Energy Res BSA J&AR Common Data eed Specification Downlink Data Format Jent Mgmt - Common	tion Public Publicatic Data Pub ng Public Timetables ares Xcha nent ot ervation Dict at	
Form Source	: New Profile					ОК	Cancel

Fill-in the fields of name, full name, description, and region applicability. Then use the Standards tabs to select the standards that will be used and mapped at each layer.

When you say OK a new user defined row is added to the Comm or Data Profiles grid on the Definitions menu for Communications View. This new profile is now available to be selected when you create a user defined Solution.

Creating a New Standard

In the Communications View ARC-IT lists standards that apply to the movement of data through the physical view's information flows as well as the standards for the various layers of the

communications stack. SET-IT's New Item menu can be used to create a new user defined standard in case the standard your project needs to access hasn't been defined yet in ARC-IT.

In the physical view, standards can also be defined and applied to physical objects themselves and, in some cases, to specific functional objects within those physical objects. The process of defining a new physical standard or a communications standard works the same way. When you are in either Communications or Physical View use the New Item menu and select Standard.

From either view, clicking "Standard" will cause a new Standard Details form to open. What you see will depend on whether you were in Physical or Communications view. Certain fields will only appear if you are in Communications view (shown below).

互 Standard	etails — 🗆	×
Full Name:		
Name:	User Defined	
Description:		
SDO:	V Document #:	
Type:	✓ Stage: Unknown ✓	
Class:	View: V	
URL:	Version:	
Layer(s):	ITS Application Information Layer Transport Layer Network Layer Presentation Layer Data Link Layer Management Plane Application Layer Physical Layer Security Plane	
Abstract:		
lssues:	Issue Assignment Notes	
Contents		
Data Dictio	ry: Unknown ~ Messages: Unknown ~ Dialogs: Unknown ~	
Error Condi	ns: Unknown v Performance: Unknown v Functional: Unknown v	
Test Proced	es: Unknown V Test PICS: Unknown V Test Matrix: Unknown V	
Form Source: N	Standard OK Car	ncel

From here you can fill in as much information as you know – Name (a shorter name by which the standard is known, e.g. Wi-Fi vs IEEE 802.11ax, Title (official name from the organization), Document

#, SDO or Standards Development Organization that publishes and maintains the standard, a brief description of the standard perhaps pulled from its abstract, a comment about why this standard is being used on your project, and then Type.

The following Types are available:

- Communications
- Hardware
- Meta
- Other
- Testing

The View can also be set to Physical, Communications, or Both. Clicking Physical will make the communications view layers area read-only.

SET-IT Help	

写 Standar	rd Detail	S					—		×
Full Name:	Standar	d for the Design and C	onstruction of G	antries in the U	lse of Dyna	mic Messag	ge Signs		
Name:	DMS Ga	IS Gantry Standard							
Description:	This star design a	This standard provides standard specifications on materials, dimensions, other controlling guidelines for the design and construction of gantries used in over-the-road installations of dynamic message signs (DMS).							
SDO:	NEMA			\sim	Documer	nt #: D-11	1-1		
Type:	Hardwa	re		\sim	Sta	age: Unk	nown	~	
Class:	SDO No	omative		\neg ~	V	iew: Phy	sical	~	
URL:					Vers	sion: 2.2			
Layer(s): Abstract:	ITS Pres Appl Sess This star	Application Information entation Layer sion Layer sion Layer ndard includes the obje	Layer Tr Di Ph Se ects and rules fo	ansport Layer ata Link Layer iysical Layer ecurity Plane r construction	and inspect	ion of DMS	Network Lay Managemen Gantries.	er t Plane	
Issues:	*	e		Assignme	ent Notes				
Contents									
Data Dic	ctionary:	Unknown ~	Messages:	Unknown	\sim	Dialogs:	Unknown	\sim	
Error Con	nditions:	Unknown ~	Performance:	Unknown	~ F	unctional:	Unknown	\sim	
Test Proc	edures:	Unknown ~	Test PICS:	Unknown	∼ Te	est Matrix:	Unknown	\sim	
Form Source:	: New Sta	ndard					OK	Can	icel

Creating a Custom SDO:

As you create your custom standard and you look through the Standards Development Organizations (SDOs) you may not find the one you need and want to create your own. Simply type out the name of your SDO in the SDO field and a Pop-Up will ask if you want to create a new SDO.

SDO:	OurCo Standard Writer		V Document #:	
Type:		SET-IT		\times
Class:				
URL:			The specified SDO does not exist in the database. Do you want to create a new SDO?	
Layer(s):	ITS Application Info			
	Application Layer		<u>Y</u> es <u>N</u> o	

When you click Yes, SET-IT will add your SDO to the database and it can be assigned to other user defined standards.

Assigning a New Standard

Map the new physical standard to Physical and Functional Objects on the Physical Objects Standards grid. Click the In My Project filter and click False and Apply to include all rows, not just the ones in your project currently. This makes a New row available at the bottom of the grid. Go all the way to the bottom of the grid and click in the new (*) row.

		Traffic Management Center	TMC Reversible Lane Management	NEMA TS 8 Cyber and Physical Security		L	
		Traffic Management Center	TMC Road Weather Micro-Prediction	DMC Control	\sim		
	Image: A start of the start	Traffic Management Center	TMC Roadway Warning	DMS Gantry			
		Traffic Management Center	TMC Safeguard System Management	FIPS 140-2	-		
		Traffic Management Center	TMC Signal Control	ISO 10992 Nomadic Devices for ITS	-		
		Traffic Management Center	TMC Signal Enforcement	ISO 15623 Fwd Collision Performance	_		
		Traffic Management Center	TMC Speed Warning	ISO 21217 Architecture		F	
	<u> </u>	Traffic Management Center	TMC Standard Pail Crossing	ISO 22179 Full Speed ACC Performance		F	
		Traffic Management Center	TMC Traffic Cap Acciet	ISO 24014-2 Transit - Fare Practices		Þ	_
		Traffic Management Center	THE THE GAP ASSIST	ISO 24100 Probe Vehicle Data Protection	-	₽	_
		Traffic Management Center	TMC Traffic Information Dissemination	ITE ATC	-	Þ	
		Traffic Management Center	TMC Traffic Metering	ITE ATC API	-		
		Traffic Management Center	TMC Variable Speed Limits	ITE ATC ITS Cabinet	-		
		Traffic Management Center	TMC Work Zone Traffic Management	ITE ATC Madel 2070	- ¥		
1		ITS Roadway Equipment	Roadway Traffic Information	DMS Gantry		b	~
*						b	~

Use the pull-downs to select the physical object, functional object, and standard. You should be able to find your new standard in the list of standards. Once you enter the new row the standard is now in your grid.

	Physical Objects Standards							
In My Project	Physical Object	Functional Object	Standard	User Defined	More			
✓	ITS Roadway Equipment	Roadway Traffic Information Dissemination	DMS Gantry Standard		Details			
	ITS Object	ITS Security Support	FIPS 140-2		Details			
	ITS Object	ITS Communications Support	ISO 21217 Architecture		Details			

You can select "Unspecified" for Functional Object if you want this to apply to any element that is mapped to the Physical Object.

From here you can click Details to change any of the information about the standard. Or you can go to the Elements Standards grid and see that your new standard has been automatically mapped to any elements in your project inventory that match the Physical/Functional Objects of the new standard.

_			
Γ			Elements Standards
	Element	Standard	Comment
	Cellular-Equipped Vehicles	ISO 21217 Architecture	
	Equipped Vehicles	FIPS 140-2	
	Equipped Vehicles	ISO 21217 Architecture	
	MC Field Maintenance Equipment	ISO 21217 Architecture	
	MC Freeway Management Center	FIPS 140-2	
	MC Freeway Management Center	ISO 21217 Architecture	
	MC Freeway Management Center	NEMA TS 8 Cyber and Physical Security	
	MCDOT CV Roadside Equipment	CTI 4001 RSU	
	MCDOT CV Roadside Equipment	FIPS 140-2	
	MCDOT CV Roadside Equipment	ISO 21217 Architecture	
	MCDOT Detectors	ITE ATC ITS Cabinet	
	MCDOT Detectors	NEMA TS 8 Cyber and Physical Security	
	MCDOT Detectors	NEMA TS4 Hardware Standards for DMS	
	MCDOT Dynamic Message Signs	DMS Gantry	
	MCDOT Dynamic Message Signs	ISO 21217 Architecture	

For other types of standards, including Data or Communications, the form will expand to allow you to select the source and destination physical objects and the information flows, i.e., the triples, that apply to this standard.

互 Standar	rd Detail	s					—		×
Full Name:	Specific	ation for the Transmiss	ion of Vehicle S	ignage Data ov	ver Wireless Net	works			
Name:	Vehicle	Signage Data Spec				🗹 User	Defined		
Description:	Defines	the data for the in-veh	icle signage app	lication - focus	ed on work zone	e and othe	r safety e	vents.	
SDO:	ASTM			\sim	Document #:	×0055			
Type:	Commun	nications		\sim	Stage:	Unknov	vn	~	
Class:	SDO Normative View: Communications V								
URL:					Version:	Sb			
Layer(s): ITS Application Information Layer Transport Layer Network Layer Presentation Layer Data Link Layer Management Plane Application Layer Physical Layer Session Layer Security Plane									
lssues:	lssu Diale	e ogs are not fully define	d (medium)	Assignme	ent Notes				
Contents									
Data Dio	ctionary:	Fully ~	Messages:	Partially	∼ Dia	logs: Pa	artially	~	
Error Cor	nditions:	Partially \sim	Performance:	Mostly	 ✓ Functi 	onal: M	ostly	~	
Test Proc	cedures:	Partially \sim	Test PICS:	Partially	√ Test M	latrix: Pa	artially	~	
Form Source:	: New Sta	ndard				0	K	Car	ncel

Once the standard has been created it will be available for selection and mapping to a Communications Profile that will then be, in turn, mapped to a Communications Solution, and then mapped to an information flow triple. See the Communications View for more information.

Creating a New Standard Bundle

Use the form to fill in the full name, a shorter name and a description of the bundle. Then use the pull-downs to select the primary Standards Development Organization (SDO) for this bundle (if they are all from one organization), the Stage of the standard in its life cycle; e.g., approved, draft, etc.; the

type of standards that make up the bundle (Comm, hardware, meta, other, or testing); and the class of standards in the bundle – Normative or Informative. Use the checkboxes to select the Layer or Layers the bundle is part of. Finally, use the rows to select the standards that make up the bundle. Enter numbers in the Order column to indicate how you would like the members of the bundle to be sorted. The Membership Type indicates whether the standard is Required to be in the bundle or whether it is optional or perhaps an alternative way to doing what the bundle is supposed to do. The Required Security and Required Management Standard columns let you indicate what, if any, security or management needs to be in place when the standard is part of this bundle.

Click OK and it will be available in the Communications view.

Creating a New Solution

Communications Solutions are a combination of a Data Profile and a Communications Profile. Click New Item and Solution to bring up a blank Solutions Details form.

5 Solution	Details							—		×
Name: Data Profile: Description: Region: Comm Class:	olution n is used or I-F: S1 molemer	within the U VMPv3/TLS t center-to-fi	S It comb The US: N eld messaor	Comm P bines stand ITCIP Mes e sign com US to: Flow	rofile: dards a sage (munic triples	C-X: Radio Broadcast associated with US: NTCII Sign standards include upp ations The I-F: SNMPv3	P Messa per-layer /TL S sta	User Definer v ge Sign standards andards	đ	
Standards Issues					Informat Faci	ion Flo lities	ow Triples Transport/Networkin	a	Access	
ITS Information Management Security Facilities Transport/Networking Access							nger Inform - long range Functional i Situation Xc imum Data rd party Sup Context & Fr Location Re Situation Public M/E Data P Parking Public Ex - Timetab Ex - Fares X lagement	atic cc nte ha Set po mw sfer dblic atic Publ blica lles cha		
Form Source:	Grid - Solutior	าร					C)K	Cance	ł

Use the pull-downs to select a Data profile and a Communications Profile. If you don't see the profile, you need or if you need to make changes to an existing profile click Cancel and edit or create the profiles you need first.

As you select the Profiles the standards portion of the screen will be populated as will the Issues tab based on the Issues associated with the underlying profile or standards.

You can use the Applied to pull-down to indicate which types of interfaces this solution applies to – flow triples with Data Distribution systems acting as intermediaries, those that don't, or either.

Applied to:	Flow triples without Data Distribution intermediaries $~~$ \sim									
	Flow triples without Data Distribution intermediaries									
Inf	Inf Flow triples with Data Distribution intermediaries									
	All How triples									
Security	Facilities Transport/Networking Access									

You can also click the Information Flow Triples tab to see and assign information flow triple combinations that should use this new communications solution.

Solution	Details	— C	x c							
Name:	Test DMS Solution	User [Defined							
Data Profile:	Test data 1 V Comm Profile: C-X: Radio Broadcast		\sim							
Description:	Description: This solution is used within the U.S It combines standards associated with US: NTCIP Message Sign with those for I-F: SNMPv3/TLS. The US: NTCIP Message Sign standards include upper-layer standards required to implement center-to-field message sign communications. The I-F: SNMPv3/TLS standards									
Region:	Region: AU EU VS CA									
Comm Class:	Wide Area Network \sim Applied to: Flow triples without Data Distribution in	ntermediaries	\sim							
Standard	s Issues Information Flow Triples									
	O Elements									
Source Traffic Traffic	e Destination Information Flow Management Center ITS Roadway Equipment roadway dynamic Management Center ITS Roadway Equipment Iane management	signage data t control								
Form Source:	Grid - Solutions	K	Cancel							

Now, every time that combination of information flows is used in your architecture it will pick-up this solution assignment when the Communications assignments are run.

NOTE: if a flow alias has been applied then the alias will appear in this list followed by the original flow name in parentheses.

Add Comments or Notes to a Diagram

In order to provide commentary about a diagram there are 2 shapes on the Stencil: a Cloud for comments to the reader or a white Rectangle to provide other specific Notes about the diagram.

In either case, drag the shape from the stencil onto the drawing surface.

Edit the **Comments** cloud or **Notes** box by double-clicking on the shape and opening Shape Properties.

Edit the text in Shape Properties.



Click the **refresh** button or simply click on another part of the drawing to store the editing.

TIP: Use the little Yellow Square to connect a comment cloud with an element. Just find the yellow square and drag it onto the element. Now when you move the element around the comment cloud will follow.

The Notes box works similarly to the Comment cloud. Drag the Note shape from the Stencil onto a spot on the diagram. Then click the shape or use Shape Properties to enter and edit your text.

Shape Properties	x
Comment	
Comment	
V2I Safety Initiative Maintenance Services, based on: MC DMS Maintenance MC Connected Vehicle System Monitor MC Map Management for V2I Safety Initiative	
Shape Properties	
V2I Safety Initiative Maintenance Services, based on: MC DMS Maintenance MC Connected Vehicle System Monitor MC Map Management for V2I Safety Initiative	
ooo	

Add a Legend from SET-IT Stencil to a Diagram

This process works in either Physical or Enterprise View. Create a New Diagram, or open an Existing Diagram.

Select the **Legend** from the stencil on the left.

Drag the **Legend** to the drawing area, either a *horizontal* or *vertical* legend.

Place the **Legend** box on the desired area in the diagram.

The legend for the Physical Layer 2 diagram looks like this:

	Physical Legend												
Flow Time Context	Flow Spatial Context	Flow Routing	Flow Status	Flow Cardinality	Flow Control	Flow Security	Elements	Functional Objects					
1 - Now 2 - Recent 3 - Historical 4 - Static	A - Adjacent D - National B - Local E - Continental C - Regional	(c) - Routed through a comm element (d) - Routed through a DDS (Abbr) - Terminal	Existing Project Future Not Applicable	Unicast Multicast Broadcast	□ Transaction initiated By left-hand party ►	Clear text, No Authent. Encrypted, No Authent. Clear text, Authent. Encrypted, Authent.	Center Field Vehicle Personal Support ITS People Environment	Existing Project Future Not Applicable					

The legend for the Physical Layer 0 or Layer 1 diagrams looks like this:



Note that the contents of the legend for the Layer 0/1 diagrams is different – interconnects instead of flows; and no routing indicators.

The legend for the Enterprise Layer 0 diagram looks like this:



The enterprise diagram legend shows the Connectors, Status, Enterprise Objects, and Resources.

TIP: include a legend on at least one of each type of your diagrams so that your users will be able to understand all of the symbols, line styles, and colors.

Update a Physical Layer 0 or Layer 1 Diagram

The Update Diagram tool lets you add or remove elements or interconnects from the Layer 0 or Layer 1 diagrams based on changes to your Layer 2 diagrams. This prevents you from having to redraw the entire diagram when you may have made only minimal changes to your project.

5 9 · C 🔒	Ŧ							SET-IT - C:\S
Project Home	e Diagram Review	Output	t					
Diagram	Enterprise Physical Comm	Status	Started *	Line Synchronize	Shape	FIPS Cleanup Sequence	D Update	Diagram
▼ Item ▼ New	Views	Show	Diagram Completion	Text * *	Properties	Tools		Verification
Diagrams	Shapes		< + 0	, , , , , , , , , <mark>1</mark> , ,		2 3	<u>р</u> т	tle Block

Click the caret under the "Update" button and select "Diagram" to bring up the Update Diagram tool. This is only active when you are on one of the higher-level diagrams – Layer 0 or Layer 1.

SET-IT Help

互 Diagram	Update		—		×
Diagram:	MC Traveler Services				
	 MC Curve Speed Warning MC In-Vehicle Signage MC Queue Warning MC Reduced Speed Zone Warning / Lane Closure MC Connected Vehicle System Monitor MC Data Distribution MC Device Certification and Enrollment MC DMS Maintenance MC Location and Time Services for V2I Safety MC Map Management for V2I Safety Initiative 	^	This list selecte when ti diagran	: shows th d L2 diag his Layer- h was cre	ie rams 1 sted.
	You can modify the selected diagrams but changes will not be saved unless the Update button is clicked.				
	Settings Update				

You will see the list of layer 2 diagrams in your architecture and it will check the ones that were used to build the Layer 0 / 1 drawing. There are several ways to use the Diagram Update tool.

- 1) Add new elements (physical objects) onto your project summary diagrams.
- 2) Remove elements no longer included in your project.
- 3) Connect or remove interconnects on the project summary diagrams based on changes made to the lower-level diagrams.
- 4) Add or remove functional objects from the Layer 1.

Select the Layer 2 diagrams you want to be included in your Layer 0/1 diagram or deselect the diagrams you no longer want to be included. Note that you can only include diagrams that have been fully customized, i.e., all the shapes have been assigned an element.

You can also change the Settings used to update the diagram, including how the items are placed, whether to include Flows or Interconnects, etc. See <u>Layer 0/1 Settings</u> for more information.

If your current diagram is set to show Flows and you change the Settings to draw Interconnects (or vice versa) then SET-IT will warn you that it will need to redraw the whole diagram. This gives you a chance to go back and change the Settings if that isn't what you intended.

When you are done selecting and deselecting the Layer 2 diagrams to include in the Diagram Update process and setting the Settings then click the "Update" button.

This will check for changes to Elements to add/remove, Element names to change, functional objects to add/remove, and interconnects to add/remove or recharacterize based on changes to the underlying layer 2 diagrams. This tool will also be cognizant of Terminals you have used on your Layer 0/1 diagram by removing or renaming them as necessary.

Show Related Shapes

When you are on a physical layer 2 diagram and you bring up Shape Properties for a shape – flow, element/physical object, or a functional object – you can click "Show Related Shapes" and it will highlight the other shapes that are related to that selected shape – requests that go with responses, status flows that go with configuration flows, other elements needed to support a function, etc. This can be really useful on complicated diagrams. If a shape (flow or functional object) doesn't have any defined relationships between it and other shapes, then this button will just be greyed out.

Update an Enterprise Layer O Diagram

The Update Diagram tool lets you update an existing Enterprise layer 0 diagram. This will let you add or remove elements (represented as Resources), stakeholders (represented as Enterprise Objects) or agreements and expectations between the stakeholders from the Layer 0 diagram based on changes to your Physical Layer diagram. This prevents you from having to redraw the entire diagram when you may have made only minimal changes to your project.

5 🤊 - 🍽 🖌	Ŧ												SET-	T - C:\SETIT	\15
Project Home	e Diagram	Review	Outpu	t											
Diagram	Enterprise Physic	((o)) al Comm	Status	Started	Ŧ	Line Text *	⊘ Text	Synchronize	Shape Properties	FIPS	Cleanup	8 8 9 Sequence	Update	Diagram Verification	c J
New	Views		Show	Diagram Com	pletion					Tools			🛃 Di	agram	7
Diagrams				,	6		7	8	9 10		11	12	D Tr	tle Block	

Click the caret under the "Update" button and select "Diagram" to bring up the Update Diagram tool.

互 Diagram l	Jpdate				×
Diagram:	Service Relationships				
	0 Services Only			~	
		Settings	;	Update	•

You will see a pull-down list of the physical layer 0 diagrams in your architecture and it will pre-select the one that was used to previously build the Enterprise Layer 0 diagram. If it was created in a previous version, it may not know which physical diagram was used and you will need to select the one that best fits. Usually, your project will only have 1 or a few physical layer 0 diagrams.

Note that you can only include 1 physical diagram upon which to base an enterprise diagram.

Use the Settings button to change what is displayed – Resources, Agreements, Expectations, Roles – and whether or not to Hide the Text.

When you have selected the Physical Layer 0 diagram to include in the Diagram Update process and are satisfied with the Settings then click the "Update" button.

This will check for changes to Elements and Stakeholders to add/remove, Element names to change, agreements and expectations to add/remove or recharacterize based on changes to the supporting physical layer 0 diagram. This will also remove any auto-generated agreements that are considered obsolete, meaning they are no longer supported by stakeholders or flows that may have been previously removed. Any agreements that were created or edited by the user will be retained.

NOTE: If you edit the properties of an element within Enterprise View to change the status of a stakeholder's relationship – say, to change stakeholder that 'owns' a resource from 'project' to 'existing' status; you may see that the role disappears from the diagram. This is normal. When any new mapping is added, removed, or changed in Element Details, the "Update" tool must be run for the new role to be seen on a diagram. Because two roles can only occupy the same line if they have the same status due to line encoding, changing the status of a role can require SET-IT to draw a new role shape which is something we only do when running the Update tool. So, for consistency when the status of a role is changed in the Details form, for example from "Project" to "Future", then SET-IT treats it as if the user deleted the "Project" version of the role then added the "Future" version of the role. Sometimes this will require 2 lines to be drawn if it has one existing role and another project or future role. Run the Update Diagram tool and the roles will be redrawn.

Update the Diagram Title Block

All of the Diagrams in SET-IT include a **Title Block**, the diagrams 'included' from ARC-IT as well as custom created diagrams. The information in the **Title Block** contains basic information about the diagram – name of the service package, whether it came from or is based on ARC-IT, a revision number the date it was created/edited, and by whom.

2: VS08: Marinara Queue Warning								
1	Based on ARC-IT Physical Diagram r8	Sep 09 2020	BRB					

From the Diagram menu, you can click the caret under the **Update** button and "Title Block".

互 🄊 - 🍽 🔓	–					SET-IT - C:\SET
Project Hom	e Diagram Review	Output				
Diagram • Item •	Enterprise Physical Comm	() Inclusion	Complete *	Line Text •	Shape FIPS Cleanup Sequence Properties	Update Diagram Verification
New	Views	Show	Diagram Completion		Tools	🖳 Diagram
Diagrams				-2	-1	Title Block

SET-IT will prompt you that this action will increment the version number (assumes you are using numbers to describe your versions), update the date to today's date, and update the Initials in the

lower right box to match the initials, if any, that are in the Overview / Project window. You have a chance to say **Yes** to continue or **No** to leave it the way it is.

You can turn off these reminders with the **Checkbox**.

NOTE: If you make changes to the Project Overview information such as the initials of the developer or maintainer those would only be changed on the diagram when you click the **Update Title Block** button described above.

You can also edit the name of a diagram by editing the name in the Left Menu. Right-click while hovering over the name of one of the diagrams in the left menu and click Rename.



This will open the Diagram Rename dialog box.

互 Rename Diagram	×
Please enter a new diagram name:	
2502 1: Our EV ProEmpt w Traditional Field Control	_
	_
OK Cancel	

Edit the name and click OK. SET-IT will then update the name in the title block.

Pan and Zoom a Diagram

For diagrams that get larger than will fit onto your screen, use the **Zoom** feature from the Diagrams menu. The Zoom area has 2 choices

• Clicking the **Zoom** button launches the "Pan & Zoom" box (a small pop-up window that shows a snapshot of the entire diagram) to let you use your mouse to draw a box around the area of the diagram you want to zoom in on. You can also click and drag the red highlight box to pan around the diagram to focus on different areas.

• Clicking the **To Page** button is a short cut to quickly change to magnification so that the entire diagram fits within the diagram area of the SET-IT window.

Defining Scenarios

Being able to document scenarios is a useful way to build a good Concept of Operations for your project. Here is how the FHWA Systems Engineering Guidebook (at https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/cadiv/segb/) describes Scenarios as part of a ConOps:

This is the heart of the document. Each scenario describes a sequence of events, activities carried out by the user, the system, and the environment. It specifies what triggers the sequence, who or what performs each step, when communications occur and to whom or what [e.g., a log file], and what information is being communicated. The scenarios will need to cover all normal conditions, stress conditions, failure events, maintenance, and anomalies and exceptions. There are many ways for presenting scenarios, but the important thing is that each stakeholder can clearly see what his expected role is to be.

In SET-IT you can define Scenarios that include one or more Sequences of steps and map those to Service Package diagrams.

Create a Scenario by using the Scenarios grid on the Definitions menu. Click the row with the asterisk (*) and start filling in the Name, an Order in which to list the scenarios in the document, and a Description of the scenario.

Definitions		
Deminuons		Scenarios
Needs	Name (Order Description
Needs	In-Vehicle Signage Normal Operations	1 This scenario is the normal set of sequences and activities required to operate an in-vehicle signage service.
Canadria		
Scenarios		
Saguangaa		
Sequences		
Scenarios Sequences	In-Vehicle Signage Normal Operations	I his scenario is the normal set of sequences and activities required to operate an in-vehicle signage service.

Another way to define a Scenario is to start by defining a Sequence on a diagram first. See *Defining Sequences* below.

In a Concept of Operations, a scenario is used to describe how the system will be operated under various conditions. For example, incident management scenarios will include normal monitoring, the sequence of events following an incident, and response to failure [e.g., sensors or communications]. In other Service Packages you might want to describe a 'sunny day' scenario and contrast that with the activities that take place in a 'rainy day' scenario. These scenarios should describe the activities from the viewpoint of each of the participants.

Defining Sequences

Another tool on the Physical view Diagrams menu allows you to create sequences of events by attributing step numbers to flows or shapes on a physical diagram. Use the Definitions menu to create a *Scenario* and one or more *Sequences* that are to be assigned to a particular diagram. Once

those are created select the diagram you want to work with and press the Sequence button at the top of the screen.



On the Sequence Tool window click the Pull-down for the Sequence name as shown below:

Sequence Tool					
Sequence	In-Vehicle Signage TMC-Driven Sequence				
	<new sequence=""> In-Vehicle Signage TMC-Driven Sequence</new>				

From the pull-down, select an existing sequence or create a new one by selecting <New Sequence>.

🗐 New Sequ	Jence			_		×
Name: Description: Auto-Populate	Specialty Vehicle In-Vehicle Signage In addition to having in-vehicle signage messages broadcast from roadside equip Marinara County may also have transit vehicles equipped with the ability to broad vehicles with information such as turning actions, route info, or wide area alerts.	ipment une idcast mes	der some ce ssages to su	enter's (urround	control, A ling	
	Scenario: V Diagram: In-Vehicle Signage V	Order Style:	0 Black		Hyperlink	
Form Source: Fo	om Sequence		ок		Cancel	

The New Sequence form includes fields for Name and Description and then controls for assigning the Scenario, the diagram (will default to the diagram you are currently on), the order in which this will appear in the ConOps relative to the other Sequences for this diagram, and the Style of the circles to use.

Click the Scenario pull-down to assign this sequence to a New or existing Scenario.

互 New Sequ	ience		
Name:	Specialty Vehicle	In-Vehicle Signage	
Description: Auto-Populate	In addition to having in-vehicle signage messages broadcast from roads Marinara County may also have transit vehicles equipped with the ability vehicles with information such as turning actions, route info, or wide are		
	Scenario:	~	
	Diagram:	<new scenario=""> In-Vehicle Signage Normal Operations</new>	

Clicking <New Scenario> will launch the Scenarios form in a new window. See *Defining Scenarios* above for more information about scenarios.



The Sequence tool provides a list of steps, the sequence, the style/color, and the related flows or objects with which each step will be associated.



If there is more than one sequence that pertains to a diagram use the Sequence pull-down at the top to switch between sequences.

If you need to create a new sequence, you can go to the Definitions menu and use the Sequence grid or you can use the pull-down here and select <New Sequence>. From there you can give the sequence a name, a description, a style (color), and order. You can also select a scenario or create one and you can relate the sequence to a diagram.

SET-IT Help

When you selected the Sequence Tool the stencil added a Step icon.



You can put step #s onto the drawing by highlighting the step on the Sequence Tool window then clicking and dragging the Step # onto the drawing surface. It will automatically color it based on the Style selected and will be numbered based on the row you highlighted in the Sequence Tool window.



The Sequence Tool window has a checkbox at the top-right that says "Auto-select objects/elements by tracking the step shape on the diagram." With that checked, notice the Sequence window changes as shapes are dragged onto the drawing. The Sequence tool will also automatically map the step number to the object on the diagram. For instance, if you drag the step shape over an Element you will see the Sequence tool associate that step with that element. You can also do this for Information Flows or Functional Objects (the smaller boxes of functionality within the Elements).

5	Sequence Tool	- 🗆 X
	Sequence In-Vehicle Signage TMC-Driven Sequence V Style Black V	Auto-select objects/elements by tracking the step shape on the diagram
	In-Vehicle Signage TMC-Driven Sequence Steps	Step 1 Related Flows V
	Number Description 1 Traffic Operations Personnel manage in-vehicle signing, providing inputs (traffic operator inputs) that control the information that is provided to passing 2 The Traffic Management Center remotely controls short range communications equipment in the Roadway that performs in vehicle signing. 3 Signage data that is provided to vehicles may also include information from local environmental sensors, current signal control states from signal 4 Vehicle signage data is provided to passing vehicles by short range communications equipment in the Roadway.	driver information Hows driver information Hows driver updates (Functional Objects roadway dynamic signage data (MC Freeway Management Center=>MCDC roadway dynamic signage data (MCDOT CV Roadside Equipment=>MCDC roadway dynamic signage status (MCDOT Dynamic Message Signs=>MC roadway dynamic signage status (MCDOT Dynamic Message Signs=>MCC traffic operator data (MC Freeway Management Center=>MC Freeway Management (traffic operator input (MC Freeway Operators=>MC Freeway Management (

NOTE: As you drag a step onto the drawing this process will map the step to last thing (flow, element, functional object) you placed the step over. You can drag a step shape over multiple things but if you drag it over multiple flows, it will only map it to the last flow. The work around is to select the extra flows using the checkboxes in the Sequence Tool window.

The Sequence numbers are on a separate *layer* from the rest of the diagram so when you close the Sequence Tool window the numbers will disappear, too. Select Sequence button again to bring them back.

The ConOps document – see <u>Output Documents</u> section – can include the scenarios and the diagrams with the sequences shown on them.

Clipboard

The Clipboard is available from any of the left-menu choices. It provides the basic **cut**, **copy**, and **paste** functions that you're used to in other graphical programs.



One unique feature with SET-IT is on the Diagrams page. You can use the **Size Painter** to copy the size of one physical object and make another object have the same size. This may be useful when trying to make sure similar objects appear to be the same size/shape.

NOTE: Copy and Paste can be done on a Layer 2 diagram for functional objects, for instance to copy a functional object from one element to another similar element on that diagram. You may notice that the functional object shape is blank after pasting. That happens when you paste the functional object into another class shape, i.e., you paste a field functional object into a center element.

Editing/Adjusting Your Diagrams

There are other features on the Diagrams window that you can use to make your project diagrams look the way you would like.

• Font: this is used to change the font or type face used for labels on the shapes on your diagram. Select a flow or object and use the font and size pull-downs to change the appearance of that flow or object. You can also set whether to use Bold, underline, or cross-outs. SET-IT reserves the use of italics for objects, flows, or agreements that haven't been customized yet.

e	Diagram	Review
Ar	ial	• <u>12</u> •
в	: <u>U</u> ab	6
	Fon	t

• **Paragraph:** You can use the Paragraph tools to change the way a group of text appears. Again, highlight the text to be modified and select whether the text labels in an object should be centered at the top, middle, or bottom of the object. You can also decide whether the paragraph contents should be left-, center-, or right-aligned or justified to fit within the margins of the object or flow boundaries.



- Tools
 - Line Text / Text Tool: This button has multiple controls.



Clicking the AV button with the line underneath it will automatically Show or Hide the text of all of the flows on the diagram. The default on Layer 0 and Layer 1 diagrams is to hide the text. These diagrams are usually considered high-level summaries of a project and the text of the interconnects is often not necessary. The default on Enterprise and Physical Layer 2 diagrams is to show the text. When you click the Show/Hide button the AV will disappear to indicate that the text is now hidden. Click it again and the text will reappear.

The other use of the tool is to Select a flow, click the downward pointing caret and select the Text Tool.



Now you can use the up, down, left, and right arrow buttons to 'nudge' the text around. Use the slider bar to control how far each button push will move the text. The numbers in the center of the arrows indicate the distance each click will nudge the text, from 0.01 to 0.64 inches. (Hint: it seems that 0.05 is enough to move a text line from the middle of the line to sit just above the line).

This window is also used to select whether the text should **Wrap** and at what point, i.e., how many characters per line.

Another checkbox here allows you to "Hide" the text label completely. This is handy if you have flows coming from one source and going to multiple destinations and they all have the same characteristics. This can make the diagram look cleaner if you line up the flows on top of each other and just use one label. This gives the diagram a look similar to an electrical schematic.

TIP: Only use the "Hide text" option when all of the flow characteristics are the same. If a particular triple (source, destination, flow name combination) has a unique characteristic then it should be seen separately from the other flows on the diagram.

The text labels sometimes have default widths to them and changing the wrap value may not have the affect you expect. Click the "Expand text box" box and that will put the flow or agreement name on one line. Now you can use the Wrap values to more effectively change your diagrams.

NOTE: The Text or Nudge tool will be 'floating' when it first opens. You can 'dock' it by clicking the title of the box then drag and 'drop' over the icon that looks like a closed door on the right or left side of the screen. To undock it click the title of the box and drag it to another area of your screen. This may be helpful if you want to put the nudge arrows right next to the text you are trying to edit. You can also simply close the Text tool by clicking the X button in the top right of the window.



 Synchronize: The synchronize button tells SET-IT to go through your diagrams and look for changes that you have made to the diagrams: name changes, new flows, etc. and update the Definitions tables. This also works to apply changes you make to the name of an element on one diagram to the other places where that same element appears.



TIP: Use the pull-down or the Project / Options menu to change how Synchronize works: it can either update the definitions based on the diagrams or update the diagrams based on the definitions. Your choice should be based on where you have been making your changes (in the Definitions tables or on the Diagrams). If you don't use the pull-down to pick a direction SET-IT will use the setting shown in the Project / Options menu.

- **Sequence**: See <u>Defining Sequences</u> above.
- **Arrange:** The Arrange area of the Diagrams toolbar allows the user to access 3 tools: Align & Space, Size & Position, and Connection Points.



- **Align&Space** allows you to select more than one shape and make them line up a certain way (top, bottom, right, left, center) or to space them apart evenly.
 - An alternative way to line up different objects/boxes is to select one box and drag it around the diagram. As you approach another object you will notice thin lines appear showing how close you are to the center line or top/bottom/left/right edge of the other box.
 - NOTE: the Align&Space tool is using features of Microsoft Visio. One of the aspects of Visio's align and space tool is that it is dependent on what is selected first. That will dictate how the other shapes will be aligned. If you pick 3 shapes and choose Center, then it will line the shapes up to the first shape picked.
 - NOTE: The other thing to note is that Align&Space does not work well when you use a 'lasso' technique to select multiple objects. When you click the mouse and drag a square around several shapes to select them all at once Visio cannot determine which was selected first in order for its

alignment rules to work. To select multiple shapes, it is best to click the first shape and then press the Ctrl button and Left-Click to select the other shapes you want to align.

 Size&Position allows you to make fine adjustments to the size and position of an element or object – this also becomes very useful on complicated drawings where you need to adjust just one thing at a time.

Size and	Position	x
Х	3.18125	in.
Y	3.375] in.
Width	1.3] in.
Height	1.4] in.
Angle	0	deg.
Size and	Position	

• **Connection Points** allows you to let SET-IT realign the connection points around an object. Connection Points are the places around a shape where you attach connecting lines, e.g., information flows on a physical Layer 2 diagram or a Relationship on an enterprise diagram. This can be very helpful after resizing a shape and the connection points get distributed unevenly. Select a shape and click on the Connection Points button shown above.



NOTE: some users may find that some shapes have connection points in places other than the boundary of the object. In that case, use this Connection Points tool to redraw them around the object in the right places.

- **Zoom** provides the user with two tools to adjust the screen view:
 - **Zoom** brings up the Pan&Zoom mini-window and you can click and drag to select a subset of the drawing to fill the screen.
 - **To Page** automatically resizes the window to fit the screen.

Other Toolbar and SET-IT tools

- **Project / Options** From the Project ribbon and the Options menu there is an option that enables delete confirmation for any object deletion.
- **Undo & Redo** as with most windows-based software you can use the Undo and Redo buttons at the top of the window to back out of a change (undo) or to repeat (redo) a

change that you just undid. There may be a difference in behavior between actions that were done on the Visio drawing space and actions done on the definitions and data driven forms. Ctrl-z is also a way to "Undo" an action.

The Quick Access Toolbar (QAT) is a feature common to many Windows applications. It appears at the very top of the SET-IT window. In SET-IT, you can use the pull-down menu at the right of the QAT to change what appears at the top:

5 🕫 🖌	9 -	Ŧ	
Project	Project Home		stomize Quick Access Toolbar
(1]-25		\checkmark	Save
		\checkmark	Undo
Diagram E • Item •		\checkmark	Redo
New			Show Below the Ribbon
Definitions			Mi <u>n</u> imize the Ribbon

Using Terminals

Terminals are the little rounded rectangles that appear on some of the complicated SET-IT diagrams to reduce some of the clutter caused by having too many lines crossing each other or when the same type of interface needs to go to multiple places, e.g., from a data warehouse to all of the traffic centers in the area.



Rather than drawing lines all over the page – either crisscrossing over many existing lines or wrapping all around the side of the drawing using a terminal allows you to show how lines may start at one point and end up at another part of the drawing.

Adding Terminals

To add a terminal to a drawing:

1. Drag a **Terminal** from the stencil and drop it inside a physical object. This will create a new shape and associate it with the element that it is in. SET-IT will give the terminal an abbreviation based on the name of the element.

CAUTION: Only 4 or 5 characters can fit in a Terminal shape so you may need to edit the abbreviation of the Element in the Element Details window to make sure the Abbreviation makes sense. A default abbreviation will be entered in the Abbreviation box but you can change this to something that makes more sense to your stakeholders. If your name is more than 5 words long, it will stop after 5 characters. If the automatic abbreviation will cause a conflict with an existing abbreviation, then the last letter will be replaced by a number.

- 2. To create the other side of the interface, drag and drop another terminal from the stencil and drop it inside the same physical object. This will create a new shape and associate it with the element. Then drag that new terminal to be near a physical object on another part of the drawing.
- 3. Now to add flows, instead of drawing them all the way across the drawing between the physical objects you can use the terminals. Draw lines from the physical objects from step 2 to the terminal.
- 4. When you use Shape Properties to tell SET-IT what information flows to include on that line it will show the flows that can go between the physical object in step 1 and the physical object in step 2 as if they were directly connected.

NOTE: With Terminals you only have to name the flows on one side of the interface.

Going Further with Terminals

As you go on to build your higher layer drawings SET-IT will consider any flows that were routed using terminals on Layer 2. One thing that SET-IT doesn't do is assume that because you had terminals on a layer 2 drawing that you will want terminals on Layer 0 or 1. It will just draw the interconnects directly between the source and destination.

If you notice that your Layer 1 or Layer 0 drawings are too crowded you can use Terminals manually on Layer 0 or 1 the same way you did on the Layer 2 drawing, except with physical interconnects.

Using Data Distribution

In a traditional ITS environment, most information exchanges are performed between systems owned, operated, and managed by the same party. Often these interfaces are built as part of a project initiated by that party and managed by an integrator to ensure the necessary functionality and data exchanges work properly.

Recent developments in connected and automated vehicle systems suggest a new paradigm, where the producers of the data do not necessarily have a direct relationship with the consumers of that

data. Similar developments beyond ITS where data is shared between business units to produce new performance analytics or inform decision making further suggest expanding the number and types of parties that might want access to ITS or Cooperative ITS (C-ITS) data. Both of these trends benefit from more ubiquitous, project-agnostic means for providing, discovering, and acquiring data. This is where data distribution fits in.

Data distribution functionality allows application processes (i.e., ARC-IT functional objects) to request information from (subscribe) and offer information to (publish) the communication network to which they are attached without needing to know anything about the details of how the information transfers take place. Using metadata and service configuration requests, a variety of policies, rules and regulations can be implemented. Thus, applications will not need to directly create and consume messages with other applications to affect information exchange. Instead, they can publish data they agree to share (and receive data they are interested in) through an Application Programming Interface (API) without having to know anything about the final destination(s) (or source) or having to conform to a particular message format for each end entity.

There are many technical solutions to implementing data distribution functionality, but they all boil down to the use of some middleware that sits between the application and the communications stack. Some data distribution implementations require a centralized distribution facility (aka, a broker), while some integrate the broker functionality into the middleware. Both approaches have merits and applicability, the discussion of which is beyond the scope of this help file.

SET-IT includes communications solutions based on four data distribution protocols included in ARC-IT:

- Apache Kafka, a distributed streaming platform that enables publish and subscribe (pubsub) on streams of records, similar to a message queue or enterprise messaging system. Kafka requires a centralized broker, stores streams in a fault-tolerant durable way and processes streams of records as they occur.
- Organization for the Advancement of Structured Information Systems (OASIS) Advanced Message Queueing Protocol (AMQP), a symmetric peer-to-peer protocol operating over TCP/IP that enables the development of clients, brokers, and routers. A given node can operate as client and broker, or simply as server. In this way AMQP can support hubspoke, peer-peer, and hierarchical hub-spoke architectures. AMQP works with Transport Layer Security (TLS) and enables pub-sub through filters at brokers/routers. In practice, AMQP implementations mostly operate as a hub-based protocol.
- OASIS Message Queue Telemetry Transport (MQTT), a pub-sub protocol designed for a hub-spoke architecture pattern where data providers tend to be low power, low-capacity devices. Compared to the other protocols it is relatively lightweight and simple to implement.
- Open Management Group (OMG) DDS, a pub-sub protocol that does not use a centralized hub at all. Instead, each data producer is also a data publisher. Architecturally, OMG DDS follows the peer-to-peer model. OMG DDS' requirements on the data provider/publisher communicate directly with subscribers necessitates a discovery phase, where OMG DDS-enabled entities establish communications. This discovery phase is contained within the base specification but is often extended by vendors.
By using data distribution systems, ITS deployments can avoid silos and make data available to more users with less work to define specifications or establish agreements. This applies even more so to connected vehicles and cooperative ITS applications. For instance, connected vehicles may be broadcasting situational data that may be picked up by roadside infrastructure. Individual drivers do not sign agreements with every roadside equipment owner/operator – they are all part of the trusted connected vehicle environment. Once that data is collected by the infrastructure it can be used in a number of ways – not necessarily by the same agencies and not necessarily for the same things. A traffic agency may want that data to understand traffic flow but a maintenance department may be able to use the same data to plan where to deploy their maintenance fleet. The data distribution concept allows interfaces to be setup such that developers can take advantage of these supporting systems that worry about the data distribution mechanics and the developers can focus on the transportation needs being addressed.

These 'clearinghouses' of data make it possible for one agency or entity to establish a set of data collectors that then make the data available to any number of agencies that register and subscribe to the data they need.

Another idea is that a data warehouse could be used to drive the output of the data to mobile consumers of data – the travelers. Multiple agencies may have data that they want to get out to the traveling public but don't want to maintain the technology to broadcast data in all the media that the connected vehicle environment and today's wireless communications make possible. These application providers can establish a relationship with a centralized data warehouse that will then make the data available to its mobile subscribers. This data warehouse will maintain the data and maintain the trust and security for how that data is to be distributed.

So how do you show Data Distribution in SET-IT?

- From the New/Item/Element window you can define one or more Data Distribution systems. These are of the Communications domain / Support class of physical objects.
- On Layer 2 the service package specific diagrams you can assign a flow characteristic to a transportation related information flow to say that this flow will go through a data distribution system using the "DDS" pull-down on Shape Properties.
- 3. Build a Layer 1 or Layer 0 drawing. SET-IT will show the flows routing through the Data Distribution system defined in step 1 and selected in step 2.
- 4. On the Information Flow Triples grid, you can use the pull-downs in the DDS column to select a Data Distribution System element for a flow if it is eligible. You have to have created a DDS element first.
- 5. When you create user defined flows you can assign it to be DDEligible or eligible for routing through a Data Distribution System.

NOTE: According to ARC-IT, not every information flow is eligible for routing through a data distribution system. Some flows like information broadcast from a single source to many destinations at once might use a Wide Area Information Distribution mechanism but not something like a data warehouse or clearinghouse. In other cases, the information may be transactional in nature, meaning that it really needs to be seen and used by the receiver like

traffic signal control commands. In those situations, the *DDS* pull-down will be greyed-out and unavailable.

Note that in most cases, you do not need to include SU03 Data Distribution. When you get the communications view, you will see that OMG DDS is available for every flow that is DD-eligible. For the other protocols, creating a data distribution system as noted in step 1 above will be enough to enable Apache, MQTT and AMQP solutions, as that element serves as the hub or broker for the chosen protocol.

Needs

One of the critical early steps in a Systems Engineering process for a project is to establish the Needs of the system and its users.

The Needs are designed to answer two basic questions:

- What does the System need to do?
- What do users need from the System?

ARC-IT was developed by extracting needs from a variety of sources including other Concepts of Operations documents for ITS and connected vehicle research projects. These source needs are used as starting points for your own project architecture.

Use the Definitions menu (on the bottom left side of the window) with the Physical view selected at the top to add and edit your needs. There are 2 Needs related buttons:

- **Need Areas** an area is created for each service package.
- **Needs** statements that describe functionality or capability that is necessary for a service to be provided by an ITS project.

You may also import Needs from one of the FHWA Model Systems Engineering Documents. Use Requirements Options to change the source of your project to use one of the Model Systems Engineering (SE) documents published by FHWA then select one of the services for which the model documents were based. SET-IT will import the needs and requirements associated with the model document in place of the ARC-IT needs and requirements written for that service package.

SP		SP	
Identifier	Service Package (SP) Name	Implementation	Model SE Document
TM01.1	Infrastructure Based Traffic	Detector Based	Traffic Sensing and Detection
	Surveillance	Surveillance	Systems (TSDS)
TM01.2	Infrastructure Based Traffic	Video	Closed Circuit Television
	Surveillance	Monitoring	(CCTV) Systems
TM03	Traffic Signal Control		Central Traffic Signal Systems
TM06.1	Traffic Information	Dynamic	Dynamic Message Sign
	Dissemination	Message Signs	(DMS) Systems

The table below shows which services are connected to the model documents.

NOTE: More than one copy of a model document cannot be added to the same project. You will get a warning message to that affect if you try to include a 2nd copy of one of the service packages listed above.

Need Areas Definitions Grid

A *Need Area* is just a way to organize and introduce the needs. Initially these are based on the service packages, but you can create your own.

		Need Areas												
	Order Name /		Description	Associated Service Package Instance	Type									
►	0	SU01: Connected Vehicle System	This service package provides monitoring,	MC Connected Vehicle System Monitor	Support									
	5	SU03: Data Distribution	This service package manages the distribution	MC Data Distribution	Support									
	0	SU04: Map Management with	This service package defines interfaces that can	MC Map Management for V2I Safety Initiative	Support									
	3	SU05: Marinara Location and Time	This service package identifies the external	MC Location and Time Services for V2I Safety	Support									
	0	SU08: Security and Credentials	This service package is used to ensure trusted	MC Security and Credentials Management	Support									
	4	SU09: Device Certification and	This service package is used to illustrate the	MC Device Certification and Enrollment	Support									

Use the Definitions grid to add or edit the names and descriptions for the Need Area.

- The Name and Description columns can be edited to personalize the need areas for your project documentation.
- The Associated Service Package Instance column indicates which service package the Need Area is associated with or if it is a general area.
- The Type column indicates the type of service package this need area is from Safety, mobility, etc. The Type could also be set to <Unspecified> for a set of needs that may not be tied to any particular type of service packages.
- The Source column indicates the source used to derive the needs. This will typically say ARC-IT or one of the Model Systems Engineering documents depending on the Requirements Options settings.

In the ConOps, these Need Area descriptions will be used as the introductory paragraph for the Needs tables.

Needs Definition Grid

The *Needs* button opens a table or grid to show the needs that have been imported for each of the ARC-IT service packages you included as well as new or user defined needs you created.

			Needs						
	Need Area	Need #	Need	Priority	Applicable	Info Only	Comment	User Defined	More
Þ	SU01: Connected Vehicle	01	Maintenance personnel and system operators need to be able to track and manage the configuration	Medium	\checkmark				Details
	System Monitor	02	System operators and maintenance personnel need to be able to detect, isolate and correct	Medium	\checkmark				Details
		03	System operators need to be able to monitor the performance of equipment providing ITS services.	Medium	\checkmark				Details
		04	System operators need to be able to monitor the physical security and cybersecurity of equipment	Medium	\checkmark				Details
	SU03: Data Distribution	01	System Operators, Vehicle Operators, and PID Operators need to be able to request and receive	Medium	\checkmark				Details
	(Copy 1)	02	System Operators need to be able to provide data to a geographically selected area.	Medium	\checkmark				Details
		03	Data Distribution Operators need to be able to exchange data with other data distribution systems.	Medium	\checkmark				Details
		04	Data Distribution Operators need to be able to establish and maintain data processing algorithms, rules	Medium	\checkmark				Details
	SU04: Map Management with	01	System operators, vehicle operators and PID users need map data that is accurate and consistent	Medium	\checkmark				Details
	Connected Vehicles	02	Mapping operators need real-world observations of roadway geometry, intersection geometry and	Medium	\checkmark				Details
		03	Mapping operators need to be able to exchange mapping information (map data and update	Medium	\checkmark				Details
	SU05: Marinara Location and	01	System operators, vehicle operators, support system operators, PID users, maintenance personnel	Medium	\checkmark				Details
	Time Services	02	Vehicle Operators, PID users and system operators need their devices to operate from a common	Medium	\checkmark				Details
		03	Vehicle Operators and PID users need their vehicles and devices to determine their current location.	Medium	\checkmark				Details
	SU08: Security and	01	The CCMS Operator needs to grant trust credentials to qualified end entities including mobile devices	Not Applicable					Details
	Credentials Management	02	The CCMS Operator needs to be able to revoke the credentials it distributes, so that a misbehaving or	Not Applicable					Details
		03	The CCMS Operator needs to secure the exchange of trust credentials between itself and its intended	Not Applicable					Details
		04	The CCMS Operator needs its systems to be constructed in such a way that the cooperation of at least	Not Applicable					Details
		05	The CCMS Operator needs its systems to be constructed in such a way that the cooperation of at least	Not Applicable					Details
		06	The CCMS Operator needs to accept misbehavior reports from users, so that malfunctioning and	Not Applicable					Details
		08	ITS Object operators need to be able to authenticate messages received so that they can determine if	Medium	\checkmark				Details
		09	ITS Object operators need to be able to determine the privileges a message sender is entitled to so	Medium	\checkmark				Details
		10	ITS Object operators need to be able to communicate with other users in such a way as to make it	Medium	\checkmark				Details
		11	ITS Object operators need to be able to exchange messages in a secure fashion, so that no other	Medium	\checkmark				Details
		11	ITS Object operators need to be able to exchange messages within the regulatory bounds of the	Medium	\checkmark				Details
	SU09: Device Certification	01	The CCMS Operator needs to provide a mechanism for a user without credentials to request	Medium	\checkmark				Details
	and Enrollment (Copy 1)	02	Certification Operators need to be able to quantify the performance of ITS Objects so that an object's	Medium	\checkmark				Details
	SU11: DMS Maintenance	01	Operating agencies need to be able to maintain ITS devices that are installed in the field so that the	Medium	\checkmark				Details
		02	Operating agencies need to be able to perform the maintenance on ITS devices remotely or in the	Medium	\checkmark				Details

The Needs grid has the following features:

- The first column is the Service Package or Area.
- The number column is to help you sort the needs. SET-IT doesn't enforce any rules on the numbering; it can take numbers or alpha characters. Model Document based needs will show a hierarchical listing of needs.
- The needs text comes next either from ARC-IT or a user defined need. You can and should edit the needs to reflect your project's needs.
- The Priority column can be used to show the priority for that need Low, Medium, High, or Not Applicable. The default is Medium.
- The Applicable column is a checkbox to show whether or not that particular need is assigned to your project. As you include new service packages the needs for that service package will be included and checked. Then you can uncheck the ones that don't apply to your situation.
- The Info Only column is used to tag rows that are Informational in nature. These usually are referring to header text from a source document like the FHWA Model SE Documents.
- The comment column is optional but may be used to describe some of the background behind what was driving a particular need or other considerations reviewers may need to be aware of.
- The User Defined checkbox is read-only and indicates whether the text or characteristics of the need have been modified from what ARC-IT defined or if it was created from scratch.

NOTE: if you have multiple instances of a service package with multiple copies of Needs for each instance make sure you customize the needs so they are unique in some way. You can do this by editing the text so the subject of the needs matches the enterprise or stakeholder organization responsible for the service. This will prevent having issues with duplicate needs when you export the project into RAD-IT to become part of a regional architecture.

As a user tailors an ARC-IT need the requirements traced to that original ARC-IT need will automatically be traced to the new user defined need. As an example, in TM01 Need #1:

"Traffic Operations need to be able to monitor the road network using infrastructure devices in order to detect and verify incidents and support implementation of traffic operational strategies."

That need is traced to 8 different functional requirements across 2 physical objects and 4 functional objects. As you tailor the need to, for instance, replace "Traffic Operations" with "xState DOT Regional Traffic Operations" then the original need is un-included from the architecture and replaced with the new need. The requirements associated with that need are now traced to the newly customized/tailored need.

If you have selected one of the service packages for which a Model Systems Engineering Document was written, then you will see a different looking set of Need numbers. These will look like a hierarchical set of numbers based on the source Model Document from FHWA.

\square				Needs					
	Need Area	Include 🗸	Need #	Need	Priority	Info Only	Comment	User Defined	More
►	TM06.1: Dynamic Message	\checkmark	0	Note: There is a wide variety of DMS	Medium				Details
	Signs (Traffic Information	\checkmark	1	Control Access to DMS Management	Medium				Details
	Dissemination) (Copy 1)	\checkmark	1.1	The DMS System Manager needs access	Medium				Details
		\checkmark	1.1.1	The DMS System Manager needs access	Medium				Details
		\checkmark	1.1.1.1	The DMS System Manager needs to	Medium				Details
		\checkmark	1.1.1.2	The DMS System Manager needs to	Medium				Details
		\checkmark	1.1.2	The DMS System Manager needs access	Medium				Details
		\checkmark	1.1.3	The DMS System Manager needs access	Medium				Details
		\checkmark	1.1.4	The DMS System Manager needs access	Medium				Details
		\checkmark	1.1.5	The DMS System Manager needs access	Medium				Details
		\checkmark	1.2	The DMS System User needs access to	Medium				Details
		\checkmark	1.2.1	The DMS System User needs access to	Medium				Details
		\checkmark	1.2.2	The DMS System User needs access to	Medium				Details
		\checkmark	1.2.3	The DMS System User needs access to	Medium				Details
		\checkmark	1.3	The DMS System Maintainer needs access	Medium				Details

See "<u>Creating a New Need</u>" from the ribbon for more information about how to create a new need.

Requirements

Once Needs are understood and documented the next step in the Systems Engineering process is to identify and document the Requirements for a project. This is a critical step as requirements form the basis for scoping the work of designers and developers as well as frame the scope of what is to be tested at the end of the development process in order to 'sell-off' and accept the system.

ARC-IT decomposed the service package level Needs and developed a set of functional requirements for each of the functional objects in the physical view. You can use those requirements as starting points for the development of your own project's system requirements.

You may also import Requirements from one of the FHWA Model Systems Engineering Documents. Use Requirements Options to change the source of your project to use one of the Model Systems Engineering (SE) documents published by FHWA then select one of the services for which the model documents were based. SET-IT will import the needs and requirements associated with the model document in place of the ARC-IT needs and requirements written for that service package.

SP Identifier	Service Package (SP) Name	SP Implementation	Model SE Document
TM01.1	Infrastructure Based Traffic	Detector Based	Traffic Sensing and
	Surveillance	Surveillance	Detection Systems (TSDS)
TM01.2	Infrastructure Based Traffic	Video	Closed Circuit Television
	Surveillance	Monitoring	(CCTV) Systems
TM03	Traffic Signal Control		Central Traffic Signal Systems
TM06.1	Traffic Information	Dynamic	Dynamic Message Sign
	Dissemination	Message Signs	(DMS) Systems

The table below shows which services are connected to the model documents.

NOTE: More than one copy of a model document cannot be added to the same project. You will get a warning message to that affect if you try to include a 2nd copy of one of the service packages listed above.

SET-IT supports 2 options – Functional Object level requirements or System level requirements. Functional Object level requirements were the original requirements written in ARC-IT. The system level requirements are meant to be higher level collections of requirements that pertain to the entire system of interest. They typically begin with the phrase, "The system shall." See the "Requirements Options" settings for more information how to switch between System level and Functional Object or Element level.

Requirements Grid

Depending on the Requirements Options the Requirements grid will display either the system level requirements for the project or the requirements for each functional object included in the service packages of the project. There will be an indicator at the top of the grid or table showing which mode you are in.

Shown below is the Requirements grid in "system" mode:

System Requiren	ients									
			Re	quirements						
Service Package	Number	Requirement	Source	Verification	Type	Info Only	Comment	User Defined	In My Project 🖌	More
TM06	1.1	Access Control	Model Systems Engineering		Functional/Performance					Details
TM06	1.1.1	The DMS Management System shall enforce access control of all users.	Model Systems Engineering	Demonstration	Functional/Performance					Details
TM06	1.1.2	The DMS Management System shall allow the DMS System Manager to assign access control credentials to DMS System	Model Systems Engineering	Demonstration	Functional/Performance					Details
TM06	1.1.3	The DMS Management System shall allow the DMS System Manager to assign access control credentials to DMS System	Model Systems Engineering	Demonstration	Functional/Performance					Details
TM06	1.1.4	The DMS Management System shall allow the DMS System Manager to select the DMS Field Equipment.	Model Systems Engineering	Demonstration	Functional/Performance					Details
TM06	1.1.5	The DMS Management System shall allow the DMS System Manager to control the DMS Field Equipment.	Model Systems Engineering	Demonstration	Functional/Performance					Details
TM06	1.1.6	The DMS Management System shall allow the DMS System Manager to control external devices attached to the DMS	Model Systems Engineering	Demonstration	Functional/Performance					Details
TM06	1.1.7	The DMS Management System shall allow the DMS System Manager to access its logged data.	Model Systems Engineering	Demonstration	Functional/Performance					Details
TM06	1.1.8	The DMS Management System shall allow the DMS System Manager to grant access to the DMS Management System by the	Model Systems Engineering	Demonstration	Functional/Performance					Details
TM06	1.1.9	The DMS Management System shall allow the DMS System User to select DMS Field Equipment.	Model Systems Engineering	Demonstration	Functional/Performance					Details

Shown next is the Requirements grid in "element" mode:

-	sement requirements													
Requirements														
	Functional Object 🗸	Number	Requirement	Source	Verification	Туре	Info Only	Comment	User Defined	In My Project	More			
	MCM Vehicle Tracking	01	The center shall monitor the locations of all maintenance and construction vehicles and other equipment under its transferred.	ARC-IT		Functional/Performance					Details			
	MCM Vehicle Tracking	02	The center shall present location data to center personnel for the fleet of maintenance and construction vehicles and other or viewers.	ARC-IT		Functional/Performance					Details			
	MCV Vehicle Location Tracking	01	The maintenance and construction vehicle shall track its current location.	ARC-IT		Functional/Performance					Details			
	MCV Vehicle Location Tracking	02	The maintenance and construction vehicle shall send the time stamped vehicle location to the controlling center.	ARC-IT		Functional/Performance					Details			

Use the Definitions menu (on the bottom left side of the window) with the Physical view selected at the top to add and edit your Requirements.

The *Requirements* button opens a table or grid to show the requirements that have been imported for the service package (in System mode) or for each of the functional objects from the service packages you included as well as new or user defined requirements you created.

- The number column is to help you sort the needs. SET-IT doesn't enforce any rules on the numbering except they have to be numbers (no alphas). You can also use a hierarchical or outline number scheme to make an outline list, e.g., "1.2.1.7".
- The requirement text comes next either from ARC-IT or a user defined requirement. You can and should edit the requirements to reflect your project's scope. Click the Details button to edit a requirement from ARC-IT.
- The source column shows where the requirement came from, e.g., ARC-IT or another source. Use the Details form to edit and add to the list of sources. An example of a source for requirements might be one of the FHWA Model SE Documents, your project's ConOps or the project's Statement of Work (SOW).
- The verification method column provides a pull-down to identify the manner in which a requirement can be verified. The choices are Inspection, Analysis, Demonstration, and Test.
 - Inspection refers to the ability to see or inspect an article and tell that a requirement is met – usually for things like safety codes, or software standards.
 - Analysis is meant for situations like inspection that may require further work to determine that a requirement is satisfied – taking samples of the output and running them through a spreadsheet to calculate whether the requirement is satisfied.
 - Demonstration, usually the most used, is for requirements that can be verified through use of the system, such as a user interface or use of a device in the field.
 - Test, the most stringent method, refers to the type of verification that requires additional test equipment and very tight procedures and precise conditions in order to verify the requirement, such as installing network analyzers on an interface to determine the performance of a video switching device.
- The Type column is next and indicates the type of requirement. Most requirements will be Functional/Performance that is they deal with the functionality of the system or the performance of it. The following table lists the types of requirements you can select for a user defined requirement or that you might see used for an imported set:

Requirement Type	Description
Functional/Performance	Performance requirements associated with a particular function.
Interface	Requirements directly related to interfaces that are not captured elsewhere (e.g., as functional requirements). Likely to include specific protocol and physical connectivity requirements.

Requirement Type	Description
Usability/Quality-in-Use	Requirements associated with measurable effectiveness,
	efficiency, satisfaction criteria.
Functional	Requirements describing functions performed by the system.
Performance	Requirements on overall system performance, including those
	associated with a particular system mode or state.
System Operations	Requirements related to human systems operation, reliability,
	portability, compatibility, maintenance, and maintainability (e.g.,
	mean and max downtime, maintenance intervals, component
	accessibility)
Modes and States	Requirements related to modes of operation and transitions
	between modes/states.
Physical Characteristics	Requirements related to growth, expansion/contraction.
	Constraints on weight, volume, and dimension. Construction
	characteristics relevant to installation, and requirements
	associated with materials, nameplates, marking and
	workmanship.
Environmental	Requirements associated with the environment, such as
Conditions	temperature, humidity, wind, rain, fungus, salt spray, radiation,
	immersion, or any other environmental condition relevant to the
	Installation environment. Requirements related to the
	electromagnetic signal environment, threats (e.g., wild animals)
C a curitu	and laws/regulations.
Security	Requirements related to physical security, cybersecurity and
Deligy and Decyslation	Privacy that are not categorized elsewhere.
Policy and Regulation	Requirements that exist only because of a particular policy,
	elsewhere
Packaging Handling	Requirements related to packaging and shipping the system
Shipping and	prior to its installation.
Transportation	

• The comment column is optional but may be used to describe some of the background behind what was driving a particular requirement or other considerations reviewers may need to be aware of.

Clicking the Details button on the far-right column opens the Requirements Details form:

S Requiren	nent Details				-		×
Number:	05				User Defined		
Requirement:	The field element shall i	include a local interface that allows field perso	onnel to co	ommand diagnostic te	ests on connected field equip	ment.	
	Information Only					Hyperlink	
	Supports Need(s):						
	SU01: Connected VS08: Queue War	Vehicle System Monitor: 02 ning: 01		VS08: Qu VS08: Qu	eue Waming: 02 eue Waming: 03		
	<					>	
	Source:	ARC-IT		Тур	Functional/Performance	• ~	
	Verification:	Demonstration	~	Creation Date: 4/25/2022 12:00:00 AM		4	
	Functional Object	RSE Device Management	\sim	Last Update Dat	e: 1/1/0001 12:00:00 AM		
	Comment:					$\hat{}$	
		Element Regu	irement Al	ocation			
	Include Priority	Element MCDOT CV Roadside Equipmer	Function RSE Dev	al Object (vice Management	Comment		
	*						
					ОК	Cancel	
Form Source: 0	Grid - Requirements						

This Details form contains the same data as the data shown in the columns in the Requirements Definitions grid. In addition to what was on the grid the Details form lets you see the mapping to the Needs that this requirement supports and the Element allocation (if in Elements mode). You can use this form to make changes or add text. When you change the text of an ARC-IT requirement SET-IT will create a new requirement with the next number in the series. You will notice that the grid is updated with the User Defined checkbox checked.

If you edit the text of an ARC-IT sourced requirement it will include or assign that new requirement to your project but you will then need to use the Requirement Allocation grid to Un-include the original requirement.

You can also use the Details form to assign a requirement to a particular element and to a particular functional object. This will be useful later in the project to generate test verification procedures.

To *delete* a requirement simply highlight the row from the main Requirements grid and click the Delete key.

Requirement Allocation Grid

The two requirements modes apply here as well. In Element mapping mode, the Requirement Allocation grid is used to show how the Elements and their Functional Objects are assigned to requirements.

Element Re	Element Requirements											
	Requirement Allocation											
Include 1	 Priority NOL Applicable 	Element	Functional Object	Number	Requirement The £15 Object shall request permissions from the center that manages permissions requests.	User Defined	More Details					
	Not Applicable	MCDOT CV Roadside	RSE Device Management	01	The field element shall monitor the operational status (state of the device, configuration, and fault data) of		Details					
	Not Applicable	MCDOT CV Roadside	RSE Device Management	02	The field element shall send operational status of connected field equipment to the maintenance center.		Details					
	Not Applicable	MCDOT CV Roadside	RSE Device Management	03	The field element shall send collected fault data to the maintenance center for repair.		Details					
	Not Applicable	MCDOT CV Roadside	RSE Device Management	04	The field element shall include a local interface that provides operational status and fault data for connected field		Details					
	Medium	MCDOT CV Roadside	RSE Device Management	05	The field element shall include a local interface that allows field personnel to command diagnostic tests on		Details					
	Not Applicable	MCDOT CV Roadside	RSE Device Management	06	The field element shall provide operational status information to the Service Monitor.		Details					
	Not Applicable	MCDOT CV Roadside	RSE Device Management	07	The field element shall implement configuration commands received from an authorized Center.		Details					
	Not Applicable	MCDOT CV Roadside	RSE Device Management	08	The field element shall implement operational status commands received from an authorized Center.		Details					
	Not Applicable	MCDOT CV Roadside	RSE Device Management	09	The field element shall implement operational status commands received from authorized Field Support Equipment.		Details					
	Not Applicable	MCDOT CV Roadside	RSE Device Management	10	The field element shall implement configuration commands received from authorized Field Support Equipment.		Details					
	Not Applicable	MCDOT CV Roadside	RSE Environmental Monitoring	01	The field element shall communicate with passing vehicles to collect environmental monitoring data, including		Details					
	Not Applicable	MCDOT CV Roadside	RSE Environmental Monitoring	02	The field element shall aggregate and forward collected environmental probe information to the center.		Details					
	Not Applicable	MCDOT CV Roadside	RSE Environmental Monitoring	03	The field element shall collect environmental monitoring data from sensors, including ambient air quality, emissions,		Details					
	Not Applicable	MCDOT CV Roadside	RSE Environmental Monitoring	04	The field element shall provide application status to the center for monitoring.		Details					
	Not Applicable	MCDOT CV Roadside	RSE Environmental Monitoring	05	The field element shall aggregate and filter the collected environmental data based on configuration parameters		Details					

This provides a way to see what all is assigned to an element. Until the requirement text is tailored this will be mostly Read Only. The columns show the Priority, the Element name, the functional object, the requirement number, and the requirement text. The details button will bring up details as was seen in the previous section where you can edit the text and the other details like the mapping to needs.

In System Requirements mode the Requirement Allocation grid provides a place to see the list of requirements for the system, as defined by the selected service package instance.

s	System Requirements											
					Requirement Allocation							
	Include 🗸	Priority	SP Instance	Number	Requirement	User Defined	More					
F	\checkmark	Medium	TM06.1: Dynamic	1.1	Access Control		Details					
	\checkmark	Medium	TM06.1: Dynamic	1.1.1	The DMS Management System shall enforce access control of all users.		Details					
	\checkmark	Medium	TM06.1: Dynamic	1.1.2	The DMS Management System shall allow the DMS System Manager to assign access control		Details					
	\checkmark	Medium	TM06.1: Dynamic	1.1.3	The DMS Management System shall allow the DMS System Manager to assign access control		Details					
	\checkmark	Medium	TM06.1: Dynamic	1.1.4	The DMS Management System shall allow the DMS System Manager to select the DMS Field		Details					
	\checkmark	Medium	TM06.1: Dynamic	1.1.5	The DMS Management System shall allow the DMS System Manager to control the DMS Field		Details					
	\checkmark	Medium	TM06.1: Dynamic	1.1.6	The DMS Management System shall allow the DMS System Manager to control external devices		Details					
	\checkmark	Medium	TM06.1: Dynamic	1.1.7	The DMS Management System shall allow the DMS System Manager to access its logged data.		Details					
	\checkmark	Medium	TM06.1: Dynamic	1.1.8	The DMS Management System shall allow the DMS System Manager to grant access to the DMS		Details					
	\checkmark	Medium	TM06.1: Dynamic	1.1.9	The DMS Management System shall allow the DMS System User to select DMS Field Equipment.		Details					
	\checkmark	Medium	TM06.1: Dynamic	1.1.10	The DMS Management System shall allow the DMS System User to control DMS Field Equipment.		Details					
	\checkmark	Medium	TM06.1: Dynamic	1.1.11	The DMS Management System shall allow the DMS System User to control external devices.		Details					
	\checkmark	Medium	TM06.1: Dynamic	1.1.11.1	The DMS Management System shall control external devices such as flashers or beacons when		Details					
	\checkmark	Medium	TM06.1: Dynamic	1.1.11.2	The DMS Management System shall allow the DMS System User to specify automatically		Details					

The grid will show the requirement Priority, what Service Package Instance it aligns with, the requirement number, the text, and a flag indicating User Defined. Use the Details grid as shown previously to change the text and characteristics for this requirement.

Needs to Requirements Grid

The Needs to Requirements Grid may at first seem repetitive but it is cleaner to have separate grids for editing the mapping between requirements needs. This Needs to Requirements grid allows the user to focus on need numbers, need text, and corresponding requirement numbers and requirement text. The relevant text can be edited in either the Needs or Requirement grid.

s	System Requirements								
				Needs to Requirements					
	In My Project 🖌	Need Area	Need #	Need	Reg #	Requirement	SP		
Þ	\sim	TM06.1: Dynamic Message	1	Control Access to DMS Management System (Choose the user	1.1	Access Control	TM06		
	\checkmark	TM06.1: Dynamic Message	1.1	The DMS System Manager needs access to the DMS Management	1.1.1	The DMS Management System shall enforce access control	TM06		
		TM06.1: Dynamic Message	1.1.1	The DMS System Manager needs access for DMS Management	1.1.1	The DMS Management System shall enforce access control	TM06		
		TM06.1: Dynamic Message	1.1.1.1	The DMS System Manager needs to configure DMS System User	1.1.2	The DMS Management System shall allow the DMS System	TM06		
		TM06.1: Dynamic Message	1.1.1.2	The DMS System Manager needs to configure DMS System	1.1.3	The DMS Management System shall allow the DMS System	TM06		
L		TM06.1: Dynamic Message	1.1.2	The DMS System Manager needs access to the DMS Management	1.1.4	The DMS Management System shall allow the DMS System	TM06		
L		TM06.1: Dynamic Message	1.1.3	The DMS System Manager needs access to the DMS Management	1.1.5	The DMS Management System shall allow the DMS System	TM06		
L		TM06.1: Dynamic Message	1.1.4	The DMS System Manager needs access to the DMS Management	1.1.6	The DMS Management System shall allow the DMS System	TM06		
L		TM06.1: Dynamic Message	1.1.5	The DMS System Manager needs access to the DMS Management	1.1.7	The DMS Management System shall allow the DMS System	TM06		
		TM06.1: Dynamic Message	1.2	The DMS System User needs access to the DMS Management	1.1.8	The DMS Management System shall allow the DMS System	TM06		
L	Image: A start of the start	TM06.1: Dynamic Message	1.2.1	The DMS System User needs access to the DMS Management	1.1.9	The DMS Management System shall allow the DMS System	TM06		
L	Image: A start of the start	TM06.1: Dynamic Message	1.2.2	The DMS System User needs access to the DMS Management	1.1.10	The DMS Management System shall allow the DMS System	TM06		
L	Image: A start of the start	TM06.1: Dynamic Message	1.2.3	The DMS System User needs access to the DMS Management	1.1.11	The DMS Management System shall allow the DMS System	TM06		
		TM06.1: Dynamic Message	1.2.3	The DMS System User needs access to the DMS Management	1.1.11.1	The DMS Management System shall control external devices	TM06		
		TM06.1: Dynamic Message	1.2.3	The DMS System User needs access to the DMS Management	1.1.11.2	The DMS Management System shall allow the DMS System	TM06		
		TM06.1: Dynamic Message	1.3	The DMS System Maintainer needs access to the DMS	1.1.12	The DMS Management System shall allow the DMS System	TM06		
		TM06.1: Dynamic Message	1.3.1	The DMS System Maintainer needs access to the DMS	1.1.13	The DMS Management System shall allow the DMS System	TM06		
		TM06.1: Dynamic Message	1.3.2	The DMS System Maintainer needs access to the DMS	1.1.14	The DMS Management System shall allow the DMS System	TM06		
		TM06.1: Dynamic Message	1.3.3	The DMS System Maintainer needs access to the DMS	1.1.15	The DMS Management System shall allow the DMS System	TM06		
		TM06.1: Dynamic Message	1.3.4	The DMS System Maintainer needs access to the DMS	1.1.16	The DMS Management System shall allow the DMS System	TM06		
				and any second second second second second		and an and a set of the set of set			

Using the Left Menu

The left menu is a unique way that SET-IT uses to organize the work for developing a project architecture. Depending on the View it will let you see your architecture from different perspectives. In the physical view it is divided into 3 sections: Overview, Diagrams, and Definitions. Clicking on each one brings up a set of button's pertaining to that part of the architecture.



In the Enterprise View there are 2 buttons: Diagrams and Definitions.



In the Communications View there is currently just 1 button: Definitions.



Overview Menu

The Overview menu, available from the Physical View, provides the following buttons to organize high-level information about the project, including:

• Project (basic project scoping information)

- Service Packages (a list of service packages that can or have been included in your project)
- Change Log (a way to list when changes were made and who made them)
- Notes (an area to type notes about the overall project) There are Notes boxes in each View physical, enterprise, and communications.

0	verview
t	
L	Project
	Service Packages
e	Change Log
e	
e	Notes

Diagrams Menu

Diagrams provides a list of the diagrams that have been copied/included from ARC-IT or created from scratch. Once you have selected Diagrams from the left menu and you have a list of diagrams on the left side of the screen there are several options you can do:

- **Sort** Right-click on the area above the first diagram or in any empty areas around the diagram names. A context menu will appear giving you the choice of sorting by the Name of the service package, either ascending or descending, or by the Layer and then the Name, also either ascending or descending. This can be useful once you have a large architecture project with lots of diagrams.
- **Rename** Right-click above one of the diagram names and another context menu appears with more choices, including Rename. Click Rename and a dialog box will open to let you type the new name and say OK or Cancel. SET-IT will automatically change the



name of the service package instance in the Definitions grid.

- **Copy** (no longer an option.) Go to Overview and include another instance of the same service package
- **Delete** Right-click above one of the diagram names and select Delete to simply delete an entire diagram. The definitions of the objects, elements and flows will still be in the database since they may be used on other diagrams. A series of dialog boxes will open to ask if you wish to delete the diagrams from the other views associated with this service package, if you want to remove the entire instance of the service package from the database, and finally to warn you that removing an entire instance of the Service Package cannot be Undone and you can say Yes or No.
- **Completion Status** Right-click over the name button and assign a Completion Status of Started (default), Partial, or Complete. The color of the button will change accordingly so you can see at a glance how far along you are.
 - o Pink/Red = Started
 - Yellow = Partial
 - Green = Complete

When you select Complete a set of queries will run to determine if you have completed the basic steps to edit your diagram. You may be told to open the Diagram Verification tool to see what steps you need to complete the diagram.

NOTE: changing the Diagram Name either on the Left Menu or on the Definitions grid does not change the name of the Service Package Instance. There is a separate grid where you can change that.

Definitions Menu

Definitions: provides a set of buttons that each will show a different component of the architecture and allow you to view and edit the information in a table or *grid* format.

Most grids allow you to view and edit information about components of your architecture. They may also have a Details button that opens a separate form where you can more easily view and edit information about a component.

You can sort the rows in the Definitions grids by simply clicking the header at the top of the column. Click it once to sort in ascending order and click it again to sort in descending order. The sorting function will sort first the column you selected and then sort the columns to the right. You can change how things are sorted by reordering the columns.

To reorder the columns click and hold the header at to top of the column and drag it where you want it to be.

Depending on the grid you can perform other functions to add to and edit your architecture. Some grids like the Service Packages grid are completely read-only. Other grids allow you to edit the information directly on the grid as you would expect to edit a table in a database. Most grids are a hybrid of the two with some columns as read-only and others as editable, like a Comment field. In many cases a Details button will let you see and edit the text and other details about the object.

On those editable grids you can delete a row by selecting the row and clicking the Delete key on the keyboard. You could also delete multiple records or rows by highlighting multiple rows and clicking Delete. Deletions will prompt SET-IT to display a warning message.

You can also add records to some grids directly if they have a row at the bottom with an asterisk on the left.

Start filling in the cells and it will start adding records to the database.

On the grids, the width of the columns can be adjusted.

Color coding or shading is used to indicate which cells are read-only (Blue) and which cells have been customized/edited (Beige or Tan) and which are editable (White) as shown below.

6	Combine Type(s) 🔽 Combine Group(s)								
				Service Package Instances					
ш	SP /	Name	Description	Parent Service Package	Parent Implementation	Service Area	Type(s)	Group(s)	
Þ	SU01	MC Connected Vehicle System Monitor	This service package provides	Connected Vehicle System Monitoring and Management		Support	Support	Core Services	
ш	SU03	MC Data Distribution	This service package manages the	Data Distribution		Support	Informational, Support	Core Services	
ш	SU04	MC Map Management for V2I Safety	Instance of SU04 This service	Map Management		Support	Support	Core Services	
ш	SU05	MC Location and Time Services for V2I	Instance of SU05 This service	Location and Time		Support	Support	Core Services, Security	
ш	SU08	MC Security and Credentials	This service package is used to ensure	Security and Credentials Management		Support	Support	Core Services, Security	
ш	SU09	MC Device Certification and Enrollment	This service package is used to illustrate	Device Certification and Enrollment		Support	Support	Core Services, Security	
ш	SU11	MC DMS Maintenance	This service package supports	Field Equipment Maintenance		Support	Management	Maintenance and Construction	
ш	TI07	MC In-Vehicle Signage	This service package augments	In-Vehicle Signage		Traveler Information	Safety	V2I Safety	
ш	VS05	MC Curve Speed Warning	This service package allows connected	Curve Speed Warning		Vehicle Safety	Safety	V2I Safety	
ш	VS08.3	VS08.3: C-ITS Queue Warning (Queue	Short range communications supports	Queue Warning	C-ITS Queue Warning	Vehicle Safety	Mobility, Safety	Traffic Network, V2I Safety	
ш	VS09.3	VS09.3: C-ITS Reduced Speed Warning	Short range communications provides	Reduced Speed Zone Warning / Lane Closure	C-ITS Reduced Speed Warning	Vehicle Safety	Safety	Maintenance and Construction, Tra	

Editing a cell directly in a grid is done by editing the white or beige cells. A change is committed to the database when you go to a different row or go to another grid. As you start typing you may notice the caret symbol changes to a pencil.

▶	intersection geometry	>	Ø	intersection geometry
---	-----------------------	---	---	-----------------------

Once you commit that change by going to the next row you will see that the icon changes back to the caret.

On many grids you can use the Right-Click Menu to see options to sort the grid by the left column, either A-Z or Z-A.

You can also delete a row by highlighting a row using a Left-Click and then using Right-click and choosing Delete.



Some grids don't support Deleting this way – they require that they be unchecked in order to remove them from an architecture.

SET-IT	×
	You cannot delete ARC-IT Element Requirements. Please uncheck the 'Include' box instead.
	ОК

Some grids don't support editing on the grid directly or have a New row at the bottom. Elements, for instance, can be added by using the New Item menu at the top of the screen. That will add rows to the Elements definitions grid and then you can click the Details button on the Elements grid to edit its characteristics.

General Definitions Grid Features

On many of the Definitions windows you can also select **Details...** in order to edit any of the characteristics about the component using the dialog box format. If it is an ARC-IT defined component, then as you click OK you will be prompted as to whether you want to create a user defined copy of that component.

Undo and Redo are available on the Definitions grid as well.

Some grids like the Physical Information Flow Triples grid can be very wide so the first 3 columns will be frozen so you can keep track of which interface you are working with.

The Definitions grids use color coding to indicate whether or not a cell can be edited – **Blue** for noteditable and **White** for editable.

Another feature of the Definitions windows is the **In My Project** column. Press the check mark to the right of the column name and you can filter between All checked, all unchecked, or all rows allows you to see all of the rows that are actually *in your project*, or all of the rows that are currently *not in your project*, or just all of the rows combined. Sometimes you just want to see the things that pertain to your project vs having to scroll through all of the things from ARC-IT that may not be applicable to your situation. On the other hand, maybe you want to show what's not in your project yet but you may consider adding it.

Definitions			
Deminionis			
Stakeholders	^	In My Project 🖌	Name
			Basic Vehicle
Need Areas			Center
			Connected Vehicle Roadside Equipment
Needs			Field
			ITS Object
Scenarios			Payment Administration Center
			Traffic Management Center
Sequences			Transit Management Center
			Transportation Information Center
Elements			Vehide OBE
			Wireless Communications Provider
Physical Objects			

Other Columns can also be filtered in much the same way. Click on the top right of the column heading to bring up the filters menu. It will open to the Value Filter mode where each row is shown and you can decide which rows or all rows to show.

		Physical C	bjects	
Name /		Descrip	tion	
🗹 (Select All)				
Alerting and Advisory System				^
Alternate Mode Transportation	Center			
Archived Data Administrator				
Archived Data System				
Archived Data User System				
Asset Management System				
Authorizing Center				~
B Text <u>F</u> ilter ▼	∀= <u>A</u> pply	Ҡ Clear	× Cance	el

Or you can press the Text Filter button and you can provide parameters to show rows that contain certain words or phrases.

Show rows where the value			
Contains 🔹	driver]	
ío A <u>n</u> d ⊚ <u>O</u> r			
(Not Set) 🔹]	
-			
i∃ <u>V</u> alue Filter	V= Apply	🕻 Clear 🛛 🗙	<u>C</u> ancel

Then hit Apply to change the listing shown on the grid. Or use the Clear button to go back to the original view.

Filters can be a powerful way to select and review certain parts of your architecture. For example, you can filter the Relationships grid to only show your local/customized agreements by toggling the *User Defined* column.

To *delete* a row from the Definitions grid just highlight that row and click the **<Delete**> key. This will remove the item from the database.

If you delete something that is on the diagram the next time Sync is run it will remove that from the diagram. If your settings show Auto Sync or Always Synchronize then it will be deleted right then, otherwise you will have to push the sync button yourself when you are ready.

Deleting a flow that appears on a diagram will remove the name of the flow but it may leave behind a line with nothing on it. That's OK. The line can be used to add another flow on that interface. Or if that interface is not needed at all then you can manually delete the line on the diagram. Deleting more than one row in a grid is simple – just highlight the rows you want to delete and press the delete key.

TIP: Sometimes the menu items on the **Definitions** grid get sorted or resized and sometimes you could end up with extra space at the top of the left menu. If you notice this happening, simply resize the grid by clicking and dragging the right edge of the menu and moving it slightly to the right or left to force the menu to refresh itself.

Physical View Definitions

The following buttons are listed below for the *Physical* View Definitions menu, each of which corresponds to a table or grid of information:

Service Packages Grid

Service Packages allows you to view the description of the ARC-IT service packages or view/edit User Defined service packages. Use the New menu item to create your own service package from scratch. If a service package is one of the alternative implementations of a service package, e.g., VS09.3 Cooperative-ITS Reduced Speed Warning, then this grid also shows the name of the parent service package that it was derived from, in this case – Reduced Speed Zone Warning / Lane Closure.

Every column in the Service Packages grid is read-only. Use the Details button to edit the information. The following columns are viewable on the Service Packages grid:

- In My Project a flag indicating whether or not a given row is part of your project
- SP the short name for the service package, containing a 2 letter abbreviation for the service package area defined in ARC-IT and a number
- Name the name of the service package
- Parent Service Package the name of the higher-level or parent service package if the row is for a service package implementation
- Description text description of the service package or service package implementation
- Service Area from ARC-IT, a high-level area in which the service package is include, e.g., Vehicle Safety, Support, etc.
- Type(s) also from ARC-IT, the type of services in which the service package is included, e.g., Safety, Management, etc.
- Group(s) also from ARC-IT, the group of services in which the service package is included, e.g., Core Services, Security, etc.
- User Defined a checkbox indicating that the service package has been developed by the user, i.e., not by ARC-IT
- More... a Details button can be clicked to see more information about the service package

Service Package Instances Grid

Service Package Instances allows you to edit the description of the instances of the service packages that are included in your architecture. You can use this form to record the name and description of the service package and assign it to a Type (convenience, environmental, mobility, safety, support) and Group. If a service package instance is one of the alternative implementations of a service package, e.g., "OurCounty Cooperative-ITS Reduced Speed Warning", then this grid also shows the

name of the parent service package that it was derived from, in this case – Reduced Speed Zone Warning / Lane Closure, and the name of the implementation, C-ITS Reduced Speed Warning.

NOTE: Changing the name of a Service Package Instance will also automatically change the name of the Diagram which you can see when you go to the Diagram Information grid or go back to the Diagrams view.

The Name and Description columns are editable. Every other column in the Service Packages grid is read-only. Use the Details button to edit the information. The following columns are viewable on the Service Package Instances grid:

- SP the short name for the service package, containing a 2 letter abbreviation for the service package area defined in ARC-IT and a number
- Name the customized (and editable) name of the service package instance
- Description an editable text description of the service package or service package implementation
- Parent Service Package the service package name from ARC-IT (or from the Service Packages grid if it was user defined. if the row is for a service package implementation
- Parent Implementation the service package implementation name from ARC-IT if the row is for a service package implementation
- Service Area from ARC-IT, a high-level area in which the service package is include, e.g., Vehicle Safety, Support, etc.
- Type(s) also from ARC-IT, the type of services in which the service package is included, e.g., Safety, Management, etc.
- Group(s) also from ARC-IT, the group of services in which the service package is included, e.g., Core Services, Security, etc.
- Readiness an indication of the overall 'Readiness' value for the service package. This
 value is calculated by summing up all of the issues related to communications solutions
 and their severities for each information flow triple in the customized service package
 instance. The value shown on the grid then is the worst of those values. So if one flow is
 not quite ready for deployment, as indicated by a number of issues and given a value of
 "Low" readiness then the entire service package will have that "Low" readiness. Possible
 values are: Impractical, Low, Moderate, High, and Highest
- More... a Details button can be clicked to see more information about the service package instance. The details screen will also show the Worst Readiness Score and the information flows that are contributing or causing that score along with the issues driving that

Service Package Issues

Service Package Issues describes the issues associated with the information flows that make up a service package once it has been customized. As you customize the service packages in your architecture you are creating information flow triples that are mapped to Communications solutions. Each communications solution may have one or more issues associated with it, e.g., the Data Profile is not yet defined, there is an issue on data accuracy, or there are some overlaps that will need to be addressed when the project is deployed. These issues have varying levels of severity and can affect the overall readiness of that service package. This definitions grid provides a way to see the collective set of issues for all of the information flows in that service package instance – how many there are and their overall severity as it pertains to their affect on the readiness to deploy a service. The columns show the worst readiness score for the collective set of issues associated with that

service package. Likewise, for the individual flows it highlights the worst of the issues among those flows and shows what that is. Click Details to see the Service Package Details screen for more information.

Diagram Information

As you select and include service packages into your architecture an entry is added to Diagram Information which you can use to edit information about the diagram, including the Completion Status (started, partial, complete). If you change the status to Complete, then the queries to determine a diagram's completeness will be run. If any issues are found it will tell you to go to the diagram and use the Diagram Verification tool.

Stakeholders

The Stakeholders grid allows you to create a list of stakeholders (name and description) and associate them with different elements.

- Once created, use the details form to associate project stakeholders to the roles they play with respect to elements.
- SET-IT will verify that each role assignment is unique per element.
- You can also create a Stakeholder Group that consists of one or more stakeholders. This may be useful in situations where stakeholders have a joint role with a resource, e.g., the city traffic department and public safety agency have a joint operations center.
- To create a Stakeholder Group start by creating the individual stakeholders and then create the group and select the members of the group from the list of stakeholders.

NOTE: You cannot have Groups of Groups.

Need Areas

The Need Areas grid shows the high level groups of needs such as Safety, Support services, or a user defined area. When a service package is included/imported this also imports a Need Area corresponding to that service package. You can also create your own Need Areas as groupings of needs for your project.

Needs

This grid shows the needs for the project. Needs are statements that describe functionality or capability that is necessary for a service to be provided. They can also be thought of as a problem or issue that is addressed by the functionality or capability provided by an enterprise or institution. SET-IT will warn you if it detects a duplicate need.

Scenarios

The Scenarios grid allows you to enter a name, a high-level description, and an order number of a scenario which describes how the system will be operated under various conditions. These text descriptions will be used to introduce the scenarios sections in the ConOps document. They will be ordered in the document based on the order you provide.

Sequences

The Sequences grid allows you to define sequences of steps that make up a scenario; you can also assign one or more sequences to a physical diagram which connects the scenarios/sequences to a service package. The steps will be created on the diagram itself. Here on the sequence table, you can also assign a style for the background color used on the circles that will be used for the steps: White, Black, or Gray.

Elements

The Elements grid shows the localized or customized representations of physical objects in the architecture.

NOTE: Changing the class of an Element will invalidate the previous physical object mappings and so that element will be removed from any diagrams where it is already mapped.

NOTE: Unmapping some of the physical objects to an element may invalidate the shape properties on some diagrams. If you try to unmap an element to a physical object that is used on a diagram then SET-IT will warn you to first edit the diagram (remove that element from that physical object shape on those diagrams) then you can remove the mapping here.

Cannot Uncheck Physical Object	×
To unmap this physical object from this element you must first remove it from this element's shapes on the following diagram(s): 0 Services Only, Comprehensive Physical 9.0, Comprehensive Physical 9.1, MC Curve Speed Warning, MC Traveler Services	
ОК	

Physical Objects

The Physical Objects grid lists the system, human, and environmental objects that comprise the project. Physical Objects are represented as the larger colored boxes on the physical diagrams that include systems, devices, and users of the transportation systems, defined in ARC-IT. Your project may also contain user defined physical objects.

Functional Objects

Functional Objects represent the set of functions that are subsets of a physical object and support one or more service packages. The Functional Objects grid lets you view the name, description, and physical object assignment for the functional objects included in your project based on the service packages that have been included. Use the "In My Project" filter if you want to see all of the functional objects in that database, including ones that are not yet defined in your project. Use the Details button if you want to read and customize the name or description of the functional object. As with other tables you can edit any user-defined objects freely. If you try to edit the name or description of a functional object from the ARC-IT reference architecture then it will prompt you to see if you want to create a user defined copy.

Information Flows

The Information Flows grid lists the flows of data between physical objects as defined in ARC-IT. May also contain user defined information flows that could be used and selected among service packages in the project. The Information Flow Details screen allows the user to enter a comment about the flow – for instance, why this flow is selected for this particular architecture.

- To delete a user defined flow from your architecture, highlight the row and click <Delete>. This will remove it from being selectable on any of your diagrams.
 NOTE: if you have already used this on a diagram and your Sync settings are such that it will automatically run then you may notice a line with no flow name on it when you look at the diagram again. If you do not need that interface at all and you are not going to replace that with another flow, then just manually select the line on the diagram and delete it.
- You may see a flow called "(None)" if you add a line to a diagram and connect it to 2 physical objects but don't create or assign a flow to that line. Go back to the diagram and delete the line or assign a flow.
- This grid also lets you see, edit, and apply an alias for an information flow. Aliases are ways to further customize your drawings without losing the connection to the ARC-IT reference.

Information Flow Triples

The Information Flow Triples grid lists the collections of locally selected information flows that connect source elements and destination elements along with characteristics for that 'triple'. The Information Flow Details screen allows the user to enter a comment about the flow – for instance, why this flow is selected for this particular architecture. If an alias was applied to a flow that alias will appear in this list with the original flow name in parentheses.

Status Values

Use the Status Values grid to see the list of status values and the order in which they are to be displayed. You can also use this to create your own status value and decide which is the default value. Use the Description field to explain to your audience what certain values mean.

P-Interconnects

The P-Interconnects, short for Physical Interconnects, grid lists the source and destination connections between Physical Objects that are connected together. Use the Details form to see what layer 2 information flows map to a layer 0 or layer 1 physical interconnect.

- NOTE: Not every flow maybe listed under the interconnect. Some flows like "data publication" are known as 'superflows' which are simply collections of information flows defined in ARC-IT that are being carried between elements over some communications path.
- **P-Interconnects** can also have an alias used as a way to customize a Layer 0 or Layer 1 diagram for a project to be more meaningful than the default names used by ARC-IT.

P-Interconnect Triples

The P-Interconnect Triples grid lists the customized physical interconnects (P-Interconnects) which show the source and destination connections between Elements that are connected together in this project architecture. These are based on the flows that go between each element on the customized layer 2 diagrams.

If an alias was applied for a p-interconnect then it will appear in the list with the original P-Interconnect name in parentheses.

Requirements

The Requirements grid has 2 modes – system mode and elements mode depending on the Requirements Settings for the project on the Options menu. In Element mode it lists the Functional Object the requirement is from, the Need that the requirement supports, the unique number for this requirement within that need, the text of the requirement, the source (ARC-IT or other), the Verification method (Demo, Test, Analysis, or Inspection), Type, and a Comment. Use the Details button to edit the text in a separate window.

• ARC-IT's functional requirements have 2-way traceability. They are traced to the Needs that were written for each service package. They are also traced to the functional objects from each of the physical objects.

In System requirements mode it lists the service package (or SP implementation if applicable), requirement number, text, source, verification method, type (functional, performance, etc.), and a comment field.

Requirement Allocation

The Requirement Allocation grid lists the system or functional requirements by Element and Functional Object. In Element mode, this table shows the requirements that are assigned to an element. Entries are added to this grid once an element has been mapped to a physical object on a service package drawing then it inherits the functional requirements written for those functional objects that are in that physical object on the service package.

Here you can click to Include or Un-include a requirement for your project and tailor the requirement to match local concerns. Use the Priority column to assign a relative priority to a requirement. Click the Details... button to add comments or assign verification methods.

In System Requirements mode, this table simply shows the requirements from the previous grid and lets you assign a Priority to the requirements for your project. As with the Element Requirements mode you can also edit or tailor these requirements for your own project's situation.

Needs to Requirements

The Needs to Requirements grid lists the needs and the requirements that they are traced to. This type of Traceability table allows the user to see at a glance how requirements are mapped to needs and needs mapped to requirements. Changes to the text of needs or requirements or the mapping between them will need to be made back on their respective grids.

Standards

The Standards grid lists the standards that are potentially associated with physical or functional objects in this project. This grid is read only so changes to the ARC-IT imported definitions cannot be

overridden. To add a standard to this grid, use the New Item from the menu and create a new standard.

Physical Objects Standards

The Physical Objects Standards grid lists the standards that are associated with physical or functional objects. This grid is read only so changes to the ARC-IT imported definitions cannot be overridden. To add a standard to this grid, use the New Item from the menu and create a new standard and add the physical objects and, optionally functional objects, this standard addresses. To map an existing standard to a new combination of physical/functional objects click the Details button and use the Physical/Functional Object mapping area of the Standards Details form.

• If you edit something on the Standards Details form, it will inform you that the standard is protected and that it will create a user defined version of that standard. It appends a number onto the end of the name and it is recommended that you make sure that is recognizable on your outputs for your project so readers know that it has been customized.



• You can add a physical object standard to this grid by clicking the "In My Project" check mark and change the filter to include all items – False and True. This will add a lot of rows to the table but it will also add a New row to the bottom of the table that will allow you to add a standard and map it directly to a physical and functional object.

Elements Standards

As you create elements and map them to physical objects and/or functional objects for which a physical standard has been defined then it will appear in this grid. Some physical standards are mapped to an entire physical object and as soon as you map an element to that physical object it will show up in the Elements Standards grid. Others are specific about which functional object they are mapped to so the element must be mapped to one of those functional objects. This happens as you assign elements to your service packages that show the physical and functional objects needed to implement a particular service. This grid has a Comment cell perhaps to indicate something specific about how an element is implementing a standard. This grid has a Details grid that shows the full list of standards associated with this Element and lets you Include or Un-Include a standard for that element.

5	Element's Physical Standards		-	- 🗆	×
	Element MCDOT Detectors				
	Title	Document #	Include	Override	
	Intelligent transport systems Communications access for land mobiles (CALM) Architecture	ISO 21217			
	Advanced Transportation Controller	ITE ATC 5201			
	Model 2070 Controller Standard	ITE ATC 5202			
	Intelligent Transportation System Standard Specification for Roadside Cabinets	ITE ATC 5301	\checkmark		
	Application Programming Interface Standard for the Advanced Transportation Controller	ITE ATC 5401			
	Portable Traffic Signal Systems (PTSS) Standard	NEMA TS 5			
	Cyber and Physical Security for Intelligent Transportation Systems	NEMA TS 8	\checkmark		
	Traffic Controller Assemblies with NTCIP Requirements	NEMA TS2			
	Hardware Standards for Dynamic Message Signs (DMS) With NTCIP Requirements	NEMA TS4	\checkmark		
	Security Requirements for Cryptographic Modules	NIST FIPS PUB 140			
Fo	m Source: Grid - Elements Standards			Clo	se

If you change a mapping that was provided by ARC-IT, then the Override box will be checked. You can click the Restore button and it will restore the standards that should be mapped to that element based on ARC-IT's mappings.

Assumptions and Constraints

This Assumptions and Constraints grid is used to capture any assumptions or constraints applicable to the changes and new features that will affect users during the life cycle of the new or modified system. An assumption is a condition that is taken to be true, e.g., the system workload will double over the next two years, thus a new system with higher performance is required. A constraint is an externally imposed limitation placed on the new or modified system or the processes used, e.g., external interface requirements and limits on schedule and budget. This table can be output from the Output / Tables menu or included as a section in your Concept of Operations (ConOps) document.

Enterprise View Definitions

The following buttons are shown on the *Enterprise* View Definitions menu:

- Service Package Instances see above
- Service Packages see above
- Diagram Information see above
- Stakeholders see above
- Elements see above
- Status Values see above
- Stakeholder Roles a grid showing the relationships that stakeholders have with respect to the Elements. The columns include:
 - o Stakeholder
 - Role: manages, owns, operates, uses, etc. (if this field is blank, it may mean that no role has been defined yet. Click Details to update the roles for this element)
 - o Element

- Status (sometimes you may define the current operator but then identify another stakeholder that will operate the element after the system is deployed)
- Details... use this button to open the Elements Details form (yes, the Elements form) and you can go down to the stakeholder section and update the stakeholders and the roles they play with the element.
- Resources the boxes on the enterprise diagrams that include systems, devices, and facilities of the connected vehicle environment, defined in ARC-IT.
- Roles the relationships on the enterprise view diagrams that represent the way in which an enterprise object participates in a relationship from ARC-IT; an object's set of behaviors and actions associated with the relationship of that object with other objects.
 - The Required column lets you indicate which roles you want to see for each stakeholder and element.
- Agreements the relationships on the enterprise view that represent the formal points of coordination between enterprise objects from ARC-IT; how they agree to interact with each other in order for a service to be provided.
- Agreement Types a read-only grid showing the various types of agreements that are used in ARC-IT and can form the basis for the project-specific agreements you define on the Agreements and Relationships grid.
- Expectations the relationships (lines) on the enterprise view that represent less formal points of coordination between enterprise objects from ARC-IT; how they expect one another to act and behave in the cooperative connected vehicle environment
- Relationships the localized or customize set of relationships between stakeholders on the SET-IT project architecture enterprise view diagrams may include agreements, expectations, or roles. Sorted by Service Package and life-cycle stage. These can be customized for your project by clicking Details and opening the same Agreements form available from the Agreements grid, described above.

Communications View Definitions

The graphic below depicts the buttons that make up the Definitions menu for the Communications View. Jump to the list <u>below</u> to see what information they include.



The following buttons are shown on the *Communications* View Definitions menu:

Flow Triples to Solutions – This shows the mapping of information flows from the
Physical View to the Communications Solutions. The information in this table is what
drives the content for the creation of the Communications Diagrams. See
"Communications Diagrams" in the Outputs section below. On the Details screen that
accompanies this grid you can see which issues pertain to this Flow Triple Solution
combination and can click the Ignore flag to cause the Readiness calculator to update the
readiness of any service package that uses just this information flow triple and solution
combination.

- Solutions This lists the communications solutions used and available to the project. Each consists of a communications and a data profile. This grid also shows the Solutions Issue Score to indicate the relative readiness of a solution for deployment.
- Issues This lists the severity, name, type, and description of the issues that have been attributed to standards and/or layers of the communications solutions in your project. It also includes an "Ignore" flag to indicate that this issue will not be used in the calculation of the 'readiness' or viability of a communication solution or used when those solution readiness values are rolled up to form the overall readiness for a service package. The solution score calculator considers any triple solution issue level ignore settings to determine solution scores for specific triples.
- Service Package Issues This includes the overall readiness level and a list of issues for each service package instance. The Ignore flag indicates that an issue assigned to one of the communication solutions for the flows in that service package has been ignored. This can affect the Readiness level for the Service Package.

Readiness	Readiness Value Description
Highest	Suitable for wide-scale deployment when applied to the triples it supports.
High	A small number of minor issues. Suitable for wide-scale deployment when applied to the triples it supports, though issues exist which should be considered.
Moderate	One significant or several minor issues. Suitable for pilot deployments, but fails to provide sufficient interoperability, management, and security to enable proper, full-scale deployment.
Low	One serious or several significant issues. Not suitable for any deployment. Fails to provide even a base level of interoperability and security as recommended for pilot deployments.
Impractical	Many serious issues. Not suitable for any deployment. Standardization efforts not begun.

Readiness Levels have the following values:

- Profiles –This lists the standards profiles that are used to carry out the communications of information in your project, or the characterize the data to be stored, distributed, and communicated with other systems. For each profile, the tables show the short name, the long name, type, the description of the profile, an editable comment, a checkbox of whether it is User Defined, and a checkbox of whether it is currently included in your project.
- P-Interconnects This lists the physical interconnects from the physical view and their characteristics. You must have a Layer 0 or Layer 1 drawing in the Physical View for this to be populated.
- Standards This lists the standards that are included in the ARC-IT database tables and have been assigned to a profile in your project. The table shows the name, the Standards Development Organization (SDO) that developed the standard, the Document number, the Document Title, a Description or abstract of the standard, and a checkbox indicating if the standard is user defined. Standards can be created in SET-IT in cases where the user

knows of a new or different standard that will be needed for a particular interface. You can add user defined standards to with the New Item menu.

- Standard Bundles This lists groups of standards that combine to provide part of a data or communications profile.
- Assumptions and Constraints This list is shared with the Physical view and lists things that the project implementers need to know what is assumed to be true and needs to be factored into the development or what issues will constrain the development or operation in some way.

To add entries to one of the Communications tables described above go to New Item menu at the top of the screen to create a new Communications Profile, Data Profile, Standard, or Solution. You will be able to create a new user defined Issue from the Standards details form.

Review

SET-IT provides tools to Review your architecture, including a Spell Check tool and several Validation reports and a Flow Validation tool.



Spell Check

SET-IT includes a Spell Check utility to review all user defined items in your architecture including elements and stakeholders. From the Review menu select the **Spelling** Button and SET-IT will analyze all of the information contained in the database and open a Spelling Errors window. This Spelling Errors window shows all of the objects, elements, flows, and other architecture components that have a spelling error of some sort.

🕤 🔊 - 🔃 🛃 = SET-IT - C:\SETIT\V2I Safety Initiative t\V2I Safety Initiative t.								
Project Home Review Output								
Overview	Overview Soelling Errors							
	Field(s) Containing Err	ors Type	User Defined	Name	Descrip			
Desirat	Description	Element		MC Freeway Management Center	MCDOT has deployed two compute			
Project	Description	Element		MC Freeway Operators	Marinara County Department of Tra			
Cardina Dada ana	Description	Element		Security Credentials Management	The Security Credentials Manageme			
Service Packages	Description	Service Package Instance		Asset Tracking Based Infrastructure	MC10 includes the capability to not			
	Description	Service Package Instance		C-ITS Based Monitoring	Communicate with cooperative veh			
Change Log	Description	Service Package Instance		C-ITS Based Monitoring	Communicate with cooperative veh			
	Description	Service Package Instance		C-ITS Communications	Use CVRSE field equipment to collect			
	Description	Service Package Instance		C-ITS Queue Warning	Short range communications support			
	Description	Service Package Instance		C-ITS Reduced Speed Warning	Short range communications provid			
Spelling Errors	Description	Service Package Instance		Dynamic Ridesharing	Covers both implementations for dy			

Open one of the records by double-clicking on the fields and the Details form will open for that item.

Spelling errors are shown with a red line under them. SET-IT's Spell Check utility works like most Spelling applications. Once you see a spelling error right-click over the word and a menu will be shown with alternative spellings and options to ignore the error or add it to your local Dictionary.

the ODE's param=	tere		
		parameters	Γ
		Ignore All	
		Add to Dictionary	
	abç	Spell	

Clicking the "Spell" option opens a separate window for the Spelling application and provides additional detailed options as shown below:

Spelling			×
Not in Dictionary:	paramaters		
Change <u>T</u> o:	parameters		
Suggestio <u>n</u> s:	parameters	<u>l</u> gnore	Ignore All
		<u>C</u> hange	Change A <u>l</u> l
		<u>A</u> dd	Suggest
			<u>C</u> ancel

Note: The Spell Check utility that is running on all text fields will only highlight misspelled words that contain letters. If a word has a number in it Spell Check will ignore that.

Validation

In the Validation group there are 2 buttons: Validate and Flows.

The **Validate** button opens a window that allows you to decide what parts of your architecture to check for errors, consistency across the architecture, and items that need to be completed. This step is also called Validation.

There are different menu areas for each View of the architecture and a General area for general areas to look for during validation. Click the box for the view you are interested in and use the checkboxes to select what items to look for.



Physical View Validation Checks

S Project Validation —		×		
Physical View Check that each physical object has an element assigned to it Identify functional objects that are not contained within elements/physical objects Identify balancing inconsistencies between layer 0, 1, and 2 physical diagrams Verify that sequences are associated with a diagram Verify that sequences are associated with a diagram Identify disconnected flows Identify missing/extra functional objects Identify missing element to ITS Object functional object assignments Identify unused element information flow triples missing physical objects assignment Identify element information flow triples Identify element information flow triples duplicates Identify needs to requirement mapping issues Identify requirement to functional object mapping issues Identify requirement to functional object mapping issues Identify suspicious status assignments Verify that each system element has required roles Verify that resources map to physical object elements				
Select All	Deselect All			
Select Action Save to File Open Application Create Output Roll up multiple rows into a single row Ward				

From the Physical View validation area, you can choose to run the following checks:

- Physical objects without element mappings (the connections between the generic ARC-IT physical objects and the local/project specific elements in your project)
- Functional objects that are not contained within elements/physical objects
- Balancing inconsistencies between Layers 0, 1, and 2 physical diagrams, such as flows that may have been deleted after you generated an upper layer diagram or interconnects that were disconnected on an upper layer diagram during the editing process
- Sequences that are not associated with at least one diagram
- Disconnected Flows (flows on a diagram that are not connected on one end or the other)
- Information flows with missing functional objects

- Missing element to ITS Object functional object assignments
 - Functional objects like "Management Support" and "Communications Support" are meant to provide the underlying functionality that applies to any subsystem PObject mapped ITS element in the project. This will indicate if those supporting functional assignments are missing and which diagram it appears. Consider including some of the Support service packages in your project that will add these support functions to your elements for a complete view of how the systems in your project will serve their transportation needs as well as be supported from an information technology (IT) perspective.
- Element information flow triples that are missing physical object assignments
- Unused Element information flow triples triples defined in the grid that do not appear on any diagram
- Element information flow triples that are duplicated on the same diagram
- Element mapped to an unrelated physical object (when a project is imported from RAD-IT that had an unusually complex mapping)
- Need to Requirement mappings issues orphaned needs with no requirements traced to them or orphaned requirements that don't trace back to a least one need
- Requirement to Functional Object mapping issues orphans, either requirements that do not trace to a functional object or functional objects without any requirements
- Requirement Verification issues requirements that are missing a verification method
- Suspicious status assignments flows where the status is out of sync with the source or destination
 - This would, for example, highlight flows where the status might be Existing but the source or destination elements is still Planned.

Enterprise View Validation Checks



From the Enterprise View section you can choose to run the following checks:

• Unassigned stakeholders (stakeholders that have been defined but not assigned to any role with any of the elements)

- Check that each system element has the required roles (based on the Roles definitions grid in Enterprise View)
- Resources from the Enterprise view not mapped to physical object elements
 - In ARC-IT there is a relationship between resources in the enterprise view and the physical objects in the physical view. For a project architecture this means that your project's elements are really both Resources and Physical Objects. This report will make sure that's the case.
- Relationships that are between something other than enterprise objects
- Roles that are between something other than enterprise objects and their resources
- Resources that have multiple stakeholders that have the same role and status
- Relationships with no agreement assignments.
 - Recall that relationships are the un-customized enterprise agreements or expectations provided by ARC-IT. This determines whether the enterprise agreements that ARC-IT has match what agreements that are defined for your project and/or region that's implementing this project. The un-customized agreements or expectations show up on the enterprise drawing as italicized text with curly braces.

Communications View Validation Checks



From the Communications View section you can choose to run the following check:

• Identify Flow Triples mapped to user defined solutions.

General Validation Checks

5	Project Validation
9	Project Validation Project Validation Physical View Project Validation Physical View Project Validation Project Validation Physical View Project Validation Project Validation
	Identify unused user-defined objects

The General section lets you check for larger issues that may be spread across different architecture views.

- "Identify invalid shapes" checks the diagrams across all the views to see if something other than one of the shapes from the SET-IT stencil have been pasted onto a diagram.
- Elements with missing descriptions
- Functional Objects with missing descriptions
- Stakeholders with missing descriptions
- "Identify unused user defined objects" looks for user defined physical objects, elements, enterprises, agreements, flows, etc. that are not used on any diagram or connected in any way to any other part of the architecture.
- Physical Objects with missing descriptions

Use the Select All or Deselect All buttons as shortcuts.

Once the options are set, use the radio buttons to select whether to **Save** the results to a file (Word, Excel, or as a text file) or to **Open an Application** (Word or Excel) to view the results.

TIP: If you find yourself running the same validation reports over and over again then you can use the <u>Project / Options menu</u> and set the validation options you want to be your defaults.

TIP: if there is just one thing you want to check then be sure to click the "Deselect All" button first. Sometimes there are boxes checked on other tabs that you may not be aware of and will get a longer report than you expected.

Validate Flows Tool

During conversion Sync will look at the various information flow combinations. Architectures developed in previous versions may have had flows developed around the Element Triples – the

source and destination elements and the flow name. However, conversion may have increased the number of physical objects that element was assigned to. The sync process now needs to determine which combination of physical objects to use for that triple.

This is also available from the Review menubar.



Click Review at the top of the menubar and 'Flows' in the Project Validation area to bring up the Element Flow Triples Review form below for complicated triple combinations.

You are directed to look through the list and double-click the combinations you don't want to see in your converted/synchronized architecture. Once you double-click a row it will show up as red to indicate that it will be removed from the database when you click 'Apply'.

S Element Flow Triples Review	—		×
Review the following Element-Flow Triples and select the extra PObjects that you want to be removed by double clicking the node			
MC Freeway Management Center (BASIL/PINCH) -> center operator data -> MC Freeway Operators Traffic Management Center -> Traffic Operations Personnel Center -> Center Personnel -> ARC-1T [ReadOnly] Center -> Center operator input -> MC Freeway Management Center (BASIL/PINCH) Traffic Operations Personnel -> Traffic Management Center Traffic Operations Personnel -> Center Center Personnel -> Center -> Traffic Management Center Center Personnel -> Center -> Traffic Management Center Traffic Operations Personnel -> Center Traffic Operations Traffic Operati			
* Rows with light-blue background color are Read-Only * Rows with red background color are selected and will be deleted Select All Deselect All		Арр	ŀy

The Auto Select button will choose the combinations that are least likely – flows to or from the ITS Object or the generic 'Center' object, for instance. This will likely be a good thing to do, particularly for large complex architectures. Then you can review the red lines that were autoselected and use double-click the individual combinations further. There are also Select All and a Deselect All buttons if that helps.
When you done deciding which combinations to remove, click the Apply button. You will be asked if you are sure.

Warning		×
	Selected rows (highlighted in Red) will be deleted. Are you sure you want to continue?	
	<u>Y</u> es <u>N</u> o	

This tool is also part of the conversion process when a project is opened from a previous version.

Outputs

This section describes how to generate outputs using SET-IT to explain your project with Tables, Documents, and Diagrams.

If you are using a cloud-based or network-based storage system like OneDrive or Drop Box that try to synchronize your local files over a network then you may get a message that you have a "Locked File Selected" and "The selected file appears to already be open in another application. Please close the other application so SET-IT has exclusive access to the file." If this happens, you can still close SET-IT and your information is still stored. To avoid this message, go into the settings for the file sharing program, e.g., Drop Box, and pause synchronization until you are done generating the tables, documents, diagrams, or web pages.

Output Tables (Reports)

SET-IT includes tools to let you generate reports or outputs in tabular form that you can use to generate documents or presentations about your project.

From the Outputs tool bar, click **Tables** to bring up the **Output Tables** dialog.

Output Tables (Reports) Dialog Screen

Click the 1st pull-down to **Select Table**. You can scroll through the categories to find the report you want.

In the 2nd area select from the Available Columns which will vary depending on the table selected in the first step.

Use the left arrow to select individual columns to include (they will then move to the Selected Columns table). You can also use the double left arrow to include all the columns.

S Output Tables	×
1. Select Table Options Filter By Elements	
 Physical View Elements Physical Objects Functional Objects Information Flows Information Flow Triples Security Characteristics Analysis P-Interconnect P-Interconnect Triples P-Interconnects to Flows mapping Physical Objects Standards Elements Standards 	*
2. Select Columns	
Available Columns Selected Columns Available Columns Selected Columns Abbreviation Name Class Description Parent Stakeholder(s) Diagram Selected Columns Child Element(s) Selected Columns Physical Object(s) Selected Columns	▲. ▼
 3. Select Action Save to File Open Application 4. Create Output Word Excel 	

Select Action: you can simply Save the output to a File or choose to open the Application by selecting the appropriate radio button.

Create Output: here you can decide whether it should be in Word, Excel, or straight text format. Text, or Comma Separated Variable (CSV) format, would be useful if you were going to import the data into another type of application.

Output Tables Options

At the top of the Output Tables window is an "Options" button.

互 Output Tables		×
1. Select Table	Options	er By Elements
Physical View Eements Physical Objects Functional Objects Information Flows		^

This opens the same options window available from the File / Options / Output menu.

SET-IT Options	
Output	Output options
Diagrams	Tables
Synchronization	 Include all possible rows in the table Show only rows specifically associated with the project
Requirements Project Validation	. Roll up multiple rows into a single row
Diagram Verification	
Output	

These options are used to change how the reports or Output tables will look, including:

- A set of radio buttons to choose whether your tables include all possible rows from the database or only the rows specifically associated with your project.
 TIP: You may not want to see data on all possible ARC-IT components so click "Show only
- rows specifically associated with the project".2. A checkbox to roll up (or merge) identical data in multiple rows into a single cell.

Output Filter by Elements

Clicking the 'Filter by Elements' button at the top of the Output Tables screen changes the Output window.

互 Output Tables	×
1. Select Table	Options Filter By Elements
Physical View Eements Physical Objects	^
Functional Objects Information Flows	

The Output Tables window expands to show the list of elements on the right of the screen.



The Output Tables window expands to show the entire list of Elements in your project on the right of the screen. There are 2 buttons at the bottom: "Select All" and "Deselect All". The left of the screen changed to visually show the user that the results of the outputs will be "Impacted by Elements Filter". The "Filter by Elements" button also changed to say "Remove Filter" so it acts like a toggle if the user no longer wants to filter by elements.

This allows you to select or deselect elements by which you may want to filter the outputs. For example, if you only wanted to see Information Flows associated with a single element, e.g. the Freeway Management Center, you would do the following:

- 1. Highlight the Information Flows output on the left
- 2. Click the "Filter by Elements" button at the top
- 3. Click the "Deselect All" button

- 4. Click just the checkbox for the Freeway Management Center
- 5. Click to select the Available columns to include in the output
- 6. click to Select Action save to file or open the application

Click the Remove Filter to restore the outputs to include all possible elements.

Output Tables (Reports) – Current List of Reports

The following is the list of Tables that can be generated from the current version of SET-IT. Future releases of SET-IT will include more ways to generate outputs from your project file.

Project / File Info Outputs

The following is the list of tables describing the project or the SET-IT file:

- Project Summary
- Change Log
- Service Packages
- Diagram Information
- Status Values
- Stakeholders including whether a stakeholder is a group and if so, what are its members
- o Assumptions and Constraints

Needs & Requirements Outputs

The following is the list of tables describing the needs and requirements for the project:

- Need Areas
- o Needs
- Requirements including options to show the related Needs or the related Elements and Functional Objects the requirements trace to.

Physical View Outputs

The following is the list of tables describing the physical view for the project:

- o Elements
- Physical Objects
- Functional Objects
- Information Flows
- Information Flow Triples (customized source, destination elements and the flows between them; use this to create tables sorted by service package instance, also)
- Security Characteristics Analysis (shows the Confidentiality, Integrity, and Availability (CIA) values and their rationale for the information flow triples in the architecture including the diagrams where the triple is used)
- P-Interconnects (Layer 0 or 1 physical interconnects between physical objects)
- P-Interconnect Triples
- P-Interconnects to Flows mapping

- Physical Objects Standards
- Elements Standards (the physical objects above that apply to your project's elements)

Enterprise View Outputs

The following is the list of tables describing the enterprise view for the project:

- o Elements
- Enterprise Objects
- Stakeholders to Enterprise Objects
- Resources
- o Roles
- o Agreements
- Expectations
- Relationships (customized agreements, expectations, and other relationships that exist between stakeholders)

Communications View Outputs

The following is the list of tables describing the communications view for the project:

- Triple Solutions and Interface Readiness (for a given source/destination/flow triple and the selected communications solution, this shows the Computed Issue Severity which is the sum of the values of the issues associated with the triple solution, indicated as Lowest, Low, Moderate, High, Highest)
- Standards (lists only standards associated with an information flow triple through a solution in the project, also indicates a Bundle of which the standard may be a part)
- Standard Bundles
- Solutions to Standards
- Profiles to Standards
- Triple Solutions to Issues (issues mapped at the information flow triple and the solutions level. The ignore flag will indicate whether a particular issue has been set to be ignored by the readiness calculator for that issue.)
- Solutions to Issues (issues mapped to each solution in the project, see note above about the Ignore flag.)
- Available Solutions (all communications solutions available to the project)
- Available Profiles (all communications and data profiles available to the project)
- Available Standards (all standards available to the project)
- Available Solutions to Issues (see note above about the Ignore flag)
- Service Readiness (includes the overall readiness level and a list of issues for each service package instance and which information flow triples have that issue. It also indicates when a particular issue has been Ignored on the Issues grid.)

Note: For the Communications View outputs Groups or Bundles of Standards will be broken out so the outputs will show all of the individual standards mapped to a profile or solution.

Scenarios

The following is the list of tables describing the operational scenarios defined for the project:

- o Scenarios
- o Sequences
- Sequence Steps

Output Documents

SET-IT includes tools to let you generate a complete document based on the information in SET-IT about your project.

From the Outputs tool bar, click **Documents** and choose from the list of documents.



General document capabilities include the ability to Setup, Create, and View the document. The setup area allows you to establish general data for the document and edit the word template. A "Ready to Create" button can be used to see if there are parts of the template that will be used to generate your document that still need to be customized or established.

Concept of Operations Document Generation

A Concept of Operations document describes the current state of operations, establishes the reasons for change, and defines operations for the future in terms of functions/features and supporting operations. For connected vehicle projects a ConOps establishes the driving needs for the project, shows the high-level physical and enterprise architecture view in both diagrams and definitions based on ARC-IT, and a set of operational scenarios.

Notes sections are automatically included if you entered Notes into the fields on the Overview menus in either the Enterprise or Physical views. Enterprise view notes will be included in the enterprise portion of the System Description section and Physical view notes will be included in the physical portion of the System Description section.

SET-IT supports the generation of a ConOps with general and content specific setup choices.

Document Setup	×
General Content	
Document Setup	
Folder C:\SETIT\Our Town 2	Browse
Description of the second	
Our Town 2 RSL ConOps.doc	
Decument Template	
ConOps (ISO 29148) Template	✓ Edit
Restore Template	
Title Page Information	Use Template
Concept of Operations	for the BSL project
Author(s)	Organization
Version	Agency Our Town DOT
Date 08/29/2023 Use Today's Date	
	Ready to Create? Close

The document Setup window has 2 tabs: General and Content. The General tab has several features. The top area sets up the file information – folder location, filename, and the document template to use. The bottom area sets up what will appear on the title page or in the version control page behind the title page.

On either tab, you can also select "Use Template" and the bottom fields will be greyed out.

The Edit Template button launches Microsoft Word file called a template (has a .dot file extension). A template file is used when you expect to use the same pattern on multiple documents. With SET-IT editing the template allows you to make changes to the template that will be used to generate the whole document. You can then let SET-IT save those changes for the next time you update the document.

Click on the Edit Template button when you have selected a particular section on the Content tab and Word will open the template and jump to that section.

There are 3 templates to choose from:

- ConOps (Ref Implementation) Template.dot
- o ConOps (ISO 29148) Template.dot
- ConOps (Model Document) Template.dot

The first template is based on the Reference Implementation of the Connected Vehicle Reference Implementation Architecture that was developed for the testbed project in Southeast Michigan. The outline for that project started with IEEE Standard 1362 (superseded by ISO 29148) and then was customized to meet the needs of the project – some sections were moved around and some were omitted as not applicable.

The second is based on the base outline of the International Standards Organization (ISO) Standard 29148, which has superseded IEEE 1362, and is useful when contract requirements dictate that standard or anytime the needs of the project are different than the needs that were driving the reference implementation project.

A third template is available that is derived from the outline used for FHWA's Model Systems Engineering documents for ITS projects like Closed Circuit Television (CCTV), advanced signal control, and Dynamic Message Sign (DMS) deployments. This outline was based originally on the American National Standards Institute / American Institute of Aeronautics and Astronautics (ANSI/AIAA) G-043-1992 standard.

In all 3 templates, there are sections for you to provide background about the project and how the project will be developed and used in the future. The ConOps generated by either template will include diagrams and tables that are maintained in SET-IT.

Start with either template and customize it to suit your project's needs. Confer with your stakeholders and sponsors, first.

TIP: Use the **Edit Template** feature to develop your project specific content that the architecture views don't include, e.g., high-level background about the project. You don't want to wait until SET-IT is done to edit the document. That way SET-IT won't know how to store extra information. By editing the *template* and then generating the document you can reuse that descriptive information and store it with the other definitions and your project diagrams.

The next tab on the Document Setup window is the Content tab as shown below (using the ISO 29148 outline):

Seneral Content	
Concept of Operations Outline	Chapter Properties
 Scope Identification Document Overview System Overview References Current Situation Justification For Changes Proposed System Background, Objectives, and Scope Policies/Constraints System Description Physical Layer 0 Physical Layer 1 Physical Layer 1 Physical Context Diagrams Enterprise View Enterprise View Enterprise Context Diagrams Modes of Operation User Classes and Other Involved Person Support Environment Operational Impacts Organizational Impacts Organizational Impacts Analysis of the Proposed System 	Include this chapter SET-IT provides automated content for this chapter. Use the options below to control the automated content and edit the template to customize the introductory text. Edit Template Chapter Title Use Template Title Physical - Layer 1 Include Diagrams OurTown Interconnect Perspectives Chapter Options Include Functional Objects Table Include Status in Functional Object Table

SET-IT is showing the outline discussed above and as you click on each section on the left side you will see some information about that section on the right.

You can also decide to exclude a section entirely by unchecking the box at the top. You can change the title of that section in the field shown on this screen or check the Use Template box and SET-IT will pick up the name as it's called in the word template you will edit.

There are several sections of the ConOps that have content that is stored in SET-IT, either diagrams or tables. For example, the Needs that are part of the justification for the new system are stored in the Needs table that was imported and edited in the Definitions menu's Needs grid. See the "Needs"

section for more on the editing process. Now, when you are ready to include them in the document you can see that they are entered as a table. In the editing process you may have imported or created needs that were checked as "Info Only". An Info Only need is like a heading or just explanatory text rather than the text of a need for the system. When the document is generated it will look to see if there are any Info Only needs. If so, it will break up the Needs table and make the Info Only need entries be a table caption for that portion of the Needs. If there are multiple Info Only needs in a row then it will pull them out and make them look different with the last Info Only need being the table caption.

Any Info Only needs that are too long to be used as a table caption will just be pulled out as highlighted text. It is recommended that you will need to do some editing of your needs before and of the document after generation to get everything to look just right.

To include diagrams that you generated in SET-IT look at the System Description section of the outline and click on the type of diagram. For instance, click on Physical Layer 0 on the left and it will show you the diagram(s) in SET-IT to include in this section – use the check boxes to select which ones to copy into the document. It will also show the information that will be published in the form of tables and you can decide which ones to include or exclude. For the Context Diagrams there is an option to "Let me select an existing Visio drawing" which may be useful if you have previously generated context diagrams. This could shorten the overall document generation process.

NOTE: if an alias has been applied to a flow that alias will be shown on the diagrams instead of the original flow name. Use the Apply Alias check box on the Flow Details form or on the Information Flows Definitions grid.

SET-IT might say that there is nothing system generated about a section and that you should **edit the template** to write about it by replacing the paragraphs or statements that start with "{**" and end with "**}".

To Edit the Template, click the "Edit" button next to the Document Template box on the General tab or click the "Edit Template" on the Content tab.

Clicking "Edit Template" will open a word file called ConOpsTemplate.dot which is a word file used to be a template for other documents. You can edit and should edit this file to update the areas between the "{**" and "**}" marks. When you are done Save and exit word. Making changes in this way will allow you to be able to keep things that you have written while continuing to make changes to the architecture in SET-IT.

TIP: You may notice sometime that your ConOps Template (.dot) file opens as "Read-Only". This can happen if you had already generated a draft of your ConOps using the Create step (described below) and that document is still open. If that happens and you need to make updates to the ConOps Template file, simply close both (or all) copies of Word that are open and go back to SET-IT and click the "Edit Template" button again.

One of the diagram types you can include is the Context Diagram. These are described in the Context Diagrams section below. Basically, for the Physical View, they allow you to take each element

in the inventory of customized physical objects and it will draw a picture of all of the other elements with which it interfaces (information flows). Likewise, for Enterprise View, this feature will take each stakeholder and it will draw a picture of all of the other stakeholders with which it interacts (agreements, expectations).

To include Context Diagrams you now have a choice: you can select from existing diagrams or let the Document Generator create and insert new diagrams when you click the Create button.

The Context Diagrams portion of the Content setup screen for Context Diagrams is shown below:



On the left side of the Content tab select the 'Physical Context Diagrams' section. On the right side of the Content tab select which diagrams to include and when the Create button is pushed it will regenerate the latest diagrams for those elements. With the "Include Diagrams" area you can decide for which elements to generate diagrams. For instance, you can decide to only include diagrams for the major center systems in your ConOps. Any previously selected elements will be shown at the top of the list.

Alternatively, you can click the 'Let me select an existing Visio drawing,' and it will prompt you for the file location and name when it gets to that portion of the Document generation process.

This "Select an existing Visio drawing" box will save some time generating the document. If, on the other hand, you have made changes to your architecture and you haven't generated context diagrams recently, then un-check that box and it will process the diagrams, generate the diagram file, and include them in your ConOps.

You can also include Layer 0 or Layer 1 diagrams as part of your ConOps. Recall that Layer 0 diagrams have only the Physical Objects and their interconnects. Layer 1 diagrams add the functional objects. You can have more than one Layer 1 diagram.

NOTE: Sometimes the Layer 0 or Layer 1 diagrams are too large to fit on a page and may try and bleed into the next page. If this happens you can use Word to edit the output to make sure the diagram fits on a page. You may also be able to change the page size to accept a larger diagram – like an 11x17 fold-out page.

The **Operational Scenarios** section allows you to select the scenarios you created along with the sequence of steps. It will include the layer 2 physical diagram with the marked sequence steps showing and tables that list the steps along with their associated flows and objects, if applicable. Your ConOps can include one or more Scenarios. Each Scenario may include one or more sequences. Sometimes Scenarios may involve multiple service packages; for example, a System Support scenario might include sequences involve security credentials, object registration, and system monitoring. In those cases that scenario would have 3 sub-sections for each service package drawing with the sequence steps for each of those service packages shown.

After your document settings are setup on the General and the Content tabs you can press the "**Ready to Create?**" button to see if you really are ready. This will produce a To-Do-List Report in Word showing areas where the template hasn't been customized yet or that no diagrams are selected. It will also let you see where you have Scenarios or Sequences but haven't assigned any Sequence Steps to any of your diagrams. You can go back and edit the architecture, change the settings, and close this window.

Once you are ready then select **Create** – the progress window will show what it is doing and tell you when it is done. Then you can **View** that document in Word.

Note the cover page includes the title, subtitle, author, and other information from the Setup screen along with an icon indicating that this document was developed using SET-IT.

TIP: Use Save As to save a copy of the document and then as you make changes and add to your architecture you can regenerate the ConOps document without losing the earlier drafts.

NOTE: One issue that has reoccurred on a sporadic basis is an error that "Microsoft Word is not Available" when generating their ConOps. This may be due to an incompatibility between the version of Word and the versions of other Office products on the user's machine, e.g., Visio 2016 with Office 2010. You may need to zip the files and move to another computer to try the steps again or try updating the other Office products to be the same version.



Project Architecture Document Generation

A Project Architecture document can be used to provide a single output that contains the data and diagrams that describe your project using all of the information stored in SET-IT.

SET-IT supports the generation of a Project Architecture document with general and content specific setup choices.

The document setup screen for the Project Architecture document is shown below:

Document Setup	×
General Content	
Document Setup	
Folder	Province
	browse
Document Filename	
Document Template	C-Ja
ArchDoc Template	Edit
Restore Template	
Title Page Information	Use Template
Architecture Document	A Description of the Project for V2I Safety
Author(s)	Organization
buch h block (hee)	
Version	Agency
V3.0.3	Merterr
09/16/2021 Use Today's Date	
	Ready to Create? Close

The document Setup window has 2 tabs: General and Content. The General tab has several features. The top area sets up the file information – folder location, filename, and the document template to use. The bottom area sets up what will appear on the title page or in the version control page behind the title page.

On either tab, you can also select "Use Template" and the bottom fields will be greyed out.

The "Edit" button launches Microsoft Word file called a template (has a .dot file extension). A template file is used when you expect to use the same pattern on multiple documents. With SET-IT, editing the template allows you to make changes to the template that will be used to generate the whole document. You can then let SET-IT save those changes for the next time you update the document.

In the template, there are sections for you to provide background about the project and how the project will be developed and used in the future. The Project Architecture document generated by either template will include diagrams and tables that are maintained in SET-IT.

Start with the template and customize it to suit your project's needs.

TIP: Use the **Edit Template** feature to develop your project specific content that the architecture views don't include, e.g., high-level background about the project. You don't want to wait until SET-IT is done to edit the document. That way SET-IT won't know how to store extra information. By editing the *template* and then generating the document you can reuse that descriptive information and store it with the other definitions and your project diagrams.

The next tab on the Document Setup window is the Content tab as shown below:

ieneral Content Project Architecture Outline Architecture Scope ITS Stakeholders Enterprise Context Diagrams ITS System Inventory Physical Layer 2 Diagrams Verse Needs Functionality Interfaces Between ITS Systems Physical Context Diagrams Physical Layer 0 Diagrams Physical Layer 1 Diagrams Physical Layer 1 Diagrams Communications Communication Solution Diagrams Agreements Enterprise Layer 0 Diagrams	Section Attributes Include in Body Body Attributes Chapter Title ITS Services Body Options Include Descriptions Include Associated Elements Include Comments Include in Appendix Appendix Attributes Appendix Title ITS Services Details Appendix Options Include Descriptions Include in Appendix Image: Appendix Attributes Appendix Options Image: Include Descriptions Image: Include Associated Elements Image:
--	---

SET-IT is showing the outline of the document and as you click on each section on the left side you will see some information about that section on the right.

You can also decide to exclude a section entirely by unchecking the box at the top. You can change the title of that section in the Chapter Title field shown on this screen or check the Use Template box and SET-IT will pick up the name as it's called in the Word template you will edit.

Depending on the section there may be Options to include or exclude using the checkboxes on the right side of the Content Setup screen. You can also decide to include some information in the Body of the document and some information in the Appendix. It may make sense to include basic information like the names and descriptions in the Body and the details like mappings to elements or diagrams for the appendices.

To include Context Diagrams you now have a choice: you can select from existing diagrams or let the Document Generator create and insert new diagrams when you click the Create button.



On the left side of the Content tab select the 'Physical Context Diagrams' section. On the right side of the Content tab select which diagrams to include and when the Create button is pushed it will regenerate the latest diagrams for those elements. Alternatively, you can click the 'Select existing file,' and it will prompt you for the file location and name of the Visio file when it gets to that portion of the Document generation process.

NOTE: if an alias has been applied to a flow that alias will be shown on the diagrams instead of the original flow name. Use the Apply Alias check box on the Flow Details form or on the Information Flows Definitions grid.

To Edit the Template, click the "Edit" button next to the Document Template box on the General tab or click the "Edit Template" on the Content tab.

Clicking "Edit Template" will open a word file called "ArchDoc Template.dot" which is a word file that is used as a template for other documents. You can and should edit this file to update the areas between the "{**" and "**}" marks. When you are done save and exit Word. Making changes in this way will allow you to be able to keep things that you have written while continuing to make changes to the architecture in SET-IT.

TIP: You may notice sometime that your ArchDoc Template (.dot) file opens as "Read-Only". This can happen if you had already generated a draft of your project architecture document using the Create step (described below) and that document is still open. If that happens and you need to make updates to the ArchDoc Template file, simply close both (or all) copies of Word that are open and go back to SET-IT and click the "Edit Template" button again.

After your document settings are setup on the General and the Content tabs you can press the "**Ready to Create?**" button to see if you really are ready. This will produce a To-Do-List Report in Word showing areas where the template hasn't been customized yet or that no diagrams are selected. You can go back and change the settings and close this window.

Once you are ready then select **Create** – the progress window will show what it is doing and tell you when it is done. Then you can **View** that document in Word.

Note the cover page includes the title, subtitle, author, and other information from the Setup screen along with an icon indicating that this document was developed using SET-IT.

TIP: Use Save As to save a copy of the document with the date or a number of the draft and then as you make changes and add to your architecture you can regenerate the ConOps document without losing the earlier drafts.

Notes sections are automatically included if you entered Notes into the fields on the Overview menus in either the Enterprise, Physical, or Communications views. Enterprise view notes will be included in the ITS Stakeholders section. Physical view notes will be included in the ITS Services section and Communications view notes will be in the Communications section.

System Requirements Specification (SyRS) Document Generation

A System Requirements Specification (SyRS) document is used to provide a single output that contains the requirements that are to be fulfilled by the implementation of the system being described in this SET-IT project. In Systems Engineering, requirements drive the development effort. It is these 'shall' statements that will be the basis for verifying that the system was built correctly and is ready to be handed off to the user and/or agency responsible for the operation of the new system. The outline for this document is based on the International Standards Organization (ISO) Standards 29148.

SET-IT supports the generation of a SyRS with general and content specific setup choices.

The document General setup screen for the SyRS is shown below:

Document Setup	
Folder	
C:\SETIT\V2I Safety Initiative	Browse
Document Filename	
SyRS	
Document Template	
SvBS (ISO 29148) Template	✓ Edit
	- Lun
Restore Template	
	🗌 Use Templa
Title Page Information	Use Templa
Title Page Information	Use Templa
Title Page Information Title System Requirements Specification	Use Templa Subtitle SyRS for Vehicle to Infrastructure Safety Initiative
Title Page Information Title System Requirements Specification Author(s)	Use Templa Subtitle SyRS for Vehicle to Infrastructure Safety Initiative Organization
Title Page Information Title System Requirements Specification Author(s) Butch R Block (KCC)	Use Templa Subtitle SyRS for Vehicle to Infrastructure Safety Initiative Organization
Title Page Information Title System Requirements Specification Author(s) Butch R Block (KCC) Version	Use Templa Subtitle SyRS for Vehicle to Infrastructure Safety Initiative Organization
Title Page Information Title System Requirements Specification Author(s) Butch R Block (KCC) Version 9.1	Use Templa Subtitle SyRS for Vehicle to Infrastructure Safety Initiative Organization KCC. Agency
Title Page Information Title System Requirements Specification Author(s) Butch R Block (KCC) Version 9.1	Use Templa Subtitle SyRS for Vehicle to Infrastructure Safety Initiative Organization KCC Agency Marinara County DOT
Title Page Information Title System Requirements Specification Author(s) Butch R Block (KCC) Version 9.1 Date 0.(1/2000	Use Templa Subtitle SyRS for Vehicle to Infrastructure Safety Initiative Organization KCC Agency Marinara County DOT
Title Page Information Title System Requirements Specification Author(s) Butch R Block (KCC) Version 9.1 Date 6/1/2022 Use Today's Date	Use Templa Subtitle SyRS for Vehicle to Infrastructure Safety Initiative Organization KCC. Agency Marinara County DOT

The document Content screen for the SyRS is shown below:

S Document Setup		×
General Content		
Document Outline	Chapter Properties	
Introduction System Purpose System Scope System Overview System Context System Functions User Characteristics Definitions References System Requirements Verification Methods Assumptions and Constraints Acronyms and Abbreviations	Include this chapter SET-IT provides automated content for this chapter. Use the options below to control the automated content and edit the template to customize the introductory text. Edit Template Chapter Title Use Template Title System Requirements Include Diagram Chapter Options Include Service Package in Requirements table(s) Include Verification in Requirements table(s)	
	Ready to Create? Close	

The key section for a Requirements Specification is, of courses, the System Requirements section. Note there are options here on whether to include the Type of requirement in the tables and whether to include the Verification method in the tables of requirements. If you are in 'system' mode based on the Project / Options / Requirements menu screen then you will see an additional option here on the document setup screen to choose whether or not to include the Service Package in the Requirements table. It will be defaulted to yes.

The document generator will look through the requirements definitions table to see if there are any requirements that have Info Only checked. If there are then it will use those to break up the table into sections of requirements.

The document generator will also look to see if you had set your options (see *Requirements Options*) to use System level requirements or to allocate requirements to each element. If you selected Element mode, then it will break up the requirements section into a separate table for each element.

As with the ConOps and the Project Architecture document the template can be edited and should be to ensure that the content reflects what is needed for this project. Use the same process as described to edit the ConOps template. Once the template is saved it will stay with the project and any updates to the database of requirements will be reflected in the SyRS the next time you generate the document.

Output Diagrams

SET-IT provides tools to create a set of diagrams in addition to the service package-focused views that ARC-IT provided. These can be either Interface Diagrams that show the information flows between selected pairs of elements, Context Diagrams that put a selected element in the middle and show the information flows that go to or from that element, or Communications Diagrams that show the Communications Solutions for the information flows in your architecture.

Interface Diagrams

Interface Diagrams show the information flows between selected pairs of elements. These can be very useful when developing a project architecture and you need to settle on the specific information exchanges between 2 system elements, particularly between systems owned by different stakeholders or that will require certain standards to be applied. Once you select the elements for which you want to generate diagrams, SET-IT will then generate a separate Visio file with the diagrams that can then be printed or imported into other outputs, e.g., interface specifications or presentations.

From the Output Ribbon, click Diagrams and Interface Diagrams.



On the Interface Diagrams screen the list of elements from your inventory will be shown on the left of the screen. As you click the name of the elements (one at a time) the right side of the screen will show you the list of elements with which the left element interfaces.

S Interface Diagrams		-		×
Click/highlight elements (one at a time) from the list below and then select the interfaces on the right panel				
Bements Interfaces				_
Area Drivers PASTA Equipped Bus Fleet Cellular-Equipped Vehicles Boadway Environment Device and Application System Security Credentials Management System Digital Map System Socurity Credentials Management System Digital Map System Control Traveler Information Devices Field Location and Time Source (LTS) Security Credentials Management System Marinara County Data Sharing System Traveler Information Devices MC Field Maintenance Equipment Vehicles MC Freeway Operators Vehicles MC Treeway Management Certer (BASIL/PINCH) Security Credentials Management Certer (BASIL/PINCH) MC Treeway Management Certer (BASIL/PINCH) MCDT Evenomental Sensors MCDOT Dynamic Message Signs MCDOT Evronmental Sensors MCDDPW Certer Personnel MCDPW Certer Personnel MCDDT Speed Monitoring MCDPW Certer Personnel MCDPW Certer Personnel Condent Selected Interfaces Ledgend	ASIL/PINCH) a faces Exclu	de All Inte	afaces	
() No interfaces Some interfaces All interfaces				
Diagram Generator Status The current element selection will result in	n O diagram.			
Idle Open in Visio application	Save to a Visio fil	e		
	ienerate	Close		

In the example shown above, the user has opened the Interface Diagrams window and clicked to highlight one of the elements – Digital Map System. On the right side there are 5 elements listed that interface with the Digital Map System in some way.

The next step is to then click the check boxes for each inventory element that you want to see a diagram for. So, for instance, after clicking to highlight Digital Map System you see that it interfaces with Equipped Vehicles, the TMC, CV Roadside Equipment, the Maintenance center, and traveler information devices. The next step is to click one or more of those elements on the right.

S Interface Diagrams	– 🗆 X
Click/highlight elements (one at a time) from the list below and then select the interfaces on the right panel	
Elements Interfac	25
Area Drivers Cellular-Equipped Vehicles Center Location and Time Source (LTS) Device and Application Cetification System Digital Map System Faulipped Vehicles Center Location and Time Source (LTS) Marinara County Data Sharing System Center Information Devices Vehicles Select All Deselect All De	pped Vehicles Freeway Management Center (BASIL/PINCH) DOT CV Roadde Equipment PW GARLIC Information System reler Information Devices
, Diagram Generator Status The cu	ent element selection will result in 2 diagrams
Idle () O	en in Visio application O Save to a Visio file
	Generate Close

A message at the bottom right of the screen will let you know if your selections will not result in any diagrams, i.e. if you pick 2 elements that don't interact. It will also change to show you how many diagrams will be drawn. This could help you decide if you want to run it multiple times with fewer diagrams each time. The more element combinations selected the more CPU, memory, and time will be needed.

After picking one or more elements on the left and then as you click elements on the right you will see the icons change. The circles beside the elements on the left will fill in as you select elements:

- Blank circle means no interface diagrams for that element will be drawn
- Partially filled circle means some interface diagrams for that element will be drawn
- Completely filled circle means that all of the diagrams for that element will be drawn

Buttons on the left to "Select All" or "Deselect All" and buttons on the right to "Include All Interfaces" or "Exclude All Interfaces" help you with your selection process.

You can choose to "Open in Visio application" or to just "Save to a Visio file".

Next click the "Generate" button and it will create a Visio file with a tab for each pairing of elements.

If you clicked Open then it will launch Visio to show the diagrams it has generated.

MC Freeway			MCDOT CV Roadside
Management Center	•	(28) environmental situation data (c)-	Equipment
(BASIL/PINCH)	•	(28) queue warning application status (c)	
(4	(2B) RSE application status (c)	
	4	(2B) speed warning application status (c)	
		(28) traffic situation data (c)	
		(2R) vahicle simane application status (c)	ò ó
		(20) environment control commands (c)	
		(20) equipment control commands (c)	
		(28) queue warning application information (c)	
	+	(28) RSE application information (c)	
		(28) RSE application install/upgrade (c)	
	+	(2B) speed warning application info (c)	
	+	(28) vehicle signage application info (c)	
			Digital Map System <> Equipped Vehicles
			Digital Map System <> MC Freeway Management Ce
			Digital Map System <> MCDOT CV Roadside Equipm
			Digital Map System <> MCDPW GARUC Information
			Digital Map System <> Traveler Information Devices
			Equipped Vehicles <> MCDOT CV Roadside Equipment
			MC Freeway Management Center (BASIL/PINCH) <

You can save this Visio file for later use. You can also select to just use the "Save to a Visio file" option and it will create and save the file in the project folder.

NOTE: if an alias has been applied to a flow that alias will be shown on the diagram instead of the original flow name. Use the Apply Alias check box on the Flow Details form or on the Information Flows Definitions grid. If two flows have the same alias, they are reduced to one flow in this diagram output.

TIP: If you notice that it is taking a lot of your system resources (CPU, Memory) or just a long time to generate the diagrams then consider breaking it up and selecting subsets of the diagrams you need and create separate files.

Context Diagrams

Context Diagrams focus on one element/resource or stakeholder at a time and then draw the interfaces or relationships that go into or out of that one element of stakeholder. These are good for guiding conversations with stakeholders so they can see their system in the middle and all the inputs and outputs their system will be responsible for. This provides a way that they can gain an understanding of how they fit in the overall scheme of the project.

From the Output Ribbon, click Diagrams and Context Diagrams.



Another window will open that is similar to the Interface Diagrams generation window.

S Context Diagrams	- 🗆 X
Context Diagrams Clock-highlight elements (one at a time) from the list below and then select the interfaces on the right panel Context Elements Al Types Al Classes Al Clase Al Cla	Interfaces Image: Connectors Image: Connectors
MCDOT Drivario Message Signs MCDOT Environmental Sensors	Include All Interfaces Exclude All Interfaces Select All Deselect All The current element selection will result in 4 diagrams. Open in Visio application Generate Generate Gose

There are 3 areas on the Physical/Enterprise Context Diagram Setup window corresponding to 3 basic steps:

- Elements (or Context Stakeholders for Enterprise view) provides a listing of all of the Elements in your architecture or Stakeholders when in the Enterprise view. Select which ones to include in your output. In the physical view use the pull-downs to filter the Types (System or Human) or Class (Center, Field, Personal, Support, or Vehicle). You can also click Select All or Deselect All as a short-cut.
- Interfaces (or Coordinations in Enterprise) provides another list of Elements (Physical Objects) or Stakeholders (Enterprise Objects) that you want to include around the element of focus. For instance, there may only be a small set of elements that you need to focus on – the primary systems in your project or region. You can also use the Type and Class pull-downs to filter the selections.
- Connectors provides a pull-down to select the type of connections to show: Flows (layer 2) or Physical Interconnects (layer 0 or 1). In the Enterprise view you can select between Agreements and/or Expectations. In either view you can also decide which Status Values all, existing, project, new opportunities, etc. to include perhaps to show separate diagrams for before and after your new system is installed.

Notice on the left that as you make selections in the middle and right of the screen that the buttons beside each Element or Stakeholder will fill-in to indicate that some or all of the interfaces or coordinations for that element or stakeholder are going to be generated.

There will also be a message that says how many diagrams will be generated to give you some idea of how long it will take or how involved the process will be. It may also tell you that there will be no diagrams generated which can indicate that you need to redo some of the filtering selections. For instance, maybe there are no 'Future' interfaces surrounding one of the elements. Go back up and change the status to Existing or Project to see if it changes. This can be a tool to help you debug issues in your project, too.

At the bottom, select whether to save the output directly into a Visio file or to open it up and display the results in Visio. Press **Generate** and SET-IT will build a new drawing file that has a diagram for each physical element or enterprise stakeholder selected in the left column of the setup screen.

During the creation of the diagrams if you click the **Cancel** button, it will cancel the diagram creation. This is useful if you have a lot of diagrams but remember that you needed to edit something first. It will stop the process and you can come back and change the selections and hit Generate again.

NOTE: if the element in the middle happens to be a communications type element, then the context diagram will show the flows that pass through the communications element. So, for each triple that uses a particular communications element, that communications element's context diagram should show two lines: one from the source to the communications element, and one from the communications element to the destination.

Flows on context diagrams for the non-communications elements that make use of communications or DDS elements will show the flow name on the context diagram with the (c) or (d) or both, as appropriate to the individual flow.

NOTE: if an alias has been applied to a flow that alias will be shown on the diagram instead of the original flow name. Use the Apply Alias check box on the Flow Details form or on the Information Flows Definitions grid. If two flows have the same alias, they are reduced to one flow in this diagram output.

Communications Diagrams

The next type of diagram that can be created and output with SET-IT is the Communications Diagrams when you are in the Communications View.



The Communications Diagrams feature works similarly to the Document generator with a Setup, Create, and Preview/View window:

🧧 Communicatio	n Diagrams	×
Setup	Create	Preview
		Close

Press the "Setup" button to see the list of interfaces (information flow triples from the Physical View) and the Communications Solution that has been selected in the Communications View for that triple.

С	ommunication Diagram Setup					×
					All Iss	sues Select All
s	elect communication diagrams				No Iss	Sues Deselect All
	Source 💌	Flow	Destination	Solution	Include Issues	Create Diagram 🔺
	Center Location and Time Source (LTS)	GPS (location and time)	MC Freeway Management Center (BASIL/PINCH)	GNSS Data - GNSS serial int		
ſ	Center Location and Time Source (LTS)	GPS (location and time)	MCDPW GARLIC Information System	GNSS Data - GNSS serial int		
	Center Location and Time Source (LTS)	GPS (location and time)	TOMATO Regional Traveler Information Center	GNSS Data - GNSS serial int		
	Digital Map System	MAP (intersection geometry)	Equipped Vehicles	US: SAE Other J2735 - Secu		
	Digital Map System	MAP (intersection geometry)	MC Freeway Management Center (BASIL/PINCH)	US: SAE Other J2735 - Secu		
	Digital Map System	MAP (intersection geometry)	MCDOT CV Roadside Equipment	US: SAE Other J2735 - Secu		
	Digital Map System	MAP (intersection geometry)	MCDPW GARLIC Information System	US: SAE Other J2735 - Secu		
	Digital Map System	MAP (intersection geometry)	Traveler Information Devices	US: SAE Other J2735 - Secu		
	Digital Map System	map updates	Equipped Vehicles	MC Map Data Distribution for		
	Digital Map System	map updates	MC Freeway Management Center (BASIL/PINCH)	MC Map Data Distribution for		
	Digital Map System	map updates	MCDOT CV Roadside Equipment	MC Map Data Distribution for		
	Digital Map System	map updates	MCDPW GARLIC Information System	MC Map Data Distribution for	\checkmark	
	Digital Map System	map updates	Traveler Information Devices	MC Map Data Distribution for	\checkmark	
	Digital Map System	roadway geometry	Equipped Vehicles	US: SAE Lane-Level Mappin	\checkmark	
	Digital Map System	roadway geometry	MCDOT CV Roadside Equipment	US: SAE Lane-Level Mappin	\checkmark	
	Equipped Vehicles	BSM (vehicle control event)	MCDOT CV Roadside Equipment	US: SAE Basic Safety Messa	\checkmark	
	Equipped Vehicles	BSM (vehicle location and m	Digital Map System	US: SAE Other J2735 - Secu		
L	Equipped Vehicles	PSM (ushiala laastian and m	MCDOT CV/ Pasdaida Equipment	LIC: CAE Pasia Cafaby Masaa		
					С	OK Close

Use the check boxes on the right to pick which interfaces you want to see drawn. You can also use the Select All or Deselect All buttons as short cuts.

The "Include Issues" column let's you decide if you want to include the gaps and issues associated with the communications solutions (or their standards or profiles) directly on the communications solutions diagrams. If you check the box, you will see them in a list directly below the communications protocol diagram. You can use the "All Issues" or "No Issues" boxes to check/uncheck all of the cells in that column at once as a short cut.

The Setup window is a good opportunity to see if you agree with the way things have been developed in your project architecture so far. For instance, there may be interfaces you expected to see that are missing or that the names don't look right. Now is the time to go back to the Physical view and make changes – either in the diagrams or in the definitions menus – or to the Communications view and adjust the solution chosen.

NOTE: if an alias has been applied to a flow that alias will be shown on the list with the original flow name in parentheses. Use the Apply Alias check box on the Flow Details form or on the Information Flows Definitions grid. If two flows have the same alias, they are reduced to one flow in this diagram output.

Once you are satisfied with the selected diagrams, close this window with OK or Close button.

Now press the Create button to start the process. The progress bar will update as each of the diagrams is being created.

S Communication	n Diagrams	×
Setup	Create	Preview
Creating Diagram: <us: ntcip="" warnin<br="">MC Freeway Manag</us:>	ng Device - SNMPv3/T rement Center (BASIL/P	LS (Intermediary)> INCH)=>speed
		Cancel
		Cancel

Once the process is complete it will say it succeeded and you can click Preview.

🧧 Communicatio	on Diagrams	×
Setup	Create	Preview
Success! Diagrams	s creation completed.	
		Close

When it is done the Preview button will be highlighted. The Preview screen shows the list of diagrams on the left and a preview snapshot of what the diagram looks like.

Communications Diagram Preview			
<us: (its)="" -="" device="" enrollment="" internet="" secure=""> Seci. <us: (its)="" -="" internet="" misbehavior="" reporting="" secure=""> E <us: (its)="" -="" internet="" misbehavior="" reporting="" secure=""> N <us: (its)="" -="" internet="" misbehavior="" reporting="" secure=""> N</us:></us:></us:></us:>	US: NTCIP Environmental Sensors - SNMPv3/TLS MCDOT Environmental Sensor s=>environmental sensor data=>MC Freeway Management Center (BASIL/PINCH)		
<us: (its)="" -="" internet="" misbehavior="" reporting="" secure=""> N <us: -="" environmental="" ntcip="" sensors="" snmpv3="" td="" tls<=""><td colspan="2">NTCIP 1204</td></us:></us:>	NTCIP 1204		
cUS: NTCIP Environmental Sensors - SNMPv3/TLS cUS: NTCIP Environmental Sensors - SNMPv3/TLS; cUS: NTCIP Generic Device - SNMPv3/TLS (Interme cUS: NTCIP Message Sign - SNMPv3/TLS (Interme cUS: NTCIP Message Sign - SNMPv3/TLS (Interme	Mgmt Pacifities ISO Security I III IIII IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII		
<us: -="" message="" ntcip="" sign="" snmpv3="" tls=""> MCDO <us: -="" message="" ntcip="" sign="" snmpv3="" tls=""> MCDO <us: -="" message="" ntcip="" sign="" snmpv3="" tls=""> MCDO <us: (intermec<br="" -="" ntcip="" roadside="" snmpv3="" tls="" unit=""><us: -="" fiel<br="" mc="" ntcip="" roadside="" snmpv3="" tls)="" unit=""><us: -="" ntcip="" roadside="" snmpv3="" tls="" unit=""> MC Fiel <us: fiel<br="" ntcip="" roadside=""><td>The standard allows for multiple security mechanisms. The only defined mechanism that meets the requirements for C-ITS is the one based on TLS. 2) The standard is missing accuracy requirements for some of its data, which may result in a nomalous behavior. 3) Data has been defined for SNMPV1, but needs to be updated to SNMPV3 format. 4) The standard includes normative references to other standards that have been subject to significant changes that can impact interportability or security of any ethers and the industry has not specified if and how these updates should be implemented for deployments of this standard. Edit Close</td></us:></us:></us:></us:></us:></us:></us:></us:></us:></us:></us:></us:></us:></us:></us:></us:></us:></us:></us:></us:></us:></us:></us:></us:></us:></us:></us:></us:></us:></us:></us:></us:></us:></us:></us:></us:>	The standard allows for multiple security mechanisms. The only defined mechanism that meets the requirements for C-ITS is the one based on TLS. 2) The standard is missing accuracy requirements for some of its data, which may result in a nomalous behavior. 3) Data has been defined for SNMPV1, but needs to be updated to SNMPV3 format. 4) The standard includes normative references to other standards that have been subject to significant changes that can impact interportability or security of any ethers and the industry has not specified if and how these updates should be implemented for deployments of this standard. Edit Close		

You can click Edit to open the diagram in Visio or click Close to close this window.

If you would like to edit the diagrams at this point you can click Edit to launch a copy of Visio. Visio will launch with the set of diagrams just created in a separate file. It is a good idea if you envision making changes directly to the Visio drawings to save the file off into a separate location so that the next time you use SET-IT to generate the Comm diagrams it won't write over your changes.

SET-IT creates separate drawing, shown as a separate tab in Visio, for each Information Flow Triple. The top of the diagram shows the name of the Communications Solution and the name of the information flow triple (with source, flow name, and destination). The color coding matches the coloring of the components of the Communications View from ARC-IT. In each box you see the standards associated with that layer or component and there may be one or more icons representing gaps or issues with the standards associated with that solution. The superscript number above each of the Gap icons will point to the issue description like a footnote.

Below the figure you will see the issue descriptions that are represented by the icons in the figure.

US: NTCIP Environmental Sensors - SNMPv3/TLS MCDOT Environmental Sensors=>NTCIP-ess (environmental sensor data)=>MC Freeway Management Center (BASIL/PINCH)			
ITS Application Entity			
NTCIP 1204			
Mgmt	Facilities	Security 🚮 ໜ	
Bundle: SNMPv3 MIB NTCIP 1201	TransNet Internet Transport Alternatives IP Alternatives	IETF RFC 6353	
	Access Field SubNet Alternatives		
 The standard allows for multiple security mechanisms. The only defined mechanism that meets the requirements for C-ITS is the one based on TLS. Data has been defined for SNMPv1, but needs to be updated to SNMPv3 format. (Ignored) The standard includes normative references to other standards that have been subject to significant changes that can impact interoperability or security of systems and the industry has not specified if and how these updates should be implemented for deployments of this standard. 			

If the Ignore flag was set for an issue on the Issues table then that will be reflected in 2 ways on the diagram. The gap icon will be shown with a greyed out effect and the word "(Ignored)" will be written at the end of that issue.

If changes are needed to the mappings go back to the Communications View Definitions to update the mappings and other information, then regenerate the diagrams.